Haringey Council

Special Planning Sub Committee

WEDNESDAY, 20TH JULY, 2011 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Basu, Beacham, Demirci (Chair), Peacock (Vice-Chair), Reece,
Rice, Schmitz, Scott and Waters

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet
site. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to
be filmed. The Council may use the images and sound recording for internal training
purposes.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the meeting
room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the

possible use of those images and sound recordings for web-casting and/or training
purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal Support Officer
(Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

AGENDA

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR PROCEEDINGS
2. APOLOGIES
3. URGENT BUSINESS

It being a special meeting of the Committee, under Part 4, Section B, Paragraph 17 of
the Council’s Constitution, no other business shall be considered at the meeting.



4,

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

WARDS CORNER SITE, HIGH ROAD, N15 (PAGES 1 - 306)

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of mixed use development comprising
Class 3 residential and Class A1/A2/A3/A4 with access, parking and associated
landscaping and public realm improvements.

RECOMMENDATION: Grant permission subject to conditions and subject to
s106/s178 Legal Agreement and direction of the GLA.

Please note, it being a special meeting of the Sub Committee, under the
Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Section B, Paragraph 17, no other business shall
be considered at this meeting.

David McNulty Helen Chapman

Head of Local Democracy Principal Committee Coordinator
and Member Services Level 5

Level 5 River Park House

River Park House 225 High Road

225 High Road Wood Green

Wood Green London N22 8HQ

London N22 8HQ

Tel: 0208 4892615
Email:
helen.chapman@haringey.gov.uk

Tuesday, 12 July 2011



Page 1 Agenda ltem 5

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Planning Sub - Committee On 20" July 2011

Report Title. Planning application report for determination

Report of . Lyn Garner Director of Place & Sustainability
Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Planning Sub - Committee
1. Purpose

Planning applications submitted to the above Committee for determination by Members.

2. Summary

The application present on the following agenda consist of sections comprising a
consultation summary, an officers report entitled planning considerations and a
recommendation to Members regarding the grant or refusal of planning permission.

Report Authorised by:

3. Recommendation{\
See following report. \ ;

()f Marc Dorfman
/ Assistant Director Planning & Regeneration

(

Contact officer: Ahmet Altinsoy
Development Management Support Team Leader Tel: 0208 489 5114

4. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Planning staff and application case files are located at 639 High Road, London N17 8BD.
Applications can be inspected at those offices 9.00am — 5.00pm, Monday - Friday. Case
Officers will not be available without appointment. In addition application case files are
available to view print and download free of charge via the Haringey Council website:
WWW . haringey.gov.uk. From the homepage follow the links to ‘planning’ and ‘view
planning applications’ to find the application search facility. Enter the application
reference number or site address to retrieve the case details.

The Development Management Support Team can give further advice and can be
contacted on 0208 489 5508, 9.00am — 5.00pm, Monday — Friday.




Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3

Planning Committee Item No.

REPORT FOR CONSIDERATION AT PLANNING COMMITTEE

Reference No: HGY/2008/0303 Ward: Tottenham Green

Address: Wards Corner Site, High Road N15

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of mixed use development
comprising Class C3 residential and Class A1/A2/A3/A4 with access, parking and
associated landscaping and public realm improvements.

Existing Use: Retail and Residential Proposed Use: Mixed Use

Applicant: Grainger (Seven Sisters) Ltd

Ownership: Private/Public

Date received: 06/02/2008 Last amended date: 12/07/2011

Drawing number of plans: P (00) 00, P (00) 01C, P (00) 02, P (00) 03, P (00) 04, P (00)
05, P (00) 06, P (00) O7A, P (00) 08A, P (00) 09, P (00) 10, P (00) 20, P (00) 21, P (00)
100B, P (00) 101A, P (00) 102A, P (00) 103A, P (00) 110A, P (00) 111A.Design and
Access Statement: Wards Corner Seven Sisters Design and Access Statement and
accompanying statements by Pollard Thames Edwards Architects January 2008.

Case Officer Contact: Jeffrey Holt

PLANNING DESIGNATIONS:

Tube Lines
Conservation Area
Road Network: C Road

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT PERMISSION subiject to conditions and subject to s106/s278 Legal Agreement
and direction of the GLA.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee




Page 4

SUMMARY OF REPORT:

The application proposes the demolition of all buildings on site and the erection of a
modern mixed use development with retail on the ground floor of the Seven Sisters, High
Road and West Green Road frontages and flats on the upper floors. Development on
Suffield Road will be completely residential. In total 197 private market dwellings are
proposed.

Prior to and during the life of the application, the council and the applicants have engaged
with key stake holders to develop a scheme which addresses local issues while delivering
major regeneration.

The application was originally approved in December 2008 however the planning consent
was quashed in June 2010 by the Court of Appeal. The Court of Appeal considered that
the Planning Committee had not fully discharged its duty under section 71 of the Race
Relations Act, 1976. Following this decision the application is now being re-determined.
Physically, the scheme is mostly unchanged however a modified s106 agreement is
proposed.

In re-determining the application, officers had regard to the Council’s obligations under the
Equality Act 2010. An independent Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken by URS
Scott Wilson and it was found that the proposal is unlikely to give rise to major negative
equality impacts provided all the measures set out in the s106 agreement are honoured in
full and in a timely manner

The development is considered to deliver regeneration through new quality retail space,
including new accommodation for the Seven Sisters Market (following their temporary
relocation facilitated by the developer); quality family housing; quality amenity space and
children’s play space; and improvements to the public realm. The development is a high
quality modern design suitable for a distinctive site and it will not cause significant harm to
public and private transport networks or neighbouring amenity.

The provision of affordable housing was found to be unviable and this has been verified
independently by District Valuer Services (DVS).

The development will involve the loss of identified Heritage Assets through the demolition
of buildings in a Conservation Area, some of which are locally listed. The harm caused by
the loss of these Heritage Assets is considered to be outweighed by the public benefits
delivered by the scheme.

The applicant has engaged directly with existing residents and business on site,
particularly the market traders, and has proposed a package of measures to compensate
for their inevitable displacement. These measures were proposed following input from the
affected residents and traders as well as the recommendations in the Equalities Impact
Assessment and those from the GLA. Implementation of these measures will be secured
through a s106 agreement.

On balance it is the officers’ view that the scheme is consistent with planning policy and
that subject to appropriate conditions and s106 contributions the application should be
approved subject to direction of the GLA.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee




Page 5

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

2.0 PLANNING HISTORY

3.0 PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

5.0 CONSULTATION

6.0 ANALYSIS/ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION

Application background 6.2
Regeneration Policy Context 6.3-6.9
Development Brief 6.10 - 6.18
Regeneration Benefits 6.19 - 6.30
Retail Uses 6.31-6.33
Seven Sisters Market 6.34 - 6.46
Residential 6.47 - 6.50
Density 6.51 -6.53
Affordable Housing 6.54 - 6.56
Viability 6.57 - 6.59
Dwelling Mix 6.60 - 6.62
Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Access 6.63 - 6.64
Conservation 6.65 - 6.79
Design 6.60 - 6.112
Public Art 6.113 -6.114
Amenity space 6.115
Children’s Play space 6.116 - 6.118
Contamination 6.119
Archaeology 6.120
Sustainability Energy 6.121 - 6.125
Traffic and Parking 6.126 - 6.133
Air Quality 6.134 - 6.137
Community Safety 6.138 - 6.144
Drainage 6.145

Noise and Vibration 6.146 - 6.147
Daylight and Sunlight 6.148 - 6.150

Environmental Impact Assessment 6.151 - 6.154

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



7.0
8.0
9.0
10.0
11.0
12.0
13.0

Page 6

Equalities Impact Assessment

Planning Obligations/s106 Agreement

HUMAN RIGHTS
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
PREDETERMINATION
SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
RECOMMENDATION 1
RECOMMENDATION 2
REASONS FOR APPROVAL

For Sub Committee

6.155 - 6.163
6.164 - 6.182

OFFREPC
Officers Report



Page 7

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Consultation responses

Appendix 2: Planning Policies

Appendix 3: Summary of Equalities Impacts and Recommendations by URS
Scott Wilson and conditions/s106 provisions in response

Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment prepared by URS Scott Wilson

Appendix 5: Executive Summary of Toolkit Analysis by DVS

Appendix 6: Development Management Forum Minutes

Appendix 7: Summary of GLA reports

Appendix 8: GLA reports

Appendix 9: Court of Appeal judgement
Appendix 10: Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 8

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

The Wards Corner site is a prominent site located on the Western side of
Tottenham High Road comprises 227 to 259 High Road 709 — 723 Seven
Sisters Road 1a — 11 West Green Road and 8 — 30 Suffield Road which are 2/3
storey Victorian properties. The net site area is 0.65 of a hectare. The site
contains the former Wards Corner Department Store and is situated above the
Seven Sisters Victoria Line Underground Station and tunnels.

The site comprises retail and commercial floorspace on the ground and first
floors on the High Road footage with retail commercial on the ground floor with
residential above on the other two main frontages. Suffield Road is different in
character being a relatively quiet residential street. There are currently 33
residential units falling within the boundary of the site.

The front part of the site falls within the West Green Road/Seven Sisters
Conservation Area. The Tottenham High Road Regeneration Strategy (2002)
and Tottenham High Road Historic Corridor Policy AC3 identifies Wards Corner
as a key Regeneration site. The site falls within the Bridge New Deal for
Communities Area. The site is the subject of the Wards Corner/Seven Sisters
Underground Development Brief dated January 2004.

West Green Road/Seven Sisters shopping area is classified as a District Centre
in the Unitary Development Plan. The total retail floorspace on site is currently
3,182sq metres. The existing buildings currently incorporate an indoor market
comprising 36 separate units. Currently a number of the traders are Colombian
or Spanish speaking. The site has a public transport accessibility level of 6
(where 1 is low and 6 is high).

PLANNING HISTORY

This report to Planning Committee is for the re-determination of application ref:
HGY/2008/0303, which was approved in December 2008. In June 2010 the
decision was quashed by the Court of Appeal (see Appendix 9). Further
information relating to the background of the current application is set out in
section 6.2 Application Background.

Previous to this application, there is no significant planning history in relation to
the application site. There have been many small applications in relation to
each of the individual buildings, these are not recorded here in the interests of
brevity but can be found on the Council’s website and in appendix 1 of the
applicant’s initial planning statement of January 2007.

HGY/2008/0177 — NOT DETERMINED — The applicant was the Wards Corner
Coalition - Erection of first floor rear extensions, alterations to rear elevation.
Alterations to front elevation, including new bays at first floor level and dormer
windows to front roof slope, installation of new shopfront, alterations to 3 storey

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



24

2.5

3.1

4.1

4.2

Page 9

corner block, internal alterations to create new shops/workshops/offices/cafe
(A3) use on ground / first floors and creation of 8 x one bed flats at second floor.

The above application was not determined by Haringey Council and the
applicants submitted an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) on grounds
of non-determination. The appeal was lodged 15 May 2010 but it was not
accepted by PINS as the appeal was submitted more than 6 months after the
expiry date of the application. However, once an appeal is made to PINS the
Local Planning Authority is unable to determine the application.

HGY/2008/0322 — GRANTED 17/11/2008-Conservation Area Consent for
demolition of existing buildings 227 — 259 High Road 1a,1b and 1 West Green
Road N15.

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION

The proposed development comprises retail on the ground floor of the Seven
Sisters Road, High Road and West Green Road frontages. A variety of unit
sizes, including provision for an indoor market is proposed amounting in a total
3700 sq metres of floorspace with access via a secure service road with gated
entrance onto Suffield Road. A cafe-bar/restaurant is proposed at first floor level
on the High Road frontage. The residential development comprises 197 new
flats at first floor level and above and apart from 18 family units with direct
access onto Suffield Road situated around a communal garden square at first
floor level accessed via a main foyer with access from the High Road frontage.
The proposed development would include improvements to the public realm on
the High Road and other frontages. The proposal includes the provision of 44
car parking spaces, including 3 disabled spaces in the basement car park.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

The scheme is assessed against planning policy at a National, regional and
local level, including relevant:

National Planning Policy Guidance;

National Planning Policy Statements;

The London Plan 2008 (consolidated with changes since 2004);
Haringey’s adopted Unitary Development Plan 2006; and
Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents.

Planning For Growth

In March 2011, the Minister for Decentralisation made a statement calling for
local planning authorities to support enterprise and facilitate housing, economic
and other forms of sustainable development with appropriate weight given to
the need to support economic recovery.

Draft Replacement London Plan

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 10

4.3  After a consultation in 2008, the Mayor decided to create a replacement Plan
rather than amend the previous London Plan. Public consultation on the Draft
Replacement London Plan took place until January 2010 and its Examination in
Public closed on 8 December 2010. The panel report is expected in March
2011, with a final adoption due in late 2011.

Haringey LDF Core Strategy

4.4  Haringey’s draft Core Strategy has been submitted to the Secretary of State for
an Examination in Public (EiP). This EiP commenced in 28" June with the
binding Inspector’s report expected in October/November 2011. As a matter of
law, some weight should be attached to the Core Strategy policies which have
been submitted for EiP however they cannot in themselves override the
Haringey’s adopted Unitary Development Plan (2006) unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Haringey Development Management DPD

4.5 The consultation draft of the Development Management DPD (DM DPD) was
issued in May 2010 Following the responses received a proposed submission
draft will be published in Spring 2012. The DM DPD is at an earlier stage to the
Core Strategy and can only be accorded limited weight.

4.6  Afulllist of relevant planning policy can be found in Appendix 2.

5. CONSULTATION

5.1 The council undertook wide consultation with both statutory consultees and
local residents. A table of all consultees can be found below.

Statutory Internal External

Transportation Group

Greater London Authority | Cleansing Amenity Groups

(GLA) Building Control Wards Corner Community

English Heritage Conservation Coalition

Commission for Design Tottenham Civic Society

Architecture and the Built Regeneration Tottenham Conservation

Environment (CABE) Policy Area Advisory Committee

Met Police Design Panel (CAAC)

Government Office for The Bridge NDC

London (Gol) LB Hackney

London Fire Brigade LB Waltham Forest

Environmental Agency

Local Residents
Total No of Residents
Consulted: 2,754

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee




Page 11

5.2

5.3

5.4

9.5

5.6

5.7

The application has been put out to consultation twice. The first consultation
occurred in February 2008 when the application was first validated. This first
consultation generated 365 objections and 27 expressions of support from local
residents as well as 11 neutral comments or responses from groups and
statutory consultees.

Following the Judicial Review the application was put out to consultation a
second time in January 2011. To date, this second consultation generated 487
objections, of which 426 are in the form of a standard letter. 13 responses were
supportive of the plans and there were 7 responses from groups and statutory
consultees. The Planning service has a policy of accepting comments right up
to the Committee hearing and in view of this the figure is likely to rise further
before the planning application is determined.

The scheme was presented to the Haringey Design Panel in October 2007 and
feedback was broadly positive. As there have been no significant design
changes in the scheme it was felt unnecessary to re-consult the Design Panel.

Two Development management Forums were held on the 20" March 2008 and
1% February 2011. Approximately 200 residents attended each forum. The
minutes are attached as Appendix 6 of this report.

Officers have considered all consultation responses and have commented on
these in Appendix 1. It is considered that the scheme is acceptable in the
context of these consultation responses.

ICM Poll

M&N PR consultants have submitted a poll carried out by ICM from the 2" to
13" of May 2008 on the instruction of the applicant in relation to the proposed
development stating that a significant number of poll respondents had not
visited the market and only 19% shop there regularly. The poll went on to find
that the respondents felt unsafe in the area at night. That many people thought
that investment in the area was a good idea. That many favoured the provision
of high street shops and local traders. Retaining period buildings was not seen
as a priority. Tackling crime was the most important issue. The methodology
and results of which are shown in summary below:

Methodology
e Interviewed 500 residents in post code areas N15 4, N15 5 and N15 6
e Aged over 18+
e Over the telephone
e Between 1 —12 May 2008 Weighted by age and area i.e. approximately
the same number of people were polled in each age range and area

Key Statistics

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 12

57% of respondents had never visited Seven Sisters market, and only
19% of respondents shop at the market once a month or more often
55% feel unsafe visiting the area at night (including 68% of people aged
18 — 24). This rose to 62% amongst women

81% think substantial investment in the wards Corner area is a good idea
63% favoured the option of providing retail units for use by both high
street shops and local traders, compared to only 30% who wanted retail
focused around the existing and local traders

When asked “what would you say is the most important issue that needs
to be addressed at the wards Corner site?”, only 4% actually specified
that architecture/retaining period buildings was a priority

less than those who suggested better street lighting

Only 3% (17 people out of 500) specified that keeping the market was
important — the same amount who asked for more green areas to be
included

Tackling crime was the overwhelming main priority for respondents, with
42% specifying this option. Providing a better range of shops and making
the area more attractive were joint second with 18%each.

6. ANALYSIS / ASSESSMENT OF THE APPLICATION

6.1

The main issues in respect of this application are considered to be:

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvv

Application background
Regeneration Policy Context
Development Brief
Regeneration Benefits
Retail Uses

Seven Sisters Market
Residential

Density

Affordable Housing
Dwelling Mix

Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Access
Conservation

Design

4)Public Art

5)Amenity space
6)Children’s Play space
7)Contamination
8)Archaeology
9)Sustainability Energy
0)Traffic and Parking
1)Air Quality
2)Community Safety
3)Drainage

4)Noise and Vibration

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.2

Page 13

25
26
27
28

Daylight and Sunlight

Environmental Impact Assessment
Equalities Impact Assessment
Planning Obligations/s106 Agreement

N— N N N

Application Background

This is a re-determination of the planning application ref: HGY/2008/0303. A
timeline of key events relating to this application is provided below:

06/02/2008 Planning and associated Conservation Area Consent applications
received

12/02/2008 Planning Application validated under ref: HGY/2008/0303 and
consultation letters sent to statutory consultees, third parties and
local residents

14/02/2008 Conservation Area Consent application validated under ref:
HGY/2008/0322 and consultation letters sent to statutory
consultees, third parties and local residents

20/03/2008 Development Management Forum held

17111/2008 Planning Committee resolve to approve planning application and
Conservation Area Consent application.

24/12/2008 Planning decision to approve scheme issued

16/06/2009 Judicial Review hearing held

14/07/2009 Judicial Review Dismissed

05/05/2010 Judicial Review Appeal Hearing

22/06/2010 Judicial Review Appeal Allowed: Planning consent quashed

In reaching its decision the Court of Appeal considered that the
Planning Committee had not fully discharged its duty under
section 71 of the Race Relations Act, 1976 in that it did not have
due regard to “the need to promote equality of opportunity and
good relations between persons of different of different racial
groups”.

22/12/2010 Following discussion with Haringey officers, supplementary
planning information is submitted by Grainger seeking re-
determination of the application.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 14

19/01/2011 Consultation letters sent to statutory consultees, third parties and
local residents based

01/02/2011 Development Management Forum held

20/07/2011 Application taken to Planning Committee with recommendation to
approve

Regeneration Policy Context

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

PPS 1: Delivering Sustainable Communities sets out the Government’s position
in relation to achieving identified planning objectives including providing urban
regeneration through mixed-use development, reducing the need to travel and
promoting efficient use of land through higher density and use of previously
developed land and buildings.

PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth states that the Government’s
overarching objective is sustainable economic growth. Policy EC4.1 states that
Local planning authorities should proactively plan to promote competitive town
centre environments and provide consumer choice. Policy EC10.1 states that
local planning authorities should adopt a positive and constructive approach
towards planning applications for economic development. Planning applications
that secure sustainable economic growth should be treated favourably.
Furthermore, Policy EC10.2 requires local planning authorities to assess the
impact of schemes in terms of their climate change impact, transport
accessibility, design, impact on economic and physical regeneration including
impact on deprived areas and social inclusion and impact on local employment.

The Minister for Decentralisation’s statement “Planning For Growth” calls for
local planning authorities to support enterprise and facilitate housing, economic
and other forms of sustainable development with appropriate weight given to
the need to support economic recovery. It is considered that the regeneration of
Wards Corner is consistent with the Minister’s statement.

Policy AC3 ‘Tottenham High Road Regeneration Corridor’ of the UDP 2006
seeks to promote regeneration through development along the Tottenham High
Road corridor. The corridor is considered to be an area where redevelopment
will act as a catalyst for regeneration of the High Road. Seven Sisters
underground/Wards Corner is identified as being capable of being developed as
a landmark mixed use development.

Policy AC4 ‘The Bridge — New Deal for Communities’ UDP 2006 states that the
Bridge New Deal for Communities (NDC) aims to improve the quality of life for
residents by seeking to change the area so that it becomes a better place to
live. The policy identifies Seven Sisters underground station/Wards Corner as
an important site for redevelopment in the area and states that a development
brief advocating mixed use development of the site has been prepared. The
Bridge NDC programme closed in 2011 however its regeneration aims have

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

Page 15

been incorporated into policies within the emerging Core Strategy.

Policy SP1 ‘Managing Growth’ of the Core Strategy aims to manage growth by
focusing Haringey’s growth in the most suitable locations and manage it to
make sure that the Council delivers the opportunities and benefits and achieve
strong, healthy and sustainable communities for the whole of the borough. The
application site is identified in Fig 2.1 Key Diagram and Fig 3.5 Seven Sisters
Area of Change.

A number of changes were agreed at the Core Strategy’s recent Examination in
Public. In particular, the aspirations for the Seven Sisters Corridor under Policy
SP1 were amended to state there is an “opportunity for ensuring that the Seven
Sisters area and the tube and train station provides land marks/gateways to aid
legibility through redevelopment and/or renewal” and that “Wards Corner
regeneration should deliver new houses, shops and public realm improvements
through redevelopment and/or renewal’. It is therefore clear that Policy SP1
seeks to promote development within this location.

Development Brief

The Bridge NDC was a regeneration programme funded by the Department of
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) as part of a national programme
of renewal and regeneration in the most deprived wards in England. The
programme began in 2001 and closed in early 2011.

The activities of the bridge NDC were led by the Communities Partnership
Board. The Board was made up of twenty three members, 12 of whom were
local residents. The Partnership Board was involved in promoting the
redevelopment of Wards Corner for five years. The Community Conference day
on 1st February 2003 informed residents of plans for the Wards Corner Project.

The NDC sponsored Atis Weatherall study in 2003 was a baseline report and
evidence base which then led to the adoption of the Wards Corner
Development Brief (See Appendix 10) which was approved in draft for public
consultation by the Planning Applications Sub Committee on 7th July 2003.
12,000 households were circulated a summary leaflet, and the Development
Brief was adopted in January 2004 by the Executive of the Council.
Subsequently the NDC funded a selection competition to find a lead developer
on the basis of the brief. Grainger PLC the current applicants were
competitively selected in that process.

The Council formally adopted the brief in January 2004. The land covered by
the brief included Apex House, however the brief focused on the Wards Corner
site which is the one which was thought to be most likely to come forward for
development. The brief states that the east of Haringey is recognised as a
deprived area and that the area around the station is perceived as unsafe and
suffers from a high degree of crime.

The brief states that the Council is taking a coordinated approach towards
development along Tottenham High Road where there has been an overall lack

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Page 16

of investment in the building stock. The brief states that the Seven
Sisters/Bridge NDC is responsible for the regeneration of the area and the brief
site falls within their boundary. The brief also refers to the Boroughs Haringey
Retail Capacity assessment (Sept 2003) which also identifies Wards Corner as
a focus for development to improve the District Centres shopping environment.

The vision as stated in the brief is to “Create a landmark development that acts
as a high quality gateway to Seven Sisters, providing mixed uses with improved
facilities and a safer underground station access”.

The brief sets out a number of development principles. The first is a reiteration
of the vision granted above. A series of urban objectives follow including new
development should regenerate and improve the living and working
environment and make the best use of the opportunities presented by the site.
Development must enhance the Conservation Area. New buildings shall be of
distinctive and modern design. Development should reflect the diversity of the
community and improve the public realm and include public art. Development
should be designed to reduce the opportunities for crime and improve
pedestrian access and safety. Development should be mixed use and the
houses lost in Suffield Road should be replaced as part of the scheme. The
current application for the redevelopment of the wards Corner site has been
submitted in the context of the planning brief. The application must be judged
on its merits in relation to National, London and local planning policy and any
other relevant material considerations including the criteria set out in the
development brief.

The brief has been incorporated into the UDP 2006 and is consistent with the
emerging Core Strategy. The development brief remains in force and is a
material consideration when determining applications for development at Wards
Corner.

It is considered that the proposal is consistent with the Development Brief.
Regeneration Benefits

The proposed development would result in the expansion and redesigning of
the public pavement area in front of the High Road frontage. Existing street
clutter would be removed. The mature plane tree will be retained. The entrance
stairs to the Underground Station will be retained and reclad and covered by
glass canopies. Two new retail kiosks will be located next to the existing
entrance stairs. The public space is enlarged by recessing the proposed
development in the centre of the High Road frontage. A large paved circle will
be created shielded by an arc of trees. The space will be provided with high
quality parking, street lighting, signage, bus stops, benches and other street
furniture.

The proposed development would result in the provision of new shops,

including trader’'s market, café bar and restaurant including premises and kiosks
for smaller independent retailers and incorporate space for community use. The
proposed development would result in the provision of 197 homes on the site in

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

Page 17

a mix of dwelling types to appropriate standards of design and layout arranged
around a shared roof garden with seating, planting and play space. The
proposed development would result in the physical regeneration of the site
through comprehensive redevelopment which would represent investment in
the area and would lead to further physical and social economic regeneration in
line with Council Planning Policy.

The above analysis by the Council was carried out in 2008 but officers have
carefully considered whether these conclusions still hold good. Their view
remains that the need for regeneration remains the same, if not stronger.

According to the Office for National Statistics, the Wards Corner ‘Lower Super
Output Area 025D’ or Wards Corner LSOA is the smallest statistical area
covering Wards Corner. According to the Indices of Deprivation 2010, the
Wards Corner LSOA is among the 5-10% most deprived neighbourhoods in
England and Wales. While it is has fallen consistently within this band since
2004, since 2007, the area’s index of deprivation has fallen from 2,846 to 1,805
where a lower number indicates a greater level of deprivation.

Since the application was first considered in 2008, a number of regeneration
schemes have been approved elsewhere in the east of the Borough. These
include the Tottenham Hotspur stadium redevelopment, Tottenham Town Hall
and Hale Village at Tottenham Hale. These developments indicate there is a
general trend of regeneration in the east of the Borough to which the Wards
Corner scheme will play a complementary role.

The Bridge NDC have previously commissioned reports which assessed the
likely impacts the proposal would have on the area.

In March 2006 the Bridge NDC commissioned a report by Cushman and
Wakefield to assess the likely effect of the commercial floor space in the
proposed development on the existing Seven Sisters Centre. (It does not deal
with the residential proposals or the design). In summary the report states that
the problems identified in the development brief appear to persist, and other
issues are coming to the fore e.g. competition from other locations. In terms of
national policy (Planning Policy Statement 6) the report concludes that the
application represents a potentially beneficial development solution that will
address many of these problems, and would conform with local planning policy
and should significantly enhance the viability of the Seven Sisters Centre

In March 2008 the Bridge NDC commissioned a report by Shared Intelligence
Report which assessed the proposed development in relation to the economic
social and environmental well-being of the local area. In summary the report
states that in comparison with the existing conditions the proposed
development is likely to have positive benefits on all the aspects of social
wellbeing assessed, housing, crime and the fear of crime, public transport
services, public realm and training and employment.

Although these reports were commissioned prior to and during the initial
consideration of the application in 2008, it is considered that their conclusions

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.28

6.29

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

Page 18

still hold. This is because the factors identified in the reports are still present.

In the GLA Stage 1 report of July 2008, The London Development Agency
comments on the scheme were as follows. The LDA supported the principle of
development as this is recognised as a gateway location into the Borough, the
LDA welcomes the incorporation of retail frontages onto Tottenham High Road,
Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. In addition, the provision of a range
of retail accommodation of a size suitable for large national high street retailers,
smaller local independent shops as well as a range of complementary facilities
is welcomed as it will help to ensure an appropriate balance and mix of retailers
is achieved.

The LDA welcomed the provision of small retail space suitable for start up
businesses in order to support and promote a diverse retail offer on Tottenham
High Road. This will support the Economic Development Strategy (EDS)
objective to “address barriers to enterprise start — up growth and
competitiveness”. The promotion of small retailers can also assist the needs of
local business, small and medium sized enterprises (SME’s) and black and
minority ethnic businesses which in turn can support the needs of the local
community.

The GLA’s updated Stage 1 report issued 22nd June 2011 states that the GLA
continues to welcome the regeneration of the site, particularly the significant
improvements to the public realm and the improved quality of retail provision.

Retail Uses

The site lies within the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District Centre. The
West Green Road and Tottenham High Road frontages are identified as
primary frontages in the UDP. Seven Sisters Road is within a secondary
frontage. The size and layout of the shops has been designed so that the large
units intended for multiples are on the High Road frontage and the smaller units
are on the West Green Road and Seven Sisters Road frontages where it is
considered that they better match the type of shop and trading at these
locations.

The proposed development will provide 3,792m? of new retail floor space, a net
increase of 610m? above the existing provision on the site.

In the original proposed scheme the retail floor space was provided in the form
of 19 units ranging in size from 319m? to the smallest being 41m?. The larger
units were and still are on the High Road frontage the smaller units are
proposed to be on the West Green Road and Seven Sisters Road frontages.
There is a small ground floor restaurant of 33m? and a first floor restaurant of
320m?. Following consultation with local residents, community groups and the
GLA, 5 proposed retail units on the Seven Sisters Road frontage were
converted into an 876 sqm market area to accommodate the existing Seven
Sisters Market. The replacement market is slightly smaller than the existing as it
has a more efficient layout. It will be large enough to accommodate the same
number of stalls as the existing market.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

Page 19

Seven Sisters Market

Policy 3D.3 of the London Plan, maintaining and improving retail facilities
together with Policy TCR 1 Development in Town and Local Shopping Centres
of the Haringey UDP sets out that boroughs should work with retailers and
others to prevent the loss of retail facilities, including street and farmers’
markets, that provide essential convenience and specialist shopping and to
encourage mixed use development. Following discussions with the GLA in
2008, the applicant has agreed to re-provide the existing Seven Sisters Indoor
Market in the space formerly allocated to retail units 2 to 6 incl. This has been
identified as shown on drawing no P(00)01 including an illustrative layout for the
market, subject to agreement with the market operator.

The market consists of numerous small retail units arranged in groups allowing
visitors to circulate. There are 60 units however many of these have been
combined into larger units. Currently there are approximately 40 separate
traders. Those units which abut the pavement on the High Road also open out
onto the street. The units are occupied by small businesses which trade mostly
in retail goods such as clothing, household goods and music. There are also
hair salons, travel agents, money transfer services and a number of cafes.
There is a strong Latin American presence noticeable by the names of
businesses and goods sold. The retail units are not set up on a daily basis as is
usual in a stall-based market. As such, the market is considered to be more a
retail hall made up of a series of small shops.

The market has been operating in this way since at least 2008 when the Bridge
NDC commissioned Urban Space Management to assess the possibility of
incorporating the market into the new development. The report considered the
market to be a retail hall rather than a day-to-day stall-based market.

The re-provision of the indoor market is subject to reasonable conditions to
ensure that the market is provided for the benefit of the current traders and that
it will be successful in the long term.

The s106 agreement signed in 2008 required the proposed market operator to
demonstrate that no less than 60% of the market traders that previously
occupied the Seven Sisters market showed a formal interest in taking
accommodation within the new market. This was to ensure that the new market
closely followed the nature of the existing market. However, concerns have
been expressed that, should a lower percentage of the market traders show a
formal interest in returning, the market could be lost altogether.

Consequently, it is now proposed that the above requirement be replaced by
one requiring the Market Operator to offer a first right to occupy to all existing
traders on an exclusive and non-assignable licence of an equivalent stall in the
new market area, on reasonable A1 open market terms. This replacement
requirement is designed to offer greater confidence to the existing traders that
they will be able to relocate to the site once the development is completed. The
replacement market is large enough to accommodate all existing traders.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.40

6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

Page 20

In addition the s106 will include obligations requiring that the market must be
run by an experienced indoor market operator; this arrangement is to be in
place not less than 12 months prior to the due practical completion date of the
proposed development; a Market Lease must be in place not less than 6
months prior to the due practical completion date of the proposed development;
and the rent will be for open market A1 use.

In order to assist with a number of practical issues identified relating to the
temporary relocation of the market during the redevelopment of the site, the
s106 will require Grainger and the Council to work together:

¢ to facilitate or fund a specialist facilitator to engage with the traders in
order to find and provide temporary accommodation;

e to liaise with those existing Spanish-speaking traders to promote their
interests in the temporary accommodation; and

e to engage with and provide appropriate business support and advice to
all traders to secure the maximum number of expressions of interest to
return to the site.

The above package will be funded by TfL from the land receipt that it will
receive from the sale of part of the site to the applicant. Although this sale will
not take place until two years from planning consent the applicant will fund the
first two years of the package and will be refunded by TfL at a later date. This
will occur through a s106 agreement. This package is identified in the
independent equalities impact assessment as being key to the acceptability of
the proposal in equalities terms.

The above package (“Market Facilitator Package”) is intended to assist the
market to find a temporary location and to continue functioning. This package
will run for five years from the granting of consent. This package includes a
‘market facilitator’ to work with traders to identify a temporary location, to work
with the Spanish speaking traders to promote their interests in the temporary
location and to provide appropriate business support and advice to all traders to
secure the maximum number of expressions of interest to return to the site as
well funding towards relocation costs and a three month rent free period in the
temporary location. The Market Facilitator will also signpost existing businesses
and employees towards existing appropriate bodies to assist business to
continue trading or individuals to find suitable alternative employment.

Via the market facilitator, the market traders will be offered a reasonable
opportunity to temporarily relocate to a suitable location for the duration of the
construction period at Wards Corner. A ‘suitable location’ is defined as a single
unit within or in close proximity to a defined town or district centre in a London
Borough that provides the same space per trader, for those traders that wish to
be relocated. Until timescales of construction emerge, it is not possible to give
an indication of a possible location.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

6.50

6.51

6.52

Page 21

The applicant has also agreed to provide a minimum notice period of six
months to market traders for vacant possession and is offering a compensation
payment to assist with relocation expenses. This payment is in the form of
£144,000 contribution to a “Trader’s Financial Assistance Sum” (an increase on
the sum of £96,650 agreed in 2008). The traders do not have any tenancy
rights, therefore this payment is voluntary.

The provision of retail and restaurant uses is in accordance with the Council’s
retail planning policy. It is considered that this provision will enhance the vitality
and viability of the District Centre by attracting new retailers to invest in a wider
range of new shops both national and local resulting in more choice and a wider
range of goods for sale in the local area.

Residential

It is well established that there is a need in Haringey and in London as a whole
to provide new housing for a growing population. PPS 3 Housing states that
local Planning Authorities should provide sufficient land but give priority to
reusing previously developed land within urban areas.

Planning Policy HSG 1 New Housing Developments states that new housing
developments will be permitted on sites with high accessibility to public
transport facilities, and where a mix of house types tenure and sizes is provided
where there is access to local services educational and community facilities and
where an appropriate contribution towards ancillary community facilities or open
space is made.

The site is identified in the UDP in planning policies AC3 ‘Tottenham High Road
Corridor’, AC4 ‘The Bridge NDC’ as a development site for mixed use, and
emerging Core Strategy Policy SP1 ‘Managing Growth’. The site is referred to
directly as a site specific proposal SSP21 in the UDP. There is therefore no
objection in principle to residential use on the site.

Core Strategy Policies SP1 and SP2 continue this approach.
Density

Table 3A.2 of the London Plan sets out ranges of acceptable densities for
development according to the accessibility of the site and the scale of local
development. This table confirms that higher density development, up to 1,100
habitable rooms per hectare may be acceptable where the proposal site is
located within a central area with good public transport accessibility and
predominantly comprises flats. The application site is within a defined town
centre and has excellent public transport links by train, underground and bus.
The proposed residential development is provided in the form of duplexes and
flats. Table 3A.2 proposes a residential density of between 650 and 1,100 hrph
for this type of site.

The proposed development proposes a total of 570 habitable rooms on a site
with a gross area of 0.717 hectare. This results in a density of 795hrph, which is

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.53

6.954

6.95

6.56

6.57

6.58

Page 22

consistent with the provisions of the London Plan.

The proposed density is also in accordance with Core Strategy Policy SP2
‘Housing’ as this policy is also based on Table 3A.2 of the London Plan.

Affordable Housing

UDP Policy HSG 4 Affordable Housing states that developments of 10 or more
units will be required to include provision of affordable housing to meet an
overall borough target of 50%. This target is consistent with Policy 3A.9 of the
London Plan. Policy 3A.10 of the London Plan states that Targets should be
applied flexibly, taking account of individual site costs, the availability of public
subsidy and other scheme requirements. In addition, Planning Policy Statement
3 Housing states that a reduced provision of affordable housing can be agreed
if full provision would have implications for the scheme’s viability. This approach
is continued in the Core Strategy.

In the case of the development of this site the applicants have stated that the
costs of bringing the site forward for development are such that it is not possible
to develop the site and provide affordable housing. The proposed development
is receiving grant funding to allow the regeneration of the site and provision of
affordable housing would make the scheme unviable. Further information can
be found in the section ‘Viability’ below.

It should be noted that a number of nearby housing developments which
include affordable housing are under construction or have been granted
consent recently. These include 542 units at Hale Village, 109 units at
Tottenham Town Hall, 22 at Stainby Road, N15, 17 at 596-606 High Road, N17
and 13 at 658 High Road, N17.

Viability

In accordance with national, London and local policy, the applicants have
submitted an affordable housing ‘toolkit’ appraisal to support their case. The
applicants submitted a toolkit appraisal when the application was first
considered in 2008. This appraisal was submitted by the GLA to DVS, an arm
of the Valuation Office Agency (VOA), for independent assessment. DVS
agreed with the figures of the appraisal, which remains a confidential document,
and concluded that the provision of affordable housing would make the scheme
unviable.

As the application is now being re-determined, the applicants have submitted
an updated appraisal. The Council has submitted the applicant’s appraisal to
DVS for independent assessment. DVS have reported that the appraisal is
reasonably based but there are some disagreements on the build cost, finance
rates and development programme. Accordingly DVS have undertaken their
own appraisal which concluded that the scheme is viable but only without
affordable housing. Although there was some disagreement between the
applicant and DVS, both parties have come to the same conclusion that the

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.59

6.60

6.61

6.62

6.63

6.64

Page 23

scheme is not viable if it included affordable housing.

The Council has entered into a development agreement with Grainger Trust to
redevelop the application site (see section ‘Development Agreement’). Grainger
Seven Sisters Ltd are also bound by this agreement. The agreement requires
the Council to provide any affordable housing required to be part of the
development to be provided offsite with Apex House as a possible location for
such provision. Officers are satisfied that due to the expense of developing the
site and the associated implications for viability which have been independently
confirmed as set out above, the scheme would not be viable if it included
affordable housing. Therefore the provision of affordable Housing at Apex
House and/or another suitable site or sites within the Borough is not required.

Dwelling Mix

Policy HSG 10 — Dwelling Mix of the Haringey UDP and Haringey Housing
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) provide advice in relation to new
residential development and the dwelling mix that should be provided. The
proposed mix of dwellings to be provided is:

5 x studio (2.5%)
48 x 1bed (24%)
107 x 2bed (54.5%)
37 x 3bed (19%)

For private housing, Figure 7.1 of the Housing SPD gives a mix of 1 bed 37%, 2
bed 30%, 3 bed 22% and 4 bed 11%. The residential element of the proposed
development is predominantly 2 and 3 bed units. The one bed units are below
the recommended mix and no four bed units are provided.

Due to the Town Centre location of the proposed development and the
commercial nature of the three main frontages it is not considered a suitable
location for larger family units. Therefore there are no 4 bed units proposed
within the development and the majority of the larger family units are proposed
on the Suffield Road frontage which is a relatively quiet residential location.

Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair Access

The applicant states that all the homes provided will be of Lifetime Homes
standard with the exception of the 18 duplex within Suffield Road and 4 flats
and two other duplex units which could be adapted in the future to include a
small entry-level living room and ground floor WC with shower which would
enable the Lifetime Homes criteria to be fulfilled.

In accordance with the Council’'s Housing SPD, 20 flats, 10% of the total, will be
Wheelchair accessible or easily adapted for wheelchair use.

Conservation

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.65

6.66

6.67

Page 24

The application proposes the demolition of all buildings on site. The eastern half
of the site is covered by the Tottenham High Road Corridor/Seven Sisters/Page
Green Conservation Area.

Conservation Area Consent (CAC) for the demolition of all buildings on site was
granted 17 November 2008 and this permission remains extant. As such, the
principle of demolition has been accepted and the applicant currently has
consent to clear the site. However, in accordance with the re-determination of
the application, the impact of the proposal in term of urban conservation is
discussed here.

Several consultees and a significant number of local residents have objected to
the demolition of all buildings on the site. These objections were received
following the initial consultation of the scheme and the second consultation
undertaken during its current re-determination. Responses in relation to
conservation issues made by a number of key groups are briefly summarised
below:

English Heritage (EH)

- English Heritage objected to the application following the initial
consultation and maintain that objection in the letter in response to
the second consultation. Both responses are summarised here

- English Heritage does not consider the criteria for their demolition,
as set out in PPS5, to have been met. Additionally, they believe
that the proposed new development, by virtue of its design, would
cause harm to the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

- Whilst they accept that all of these buildings require some degree
of repair there is no evidence to assume they could not be
repaired or refurbished.

- The proposal in effect removes any historic significance or local
character from a large section of the conservation area and must
therefore be considered to cause significant harm to the
designated heritage asset.

- Unless the heritage assets are demonstrably beyond repair, have
no longer term viability or their loss is outweighed by public
benefits, their is presumption that they should be retained.

- Whilst English Heritage accepts the scheme itself would not be
viable if the buildings were to be retained, there is little public
benefit which could not be delivered through a conservation based
scheme of repair and refurbishment of the existing buildings and
public realm.

Tottenham Conservation Area Advisory Committee (CAAC)

- The CAAC objected to the application following the initial
consultation and maintain that objection in the letter in response to
the second consultation. Both responses are summarised here

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 25

- There is no substantial community benefit that would result from
the total or substantial demolition of these buildings so as to allow
demolition as an exceptional case

- The proposed development will not enhance the Seven
Sisters/Page Green Conservation Area;

- It does not create a sense of place, being bland and lacking
individual character;

- Its height, bulk and mass are too great for the area and will
overpower other buildings and will destroy the character of the
Conservation Area.

Tottenham Civic Society

- The Tottenham Civic Society objected to the application following
the initial consultation and maintain that objection in the letter in
response to the second consultation. Both responses are
summarised here

- The design of the building is out of keeping and scale with the
Conservation Area and therefore fails Policy CSV1 of the Unitary
Development Plan 2006.

- Regeneration must be heritage-led in order to be successful and
to minimise the risk posed by unsustainable overdevelopment.

- the Wards Corner building at 227 High Road (1909) is unique to
Haringey and is an interesting example of an early 20th C steel
framed building. It contributes to the conservation area, local
history and culture

- the costs of retaining the building stated by the applicant are not
realistic

Wards Corner Coalition

- The Wards Corner Coalition objected to the application following
the initial consultation and objected with the assistance of
Planning Aid following the second consultation.

- The Wards Corner store building has local historical resonance, is
locally listed, in a Conservation Area and referred to in the
Development Brief and Character Appraisal as being of
architectural interest

- PPSS5 states that justification has to be made for the loss of the
heritage asset to show substantial benefits of a scheme to
outweigh its loss

- The re-provision of the Seven Sisters market is not a “substantial
benefit”

- No consideration was given for alternative uses for the building as
required by the other main test of PPS5

6.68 Local resident objections to demolition were on similar grounds to those
objections made by the above groups

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.69

6.70

6.71

6.72

6.73

6.74

Page 26

The application site is partially within a conservation area. Conservation Areas
are ‘Designated Heritage Assets’ as defined in Annex 2 of PPS5. Policy HEG.1
of PPS5 requires all heritage assets to be assessed in terms of their
‘significance’ and the impact the development would have on them. The
Heritage Assets are identified in the table below:

Building Heritage Interest Significance

227 High road Architectural Low to moderate
(Locally listed)

229-245 (odd) High Road | Architectural Low

247-249 High Road Architectural Low

251-253 High Road Architectural Low

255-259 (odd) High Road | Architectural Low to moderate
1a-1b West Green Road Architectural Low to moderate
(Locally listed)

1 West Green Road Architectural Low

The Tottenham High Road Conservation Area Character Appraisal identifies
227 High Road (Wards Corner Store), 255-259 (odd numbers) High Road and
1a-1b West Green Road as making positive contributions to the Conservation
Area with the other buildings on site only making a neutral contribution. English
Heritage have indicated in their representation that they consider the Appraisals
assessment to be accurate.

The applicant’s assessment is broadly in agreement with that of the Council’s
Character Appraisal in that it identifies 227 High Road, 255-259 High Road and
1a-1b West Green Road as making positive contributions to the Conservation
Area.

The site located directly above Seven Sisters Underground Station which was
constructed in the 1960s. The major construction works that were undertaken at
that time are considered to have removed any potential for archaeological
interest.

The scheme will involve the loss of all buildings on site, including those
identified as making a positive contribution to the conservation area. This
equates to a loss of heritage assets. PPS5 emphasises the desirability of
conserving or enhancing heritage assets, the need to consider significance and
extent of harm to heritage assets. The loss of these buildings is considered to
constitute “substantial harm”.

Where a development causes “substantial harm” it must meet the test in Policy
HE9.2 of PPS5. Consent should be refused unless it can be demonstrated that:

(i) the substantial harm to or loss of significance is necessary in
order to deliver substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm
or loss; or

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.75

6.76

6.77

6.78

6.79

Page 27

(i) (a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses
of the site; and
(b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the
medium term that will enable its conservation; and
(c) conservation through grant-funding or some form of charitable
or public ownership is not possible; and
(d) the harm to or loss of the heritage asset is outweighed by the
benefits of bringing the site back into use

The policy requires development proposals to meet either criteria (i) or criteria
(ii). The application is considered to meet criteria (i) in that the significant loss of
significance is outweighed by the substantial public benefit of the development.
The development will result in the creation of a public square and regeneration
of the public realm around Seven Sisters Station, economic regeneration
through the provision of high quality shops and the high quality re-provision of
the Seven Sisters Market, and housing regeneration through the creation of 197
quality homes.

Although the development is only required to meet one of the criteria, the
applicants have given some consideration to the requirements of criteria (ii).
The applicant have considered variations of the scheme which retain one or
more of the existing locally listed buildings on the site and have produced and
financially appraised various options. None of these options were found to be
financially viable or deliverable meaning that it would not be possible to deliver
the public benefits which the current scheme provides. These financial
appraisals were undertaken in 2008, however given the current economic
climate, it is considered that their conclusions still hold good.

English Heritage have commented that “Unless the heritage assets are
demonstrably beyond repair, have no longer term viability or their loss is
outweighed by public benefits, their (sic) is presumption that they should be
retained”. However, they do accept that the scheme itself would not be viable if
the buildings were to be retained but go on to say there is little public benefit
which could not be delivered through a conservation based scheme of repair
and refurbishment. Following the applicants’ consideration of various
conservation based schemes, officers consider that the loss of the heritage
assets does bring public benefit which could not otherwise be delivered if the
buildings were retained.

Although existing buildings are proposed to be demolished, proposed
development has been designed with sensitivity to its location and the character
of the Conservation Area. This is discussed in more detail in the sections under
‘Design’ below.

The setting of the Grade Il listed former Barclays Bank at 220-224 High Road is
considered to be unaffected by the scheme. It is separated from the site by the
expansive High Road/West Green Road/Broad Lane junction and located
approximately 70m away. No harm to the significance of this Heritage Asset
would arise.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.80

6.81

6.82

6.83

6.84

6.85

6.86

Page 28

Design

Policies UD3 ‘General Principles’ and UD4 ‘Quality Design’ set out the Councils
general design principles for new development in the Borough. Policy CSV1
‘Development in Conservation Areas’ also sets out the Councils planning policy
requirements for development proposals in Conservation area, primarily that
any new development should preserve or enhance the historic character and
qualities of the buildings and/or the Conservation Area.

Policies UD3 ‘General Principles’ and UD4 ‘Quality Design’ set out the Councils
general design principles for new development in the Borough. Policy CSV1
‘Development in Conservation Areas’ also sets out the Councils planning policy
requirements for development proposals in Conservation Areas, primarily that
any new development should preserve or enhance the historic character and
qualities of the buildings and/or the Conservation Area.

In addition to the above policy, the Development Brief seeks a development
which would provide an attractive and high quality landmark and gateway to the
Seven Sisters/Tottenham High Road area; regenerate and improve the living
and working environment and make best use of the opportunities presented by
the site; enhance the conservation area; be of a distinctive and imaginative
modern design; include active frontages, and visual variety and interest, onto
the West Green Road, High Road and Seven Sisters Road frontages; take its
cue from the richness and diversity of the communities and small shops in the
West Green Road area; include significant and co-ordinated improvement to the
public realm and incorporate the principles of sustainable design.

The applicants have submitted a detailed Design and Access Statement as part
of their application submissions. The design statement documents the process
of determining the current design up to submission in detail and deals with the
way in which the physical and structural constraints have affected the outcome
of the design.

The amount of development possible on the site is constrained by Seven
Sisters Underground Station and associated tube lines. This limits the height of
buildings in the middle of the site.

The close proximity of neighbouring buildings places limits on the height of
development due to the impact on rights to light (see section ‘Daylight and
‘Sunlight’). The impacts of noise, vibration and air quality from surrounding road
traffic and underground trains was also considered (see section ‘Noise and
Vibration®).

Following consideration of these technical constraints, the applicants
considered the context of urban form. The application site consists of an entire
block bounded by Tottenham High Road, Seven Sisters Road, Suffield Road
and West Green Road. Apart from the frontage to Suffield Road, which contains
2-storey Victorian terrace houses, the site is characterised by 2- and 3-storey
Victorian and Edwardian buildings containing small shops with residential
accommodation above.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.87

6.88

6.89

6.90

6.91

6.92

Page 29

Surrounding development varies. West Green Road is a busy street
characterised by 3-storey mixed-use Victorian and Edwardian development.
Seven Sisters Road is similar but is contrasted by Apex House, a modern 4
storey development. The High Road frontage benefits from a large pavement
area which accommodates a bus stop and the entrances to the Underground
station. The buildings opposite are modern with the exception of the Listed
former Barclays Bank building adjacent to the large Tesco Supermarket.

The width of High Road and its spacious junctions with Seven Sisters Road and
West Green Road/Broad Lane results in a large open area in front of the site.
This area makes the site highly visible as there are wide vistas towards the site
from various locations on the High Road. This situation gives the site a focus as
a central and key location within the urban form.

The applicant’s Design and Access Statement shows how the applicants have
arrived at their design through careful consideration of the site’s physical
constrains and urban context. The proposed development takes the form of a
comprehensive redevelopment in a style which comprises a modern
interpretation of the architecture of Tottenham High Road using modern
methods of construction. The design, whilst being modern, reflect the traditional
elements of the existing buildings in the High Road through the appropriate
proportions and sub-divisions of the facades and the dominant use of brick.

The building is taller than surrounding development however the integrity of the
site as a single block coupled with the large open space created by High Road
and nearby junctions means that the site is most appropriate for a taller
development. The height of neighbouring Apex House and the verticality of the
large mature trees leading up from the south along High Road, act as
transitional elements which could point toward a taller building. The result is a
design which realises the distinct character of the site as a focus for more
intense development.

The tallest elements of the building are restricted to the north-east corner and
southern edge of the site. This is in response to the presence of the
Underground tunnels but also keeps the tallest elements to those parts of the
site which benefit from the spacious settings provided by the junctions and the
precedent for taller development provided by Apex House. The gap also
emphasises and brings focus to the enlarged public realm on High Road.

The frontages of the development are designed in response to the character of
each bordering street. A continuous frontage consisting of glazed shop fronts is
proposed on the three commercial frontages of the site. The Seven Sisters
Road frontage is designed to emphasise the presence of the market and make
it a prominent feature of the streetscene. This contrasts with its currently less
obvious presence on the High Road. The Suffield Road frontage is of a different
scale and character reflecting the residential character of the area in which it is
situated.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.93

6.94

6.95

6.96

6.97

6.98

6.99

6.100

Page 30

Above the shops is residential accommodation with the central part of the site
providing amenity and play space with servicing underneath. The arrangement
of forms around this central amenity space reproduces traditional courtyard
development at a larger scale using modern design and modern methods of
construction.

The building has a flat roof and it is proposed that the space afforded will be
used for photovoltaic (solar panels) equipment in accordance with the energy
strategy of the development (see section ‘Sustainability and Energy’).

The proportions and detail are designed in response to the various street
contexts. The flats and shop fronts are designed as terraces of adjoining
buildings. The residential storeys are brick faced with stone copings and cills.
Window openings reflect the different rooms they light. Projecting oriel windows
enhance the modulation of the facades and provide views up and down the
street while allowing sunlight into rooms facing north onto West Green Road.
Shop fronts are glazed and framed with dark pointed or coated steel sections.
Set back upper storeys are proposed to be clad in coated Zinc with glass
panels.

The design of the Suffield Road frontage is different in scale and character to
the other frontages and comprises a row of family duplex flats with private front
doors at street level and two floors of flats above. The design of the facade is
modern, as it is not situated in the Conservation Area, with white residential
screen walls framing a parapet at the upper level and enclosing a continuous
series of private balconies

Contrasting with the verticality and brick emphasis of the three commercial
frontages is a frameless glass curved fagade which brings focus to the circular
public area at the centre of the High Road frontage and relates to the improved
entrances proposed for the Underground Station.

Although the design introduces modern elements to the site, it is based on the
dominant design characteristics of the area including individual terraces, vertical
rhythm of house design, shop fronts and windows, varying window framing and
dominant use of brick.

It should be noted that materials proposed at this stage are only indicative and
will be subject to further approval through condition should permission be
granted. Officers will ensure that materials will be of a quality appropriate to the
design and context of the development.

The Design and Access statement sets out the pre-application consultations
and exhibitions which took place in July 2007. The applicants also held a series
of meetings with interested bodies including the Haringey Council’s Design
Panel, Community Groups and statutory consultees including English Heritage,
the Greater London Authority (GLA) and the Commission for Architecture and
the built Environment (CABE).

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.101

6.102

6.103

6.104

6.105

6.106

6.107

6.108

Page 31

Following these meetings and the first and second planning consultations, local
residents and community groups have objected to the design. Objectors have
argued that the design is inappropriate for a conservation area, too high and
overbearing, not distinctive and out of keeping with surrounding Victorian and
Edwardian development.

In October 2007, the Haringey Design Panel expressed support for the concept
of the scheme in plan. However, Panel members also felt that given the site’s
location within a Conservation Area it was essential to provide a high — quality
landmark building for this prominent site. They recommended that the scheme
be revisited, and that more positive approach be taken towards an imaginative,
high quality, contemporary scheme for the site, with special regard given to the
treatment of the junction of the High Road and Seven Sisters Road.

Following meetings and the initial consultation in 2008, CABE commented that
they recognise that Wards Corner is a part of the regeneration area and that
they are supportive of mixed use development and that they recognise the
challenging constraints of the site. They consider that the proposed
development has been carefully designed to respond to its specific context and
that the design concept is sound.

CABE stated that the lower element on the High Road has been well designed
and the proposed design will have a civic presence in relation to public space in
front of it. They stated that they appreciated the creation of the public space,
which will be well used, and the improvements to the system of tube entrances.
They state that they are happy with the single entrance to the raised courtyard,
the individual residential entrance covers and the raised garden and circulation
systems.

They stated that the Seven Sisters Road buildings have been articulated in an
elegant way but consider that the northern block would benefit from a similar
simpler treatment. In conclusion they stated “We think that the design has the
making of a good scheme and we support this planning application.”

CABE’s comments were made in 2008 prior to its dissolution however their
comments are still considered relevant and material.

Following discussions in 2008 with GLA Officers and Sir Simon Milton, the GLA
design officers agreed that on the basis of further information, clarification and
discussion, that the design for the cover building between the High Road
frontage and Seven Sisters Road is satisfactory.

Following further discussions the detailed material and treatment of the set-
back upper storeys on the Seven Sisters Road frontage was changed. The
original proposal showed windows set into a multi-storey metal cladding system
reaching the roof. This element of the proposed development was then
changed to show alternative windows set flush with opaque glass cladding
panels in a regular rhythm of wide and slim panels. This treatment continues up
to the roof level and is design to give a contemporary appearance to the
duplexes.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.109

6.110

6.111

6.112

6.113

6.114

6.115

Page 32

This treatment is also used at the same level on the corner of the High Road
and West Green Road. This is in response to the comment from CABE which
stated that the design of this part of the development should be made simpler
and more similar to the Seven Sisters Road frontage of the proposed
development

The GLA’s updated report makes no further comments the scheme’s design
however following discussions in 2008 with GLA Officers and Sir Simon Milton
and subsequent changes, it is considered that the proposed design has
resulted from careful study of the character of the area and the challenging
constraints of the site within the context of the terms of the development brief.

Overall it is considered that the proposed design responds to the distinctiveness
of the site, the central location and integrity of the street block, the verticality
and rhythm of local architecture and predominantly traditional materials in way
that uses modern design and modern methods of construction. The design is
considered to enhance the conservation area by bringing a landmark
development and creating a gateway to Tottenham. The objections from local
residents and community groups are noted however it is the opinion of officers
that the design meets the requirements of relevant planning policy.

Since 2008 there have been schemes which have been approved by planning
committee which proposed modern development along the High Road
Conservation Area. These include for example The Tottenham Hotspurs
Stadium, 691-693 High Road, 658 High Road, 344 High Road and Tottenham
Town Hall. It is considered that the proposed Wards Corner development is
consistent with the progress of regeneration through modern development
which is occurring on other sites on the High Road.

Public Art

The proposed development contains proposals for improvement of the public
realm specifically in relation to existing and extended public areas in front of the
proposed new buildings in the High Road. It was originally proposed that a work
of public art will be placed at the centre of the proposed pavement circle.

However it is now proposed that a work or works of public art will be
incorporated into the fabric of the buildings. The final design features a curved
corner block matching the parapet height of its neighbours. On this block is a
fagade framed in stone with a cast sculpture frieze celebrating the history of the
site. Delivery of the public art will be secured through the s106 agreement.

Amenity space

The Council’s Housing SPD sets the standard for amenity space under the UDP
and the emerging Core Strategy. The SPD would require this development to
provide 1010m? of amenity space to meet its standard. The proposed
development provides some 1538m? of amenity space within a central
courtyard at first floor level overlooked by the surrounding residential units. The

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.116

6.117

6.118

6.119

6.120

Page 33

amenity space is laid out as a landscape area on two levels and includes
ornamental trees and good cover planting, lawn areas seating and timber
decking ramped access to lower gardens and lighting to the main footways. The
area also incorporates a children’s play space (see section below).

Children’s Play Space

The Mayor’s London Plan SPG "Providing for Children and Young People's
Play and Informal Recreation" provides minimum standards for the provision of
children’s play space. Using the formulae set out in that SPG the scheme would
have a child yield of 36, requiring 360sgm of play space in association with the
development. The development includes a dedicated under 5s play space as
part of a "Local Playable Area", designed to meet the needs of children aged 0O-
11. In addition, Brunswick Road playground is within 400m of the application
site and provides play space for older children. This level of provision is
considered to be in full compliance with the Mayor's play space guidance.

The Council’s Open Space and Recreation Standards SPD sets out Haringey’s
own play space standards under the current UDP and the emerging Core
Strategy. Using the formula in that SPD, the expected child yield would be just
under 28 children, 8 fewer than that under the GLA'’s guidance. Haringey’s SPD
requires 3sqm of play space. Table 1.1 of the SPD states that children's play
provision should be provided at 3sgm per child, equal to 84sqm for the whole
development, and that Doorstep Playable Space should be at least 100sgm in
size within 100m, Local Playable Space should be at least 300sgm within 400m
and Neighbourhood Playable space should be at least 500sgm, within 1000m of
home.

The scheme is designed to comply with the more onerous standards in the
London Plan SPG and exceeds the standards in Haringey’s SPD. The site
benefits from good access to public open space and sports pitches and meets
all the criteria in Table 1.1 of the SPD, apart from being within 500m of an
accessible Site of Importance for Nature Conservation, which is the case for the
majority of the east of the borough.

Contamination

The applicants have submitted a contamination survey in relation to the
proposed development. The survey has identified the possibility of historical
sources of ground contamination on the site associated with the present day
storage yard and former clothing works. The survey recommends that
investigation should be conducted to focus on testing the underlying ground
conditions in the south eastern corner of the site. A planning condition
concerning this matter has been attached to the recommendation.

Archaeology

The site does not lie in an archaeological priority area. Due to the extent of post
ground disturbance it is considered that the proposed development will not have
any impact upon any archaeological deposits.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.121

6.122

6.123

6.124

6.125

Page 34

Sustainability and Energy

The London Plan, Draft Replacement London Plan (DRLP) and the Haringey
Unitary Development plan require major new development to seek to mitigate
and be able to adapt to climate change. Planning policy states that this should
be achieved through applying carbon reduction targets to new development and
that new development be capable of adapting to climate change through the
use of sustainable design and construction e.g. minimising energy use and
avoiding overheating and excessive heat generation within the building.

Since the application was originally submitted, Planning Policy regarding energy
has changed. Policy 4A.4 Energy Assessment of the London Plan 2008 and
Policy 5.2 of the emerging DRLP require development proposals demonstrate
the expected energy and carbon dioxide emission savings from the energy
efficiency and renewable energy measures incorporated in the development.
The assessment should show how these savings were arrived at, having regard
to the Mayor’s energy hierarchy of:

e Using less energy
e Using renewable energy; and
e Supplying energy efficiently

The applicant’s submitted energy statement and addendum provide an energy
demand assessment for the proposed development in use. The assessment
calculates a figure for CO2 emissions based on a development compliant with
Part L Building Regulations 2006. From this baseline figure, the expected
energy savings resulting from various measures are compared to give an
overall indicator of energy savings and performance.

The development includes reduced U values for external walls, ground floors,
roof and windows to reduce heat loss and improved air-tightness. The applicant
has demonstrated that these improvements result in all apartments, bar the
very worst performing, being likely to pass Part L Building Regulations 2010
through energy efficiency measures alone. In addition, the scheme includes a
Combined Heat and Power (CHP) system and photovoltaics (PV). The scheme
originally included a dual-fuel boiler system but this was removed following
concerns raised by the GLA over its efficiency and air quality impacts.

The proposed energy efficiency measures and renewable energy technology
result in a reduction in CO2 from a Part L 2006 equivalent baseline of 53%. This
exceeds the Mayor’s carbon reduction target of 44% in the DRLP. The GLA are
therefore satisfied with this element of the scheme.

The development will also achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 instead
of Level 3, as was originally proposed in 2008.

Traffic and Parking

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.126

6.127

6.128

6.129

6.130

6.131

6.132

Page 35

National Planning Policy seeks to reduce the dependence on the private car in
urban areas such as Haringey. The advice in both PPS3 Housing and PPG13
Transport made clear recommendations to this effect. This advice is also
reflected in the London Plan. The transport impact of the proposed
development has been assessed by the Councils Transport and Highways
Group. Policies M2 Public Transport and M3 locating New Development and
accessibility of the Unitary Development Plan require that the proposals put
forward take into account the needs of public transport users. It is considered
that the proposed development is well located in relation to public transport
where there is a good level of provision which will result in reduced need for
car-use and where travel by other sustainable travel modes can be encouraged.

Policy M4 Pedestrian and Cyclists stated that new development should have a
design layout that encourages walking and cycling to the site. In response the
proposed development proposes upgrading the public realm on Suffield Road,
West Green Road, Seven Sisters Road and the High Road frontages
comprising paving, improved lighting and the creation of a new public space
which would cater for the increased pedestrian activities expected at this
location and ultimately with other schemes in place create a pedestrian friendly
environment in this area. In relation to Policy M9 car free developments, Policy
M10 Parking for Development and Appendix 1 of the UDP car and cycle parking
standards it is considered that the car and cycle provision can be assessed in
the context of the criteria for a car free development. This is because the level
of public transport accessibility is high in this location and a controlled parking
zone exists or will be provided in the future.

Although it is not normal to provide any car parking spaces in a car free
development it is considered that the 44 car parking spaces proposed in the
basement would compensate for the loss of the existing 48 car parking spaces
on the site and would limit the car parking impact upon nearby roads. Future
occupiers of the residential development, with the exception of 12 of the houses
to be built in Suffield Road, will not be issued with car parking permits for the
CPZ.

It is considered 38 cycle spaces (2 per retail unit plus 10 for the market) should
be provided for the commercial units. It is considered that the proposed
development would not have any significant impact in relation to trip generation
over and above existing.

It is considered that the existing public transport infrastructure has sufficient
capacity to deal with extra demand created by the proposed development.

The applicants have agreed to submit two travel plans, one for the residential
and one for the commercial use. This will be subject of a planning condition
should planning permission be granted.

The measures to be included will be the appointment of a travel plan co-
ordinator, provision of a welcome induction pack containing public transport,
cycling walking information, operation of an on site car club scheme. Adequate
cycle provision, travel card/discounted season tickets to first occupiers, travel

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.133

6.134

6.135

6.136

6.137

6.138

6.139

6.140

6.141

Page 36

information terminals. Where necessary the implementation of the measures
discussed will be achieved through the section 106 and section 278
agreements in which case there is no objection to the proposed development by
the highway and transportation section of the Council.

The GLA have made no further comments on transport since their initial report
of 2008 but have recommended that 20% of parking spaces on-site should
have electric charging points and a further 20% should have passive provision
for the future. This can be achieved through a condition.

Air Quality

The applicants have submitted an air quality assessment associated with the
construction and extra traffic associated within completed development in
relation to air quality as requested in PPS 23 Planning and Pollution Control.

The assessment concludes that the extra traffic associated with the
development will not significantly affect air quality.

The assessment also concludes that subject to the implementation of a site
specific Environmental Management Plan the residential construction air quality
impacts will be of limited significance. A condition concerning the submission of
an Environmental Management Plan is attached to the recommendation.

The overall traffic increase is not considered significant in terms of air quality.
The impact of the development taking into account the improvements in
vehicular technology would only be of minor significance.

Community Safety

Crime and fear of crime were identified in the ICM poll as a significant concern
for local residents and tackling crime was identified as a priority for many of
those surveyed. The Metropolitan Police stated in 2003 when the scheme was
first being developed that the site and surrounds suffers from a run-down or
unkempt appearance and that this is a factor in attracting crime. Today, the site
still suffers from this and it is still considered a contributing factor for local crime
and anti-social behaviour.

Since inception, the applicant’s have been working with Eric Childs of the
Metropolitan Police on the scheme’s design. Continuing consultation will occur
with the Metropolitan Police in order to achieve ‘Secure by Design’ certification.

In their consultation response of dated 25 February 2008. The Metropolitan
Police stated that they have no objection to the scheme and “look forward to the
regeneration of this key gateway into Haringey”.

In a letter to the Bridge NDC dated 19 April 2008, the Metropolitan Police
confirmed that the development stands up well against principles set out in the
Home Office’s document "Safer Places: The Planning System and Crime
Prevention" and in their view will contribute to the ongoing process of reducing

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.142

6.143

6.144

6.145

6.146

6.147

6.148

Page 37

crime around the site.

The scheme was designed with due regard to “Secure by Design” principles.
The public square and podium landscaped spaces will be overlooked benefiting
from passive surveillance. There will be 24 hour porterage / security. An Estate
Management Company will be established whose responsibility will be to
provide maintenance, refuse collection and control of access and car parking.
Residential access to the proposed development will be via the controlled
entrance on the High Road with access to each residential block from the
podium landscaped area. Vehicle access will be restricted to the gated mews
with access from Suffield Road. Access to the residential car park will be limited
by a barrier operated by a key given to those entitled to use those spaces.

Regeneration of the site is considered positive as it will counteract the run-down
and unkempt appearance identified by the Metropolitan Police, thereby
reducing the contribution of this factor to local crime and anti-social behaviour.
The scheme is considered to increase community safety.

A condition will be applied requiring compliance with BS 8220 (1986) Part 1,
'Security Of Residential Buildings' and with the aims and objectives of 'Secured
By Design' and 'Designing Out Crime'.

Drainage

The majority of the site comprising hard landscaping and therefore the majority
of surface water run off will drain into the main water system. The proposed
development will use the existing mains drain and sewer system. The capacity
of the system will be reviewed and upgraded where necessary.

Noise and Vibration

In accordance with PPG 24: Planning and Noise 1994 the applicants have
submitted an Environmental Noise and Vibration assessment for the proposed
development including on assessment of the underground train vibration at the
site to assess the suitability of the site for residential use. The noise impact of
the proposed service road is also assessed. The assessment concludes that
provided a suitable glazing specification is adopted for all the properties in the
developments, the site is considered suitable for residential and commercial
use.

The report concludes that the measured level of train vibration is within
acceptable limits and that the predicted noise impact from the service road is
acceptable provided the ventilation plant emissions are in accordance with the
limited sound pressure level given in the relevant section of the assessment.

Daylight and Sunlight

The applicants have submitted a day light and sunlight assessment in relation
to the proposed development based upon Building Research Establishment
(BRE) guidelines Site Layout and Planning for Daylight and Sunlight which

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.149

6.150

6.151

6.152

6.153

6.154

6.155

Page 38

provides the criteria and methodology for calculation in connection with daylight
and sunlight.

The report assesses all properties for compliance with the BRE guidelines in
relation to daylight, and all relevant properties for sunlight ( which is a smaller
number because only of those properties with elevations which face with 90
degrees of due South receive sunlight in the UK).

The assessment concludes that retained levels of daylight and sunlight are
good and in compliance with the BRE guidelines. The assessment also
concludes that there are some sunlight losses in excess of the BRE guidelines
to the houses in Suffield Road these are small amounts in real terms and are
mainly concentrated on winter sunlight where the existing levels are already
below BRE guideline amounts.

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA)

The Local Planning Authority issued a screening opinion on the need for an
Environmental Impact Assessment on the 20" June 2007.

The proposed development is “schedule 2 development” within the meaning of
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England
and Wales) Regulations 1999, being an urban development project where the
area of development exceeds 0.5 hectares. The Local Planning Authority
assessed the potential environmental impact of the above development having
regard to the selection criteria for screening specified in schedule 3 of the
Regulations and the guidance to these regulations set out in Circular 02/99.

Following assessment, the Local Planning Authority determined that the
proposed development is not likely to have a significant effect on the
environment and that an Environmental Impact Assessment is therefore not
required.

Following the Court of Appeal ruling the Local Planning Authority have
reconsidered the need for an EIA and have concluded that again an EIA is not
required. This is due to the fact that apart from the inclusion of photovoltaic
equipment and removal of biomass boiler, the scheme has not changed in any
physical way.

Equalities Impact Assessment (EqlA)

In determining this application the Committee is required to have regard to its
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. Under the Act, a public authority must,
in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:-

eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under this Act;

advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.156

6.157

6.158

6.159

6.160

6.161

6.162

Page 39

foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it

The Council commissioned URS Scott Wilson to conduct an independent
Equalities Impact Assessment. Their report dated June 2011 assessed the
likely impacts the development would have on the key equalities protected
characteristics, age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

Following an initial screening opinion, race, disability, sex, religion or belief, age
and sexual orientation were identified as the protected characteristics which
were most likely to be affected. A full assessment was made on this basis and
the report is attached at Appendix 4.

The appraisal considered the potential impacts for affected people sharing
these protected characteristics arising from the planning application. These
impacts are grouped under a number of key inter-related themes identified from
the review of policy, the screening findings and the review of baseline evidence
and consultation evidence. These themes, their associated recommendations
for mitigation and the relevant conditions/s106 responses are summarised in
Appendix 3.

The report concludes that overall, the planning application proposal is unlikely
to give rise to major negative equality impacts provided all the measures set out
in the S106 agreement are honoured in full and in a timely manner. The
assessment recognises concerns expressed by objectors concerning potential
impacts, particularly in relation to Latin American people and members of other
black and minority ethnic groups. In addition to measures previously set out in
the S106 agreement and voluntary financial contributions by the developers, the
assessment has set out additional recommendations to strengthen previously
identified mitigation measures and to address residual negative impacts.

Whilst the non re-provision of affordable housing on the site is considered to
give rise to some negative equality impact, the Valuation Office judgment that
the development cannot afford affordable housing is considered to justify this
negative impact.

The planning application proposal is identified as giving rise to positive equality
impacts in relation to safety and crime, accessible public realm and provision of
family housing.

In their Stage | report (see Appendix 8), the GLA have referred to the EqlA
stating that the provision of the market facilitator and associated package of
measures, the re-provision of the market and the provision of local retail in the
scheme discharges the obligations of the Council and the GLA under the
Equalities Act 2010 provided that the application is conditioned such that the
current market cannot be closed until a temporary facility is secured.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.163

6.164

6.165

6.166

6.167

Page 40

The objection from Planning Aid for London on behalf of the Wards Corner
Coalition states that the development will result in increased land rents in the
surrounding area. This is said to harm small and micro-businesses, which are
more than usually made up of ethnic groups most reliant on incomes from these
business, and which make the particular character of West Green Road Town
Centre. However, it should be noted that the scheme includes retention of the
market, retail units on West Green Road specifically for independent retails.
Furthermore, officers consider that the scheme will bring much needed physical
and economic regeneration to the area which will have a positive longer term
impact.

Planning Obligations/s106 Agreement

Under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), the terms of Circular
05/2005 Planning Obligations, and in line with Policy UD8 and Supplementary
Planning Guidance 10a ‘The Negotiation, management and Monitoring of
Planning Obligations’ the Local Planning Authority (LPA) will seek financial
contributions towards a range of associated improvements immediately outside
the boundary of the site.

Indoor Market

The indoor market is to be re-provided as shown on the proposed development
drawings. On the basis that the applicants undertake to provide a minimum 6
months notice period to the traders for vacant possession and that
compensation will be paid to the traders at a rate equivalent to the maximum of
that payable under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 and that Urban Space
Management and Union Land be employed to assess the opportunities for
temporary location for the market as a whole or within an existing market. This
re-provision will be subject to four conditions to be contained within the s106
agreements. These conditions are as follows:

the market must be run by an experienced indoor market operator

this arrangement must be in place not less than 12 months prior to the practical
completion date of the proposed development

A market lease must be in place not less than 6 months prior to the due
practical completion date of the proposed market;

the rent will be open market rent for Aluse class;

The Market Operator will also be required to have offered a first right to occupy
to all existing traders on an exclusive and non-assignable licence of an
equivalent stall in the new market area, on reasonable A1 open market terms.

The applicant has agreed to provide a minimum notice period of six months to
market traders for vacant possession and is offering a compensation payment
to assist with relocation expenses. This payment is in the form of £144,000

contribution to a “Trader’s Financial Assistance Sum” (an increase on the sum

of £96,650 agreed in 2008). The traders do not have any tenancy rights,

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.168

6.169

6.170

6.171

6.172

Page 41

therefore this payment is voluntary.

The applicant provides a package (“Market Facilitator Package”) to assist the
market to find a temporary location and to continue functioning. This package
will run for five years from the granting of consent. This package includes a
‘market facilitator’ to work with traders to identify a temporary location, to work
with the Spanish speaking traders to promote their interests in the temporary
location and to provide appropriate business support and advice to all traders
and businesses to secure the maximum number of expressions of interest to
return to the site as well funding towards relocation costs and a three month
rent free period in the temporary location. The Market Facilitator will also
signpost existing businesses and employees towards existing appropriate
bodies to assist business to continue trading or individuals to find suitable
alternative employment.

Community Engagement

To further monitor the impact of the scheme and to provide further opportunity
for mitigations measures to be considered, the applicant, before development
can commence, is to submit to LBH a Community Engagement Strategy for our
approval dealing with diversity monitoring and participation measures and
seeking further inputs concerning potential impacts of the scheme and
suggested additional mitigation measures from different sections of the
community. The Strategy should include regular monitoring and reports on the
engagement process and how representations received have been taken into
account.

Improvements to West Green Road

The applicant offers to contribute £250,000 to a West Green Road
Environmental Improvement Fund which will provide:

shop/building frontage improvements

street decoration and enhancements

improvements to vehicle servicing

Improvement Strategy for business/markets, open space and parking

Affordable Housing

Planning Policy Statement 3 Housing states that a reduced provision of
affordable housing can be agreed if full provision would have implications for
the scheme’s viability. The Council has commissioned DVS to undertake an
assessment of the applicant’s financial appraisal and it was found that the
scheme would not be viable if it included affordable housing.

Existing residents and businesses

The Council as Housing Authority shall engage in direct dialogue with secure

and non-secure council tenants residing on the site regarding their needs and
OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.173

6.174

6.175

6.176

6.177

6.178

6.179

6.180

Page 42

choices for re-housing within the local area, where this is their preference.

The Council as Housing Authority shall offer appropriate assistance to shorthold
(i.e. private tenants) and owner occupiers to locate to alternative suitable
properties

Haringey council shall brief the housing association regarding the scheme’s
progress to ensure adequate time for them to identify suitable alternative
provision for affected tenants.

The developer is to undertake a further round of leaseholder and freeholder
engagement prior to a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) Resolution being
considered by Haringey Cabinet (or such other timeframe as may be agreed by
the Council).

The developer shall undertake a baseline study and subsequent ongoing
monitoring of the business owners and market holders at key points in the
progression of the planning application and construction of the development

Education contribution

In line with Supplementary Planning Guidance SPG10c ‘Educational Needs
Generated by New Housing'. It is appropriate for Local Planning Authorities to
seek a financial contribution towards the cost associated with the provision of
facilities and services arising from additional demand generated for school
places.

In this case the Local Planning Authority recognises that the costs of bringing
the scheme forward are exceptional and that the financial appraisal undertaken
by DVS demonstrates that the cost of the development is a very high proportion
of its value, much greater than would normally be expected for a development
to take place. A sum of £200,000 was set aside at the outset in the calculations
for Section 106 contributions. The Local Planning Authority accepts that there
can be a degree of flexibility in the calculation of the education contribution. As
stated in this SPG “each application will be considered on its merits on a case
by case basis”. The Local Planning Authority therefore accepts a contribution of
£200,000 to be reasonable in this case. The NDC had requested that this sum
of money be spent on schools within the NDC area.

Public Art

A work or works of public art shall be incorporated into the fabric of the building.
The method of selecting an artist to be agreed following the submission of a
Public Art Brief.

Public Realm

Proposed works for the Public Realm including enhancement to
transport/station entrance improvements will be undertaken and the applicants
will enter into a section 278 of the Highways Act Agreement in connection with

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



6.181

6.182

Page 43

the works. Agreement will be reached with the relevant statutory parties and
owners in order to carry out the works.

Other elements
The section 106 agreement will also include provisions for the following:

Implementation of Travel Plans for key land uses

Provision of a central energy centre and reduction of C02 emissions of up to
11% (over Part L 2010)

Achievement of at least Level 4 under the Code for Sustainable Homes
Establishment of a management company that will have responsibility (in
perpetuity) for the ongoing site management and security.

Establishment of CCTV system and central monitoring suite

Procurement of goods and services from local businesses and recruitment of
local people

Construction Training and Local Labour Agreement including a requirement for
contractors to adhere to national or local schemes to promote employment
amongst under-represented equality groups, e.g. the Disability Two Ticks
scheme

Provision of Podium Gardens and Open Space

Provision and maintenance of Podium Garden and Play space

No entitlement for occupiers to residents parking permits (except for 12 permits
for houses in Suffield Road)

Contribution of £1000 towards the amendment of the Traffic Management Order
(TMO)

Implementation of Lifetime Homes Standards and 10% wheelchair access (20
flats)

Letting/marketing strategy for residential units

Waste Management and Recycling

A cost recovery charge of 3% of the total value of the s106

Following the Community Infrastructure Levy 2010 Regulations (as amended)
coming into force 06 April 2010, the three tests on the use of planning
obligations in Circular 05/2005 Planning Obligations were placed into law. The
three tests are that planning obligations must be:

e necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms
e directly related to the development; and
e fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

It is considered that the above s106 contributions are necessary, directly related
and fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development therefore
meeting the above three tests.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 44

7. HUMAN RIGHTS

7.1

All applications are considered against a background of the Human Rights Act
1998 and in accordance with Article 22(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(General Development Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2003 there is
a requirement to give reasons for the grant of planning permission. Reasons
always have to be given where planning permission is refused. These reasons
are always set out on the decision notice. Unless any report specifically
indicates otherwise all decisions of this Committee will accord with the
requirements of the above Act and Order.

8. DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Following the adoption of the Wards Corner Development Brief in January 2004
(see section ‘Development Brief’), Grainger Trust was selected as a
development partner to deliver regeneration for the area covered by the brief. In
November 2005 the Council entered into a development agreement with
Grainger. The objective of the agreement is to secure a quality redevelopment
of the site which promotes the regeneration objectives for the area.

Part of the agreement states that all affordable housing referable (whether by
public policy or otherwise) to the development is to be discharged by off-site
provision procured by and at the cost of the Council or a third party. It also
states that the Council will make available its site at Apex House (and/or
another suitable site or sites within the Borough) for the provision of all
affordable housing referable to the development and will satisfy any
requirement to procure affordable housing referable to the development at its
own cost so as to enable the Development to be implemented in accordance
with the agreement.

Officers are satisfied that due to the expense of developing the site and the
associated implications for viability (see section ‘Viability’), there is no
affordable housing referable to the development by planning policy. Therefore
the provision of affordable Housing at Apex House and/or another suitable site
or sites within the Borough is not required.

Notwithstanding the above, the lack of affordable housing provision at Apex
House and other matters relating to the development agreement are matters
external to the planning application currently under consideration.

9. PREDETERMINATION

9.1

The Council is in a development agreement (see preceding section
‘Development Agreement’) and owns part of the application site. These facts
are not planning considerations and Members must not consider the Council as
development partner or land owner when reaching their decision.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 45

10.SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

The detailed assessments outlined in this report demonstrate that there is
strong planning policy support for the development embodied in the Local
Development Plan and supported by National Planning Guidance.

Prior to and during the life of the application, the council and the applicants
have engaged with key stake holders (local businesses, residents, community
groups including the WCC, members and statutory agencies) to develop a
scheme which addresses local issues while delivering major regeneration.

The application was originally approved in December 2008 however the
planning consent was quashed in June 2010 by the Court of Appeal. The Court
of Appeal considered that the Planning Committee had not fully discharged its
duty under section 71 of the Race Relations Act, 1976 in that it did not have due
regard to “the need to promote equality of opportunity and good relations
between persons of different of different racial groups”. Following this decision
the application is now being re-determined. Physically, the scheme is mostly
unchanged however a modified s106 agreement is proposed.

In re-determining the application, officers had regard to the Council’s obligations
under the Equality Act 2010. An independent Equalities Impact Assessment
was undertaken by URS Scott Wilson and it was found that the proposal is
unlikely to give rise to major negative equality impacts provided all the
measures set out in the s106 agreement are honoured in full and in a timely
manner.

The application site is located on the west side of Tottenham High Road and
comprises 227 to 259 High Road, 709 — 723 Seven Sisters Road, 1a — 11 West
Green Road and 8 — 30 Suffield Road. It is a prominent site containing the
former Wards Corner Department Store and is located above Seven Sisters
Underground Station and tunnels. The site currently occupied by retail and
commercial uses with residential above in some parts. Suffield Road is entirely
residential. The site is identified in planning policy and the planning brief as a
key regeneration site.

The application proposes the demolition of all buildings on site and the erection
of a modern mixed use development with retail on the ground floor of the Seven
Sisters, High Road and West Green Road frontages and flats on the upper
floors. Development on Suffield Road will be completely residential with each
dwelling having separate street access.

The development is considered to deliver regeneration sought by planning
policy and the development brief. It will deliver new quality retail space,
including new accommodation for the Seven Sisters Market (following their
temporary relocation facilitated by the developer); a large number of new
dwellings built to modern standards including the provision of family housing;
quality amenity space and children’s play space; improvements to the public
realm including a new public square and improvements to West Green Road.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Page 46

The development is a high quality modern design which takes cues from the
surrounding Victorian and Edwardian Development but also capitalises on the
distinctiveness of the location to create a landmark gateway development. It will
be built to high environmental performance standards with the inclusion of CHP
and solar panel technology. The site’s excellent access to public transport
allows for a high density development with no harm to public and private
transport networks. Redevelopment of the area will improve community safety
by improving the public realm and overcoming negative perceptions.

The applicant has robustly demonstrated that the provision of affordable
housing would make the scheme unviable. This same conclusion was reached
by DVS following their own independent financial appraisal of the scheme.
Although no affordable housing is proposed, a significant number of affordable
housing units are proposed elsewhere in the east of the borough.

The development will involve the loss of identified Heritage Assets through the
demolition of buildings in a Conservation Area, some of which are locally listed.
The applicant has demonstrated that retaining these buildings while delivering

the benefits of the proposed scheme would not be viable. The harm caused by
the loss of these Heritage Assets is considered to be outweighed by the public
benefits delivered by the scheme.

The applicant has engaged directly with existing residents and business on site,
particularly the market traders, and has proposed a package of measures to
compensate for their inevitable displacement. These measures were proposed
following input from the affected residents and traders as well as the
recommendations in the Equalities Impact Assessment and those from the
GLA. Implementation of these measures will be secured through a s106
agreement.

On balance it is the officers’ view that the scheme is largely consistent with
planning policy and that subject to appropriate conditions and s106
contributions the application should be approved.

11.RECOMMENDATION 1

That planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application
reference number HGY/2008/0303 subject to a pre-condition that the applicant shall
first have entered into an agreement or agreements with Council (under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(as amended) in order to secure:

Indoor Market

A space suitable for the re provision of the indoor market shall be provided in the
development as shown on the approved drawings subject to the following conditions:

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 47

The market is replaced , almost like for like in space terms on the Seven Sisters
Road frontage;

The market is run by an experienced indoor market operator;

This arrangement must be in place not less than 12 months prior to the practical
completion date of the proposed development;

A market lease must be in place not less than 6 months prior to the due
practical completion date of the proposed market;

The rent must be reasonable open market rent for A1 use class;

Compensation will be paid to traders at a rate equivalent to the maximum of
that payable under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954;

A first right-to-occupy shall be offered to all existing traders on an exclusive and
non-assignable license of an equivalent stall in the new market area, on
reasonable a1 open market terms;

Temporary Market Relocation

The applicant provides a package (“Market Facilitator Package”) to assist the
market to find a temporary location and to continue functioning. This package
will run for five years from the granting of consent. This package includes a
‘market facilitator’ to work with traders to identify a temporary location, to work
with the Spanish speaking traders to promote their interests in the temporary
location and to provide appropriate business support and advice to all traders to
secure the maximum number of expressions of interest to return to the site as
well funding towards relocation costs and a three month rent free period in the
temporary location. The Market Facilitator will also signpost existing businesses
and employees towards existing appropriate bodies to assist business to
continue trading or individuals to find suitable alternative employment.

The applicant provides a minimum notice period of six months to market traders
for vacant possession and is offering a compensation payment to assist with
relocation expenses. This payment is in the form of £144,000 contribution to a
“Trader’s Financial Assistance Sum” (an increase on the sum of £96,650
agreed in 2008). The traders do not have any tenancy rights, therefore this
payment is voluntary

Existing residents and businesses

The Council as Housing Authority shall engage in direct dialogue with secure
and non-secure council tenants residing on the site regarding their needs and
choices for re-housing within the local area, where this is their preference.

The Council as Housing Authority shall offer appropriate assistance to shorthold
(i.e. private tenants) and owner occupiers to locate to alternative suitable
OFFREPC

Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 48

properties

Haringey council shall brief the housing association regarding the scheme’s
progress to ensure adequate time for them to identify suitable alternative
provision for affected tenants.

The developer is to undertake a further round of leaseholder and freeholder
engagement prior to a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) Resolution being
considered by Haringey Cabinet (or such other timeframe as may be agreed by
the Council)

The developer shall undertake a baseline study and subsequent ongoing
monitoring of the business owners and market holders at key points in the
progression of the planning application and construction of the development

Community Engagement

To further monitor the impact of the scheme and to provide further opportunity
for mitigations measures to be considered, the applicant, before development
can commence, is to submit to LBH a Community Engagement Strategy for our
approval dealing with diversity monitoring and participation measures and
seeking further inputs concerning potential impacts of the scheme and
suggested additional mitigation measures from different sections of the
community. The Strategy should include regular monitoring and reports on the
engagement process and how representations received have been taken into
account.

West Green Road Improvement Fund

A contribution of £250,000 shall be made to a West Green Road Environmental
Improvement Fund which will provide:

shop/building frontage improvements

street decoration and enhancements

improvements to vehicle servicing

Improvement Strategy for business/markets, open space and parking

Education Contribution

The Local Planning Authority requires a contribution of £200,000.

Public Art

A work or works of public art shall be incorporated into the fabric of the building.
The method of selecting an artist to be agreed following the submission of a
Public Art Brief.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 49

Public Realm

e The proposed works for the Public Realm including enhancement to
transport/station entrance improvements shall be undertaken and the applicants
will enter into a section 278 of the Highways Act Agreement in connection with
the works. Agreement shall be reached with the relevant statutory parties and
owners in order to carry out the works.

Other elements

Implementation of Travel Plans for key land uses

Provision of a central energy centre and reduction of C02 emissions of up to 6%
Achievement of at least Level 4 under the Code for Sustainable Homes
Establishment of a management company that will have responsibility (in
perpetuity) for the ongoing site management and security.

Establishment of CCTV system and central monitoring suite

Procurement of goods and services from local businesses and recruitment of
local people

Construction Training and Local Labour Agreement including a requirement for
contractors to adhere to national or local schemes to promote employment
amongst under-represented equality groups, e.g. the Disability Two Ticks
scheme

Provision of Podium Gardens and Open Space

Provision and maintenance of Podium Garden and Play space

No entitlement for occupiers to residents parking permits (except for 12 permits
for houses in Suffield Road)

Contribution of £1000 towards the amendment of the Traffic Management Order
(TMO)

Implementation of Lifetime Homes Standards and 10% wheelchair access (20
flats)

Letting/marketing strategy for residential units

Waste Management and Recycling

A cost recovery charge of 3% of the total value of the s106

12.RECOMMENDATION 2

(1) That, following completion of the agreement referred to in resolution
(2) Planning permission be granted in accordance with the planning application
subject to direction of the GLA.

GRANT PERMISSION
Registered No. HGY/2008/0303

Applicant's drawing No.(s) P (00) 00, P (00) 01C, P (00) 02, P (00) 03, P (00) 04, P
(00) 05, P (00) 06, P (00) 07A, P (00) 08A, P (00) 09, P (00) 10, P (00) 20, P (00) 21,
P (00) 100B, P (00) 101A, P (00) 102A, P (00) 103A, P (00) 110A, P (00) 111A.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 50

Design and Access Statement: Wards Corner Seven Sisters Design and Access
Statement and accompanying statements, including statement addenda.

Pollard Thames Edwards Architects January 2008.

Former Wards Corner Store — 227 -229 Tottenham High Road — appraisal of options
for retention or redevelopment

13.REASONS FOR APPROVAL

13.1

13.2

The proposed development of the site for a mixed use development comprising
retail shops. restaurants and residential accommodation with servicing, parking

and amenity space has been assessed against and found on balance to comply
with all the relevant Governmental, National, Regional, Sub Regional and Local
Planning Policies which within considered constraints support the regeneration

of the Wards Corner site.

Conditions

Implementation

1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the
expiration of 5 years from the date of this permission, failing which the
permission shall be of no effect.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning &
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of
unimplemented planning permissions.

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete
accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with
the approved details and in the interests of amenity.

Materials

3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no
development of the relevant part shall be commenced until precise details of the
materials to be used in connection with the development hereby permitted have
been submitted to, approved in writing by and implemented in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the
development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area

4. Samples of all materials to be used for the external surfaces of the

development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 51

Planning Authority before any of the relevant part of the development is
commenced. Samples should include sample panels or brick types and a
roofing material sample combined with a schedule of the exact product
references.

Reason: In order for the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the exact
materials to be used for the proposed development and to assess the suitability
of the samples submitted in the interests of visual amenity.

Hours of Construction

5. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be
carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or
after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment
of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.

Waste storage and recycling

6. That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse, waste storage and
recycling within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such a
scheme as approved shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter
to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.

Disabled Access

7. In order to ensure that the shops are accessible to people with disabilities
and people pushing double buggies, the door must have a minimum width of
900mm, and a maximum threshold of 25mm.

Reason: In order to ensure that the shop unit is accessible to all those people
who can be expected to use it in accordance with Policy RIM 2.1 'Access For
All' of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan.

Shopfront Design

8. Detailed plans of the design and external appearance of the shopfronts,
including details of the fascias, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before any shopfront is installed.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity of the area.

Secured by Design

9. The development hereby authorised shall comply with BS 8220 (1986) Part
1, 'Security Of Residential Buildings' and comply with the aims and objectives of

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 52

the Police requirement of 'Secured By Design' and 'Designing Out Crime'
principles.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the
required crime prevention elements as detailed by Circular 5/94 'Planning Out
Crime'.

Parking and Loading/unloading

10. That the accommodation for car parking and/or loading and unloading
facilities be specifically submitted to, approved in writing by and implemented in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning Authority before the
occupation of the building and commencement of the use; that accommodation
to be permanently retained for the accommodation of vehicles of the occupiers,
users of, or persons calling at the premises and shall not be used for any other
purposes.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice
the free flow of traffic or the conditions of general safety along the neighbouring
highway.

11. That details of on site parking management plan shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the use
of the basement car parking area. Such agreed plan to be implemented and
permanently maintained in operation to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice
the free flow of traffic or the conditions of general safety along the neighbouring
highway.

Satellite Aerials

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 4 (1) and Part 25 of Schedule 2 of
the General Permitted Development Order 1995, no satellite antenna shall be
erected or installed on any building hereby approved. The proposed
development shall have a central dish / ariel system for receiving all broadcasts
for the residential units created: details of such a scheme shall be submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the
property, and the approved scheme shall be implemented and permanently
retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to prevent the proliferation of satellite dishes on the
development.

Drainage

13. The authorised development shall not begin until drainage works have
been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 53

the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure a satisfactory provision for drainage on site and
ensure suitable drainage provision for the authorised development.

Landscape/playspace Management

14. That details of a management plan for the management and maintenance of
the first floor gardens play space and roof gardens shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the
residential units such agreed details to be implemented and maintained
thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that a satisfactory standard of amenity space and
play facilities is maintained for the future occupiers of the proposed
development.

Environmental Management Plan/Air Quality Assessment

15. That details of a site specific Environmental Management Plan as referred
to in the Air Quality Assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such
agreed plan shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local planning
Authority during the period of construction.

Reason: In order to ensure that the effects of the construction upon air quality
is minimised.

Lifetime Homes

16. That all the residential units with the proposed development with the
exception of these referred to directly in the Design and Access Statement as
not being able to be compliant shall be designed to Lifetime Homes Standard.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Councils
Standards in relation to the provision of Lifetime Homes.

17. That at least 20 flats within the proposed development shall be wheelchair
accessible or easily adaptable for wheelchair use.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Council's
Standards for the provision of wheelchair accessible dwellings.

Noise

18. That details of the specification of the glazing to be used in connection with
the proposed development in relation to reducing noise levels within the
residential units shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of the relevant part of the works. Such

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 54

agreed specification to be implemented and maintained to the satisfaction of the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the residential units

19. That the service road ventilation plant noise emissions shall be in
accordance with the limiting sound pressure level referred to in the Noise and
Vibration Assessment.

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed
development.

Cycle Parking

20. That the proposed development shall provide service covered storage for
197 cycle racks for the residential units and 38 cycle racks for the commercial
units, a total of 235 cycle racks to be provided.

Reason: In order to promote a sustainable mode of travel and improve
conditions for cyclists at this location.

Commercial Opening Hours

21. That the commercial uses shall not be operational before 0700 or after 0100
hours on any day.

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of adjoining residential occupiers.
Travel Plans

22. That the applicant shall submit 2 travel plans, one for the residential one for
the commercial use, the details of which shall be agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the proposed development. Such
agreed details shall be implemented and permanently maintained to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure sustainable travel and minimise the impact of the
proposed development in the adjoining road network.

Construction Traffic

23. That details of the routeing of the associated construction traffic and
networks of delivering of goods to the retail/commercial uses of the proposed
development be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the commencement of the works. Such agreed details shall be
implemented and where appropriate permanently maintained to the satisfaction
of the local Planning Authority

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development does not disrupt the
movement of vehicles and pedestrians doing the adjoining roads and footways.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 55

Climate Change Mitigation

24. Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall provide
details to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority of measures to
reduce CO2 emissions from renewable energy technologies by 6%.

Reason: To be consistent with London Plan Policies 4A.1 and 4A.7 and UDP
Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction.

25. The applicant shall implement energy efficiency measures for the residential
to comply with Part L of 2010 Building Regulations.

Reason: To be consistent with London Plan Policies 4A.1 and 4A.7 and UDP
Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction.

Public Realm Improvements

26. Notwithstanding the information shown on the approved drawings the
detailed design and materials of the following elements shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of that part of the development:

- Replacement bus stops

- Alterations to Seven Sisters underground station entrances (above ground)
- Footway alterations and improvements to High Road, West Green Road,
Suffield Road and Seven Sisters Road and Seven Sisters Road.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development results in improvements to
the safety and safe access of pedestrians on the public highway and users of
public transport.

Energy Modelling

27. Energy models for the commercial units based on NCM compliant methods
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved prior to
commencement of works to those units.

Reason: To be consistent with London Plan Policies 4A.1 and 4A.7 and UDP
Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction.

Demolition Management Plan

28. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a
demolition management plan detailing the method of demolition, all construction
vehicle activity related to demolition works, noise, dust and vibration mitigation
measures and suitable measures to enhance the external appearance of the
site, including appropriate additional lighting, associated with the development
hereby approved shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority

Reason: To protect the existing amenity of the surrounding area.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 56

Photovoltaics

29. Notwithstanding the drawings submitted with the application, details and
drawings of the proposed photovoltaic equipment shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority and approved prior to commencement of works. Such
approved scheme shall be implemented and permanently retained to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development meets the appropriate design and
sustainability standards as required by London Plan Policies 4A.1 and 4A.7 and
UDP Policy UD2 Sustainable Design and Construction.

INFORMATIVE: No residents within the proposed developments, with the
exception of up to 12 of the proposed houses on Suffield Road will be entitled to
apply for a residents parking permit under the terms of the relevant Traffic
Management Order (TMO) controlling on-street parking in the vicinity of the
development." The applicant must contribute a sum of £1000 (One Thousand
pounds) towards the amendment of the TMO for this purpose.

INFORMATIVE: The new development will require naming/numbering. The
applicant should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the
development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a
suitable address.

INFORMATIVE: In accordance with Section 34 of the Environmental Protection
Act and the Duty of, Care, any waste generated from construction/excavation
on site is to be stored in a safe and secure manner in order to prevent its
escape or its handling by unauthorised persons. Waste must be removed by a
registered carrier and disposed of at an appropriate waste management
licensed facility following the waste transfer or consignment note system,
whichever is appropriates.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 57

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Consultation responses

Appendix 2: Planning Policies

Appendix 3: Summary of Equalities Impacts and Recommendations by URS Scott
Wilson and conditions/s106 provisions in response

Appendix 4: Equalities Impact Assessment prepared by URS Scott Wilson

Appendix 5: Executive Summary of Toolkit Analysis by DVS

Appendix 6: Development Management Forum Minutes

Appendix 7: Summary of GLA reports

Appendix 8: GLA reports

Appendix 9: Court of Appeal judgement

Appendix 10: Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 58

APPENDIX 1
CONSULTATION RESPONSES

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

Wards Corner
Coalition (WCC)

Letter dated 20 June 2011
1. The Grainger plan would displace many people and

business. The market will not be saved but priced out

2. The surrounding independent business have not been
considered in the Grainger plan

3. The scheme does not provide ‘affordable housing’

4. The much loved, locally listed and iconic Edwardian
building would be demolished.

5. There would be massive piling works over the Victoria line
and escalators

6. Itis remit of councillors to protect the electorate from this
sort of development

7. Itis well documented that such developments take money
out of an area and harm small local business

8. Itis important to restore what remains of our heritage

9. We do not want new building replacing treasured iconic old
buildings

10. We would like a high-end restoration of the main Wards

Conditions and s106 obligations will be in place to ensure support
for the Latin American Market and appropriate support for
displaced residential and commercial occupiers

West Green Town Centre is a wholly independent centre. The
scheme provides s106 contributions for Town Centre
improvement and will compliment the centre with new multiples
and market space

The scheme will provide a substantial number of new homes (197
total) to replace the existing affordable and private housing. The
viability assessment demonstrates that provision of affordable
housing is not viable. The overall regeneration of site outweighs
need for affordable housing.

The building has been assessed for statutory listing and has not
been approved. The design of the new scheme provides a new
landmark building and opportunity for a purpose built market
This is a Building Control issue

The 2006 UDP and Development Brief were all consulted on and
they support in principle a scheme as proposed

See answer to 2 above

The design of the scheme is addressed in the report

See answer to 4 above

The council has met with and supports the WCC to submit their

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

6G abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

11.

Corner building with a more modest, phased, imaginative
restoration of the rest of the site. The Prince’s Trust is in
support of this approach and has already offered
suggestions for its funding, which have been ignored by
the council.

There needs to be shift from a centrally devised plan to
more organic growth. There are vibrant businesses on
site despite Council neglect

Letter dated May 2011 by Planning Aid for London on behalf
of WCC

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Although previously approved at committee, this
committee is not bound by this decision.

There still remains a likelihood that the scheme could
lead to permanent loss of the market. This is due to lack
of clarity market and lease particulars

There will be insufficient provision made for the 12
independent traders and small businesses in the
proposed shops

The market will disappear and the retention of the market
in the new scheme is not enforceable. Development
should reflect neighbourhood function of the town centre.

The Wards Corner building has historical resonance and
should be retained. The scheme fails the tests of PPS5.

The report should mention the impact on rising land rents
for small and micro-businesses in the area. This will
increase the cost of business more than usually made up
ethnic groups

own application. The Council is open to approaches from any
organisation.

See answer to 6. The scheme does not preclude such uses being
developed and provided.

Agreed.

All reasonable endeavours will be undertaken to ensure a
temporary location for the market is found prior to its closure at
Wards Corner. The market will be managed by a experienced
market operator. Further details are provided in the report.

The units on West Green Road are for small independent retailers.

Those who move elsewhere will receive business advice if doing
SO.

The conditions and s106 will help to ensure survival of the market.
Any subsequent change to the market would require consent. The
scheme includes space market traders and small retailers to
facilitate neighbourhood retail function

The report shows that the scheme passes PPS5 and provides a
quality designed replacement building.

This is addressed in the report see para. 6.163

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

09 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

18. The proposal conflicts with policies supporting inclusive
communities and vitality of town centres.

Email dated 09 November 2008

19. Plans are unpopular with local traders and residents

20. Despite received substantial funds, the scheme will not
bring public benefit

21. Scheme will result in fewer jobs

22. No evidence that developers can bring new or different
retail/restaurants

23. Does not brief requirement for vital, mixed use, taking its
cue from local diversity

24. Will attract a transient population. Does not meet social
housing need

25. Design is out keeping and scale with area

26. The plan involves the demolition of well-loved and well-
regarded heritage buildings in a conservation area

27. The plan will prevent the development of a proposed
vibrant multicultural and Iberian and Latin quarter

28. The scheme is not deliverable

29. There is a viable and locally supported alternative
proposal led by local people and the Wards Corner

The scheme is consistent with relevant UDP and London Plan
Policy (3A.17, 3A.18, 3D.1, 3D.2, 3D.3, 4B.5, 4B.8 of London Plan
and G5, AC3, AC4, TCR1, TCR3 of UDP)

Scheme has been designed following extensive consultation but it
must be assessed against planning and regeneration policy and
the Planning Brief.

Scheme will provide extensive public benefits. Please see report
para. 6.19-6.30

The scheme will provide more retail space and associated in
crease in employment potential. Construction will use local labour
according to s106 agreement

Scheme has variety of retail units. There will be a letting strategy
focussing on independent retailers

See answer to 22

See answer to 3

Design is addressed in the report para. 6.80-6.112

Conservation is addressed in the report para. 6.65-6.79

The scheme does not preclude the creation of a Iberian and Latin
quarter

The District Valuer Services (DVS) appraisal concludes the
scheme is deliverable

See answer to 10

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

19 abed



Stakeholder Question/Comment Response

Community Coalition
Letter dated 03 March 2008

30. The scheme is not consistent with the Brief
The scheme is considered consistent, see all of report.
31. Destruction of Tottenham’s built heritage and detriment to

conservation area Conservation and Design addressed in report para. 6.65-6.112

32. Misrepresentative and partial publicity by Grainger and
their communications company M&N Not a planning issue. The council has engaged widely and openly

33. Negative impact on diverse ethnic communities
See Equalities section in report para. 6.155-6.163
34. Destruction of market
See answer to 13
35. External retail development will distort local economy and
character away from sustainability Improved variety of retail and accommodation of market and small
retailers will provide sustainable retail
36. Negative impact on risk of crime and perception of crime
See Community Safety section in report para. 6.138-6.144
37. Destruction of existing business, homes and the market
Those displaced will receive appropriate assistance. The market
will be relocated temporarily and re-provided in the new scheme.
See report para. 6.165-6.168.
38. Unacceptable housing density, tenure and design
Density and design in compliance with policy. Affordable housing
is not viable. See report para. 6.51-6.53, 6.80-6.112, 6.54-6.56
39. Unethical subsidy of private profit with public funds
through NDC Not a planning matter

A letter and DVD were received on behalf of the Wards Corner
Community Coalition dated 8th July 2008 proposing deferral of | The council have and continue to support community members in
planning applications and the establishment of a steering the preparation and submission of a refurbishment scheme

committee.

Further objection received 11 July 2011

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

29 abed




First consultation
beginning Feb
2008

365 responses (incl
23 duplicates) in
objection

27 responses in
support

1.  The market would be lost.

2.  The iconic Wards Corner building and other Edwardian
buildings would be lost. These building should be
restored.

3. The development proposed by Grainger has not
benefited from widespread and meaningful consultation
with the Community.

4. Flats and shopping mall does not constitute imaginative
landmark gateway

5. Development is of a mechanical nature rather than
human nature thus not one for which it's users or

No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response
40. Equalities and discriminatory destruction of ethnic
minority businesses and social amenity See answer 33
41. Place making and heritage — scheme is contrary to
PPS5. The Princes Regeneration Trust are prepared See Conservation section in report 6.80-6.112 and following
to find funding for preservation and refurbishment. sections on local residents consultations
Public opinion is against the development.
42. Failure to meet housing obligations. No provision of
affordable housing at Apex House. See para 6.60
43. Deficits in sustainable environment obligations
See para 6.122 to 6.126
44. Destruction of jobs and local economic activity — the
scheme is contrary to PPS4 The scheme will provide a variety of retail units. See para 6.20-
6.47
45. Crime myths
See para 6.139-6.145
2 Local Residents - Residents and traders will lose homes and livelihoods. Conditions and s106 obligations will be in place to ensure support

and re-provision of the Latin American Market and appropriate
support for displaced residential and commercial occupiers

See answer 1
Design and conservation issues addressed in report para 6.65-

6.112

Both Grainger and the Council have consulted widely and
openly prior and during the life of the application

The building is a quality landmark design, see report para. 6.80-
6.112.

See answer 5

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

cg abed



No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response
inhabitants are likely to feel a sense of ownership
The development is integrated into the public realm and will
6. It would constitute a gated private community which will provide spaces for local business to operate
be severed from and have no sense of identity or
involvement with the rest of the Seven Sisters Area
The building varies in height and is sensitive to local
7. Seven story blocks will not be in harmony with the development, see report.
adjacent Page Green Conservation Area,
See relevant sections in report para. 6.177-6.178, 6.115-6.118,
8. The health, Education, Recreation and Transport 6.126-6.133
infrastructure is not sufficient to cater for the new
inhabitants,
Scheme has variety of retail units. There will be a letting strategy
9. The development will displace local businesses in favour | focussing on independent retailers
of branches of chain stores
The scheme introduces a new public square
10. The development offers no new open space for public
recreation and relaxation
See answer 4
11. The proposal has been drawn up without involvement
from the public and without consultation with local
businesses and the people who will be affected by it.
3 Local Residents - The objector's comments were along similar lines as those

Second
consultation
beginning Jan 2011

624 responses
(549 in standard
letter form)

11 responses in
support

raised in the previous consultation period however the
following points are new or were further emphasised:

Inadequate consultation, second round of consultation
was not clear, images should have been included,
comment button on website did not work

Loss of existing diverse and vibrant shops would be
harmful to the local community and business. Following
requirements of Equalities legislation, mitigation
measures should be included to minimise impact on
traders, including temporary accommodation and
affordable rents

Both Grainger and the Council have consulted widely and
openly prior and during the life of the application

Conditions and s106 obligations will mitigate equalities impacts

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

9 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

3.

10.

11.

12.

The new market is not adequate to re-house the existing
market in its entirety

Essential surrounding local businesses will be lost.
Current economic conditions make it unlikely that the
scheme will be successful. The retail units will fail and
displaced business will be unable to carry on elsewhere

The design is inferior, does not enhance conservation
area and does create a sense of place

Existing heritage buildings should be restored. They are
friendly to small business

The development is not capable of sustainable use.

The Grainger development has not benefited from
widespread and meaningful consultation

The development will not create a sustainable town
centre

The applicant’s Equalities Impact Assessment is
questionable. It is a desktop study that does not contain
primary research. The council is required to undertake a
EqlA

The new market will not be suitable for all traders to
return, particularly food retailers and provides no
provision for temporary relocation

Crime and fear of crime are overstated in an effort to
exaggerate the benefits of the scheme

The market is large enough to accommodate all existing traders

The variety of retail units, including the market, and particular
dedicated units on West Green Road will promote independent
retailers. A Letting Strategy will support this

Design and conservation is addressed in the report para. 6.65-
6.112
Conservation is addressed in the report. Proposed retail provision

will accommodate small business

The development is environmentally, socially and economically
sustainable due to low energy use, re-provision of local market
and creation of jobs for example

Regeneration of Wards Corner has been subject to consultation
since inception. The Grainger scheme is product of this process

See answer 7

The Council has commissioned an independent Equalities Impact
Assessment. See appendix 5.

The market will accommodate existing uses. Conditions and s106
will provide a temporary relocation for the market.

Crime and fear of crime is identified issue and the scheme will
improve community safety but will have other benefits as well.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

G9 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

The scheme provides no community benefit or public
open space to Tottenham

The Toolkit assessment should be made public

If consent is granted, conditions should be applied
requiring rapid development, restrictions on sale of the
land and permission

The benefits of dual fuel boilers using biofuels are
overstated The development will not achieve 20%
renewable energy. Photovoltaics are viable with feed-in
tariffs.

The LED artwork is energy intensive. No comparison has
been made between the embedded carbon emissions of
the scheme and refurbishment proposal

The development and development process go against
the spirit of the emerging Localism bill

The scheme is even less viable today and the site will
remain undeveloped for longer, causing blight

There is a more appropriate community-led alternative
scheme

Haringey council should back the community, not private
interests. The community proposals have been ignored.

The scheme still does not help solve the housing
shortage

No guarantee that new retail facilities will be what local

The scheme provides a new public square, improved public
realm, new quality housing and retail

An executive summary is publicly available

Not a planning matter but the development agreement in place
requires Grainger to development the site to completion in a
timely manner and restricts their ability assign or dispose of their
rights or obligations under the DA without consent from the
Council

Agreed. The scheme will now include photovoltaics rather than a
dual-fuel boiler.

The scheme has been subjected to an energy assessment and
meets London Plan Climate change mitigation policies

Local stakeholders have been involved since inception of
development brief.

The independent financial appraisal concludes the scheme is
deliverable

Approval of this scheme does not preclude other schemes
coming forward

The council have supported and continue to support community
members in the preparation and submission of a scheme for the
refurbishment of Wards Corner.

It has been demonstrated that affordable housing is not viable on
this site

The variety of retail units, including the market, and particular

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

99 abed



conduct of the committee. However, those which relate to the
planning merits of the scheme are summarised here

1.

The site is not a major town centre location. The market
and wards corner building provides the attraction of this
small town centre in a way a modern development would
not. The market and small independent shops are more
resilient to economic conditions

The applicant’s heritage assessment is self-serving

No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response
people want. those on West Green Road will promote independent retailers. A
Letting Strategy will support this
24. Will be destructive to community relations and Conditions and s106 obligations will help to minimise impacts of
cohesiveness disruption and displacement for residents and retailers and
encourage retailers to return to the site
25. Redevelopment should be sympathetic to the locality and | The scheme is designed sympathetically to local architecture.
not driven by profit The scheme is driven by a desire to regenerate the Seven Sisters
area
26. Preserving local character will lead to longer term The development makes use of the site to transform and bring
regeneration investment into the are while retaining the market, independent
retail and sympathetic design
27. The applicants and council have not responded to the The council have paid close attention to equalities duties and
judgement of the Court of Appeal have commissioned and independent equalities impact
assessment
28. New notices has not been given to landowners Same scheme with same reference number is being reassessed.
No need to serve new notices
4 Clir David Schmitz | Clir Schmitz’s objection refers to legal points regarding the

The development will provide a variety of retail spaces to provide a
varied and robust retail offer complementing the existing town
centre.

See conservation section in the report para. 6.80-6.112

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

/9 ebed



1.

Concern expressed over poor initial consultation, lack of
early resident and business involvement, design, mix of
retail, concerns of market traders.

No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response

3. The applicant’s planning statement addendum misquotes | The scheme is considered to be consistent with the development
the brief, downplaying the importance of retaining the brief
Wards Corner building.

4. The proposed wording to the market lease clause does The s106 wording has not been finalised but it will be drafted to
not compel the developer and market operator to agree ensure that recommendations of the EqIA and GLA are honoured.
anything

Improvement of market premises and associated increase in rent

5. The replacement market will command higher rents than | would also occur with a refurbishment scheme. The difference in

the existing market and will price out existing traders rent with a demolition and rebuild is not considered to be
significant
The Council has commissioned URS Scott Wilson to prepare an

6. The EqlA on the Council’s website was undertaken by independent EqlA and this is publicly available. The ‘Wards
the applicant. It should have had a wider geographic Corner LSOA'’ is used to create an equality profile for an area most
scope. It does not account for the impact on people who closely associated to the site. Section 7.4 of the URS Scott Wilson
use the market. EqlA addresses the impact on those use the market.

The market will be offered a temporary location to continue

7. The loss of the market and shops will deprive a operating. Shops will received business advice.
substantial community of their way up out of deprivation.

The Met Police have confirmed that improvements to the

8. The suggestion that the development will reduce the fear | appearance of an area reduce crime and fear of crime
of crime is unfounded

High rise development is appropriate to the site and allows for the

9. The applicant has not justified why high rise development | delivery of a substantial number of new housing units. See design

is so beneficial to justify demolition of Ward Corner and regenerations sections of the report para. 6.80-6.112, 6.19-
6.30.

10. There is no evidence that the Wards Corner building
must be demolished because there is no tenancy The Wards Corner building is owned by Transport for London.
demand. The Council or NDC have made no attempt to Tenancy is out of the Council’s or Grainger’s control.
attract a tenant

5 David Lammy MP Letter received during initial consideration of application.

Scheme has been subject open and wide consultation. Other
issues mention are addressed in the report.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

g9 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

2.

Doubts remain over deliverability of WCC plans.

Fear is that any regeneration will be stalled, leaving the
area blighted.

The council have and continue to support the WCC to preprare
and submit their plan

Regeneration of Wards Corner is a Council priority

Tottenham Civic
Society

Contact: Matthew
Bradby

The structures proposed do not represent an integrated
approach to design that takes account of their historic,
social or cultural context. The architects claim that the
blocks will 'reference the past' through their large
windows and terracotta panels, but this would not alter
the essential fact that they are little more than blocks of
high density flats that represent a radical departure from
the three storey brick built shops and homes that
characterise the area at present and which are the main
reason that it is a conservation area.

The main tower blocks are described as being of up to
seven storeys but as they sit on a two storey base, | think
this makes them nine storeys tall. This will fundamentally
and irrevocably disrupt the scale and character of
the conservation area in which Ward's Corner stands
and the adjacent Page Green Conservation Area. As
the blocks do not have any setting or ground around
them, they appear crowded and far too large for the
space available according to normal ideas of scale.

The proposals fail on CSV1: 'the Council will require
that developments in conservation areas preserve or
enhance the historic character and qualities of the
buildings and/or the conservation area'. | think that the
main blocks succeed in embodying the worst failings
of early twentieth century architecture in that they are
simultaneously hugely out of scale and fiddly and fussy at
the same time. The quality of the architecture and ideas
is simply not strong enough to justify demolishing what

Design is addressed in the report para. 6.80-6.112

Buildings are maximum 7 storeys tall. See answer 1

Conservation, heritage and design is addressed in report para.
6.65-6.112.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

69 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

we have in place. There are a few things that | do like,
but they are mainly to do with landscaping around the
large plane tree and station entrance which do not
require demolition of the existing buildings.

Residential concerns

4. We are not confident in the argument that the residential
units will attract more affluent people to the area. We
think it is questionable whether these affluent people will
wish to buy homes with balconies overlooking a very
busy intersection where according to the application
twelve bus routes converge on a road 'disfigured by
heavy traffic'. The level of noise, as well as exhaust
fumes, will be such that nobody will be able to use
those balconies. The design simply won't work. It seems
more likely that the flats will be acquired by investors
and used as buy-to-let properties, resulting in more
transient residents with little sense of belonging or
connection with the area.

5. We are very concerned that if the proposed development
does not incorporate some affordable housing, it will
fail to meet the Council's own published targets on
providing integrated housing solutions that combine
private and shared ownership schemes. It seems to us
that this type of development is the most desirable in
preventing social exclusion and social barriers between
residents.

6. Looking at the local map, the closest real open space is
Markfield Park, some ten minutes walk away on the other
side of a busy junction in this, the densest and most built
up part of the whole of Tottenham. There could be a large
number of children in 200 flats, and this seems a
very constrained environment for them. | know that road
improvements are planned for the area, but | doubt
whether the volume of traffic passing the development
will really be reduced.

The new homes are designed and will be built to high quality
standards to attract owner occupiers

It has been robustly demonstrated that affordable housing is not
viable on this site

Child playspace is addressed in the report para. 6.116-6.118.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

0/ abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

Retail concerns

7. We believe that the level of rents likely to be demanded
by the developer in order to meet their profit targets will
result in a very undesirable mix of retail outlets, likely to
be characterised by low cost licensed premises,
betting, money transfer/lending shops and fast food.
These are exactly the types of highly profitable chains
which have moved into new developments at Wood
Green station - e.g. Wetherspoons, McDonalds, Yates
Wine Lodge, Shout, and at Turnpike Lane, and it seems
likely that similar chains would want to site themselves at
Seven Sisters, particularly given match day trade.

8. There seems to be confusion about how the development
may or may not affect crime in the area but | think the
proposed development carries major risks in this respect.
Given the presence of Tesco across the road, some
people's hopes that we will see a Sainsbury's Local,
Costa Coffee, M&S, Next, etc, are overconfident and
unjustified. | think given the high likelihood of the arrival
of licensed premises to the development, we could well
see a very negative effect on crime. It would be very
difficult for the Council to block licensed premises from
taking leases in a new development and all hopes for
what shops might be attracted are purely speculative.

9. Whether or not the units are let, the removal of the
independent and popular cafes that colonise the
pavement at present may lead to the area reverting to
being a crime hotspot. If this were to happen, the
negative effect on the retail premises and surrounding
area would be contrary to the whole spirit and
aspiration of the redevelopment. It would be far better to
create more small retail spaces in the tradition of the
existing vibrant Latin market, which will generate more
self-employment. This is the kind of regeneration that
has worked very well, in Camden for example, which has

The variety of retail units, including the market, and particular
those on West Green Road will promote independent retailers. A
Letting Strategy will support this

Community Safety is addressed in the report para 6.138-6.144.

The scheme will include space for small independent retailers
and market traders

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

1, 8bed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

embraced its Victorian heritage.

Seven Sisters Underground Station

10. We are not reassured by the developer's statements on
the effect on the station. Disruption to the station, on the
Victoria Line, could be nothing short of catastrophic,
given the importance of this line to the entire capital. We
have seen maps of the position of the tunnels and station
and | understand that the ticket hall is only 1m (one
metre) below street level. The application also
concedes that escalators are 'especially sensitive to
movement'. We disagree that comprehensive
redevelopment is a good solution to the construction
difficulties. Surely leaving existing buildings intact is a
more reliable means of reducing risk to the underground
tunnels and ticket hall below?

Heritage

11. We believe that regeneration must be heritage-led in
order to be successful and to minimise the risk posed by
unsustainable overdevelopment. Although not nationally
listed, the Wards Corner building at 227 High Road
(1909) is unique to Haringey and is an interesting
example of an early 20th C steel framed building with
large internal spaces and huge plate glass windows - it
belongs to the same era of technological innovation
as buildings such as Selfridges on Oxford Street (also
1909) and deserves to be conserved. The Ward's Stores
building is held up as an example of one of the very best
and most interesting on the whole historic High Road
corridor, and a prime candidate for future restoration.
It is an interesting contrast to the 1908 Windsor
Parade which has just been so expensively restored.
It seems remarkable that the developer does not realise
this, or does not choose to, but this is a betrayal of our
local heritage.

12. As noted elsewhere, the 'lost' balustrade is stored inside

This is a building control issue

Conservation and heritage is addressed in the report para. 6.65-
6.79

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

2/, abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

13.

the building. The alterations to the windows are minor
and do not affect their quality. The clock is apparently in
storage somewhere and though | have yet to
determine exactly where, enquiries are being made. |
totally disagree that the building is in a 'poor state of
repair'. | think we would all agree that it wears is hundred
years very well indeed as recent internal and
external photographs show. Detail on interior pillars,
skylights and ceiling plaster work is all intact. The
developer's view that its contribution to the Area is 'only
neutral' is an absolute nonsense, and it is not for the
developer, with a serious conflict of interest, to make
such a determination in the first place. The measure of a
building's worth is what the local community attaches to
it, and the evidence is that Wards Corner has a very
strong pull on local affection and cultural memory.

| also think the developer's assessment of 1a-1b
West Green Road is to seriously underestimate this
building, which should also be retained. It is also early
20th C and of high quality, part of Tottenham's
Edwardian shopping heritage. They are ideal for
restoration. Likewise the homes on Suffield Road - this is
good quality family housing with private gardens for
children to play in and providing green space in this built
up area. | think the developer’s historical description of
the site contains factual inaccuracies which further
undermines my confidence in their overall submission.

Costs

14.

| have looked at the developer's estimates of the
costs associated with retaining existing buildings and
even a layman can see that these costs are not realistic. |
do not intend to go through them line by line but to say
that the market value of 227 High Road is £350,000 is
nonsense - such a building would command a seven
figure price tag. £350k is the price of a three
bedroom terrace in N15. Likewise the cost of refurbishing

See answer 11

See answer 11

The demonstration of viability of retention is considered robust.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

¢/ abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

it as £717,000 is a gross overestimate. | believe the
building could be brought back into general use for a
tenth of that cost. The developer's costs need to be
submitted to an independent, impartial review and
scrutiny, otherwise we are not serving the best interests
of the community, we are simply accepting things on the
nod and serving the interests of the developer. Overall |
think the developer's cost and value analysis of 227
High Road situation is particularly flawed. The fact is that
this building has a cultural, social and heritage value that
is far more durable than the buildings that are proposed
in its place.

Local context

15.

16.

On a general note, other large new blocks of flats
currently appearing in the High Road seem vast and
cumbersome in their context. It does not appear as if the
will of developers to maximise profit in our area is being
successfully controlled and we risk a permanent
transformation of the historic High Road corridor into a
canyon of high rises shoe-horned into small spaces
and towering over their surviving neighbours. The agenda
of development in the High Road is being set by
developers and therefore it's no surprise that all the new
buildings are gigantic and out of character.

There is a massive block of flats going up opposite the
Swan PH and the other major block on Tottenham Green
East. If this development at Seven Sisters is approved
we will move a further significant step away from
the historic, quality neighbourhood that we know and
towards something resembling Euston Road, Elephant
and Castle, central Slough or Basildon. As of today's
date, over 250 people had signed our online petition in
favour of restoring Wards Stores
(http://www.gopetition.co.uk/online/14551.html) and
there are an equivalent number of signatures on paper in
my possession.

See answer 1

See answer 1

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

v/ ebed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

17. |1 do not think that the Council when it prepared the
development brief for Wards Corner envisaged
something being proposed on this gargantuan scale.
Tottenham will not be improved by continued
unsustainable overdevelopment. | strongly believe that
this application, which is after all only the developer's
opening gambit, should be rejected, and the developer
asked to use some imagination and compromise with
community interests to achieve a more acceptable
and sustainable solution.

Further to their original objection received 18 March 2008, the
Tottenham Civic Society has made a further objection:

18. The flat roofline is unattractive and incongruous with
other buildings in the area; indeed the north-eastern
tower block has the air of an municipal incinerator about
it. The mass of the building is totally out of keeping with
its surroundings; at seven storeys it is more than double
the height of existing streetscape; It will cast an extremely
large and unwelcome shadow on this part of the High
Road, making it cold and sunless.

19. The proposals cannot be said to enhance the
Conservation Area. It is noted that CA consent for
demolition has been granted, but this does not alter the
fact that the Conservation Area WILL be damaged by any
objective definition. Indeed, it throws the whole existence
of the CA at this point of the road into doubt.

20. The over-use of glass is out of keeping with the more
traditional brick and other material in the conservation
area; the areas of brick fagade appear artificial and
contrived in design. The corner area which aims to evoke
the original corner is unfortunately a very insipid,
watered-down and characterless attempt.

The scheme is considered consistent with the brief

See answer 1

See answer 11

See answer 1

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

G/ abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

21.

22.

23.

There will be extremely serious noise pollution
considerations for new intended residents, 24 hours a
day. We have concerns about the placing of the
pedestrian entrance to the flats so close to the entrance
of the Tube station. This appears to compromise privacy
of the proposed residents.

Appeal Court Ruling. We are very concerned that to
renew the planning permission for the Grainger
development without undertaking the required equality
assessment would therefore be directly contrary to the
Court ruling and to the requirements of the Equality Act.

The application does not comply with the DRLP.
Specifically, it would not comply with the Mayor's
Objective 3 for (I quote) "neighbourhoods to which
Londoners feel attached, which provide all of its
residents, workers, visitors and students -- whatever their
origin, background, age or status -- with opportunities to
realise and express their potential and a high quality
environment for individuals to enjoy, live together and
thrive", nor his Objective 4 for "making the most of
London's built heritage". The Grainger redevelopment
application also appears to fail to comply with the DRLP's
Town Centre Policy 2.15 for sustainable neighbourhoods,
nor does it comply with Policies 7.1, 7.4 and 7.8.

Noise is addressed in the report. Street access will lead to a
private podium entrance

An independent Equality Impact Assessment has been
commissioned

The GLA are satisfied that the scheme is consistent with emerging
London Plan Policy

Tottenham CAAC
Contact: Matthew
Bradby

There is no substantial community benefit that would
result from the total or substantial demolition of these
buildings so as to allow demolition as an exceptional
case:-

The proposed development is not in keeping with the
Development Brief for the Wards Corner site nor in
keeping with the policies for creating a New Town Centre;
The proposal will not create a high quality gateway; It is
not an attractive design and does not provide a high
quality, imaginative development looked for under PPG

Conservation and heritage addressed in report para 6.65-6.79

Design is addressed in the report para. 6.80-6.112

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

9/ abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

15 and will not enhance the Seven Sisters/Page Green
Conservation Area; It does not create a sense of place,
being bland and lacking individual character; Its height,
bulk and mass are too great for the area and will
overpower other buildings and will destroy the character
of the Conservation Area. The Tottenham CAAC object to
the application for consent for demolition in a
Conservation Area for all the reasons given above.

Further comments following second consultation

3. CAAC are aware that Conservation Area consent has
been granted but position remains the same. Most
appropriate development would be to restore existing
buildings

Noted

Federation of Small
Businesses
Chairman Steve
Warwick

1. Does not comply with GLA stage 1 report and London
Plan policies

2. No social housing

3. Developer may not be able to fund the development but
may just sell the site

4. Lengthy lead in time for development

5. Heritage buildings are capable of re-use
6. No apparent s106
7. New builds will destroy, not regenerate

8. Community will be lost

GLA are satisfied that the scheme is consistent with London Plan
policy.

It has been demonstrated that affordable housing is not viable
Not a planning matter but the development agreement in place
requires Grainger to development the site to completion in a
timely manner and restricts their ability assign or dispose of their
rights or obligations under the DA without consent from the
Council

Development delayed due to Judicial Review. If permission
granted development can proceed

Conservation and heritage addressed in report
There is an extensive s106 agreement proposed
Scheme will bring quality modern development to area

Community of retailers will be supported. Market will be provided

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

// abed



No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response
temporary location and encouraged to occupy new market
Further consultation response received following second
consultation
9. Destruction of market, shops and surrounding businesses | Market will be relocated temporarily and re-provided in new
development. Shops will be compensated and new scheme will
encourage independent retail
10. Loss through eviction of tenants from the site
The s106 will ensure appropriatecompensation is given to those
affected
11. Members are concerned they could be priced out of area
or forced into bankruptcy The scheme will include small retail units for small businesses
12. Apparent lack of engagement with local small businesses
Local stakeholders have been involved since inception of
development brief. Council and Grainger have engaged with
business on site
9 Haringey 1. Not in keeping with planning brief The scheme is consistent with the planning brief
Federation of
Residents 2. Not a landmark gateway development Design addressed in the report para. 6.80-6.112
Associations

3. Bland building design

4. Too tall, it's overdevelopment and not in keeping with
Conservation Area

5. No affordable housing
6. It will be private gated development
7. The heritage value of the site will be lost

8. Health, education and infrastructure inadequate to
support development

See answer 2

See answer 2

It has been demonstrated that affordable housing is not viable
The scheme will include improvements to public
Conservation and heritage addressed in the report

Local infrastructure and services considered adequate. Education
and contribution will be made.

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

g/ abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

9.  No community facilities or local amenities, no new open
space

10. Will displace local business in favour of chain stores

11. Fails to demonstrate environmental sustainability

12. Lack of involvement and engagement of local community

Further consultation response received following second
consultation. New points raised below:

13. In statements and discussions during the Examination in
Public on the Draft Replacement London Plan (DRLP)
Chapter 2's policies for ‘London's Places’ it was clear that
borough LDF content and decision making should take
account of the social and race equality impacts of
proposed developments. For the Ward’s Corner site, the
judge’s decision of 22 June 2010 on the Judicial Review
for the proposed development was quite clear and we do
not consider that anything has changed since then.

14. The current market at the site, the businesses of its
operators and the availability of its goods for the
communities must be preserved in its entirety in
accordance with chapter 7 of the DRLP. The local
businesses are an essential part of the neighbourhood
and the Council has no valid reason for destroying them
by allowing the proposed development.

15. The Localism Bill emphasises the right of communities to
decide what development they want in their
neighbourhood and Haringey Council should respect the
wishes of residents and businesses in the area. There
should be widespread consultation with the local

New public square provided and community market re-provided

High street multiples will be complemented by independent retail
and market

Energy and sustainability addressed in the report

Regeneration of Wards Corner has been subject to consultation
since inception. The Grainger scheme is product of this process

An independent equalities impact assessment has been
undertaken

The market will be temporarily located and re-provided. The
variety of retail units, including the market, and particular
dedicated units on West Green Road will promote independent
retailers. A Letting Strategy will support this

Regeneration of Wards Corner has been subject to consultation
since inception. The Grainger scheme is product of this process

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

6/, obed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

communities on the development of Wards Corner.

16. The current proposal would not be context sensitive and
would fail to meet the policies in chapter 7 of the DRLP. It
would deprive the residents in the area of goods, services
and work opportunities in a way that is contrary to the
Government’s and the Mayor’s policies for sustainable
neighbourhoods and multicultural integration.

17. Should Haringey Council be mindful to support the
Grainger proposal, we would seek that the Mayor directs
planning refusal.

GLA are satisfied that the scheme is consistent with London Plan
Policy

Noted.

10

London Forum

The London Forum is a charity established 22 years to
support community groups in the capital.

1. In statements and discussions during the Examination in
Public on the Draft Replacement London Plan (DRLP)
Chapter 2's policies for ‘London's Places’ it was clear that
borough LDF content and decision making should take
account of the social and race equality impacts of
proposed developments. For the Ward’s Corner site, the
judge’s decision of 22 June 2010 on the Judicial Review
for the proposed development was quite clear and
London Forum does not consider that anything has
changed since then.

2. The current market at the site, the businesses of its
operators and the availability of its goods for the
communities must be preserved in its entirety in
accordance with chapter 7 of the DRLP. The local
businesses are an essential part of the neighbourhood
and the Council has no valid reason for destroying them
by allowing the proposed development.

3. The Localism Bill emphasises the right of communities to
decide what development they want in their

An independent equalities impact assessment has been
undertaken

The market will be temporarily located and re-provided. The
variety of retail units, including the market, and particular
dedicated units on West Green Road will promote independent
retailers. A Letting Strategy will support this

Regeneration of Wards Corner has been subject to consultation
since inception. The Grainger scheme is product of this process

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

08 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

neighbourhood and Haringey Council should respect the
wishes of residents and businesses in the area. There
should be widespread consultation with the local
communities on the development of Wards Corner.

The current proposal would not be context sensitive and
would fail to meet the policies in chapter 7 of the DRLP. It
would deprive the residents in the area of goods, services
and work opportunities in a way that is contrary to the
Government’s and the Mayor’s policies for sustainable
neighbourhoods and multicultural integration.

Should Haringey Council be mindful to support the
Grainger proposal, London Forum would seek that the
Mayor directs planning refusal.

GLA are satisfied that the scheme is consistent with London Plan
Policy

Noted.

11

North London
Business

Support the creation of a landmark gateway development
and additional housing growth

Noted.

12

Bridge NDC

The proposed development will bring significant benefits
to the locality which would include a positive effect upon
the vitality and viability of the Severs Seven Sisters
Centre. The provision of new housing, improvements in
public transport and the public realm reduction in crime
and the perception of crime, and improved employment
opportunities and skills training

Noted.

13

English Heritage
Contact: Richard
Parish

Following the introduction of PPS5, and rejection by the
Court of Appeal, the development proposals have been
resubmitted with additional information. The scheme of
redevelopment remains largely as submitted in March
2008. The proposal includes the demolition of the
unlisted former Ward's Corner department store, Nos.
255-259 High Road, and the locally listed 1a-1b West
Green Road, all of which are identified as making a
positive contribution to the character and appearance of
the conservation area. As such there is a strong
presumption in favour of their retention. English Heritage

Conservation and Heritage addressed in the report para. 6.65-
6.79

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee

18 abed



No. | Stakeholder Question/Comment Response
does not consider the criteria for their demolition, as set
out in PPS5, to have been met. Additionally, we believe
that the proposed new development, by virtue of its
design, would cause harm to the character and
appearance of the conservation area.
Recommendation
English Heritage's view remains that as set out in our letter 10
January 2010. We would urge the council seek a more
sensitive scheme which retains those buildings identified as
making a positive contribution to the conservation area and
which seeks to enhance the character and distinctiveness of
the conservation area in accordance with government and
local guidance.
14 Environment 1. We have no objection to the proposed development Noted
Agency providing conditions requiring a site contamination risk
Contact: Kai assessment and foul and surface water disposal
Mitchell management are applied to any permission granted.
15 Metropolitan Police | 1. With reference to the proposed development at Wards Noted
Contact: Eric Childs Corner, High Road and West Green Road N15. The Crime
Prevention Department has no objection to the scheme and
looks forward to the regeneration of this key gateway into
Haringey. We have already been consulted on the scheme
by the architect with a view to achieving full Secured by
Design certification.
16 GLA GLA comments are summarised in appendix 8. The GLA are supportive of the scheme.
Contact: Emma
Williamson
17 Transport for 1. Our infrastructure teams have reviewed their suggestions Noted.
London. and in concept find them acceptable; the subsequent
Contact: Anthony detailed operational interface will be agreed as the project
Bickmore moves forward.
18 LBH Transportation | Albeit some transport infrastructure improvement and travel Noted. These conditions will be applied.

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

28 abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

Team
Contact: Maurice
Richards

plan measures geared towards minimising car-dependency
are critical to this development proposal, it is deemed that
these can be achieved through a S.106/S.278 agreement with
the applicant to make some contributions towards
walking/cycling/public transport enhancement and implement
agreed travel plan measures. Consequently, the highway and
transportation authority would not object to this application,
subject to the conditions that the applicant:

1. provides 235 (two hundred and thirty-five) bicycle racks,
which shall be enclosed within a secure shelter.

Reason: To improve the conditions for cyclists at this location.

2. submits two satisfactory Travel Plans for the residential and
commercial/retail parts of the development to the
transportation planning section for approval.

Reason: To minimise the traffic impact of this development on
the adjoining roads.

3. submits the details of the hours and frequencies of delivery
to this site by the lorries servicing the retail units.

Reason: To ensure that the delivery activities associated with
this development will not cause unacceptable level of
obstruction to the movement of vehicles on the surrounding
roads.

4. enters into a S.106 agreement that: “Except for the twelve
(12) houses fronting onto Suffield Road, the residential units
are defined as 'car free' and therefore no residents therein will
be entitled to apply for a residents parking permit under the
terms of the

relevant Traffic Management Order (TMO) controlling on-
street parking in the vicinity of the development." The
applicant must contribute a sum of £1000 (One thousand
pounds) towards the amendment of the TMO for this purpose.

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

cg abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable travel modes at
this location.

5. submits the details of the routeing of the associated
construction traffic and methods of delivery of goods to the
retail/commercial aspect of the development, to the Council
and TfL prior to construction, for approval.

Reason: To minimise the disruption to the movements of
vehicles and pedestrians along the adjoining roads and
footways.

Informatives

1. “Except for the twelve (12) houses fronting onto Suffield
Road, the residential units are defined as 'car free' and
therefore no residents therein will be entitled to apply for a
residents parking permit under the terms of the relevant Traffic
Management Order (TMO) controlling on-street parking in the
vicinity of the development." The applicant must contribute a
sum of £1000 (One thousand pounds) towards the
amendment of the TMO for this purpose.

2. The new development will require naming/numbering. The
applicant should contact the transportation Group at least six
weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 020 8489
5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address.

19

LBH Building
Control

1. Access for Fire brigade satisfactory. Means of escape
considered under formal BC application.

Noted.

20

CABE
Contact: Menaka
Sehai

In their letter of 22 May 2008, CABE stated that they were
generally supportive of the principle of mixed use
development and associated public realm enhancement work.

Satisfied with many of the basic propositions underpinning this

Noted.

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

g abed



No.

Stakeholder

Question/Comment

Response

design.

The Wards Corner site is one part of a wider regeneration
area as identified by Haringey Borough Council and it is
considered to have the potential to kick start a regenerative
process for the wider neighbourhood. Whilst there are a few
concerns regarding some aspects of massing and the delivery
and maintenance of the public realm enhancement work, we
are confident that the design team will be able to address
these issues satisfactorily.

Recommendation:

Subject to good quality detailing and materials, we think that
this scheme could potentially achieve the main aim to change
perception, and ultimately transform the area. Overall, we
think that the design has the markings of a good scheme and
we support this planning application.

Noted.

Design is addressed in the report para. 6.80-6.112

Noted. Materials will be subject to a condition 4.

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

Gg abed



Page 86

APPENDIX 2
PLANNING POLICIES

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 87

Minister's Statement: Planning for Growth

NATIONAL POLICY

PPS 1 Delivering Sustainable Development (2005)

PPS 3 Housing (2010)

PPS 4 Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth (2009)
PPS 5 Planning for the Historic Environment (2010)

PPS 6 Planning for Town Centres (2005)

PPS 10 Planning for Sustainable Waste Management (2005)

PPS 12 Local Spatial Planning (2008)

PPG 13 Transport (2011)

PPG17 Planning for Open space, Sport and Recreation, July 2002
PPS 22 Renewable Energy (2004)

PPS 23 Planning and Pollution Control (2004)

PPG 24 Planning and Noise (1994)

REGIONAL PLANNING POLICY

The Sustainable Communities Plan (February 2003)

Established growth areas including the London-Stansted-Cambridge-Peterborough
Corridor, which includes the Tottenham Hale Area.

The Mayor’s London Plan Consolidated with alterations since 2004 dated
February 2008

Policy 2A.1  Sustainability Criteria

Policy 2A.7 Areas for Regeneration

Policy 2A.8 Town centres

Policy 2A.9 The Suburbs: Supporting Sustainable Communities

Policy 3A.1 Increasing London Supply of housing

Policy 3A.2 Borough Housing Targets

Policy 3A.3 Maximising the Potential of Sites

Policy 3A.5 Housing Choice

Policy 3A.7 Large Residential Developments

Policy 3A.8 Definition of Affordable Housing

Policy 3A.9 Affordable Housing Targets

Policy 3A.10 Negotiating Affordable Housing in Individual Private Residential and
Mixed Use Scheme

Policy 3A.17 Addressing the needs of London’s diverse population

Policy 3A.18 Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure and community
facilities

Policy 3A.24 Education facilities

Policy 3A.28 Social and Economic Impact Assessment

Policy 3B.3 Mixed Use Development

Policy 3B 1 Developing London’s Economy

Policy 3B 11 Improving Employment Opportunities
Policy 3B.11 Improving Employment Opportunities for Londoners

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 88

Policy 3C.1 Integrating Transport and Development
Policy 3C.3 Sustainable Transport for London

Policy 3C.21 Improving Conditions for Walking

Policy 3C.22 Improving Conditions for Cycling

Policy 3C.23 Parking Strategy

Policy 3C.24 Parking in Town Centres

Policy 3D.1 Supporting town centres

Policy 3D.2 Town centre development

Policy 3D.3 Maintaining and improving retail facilities
Policy 4A.1 Tackling Climate Change

Policy 4A.2 Mitigating Climate Change

Policy 4A.3 Sustainable Design and Construction

Policy 4A.4 Energy assessment

Policy 4A5  Provision of heating and cooling networks
Policy 4A6  Decentralised Energy: heating, Cooling and Power
Policy 4A.7 Renewable energy

Policy 4A.9 Adaptation to Climate change

Policy 4A.10 Overheating

Policy 4A.18 Water and sewerage infrastructure

Policy 4A.19 Improving Air Quality

Policy 4A.20 Reducing noise and enhancing Sounds cape
Policy 4A .21 Waste Strategic Policy and Targets

Policy 4A.33 Bringing contaminated land into beneficial use
Policy 4B.1 Design Principles for a Compact City

Policy 4B.3 Enhancing the quality of the public realm
Policy 4B.5 Creating an inclusive environment

Policy 4B.6 Safety, Security and Fire Prevention and Protection
Policy 4B.8 Respect local context and communities
Policy 4B.9 Tall Buildings — Locations

Policy 4B.10 Large — Scale Buildings — Design and Impact
Policy 4B.11 London’s Built Heritage

Policy 4B.15 Archaeology

Policy 5A.1 Sub-Regional Frameworks

Policy 5B.1 The Strategic priorities for North London
Policy 5B.2 Opportunity Areas in North London

Policy 6A.4 Priorities in Planning Obligations

Policy 6A.5 Planning Obligations

Draft Replacement London Plan, 2010
Adoption is due late 2011

Policy 3.3  Increasing housing supply

Policy 3.4  Optimising housing potential

Policy 3.5  Quality and design of housing developments

Policy 3.6  Children and young people’s play and informal recreation facilities
Policy 3.7  Large residential developments

Policy 3.8  Housing choice

Policy 3.10 Mixed and balanced communities

Policy 3.12 Affordable housing targets

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Policy 3.13

Policy 3.14

Policy 4.7
Policy 4.8
Policy 4.9
Policy 5.2
Policy 5.3
Policy 5.5
Policy 5.11
Policy 6.1
Policy 6.3

Policy 6.13

Policy 7.2
Policy 7.3
Policy 7.4
Policy 7.5
Policy 7.8

Page 89

Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential and
mixed use schemes

Affordability housing thresholds

Retail and town centre development

Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector
Small Shops

Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Sustainable design and construction
Decentralised energy networks

Green roofs and development site environs
Integrating transport & development

Assessing transport capacity

Parking

Creating an inclusive environment

Secured by design

Local character

Public realm

Heritage Assets and Archaeology

Note: An amendment is proposed to Annex 1, Table A1.1 of the replacement plan so
that the ‘Tottenham Corridor to Stoke Newington’ is now included as part of the Lower
Lea Valley Opportunity and Intensification Area. If this amendment is accepted, the
requirements of Policy 2.13 of the Draft Replacement London Plan become applicable
to the application site. Policy 2.13 of the replacement plan encourages development
proposals to optimize residential and non-residential densities, provide necessary
social and other infrastructure to sustain growth, and where appropriate, contain a mix
of uses, and in general support the wider regeneration of surrounding areas.

Interim London Housing Design Guide, August 2010

The Mayor’s Other Strategies

The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy: Cleaning London’s Air (2002)

The Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy: Connecting with London’s Nature (2002)

The Mayor’s Culture Strategy: Realising the potential of a world class city (2004)
The Mayor’s London Economic Development Strategy Success through diversity

(2001)

The Mayor's Ambient Noise Strategy (2004)

The Mayor’'s Energy Strategy (Feb 2004)

The Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2004)

The Mayor’s Municipal Waste management Strategy (2003)

The Mayor’'s Energy Strategy (2004)

The Mayor’s Planning for Equality and Diversity in Meeting the spatial needs of
London’s diverse communities SPG

The Mayor’s Draft Industrial Capacity SPG (2003)

The Mayor’s Land for Transport Functions SPG (March 2007)

The Mayor’s Sustainable Design & Construction SPG (2006)

The Mayor’s Providing for Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation
SPG (March 2008)

The Mayor’'s Housing SPG (November 2005)

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 90

The Mayor’s Industrial Capacity SPG

The Mayor’'s Accessible London: Achieving and inclusive environment SPG

The Mayor’'s Wheelchair Accessible Housing Best Practice Guide (BPG)

The Mayor and London Councils’ Best Practice Guide on The Control of Dust and
Emissions During Construction

North London Sub - Regional Development Framework (SRDF)(May 2006)

LOCAL PLANNING POLICY

Haringey Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-2016

Adopted Unitary Development Plan 2006

Policy G1
Policy G2
Policy G3
Policy G4
Policy G5
Policy G12
Policy AC3
Policy AC4
Policy UD2
Policy UD3
Policy UD4
Policy UD7
Policy UD8
Policy UD9
Policy ENV3
Policy ENV6
Policy ENV7
Policy ENV9

Policy ENV10
Policy ENV11
Policy ENV13

Policy HSG1

Policy HSG3
Policy HSG4
Policy HSG9
Policy HSG10

Policy TCR1
Policy TCR3
Policy TCR4
Policy TCR5
Policy M2
Policy M3
Policy M4
Policy M5

Policy M9

Environment

Development and Urban Design

Housing Supply

Employment

Town Centre Hierarchy

Priority Area

Tottenham High Road Regeneration Corridor
The Bridge — New Deal for Communities
Sustainable Design and Construction
General Principles

Quality Design

Waste Storage

Planning Obligations

Locations for Tall Buildings

Water Conservation

Noise Pollution

Air, Water and Light Pollution

Mitigating Climate Change: Energy Efficiency
Mitigating Climate Change: Renewable Energy
Contaminated Land

Sustainable Waste Management

New Housing Developments

Protection of Existing Housing

Affordable Housing

Density Standards

Dwelling Mix

Development in Town and Local Shopping Centres
Protection of Shops in Town Centres
Protection of local shops

A3 Restaurants and cafes

Pubic Transport Network

New Development Location and Accessibility
Pedestrian and Cyclists

Protection, Improvement and Creation of Pedestrian and Cycle
Routes

Car free developments

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 91

Policy M10 Parking for Development
Policy CWA1 New Community/Health Facilities
Policy CSV8 Archaeology

Supplementary Planning Guidance

SPG1a Design Guidance and Design Statements
SPG2 Conservation and Archaeology

SPG4 Access for All — Mobility Standards

SPG5 Safety by Design

SPG6 C Restaurant, hot premises-use A3 etc

SPG7a Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement

SPG7b Travel Plan

SPG7c Transport Assessment

SPG8a Waste and Recycling (adopted 2006)

SPG8b Materials

SPG8d Biodiversity Landscaping, Trees

SPG8c Environmental Performance

SPG8e Light Pollution

SPG8f Land Contamination

SPG8i Air Quality

SPG9 Sustainability Statement Guidance

SPG10a The Negotiation, Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations
(Adopted 2006)

SPG10c Educational needs generated by new housing
SPG10d Planning Obligations and open space
SPG10e Improvements to public transport infrastructure and services
SPG11b Buildings suitable for community use
SPG11c Town Centre and Retail Thresholds

Housing Supplementary Planning Document 2008
Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (Draft)

Local Development Framework
Core Strategy (Draft)

SP1 Managing Growth

SP2 Housing

SP4 Working towards a Low Carbon Haringey

SP5 Waste and Recycling

SP7 Transport

SP8 Employment

SP9 Improving skills and training to support access to jobs and community cohesion
and inclusion

SP10 Town Centres

SP11 Design

SP12 Conservation

SP16 Community Infrastructure

Development Management Development Plan Document (Draft)

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 92

DMP1 New Housing Developments

DMP2 Protecting and enhancing existing housing
DMP7 Homes of Different Sizes

DMP9 New Development Location and Accessibility
DMP10 Sustainable Transport

DMP11 Car-Free Residential Developments

DMP12 Parking for Development

DMP13 Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement

DPM13 Sustainable Design and Construction

DMP15 Environmental Protection

DMP16 Development Within and Outside of Town and Local Shopping Centres
DMP19 Employment Land & Premises

DMP20 General Principles

DMP21 Quality Design
DMP22 Waste Storage
DMP23 Commercial Design: Advertisements, Shopfronts, Signs and Security

DMP25 Haringey’s Heritage
DPM32 Pre-school and Educational Needs Generated by New Housing

Other Documents

Planning for Town Centres: Guidance on Design and Implementation Tools
By Design — Better Places to Live (DTLR, CABE September 2001)

CABE Design and Access Statements

Secured by Design

Towards an Urban Renaissance (Urban Task Force, 1999)

Sustainable Communities: Homes for All (ODPM, January 2005)

Housing Corporation Design and Quality Standards April 2007

Diversity and Equality in Planning: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM)
Planning and Access for disabled people: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM)
Code for Sustainable Homes (December 2006) DCLG

Demolition Protocol Developed by London Remade

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 93

APPENDIX 3
SUMMARY OF EQUALITIES IMPACTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS BY URS SCOTT WILLSON
AND CONDITIONS/S106 PROVISIONS IN
RESPONSE

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Appendix 3 - Summary of Equality Impacts taken from URS Scott Wilson Equalities Impact Assessment June 2011

1. Summary of Housing Impacts for Specific Affected Groups

Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to

Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation
implementing measures in planning
mitigation not possible permission
measures

Loss of social rented Afro-Caribbean, African, | Re-provision in social Following granting of Re-provision of Assistance for

housing, including and housing on same tenure | planning affordable existing residents

family-sized houses on households from other status within borough, Permission housing on site judged to be re-housed

site, due to demolition &
re-housing.

ethnic

backgrounds living in
social

rented housing

Children in affected

with additional
compensation in line
with Haringey Council

policy.

Site preparation phase

unaffordable by
Valuation
Office

as per Council
Policy in s106

households
Loss of private rental Afro-Caribbean, African, | No agreed mitigation Following granting of Re-provision of Existing residents
housing on site; no and measures. planning affordable assisted through
guarantee of reprovision | households from other permission housing on site judged s106

on
site within new private
housing.

ethnic

backgrounds living in
private

rental housing

Recommended
mitigation of support,
particularly to
households with specific
needs, to identify

Site preparation
Phase

unaffordable by
Valuation

Office — understood to
Include intermediate
housing and below-

Children in suitable alternative market

affected housing in the locality rental rates.

households
Loss of owner occupied | Afro-Caribbean, African, | No agreed mitigation Following granting of Re-provision of Existing residents
housing on site, and measures. planning permission affordable compensated

including
family-sized houses; no
guarantee of reprovision

households from other
ethnic
backgrounds living in

Assumed recommended
mitigation of negotiated

Site preparation phase

housing on site judged
unaffordable by
Valuation

through s106.

Scheme includes

on owner occupied housing | purchase and Office — understood to family units
site within new private compensation, as well Include intermediate
housing. Children in affected as support, particularly housing and discounted
households to households with purchase
OFFREPC

For Sub Committee

Officers Report

6 abed



specific needs, to
identify suitable
alternative housing in
the

locality

Indirect: Onsite loss of BME households, lone New affordable housing | Over timeframe of site N/A N/A Significant
affordable parent provision planned within | preparation and number of
housing, exacerbating Households (details East Haringey at other construction. affordable units to
existing barriers to according site resulting in net be delivered
housing to Haringey HNS increase elsewhere in east
2007) of the Borough
2. Summary of Business and Employment Impacts for Affected Groups
Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation
implementing measures in planning
mitigation not possible permission
measures
Business closure/ Latin-American/Spanish Reprovision of all stalls | Following granting N/A Reprovision of
non-viability of business speaking ownership within reprovided of planning market with right of
following permanent loss | businesses market permission return for existing
of within new development traders secured
existing low-rent market Afro-ownership business | at Site preparation through s106
site open-market rental in phase
African ownership improved venue Temporary
businesses relocation provided
Measures to protect for in s106
Other BME-ownership right of return of existing
businesses stallholders
Identification of suitable
alternative venues for
Temporary reprovision
of
market
Break-up of Latin- Latin- American/Spanish | Measures to protect Following granting of N/A Reprovision of
American market speaking ownership right of return of existing | planning permission market with right of
affecting viability of businesses stallholders return for existing

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

G obed



individual stallholder Identification of suitable | Site preparation phase traders secured
businesses & overall alternative venues for through s106
vibrancy. Temporary reprovision
of Latin American
market identity promoted
in s106 Market
Intention to identify Facilitator Package
single site for all Latin
American
traders together
Loss of employment Latin-American/Spanish Indirect benefits of Following granting of N/A Reprovision of
due to stall business speaking employees mitigation measures planning permission market with right of
closure / restructure Afro-Carribean directed at businesses return for existing
employees African Site preparation phase traders secured
employees Other BME through s106
employees
Temporary
relocation of
market provided for
through s106
Employment
support and
business advice to
stall traders
through s106
Loss of shop / business Muslim shop owner BME- | Provision of 6 new retail | Construction Phase N/A Provision of
property on site ownership shops and units suitable for local independent retail
Businesses (understood shops Site preparation phase / units in scheme.
to Investment in construction phase West Green Road
include Asian, African, improvements to West Improvement Fund
Afro- Green Road in s106 promotes
Caribbean and Latin- retail environment. independent
American owned trading and gives
businesses) Council control of
tenancies
Business closure due to BME-ownership shops Provision of 6 new retail | Construction phase N/A West Green Road
inability to afford new and units suitable for local units intended for
market rate Businesses (understood shops Site preparation local independent

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

96 abed



rental/leasehold to phase/construction traders and
include Asian, African, Investment in phase promoted as such
Afro- improvements to West through s106.
Caribbean and Latin- Green Road retail
American owned environment.
businesses)
Loss of employment Muslim employees of Creation of new jobs as | Construction phase N/A Provision of
following any Halal business BME a result of new independent retail
closure/restructure Employees development, Competed units in scheme.
of affected shops / (understood to include including in larger development — West Green Road
businesses Asian, shops, and generated recruitment by Improvement Fund
African, Afro- Caribbean indirectly businesses in s106 promotes
and Latin- American from investment. Construction independent
people) Indirect benefits of phase trading and gives
support to existing Council control of
businesses (as tenancies.
above)
Business and
Creation of employment
construction support to existing
employment businesses in s106
3. Summary of Goods, Services & Facilities Impacts for Affected Groups
Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation in
implementing measures planning permission

mitigation not possible
measures
Loss of access to Muslim customers of Provision of 6 new units | Construction phase N/A Provision of
outlets for goods & Halal meat selling sized for local shops in independent retail units
services specific to business proposed Site preparation in scheme. West Green
religion/belief redevelopment. phase Road Improvement
Alternative suitable Fund in s106 promotes
premises available in independent trading
local vicinity and gives Council
Alternative retailers control of tenancies.
exist in area
Permanent worsening African / Afro- Measures to protect Site preparation N/A Provision of

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

/6 abed



of access to outlets for
goods

& services specific

To race/ethnic/cultural

Caribbean and other
BME communities in
Seven Sisters area
Other BMEownership

right of return of existing
stallholders

Identification of suitable

phase

independent retail units
in scheme. West Green
Road Improvement

Fund in s106 promotes

businesses alternative venues for independent trading
temporary reprovision and gives Council
of control of tenancies.
market — possibly within
other local existing Reprovision of market
markets. with right of return for
Variety of alternative existing traders secured
suitable retail outlets through s106
within wider Seven
Sisters / North Temporary relocation of
London market provided for
through s106
Permanent worsening Latin- Measures to protect Ongoing from planning N/A Reprovision of market
of access to outlets for | American/Spanishspea | right of return of existing | Permission granted — with right of return for
goods king stallholders site existing traders secured
& services specific to communities in preparation - through s106
race/ethnic/cultural London Identification of suitable | construction
groups alternative venues for phase — completion Temporary relocation of
temporary reprovision market provided for
of Following planning through s106
Market Intention to permission granted —
identify site
single site for all Latin preparation
American traders
together
Temporary Latin- Measures to protect Following planning N/A Reprovision of market
worsening of access American/Spanishspea | right of return of Permission granted — with right of return for
to outlets for goods king existing stallholders site existing traders secured

& services specific
To race/ethnic/cultural
identity

Ownership businesses

Identification of suitable
alternative venues for
temporary reprovision
of

market Intention to
identify

preparation

through s106

Temporary relocation of
market provided for
through s106

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

86 abed



single site for all Latin
American traders
together

Increased demand for Children, including New doorstep play Construction phase N/A Playspace provided in
play spaces and school | amongst future space provision within development.
provision residents of development
development to meet needs of Education contribution
resident children. through s106
Contribution to
educational provision
Share in benefits of Disabled people, De-cluttered Construction N/A Details of public relam
improved public realm particularly those with pavements, public phase improvement required
and shopping facilities physical or realm to latest through a condition
Sensory impairments. Access requirements.
4. Summary of community cohesion impacts for affected groups
Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation in
implementing measures planning permission

mitigation
measures

not possible

Worsening community
cohesion by displacing
predominant BME
groups amongst
existing residents,
shop owners, market
traders and employees.

Latin-American &
Spanish-speaking
community
Afro-Caribbean African
Other BME
communities

All measures set out in
Tables 2 & 3 above to
protect permanent and
temporary viability of
market and businesses,
including those
measures specific to
Latin-American
stallholders.

The benefits of such
measures on
community cohesion
would be
secondary.

Following planning
Permission granted —
site

preparation continued
through to construction
and

completion

Measures specifically
directed at sustaining
community cohesion
not

identified.

S106 securing
reprovision and
temporary relocation of
market and promotion
of Latin American
identity.

Provision of
independent retail units
in scheme. West Green
Road Improvement
Fund in s106 promotes
independent trading
and gives Council
control of tenancies.

Loss to cultural

Latin-American,

All measures set out in

Following planning

Measures specifically

S106 securing

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

66 obed



connections and social
interaction

amongst specific
community with shared
racial identity

including Spanish-
speaking
people

Tables 2 & 3 above to
protect permanent and
temporary viability of
market and businesses,
including those
measures specific to
Latin-American
stallholders. The effect
of such measures on
community cohesion
would be indirect.

Permission granted —
site

preparation, followed
through in construction
and completion.

directed at sustaining
community cohesion
not

identified.

reprovision and
temporary relocation of
market and promotion
of Latin American
identity.

Provision of
independent retail units
in scheme. West Green
Road Improvement
Fund in s106 promotes
independent trading
and gives Council
control of tenancies.

Threat to ethnic
diversity of area
associated with multi-

All ethnic groups
reflecting make-up of
existing market

All measures set out
in Tables 2 & 3 above
to protect permanent

Following planning
Permission granted —
site

Measures specifically
directed at sustaining
community cohesion

S106 securing
reprovision and
temporary relocation of

ethnic mix of existing stallholders and preparation, followed not market and promotion
market and temporary viability of through in construction identified. of Latin American
clientele. market and businesses. | and completion. identity.
The effect of such
measures on Provision of
community cohesion independent retail units
would be indirect. in scheme. West Green
Road Improvement
Fund in s106 promotes
independent trading
and gives Council
control of tenancies.
5. Summary of crime and safety impacts for affected groups
Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation in
implementing measures planning
mitigation not possible permission
measures

Need to ensure
redevelopment

BME people, women,
young

Active, overlooked
frontages in new

Completed development

N/A

Condition requiring
details of

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

001 8bed



contributes to addressing
crime levels and fear of
crime associated

with the site

peope (both men and
women), children, older
people, lesbian, gay

& bisexual people,
disabled people.

development.

New public realm
designed with
consideration of
security.

improvement to
public realm

Condition requiring
compliance with BS
8220 (1986) Part 1,
'Security Of
Residential
Buildings' and with
the aims and
objectives of
'Secured By Design'
and 'Designing Out
Crime'

Risk of increased fear of | BME people, women, Recommended best Demolition & N/A Condition requiring
crime / increased young practice measures to construction suitable appearance
opportunities for crime peope (both men and enhance external phase and lighting during
during demolition & women), children, older | appearance of site, demolition.
construction phase people, lesbian, gay & | Including appropriate
bisexual people, additional lighting.
disabled people.
Recommend consult
police on appropriate
additional security
measures e.g. patrolling
by police
or private security staff
6. Summary of Consultation Impacts
Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why Response to
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation recommendation in
implementing measures planning permission

mitigation
measures

not possible

Effective consultation
with affected
community, recognising

All equality groups,
including BME
residents, employees &

Approach to date has
included variety of
means of consultation.

Following decision on
Planning Application —
as a matter of

N/A

S106 provision for
Community
Engagement Strategy

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

10| ebed



diversity and different
interest groups to
contribute towards
sharing of benefits of
regeneration.

business owners,
visitors & customers.

Recommend urgent
revisit of consultation &
Engagement approach
to respond to criticisms
of not listening, quality
of

consultation and to
address long gap in

urgency

to improve consultation
with local community
following approval

engagement
Diversity monitoring All Haringey Council to Consideration of N/A S106 provision for
to understand monitor consultation planning Community
effects on equality and record application Engagement Strategy
protected groups mitigation impacts for to improve consultation
groups sharing Ongoing following with local community
protected granting of planning following approval
characteristics permission
7. Possible Barriers to People Sharing Particular Protected Characteristics
Expected Affected Group Barriers to their How barrier Why barrier Relevant provision in
benefit of getting a fair share can be cannot be planning permission
redevelopment in benefit of removed or removed or
redevelopment reduced reduced
(specific to

redevelopment)

Provision of new

BME groups — African,

Affordability barriers,

Planned delivery of new

Valuation Office

Assistance for existing

housing Afro- related to low affordable housing identifies council and private
Caribbean (but also income/savings levels elsewhere in development residents/owner
affects low income borough as unable to occupiers provided
households from afford through s106
different inclusion of
racial/ethnic affordable
backgrounds) housing
Provision of new Single-parent Affordability barriers, National strategies to Valuation Office Assistance for existing
housing households, related to low tackle child care identifies development council and private

disproportionately
female-headed

income/savings levels

Cost/availability of child-

affordability offer some
help e.g. child care
element of working tax

as unable to afford
inclusion of affordable
housing

residents/owner
occupiers provided
through s106

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

20| abed



care, particularly
affecting women in
lowto
middle-income
employment.

credits.

Planned delivery of new
affordable housing
elsewhere in borough

Provision of new
housing

Children in low income
households

Affordability barriers,
related to low
income/savings levels
Cost/availability of child-
care, impact on
household income,
particularly where
parents in low- to
middle-income
employment.

National strategies to
tackle child care
affordability offer some
help e.g.

child care element of
working tax credits but
unlikely to adequate.

Planned delivery of new
affordable

housing

elsewhere in

borough

Valuation Office
identifies development
as unable to afford
inclusion of affordable
housing

Assistance for existing
council and private
residents/owner
occupiers provided
through s106

Public realm and
streetscape
provision, including
decluttering

Older people and some
disabled people;
women,

especially from certain
faith groups (e.g.
Muslim) or

racial groups; children;
some

young people.

Fear of crime, including
hate crime, or antisocial
behaviour, may
prevent individuals from
amongst these groups
venturing out or lead
them to avoid area,
based on past
experience/reputation

Planned measures to
design out crime likely
to be beneficial.

Measures to promote
new identity for area.

Community support
officers.

Engagement with
support groups to
identify specific
concerns and identify
appropriate actions.

Condition requiring
details of improvement
to public realm

Promotion of Latin
American identity

Condition requiring
compliance with BS
8220 (1986) Part 1,
'Security Of Residential
Buildings' and with the
aims and objectives of
'‘Secured By Design'
and 'Designing Out
Crime'

Safety measures to
reduce

opportunities for crime
and make for safer
environment

Older people and some
disabled people;
women,

especially from certain
faith groups (e.g.

Fear of crime, including
hate crime, or antisocial
behaviour, may prevent
individuals from
amongst these groups

Effective
communication of new
safety measures,
effective targeting of
communications at key

Community
Engagement Strategy in
s106

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

€01 abed



Muslim) or

racial groups; children;
some

young people.

venturing out or lead
them to avoid area,
based on past
experience/reputation

groups

Business
opportunities,
particularly in
retail sector

Latin-American,
including
Spanishspeaking Afro-
Caribbean, African and
other

BME groups

Existing businesses
may not have turnover /
robust business model
to be able to afford
open market rental
levels or compete with
national chains

Targeted business
training / advice
Measures outlined
in table 12 likely to
contribute.

Business/employment
to existing
traders/businesses
advice in s106

New employment
opportunities

Young people BME
people with low skills

Lack of
experience/skills

Lack of relevant
experience/skills

Targeted skills training;
apprenticeships;
targeted promotion of
opportunities

Business/employment
to existing
traders/businesses
advice in s106

Transport
infrastructure
improvements

All groups

No barriers identified

London-wide
measures to
enable transport
affordability likely
to be beneficial

Development and
implementation of travel
planin s106

For Sub Committee

OFFREPC
Officers Report

0| abed



Page 105

APPENDIX 4
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT BY URS
SCOTT WILSON

OFFREPC
Officers Report
For Sub Committee



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107

URS

i

Wards Corner Redevelopment
Equality Impact Assessment

Report
June 2011



Page 108

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Revision Schedule

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
-mm Prepared by ReVIewed by Approved by
01 21/04/2011 Draft Nicola Hodges Jeremy Richardson Jeremy Richardson
Equalities Technical Technical Director Technical Director
Specialist
02 12/05/2011 Draft final Vanessa Barri Jeremy Richardson Jeremy Richardson
Project Manager Technical Director Technical Director
03 02/06/2011 Final Heather Rogers Steven Smith Jeremy Richardson
Consultant Associate Technical Director

URS Scott Wilson

6-8 Greencoat Place,
London,

SW1P 1PL,

United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0) 207 798 5000
Fax +44 (0) 207 798 5001

www.urs-scottwilson.com



Page 109

URS

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Limitations

URS Scott Wilson Ltd (“URS Scott Wilson”) has prepared this Report for the sole use of Haringey (“Client”)
in accordance with the Agreement under which our services were performed. No other warranty,
expressed or implied, is made as to the professional advice included in this Report or any other services
provided by URS Scott Wilson. This Report is confidential and may not be disclosed by the Client nor
relied upon by any other party without the prior and express written agreement of URS Scott Wilson.

The conclusions and recommendations contained in this Report are based upon information provided by
others and upon the assumption that all relevant information has been provided by those parties from
whom it has been requested and that such information is accurate. Information obtained by URS Scott
Wilson has not been independently verified by URS Scott Wilson, unless otherwise stated in the Report.

The methodology adopted and the sources of information used by URS Scott Wilson in providing its
services are outlined in this Report. The scope of this Report and the services are accordingly factually
limited by these circumstances.

Where assessments of works or costs identified in this Report are made, such assessments are based
upon the information available at the time and where appropriate are subject to further investigations or
information which may become available.

URS Scott Wilson disclaim any undertaking or obligation to advise any person of any change in any matter
affecting the Report, which may come or be brought to URS Scott Wilson’s attention after the date of the
Report.

Certain statements made in the Report that are not historical facts may constitute estimates, projections or
other forward-looking statements and even though they are based on reasonable assumptions as of the
date of the Report, such forward-looking statements by their nature involve risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the results predicted. URS Scott Wilson specifically does
not guarantee or warrant any estimate or projections contained in this Report.

Copyright

© This Report is the copyright of URS Scott Wilson Ltd. Any unauthorised reproduction or usage by any
person other than the addressee is strictly prohibited.



Page 110

Table of Contents

Abbreviations and short forms.........ccciiiccc s i
EXecutive SUMMArY .........eiiiiiiiiiirrrircmsesssss s s s e s s s s s s nmssss s sss s s s e e e e e e e s e nmmnnnns 1
1 INtroduction ... 6
1.1 T o0 Y 6
1.2 = Yo (o | {0 U o 1 6
1.3 ASSESSMENT STIUCTUIE ...ttt s e eeeeees 7
2 Methodology ... s 8
2.1 Y o] o] {0 7= T o [PPSR 8
3 Equalities legislation and policy review...........cccccceeeiiiiireenciniinnnes 10
3.1 EQUAality ACE 20710 ... e e e e e e e 10
3.2 LONAON-WIdE POIICY ..ot 11
3.3 o Toz= | I o] o YOO PPPPPRPPPPTIN 12
3.4 LB Haringey Council Core Strategy Proposed Submission, May 2010...................c...... 15
4 Summary of planning application and related proposal ............ 17
4.1 ] (o Yo [T 1 o] o 17
5 Baseline situation...........cciiiincr 23
5.1 LT = T S 0o 4 T P SPPPPPRSPPR 23
52 Profile of potential affected groups sharing protected equality characteristics............... 23
5.3 Employment & business OWNErship ......cccooviiiiiiiiiiii e 28
54 [ [ TU T o [P PPPPRSPPPPPRRI 33
5.5 Access to services and faciliti©S ..........uuuuuuuuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 34
5.6 Public realm, transport, safety..........cccco i 34
5.7 Community cohesion and relations between different groups................cccooeeeiiin. 35
6 Consultation and Engagement...........ccceceiiimmimcciiniinececcssenneeennns 36
6.2 Consultation and engagement ProCESS .........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee 36
6.3 Engagement with different sections of population, including those sharing

protected CharacteristiCs ... 39
6.4 Issues raised and differing VIEWS ........ccoooiiiiiii e e e 40
6.5 How the Council and the Applicant have responded to concerns.........cccccccceeeeeeeieneennn, 45
6.6 SUMIMEIY ettt ettt e oo oottt et e e e e e bbbt ettt e e e e e b e e et e e e e e annnnenees 49
7 Appraisal of Equality Impacts ........ccccccceiiiimirecciiirrrccccr e 50
71 Appraisal INtrOAUCTION ... et e e e e e e eeaeees 50
7.2 HOUSING ettt 50



7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8
7.9
7.10

8
8.2
8.3

Page 111

Business and empPlOYMENT ........oooiiiiiii e
Goods, Services and faCilitieS ..........cieu i
Community cohesion and relations between groups.............cccoooeeeii,
Inclusive public spaces and tranNSPOIt ........ccooveeiiiieiice e e e e e
Safety @Nd CrIME ...t
Wide ranging consultation and enabling participation ...............ccccociiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Sharing in benefits of redevelopment ...
Consideration of objections and concerns raised in Court of Appeal [2010]

EWCA Civ 703 Approved Judgment ...
Recommendations and conclusions..........ccccccoiiieeciiimeeciinneennenes
RecommMENatioNS .......ooviiiiiiiiie s
(070 ] o 111113 (o] o 1RSSR

Annex: Appendix B of Wards Corner/Seven Sisters

Underground — Report on Draft Development Brief
consultation (PASC 8 July 2003)........cccceeiiiimmmmenciiserreemnseeeeeeenns



URS

=

Page 112

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Abbreviations and short forms

BME

CLG

CCTV

EHRC

EqlA

GLA
Grainger
‘the Act’

‘the Council’
‘the Duty’

‘the Planning Application’
JSA
LDF
LGB
ONS
PCT
$106

SCS
SES
SPD
The Bridge NDC
UDP

USM
Wards Corner LSOA

WCCC

Black and Minority Ethnic

(Department of) Communities and Local Government
Closed Circuit TV

Equalities and Human Rights Commission

Equality Impact Assessment

Greater London Assembly

Grainger Plc Itd, developer & planning applicant
refers to the Equality Act 2010

refers to Haringey Council

refers to the public sector equality duty set out in section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010

refers to Planning Application HGY/2008/0303
Job Seeker’s Allowance

local development framework

lesbian, gay and bisexual

Office of National Statistics

Primary Care Trust

A negotiated legal agreement between a Local Authority and a
developer/applicant. They are used following the granting of
planning permission to secure community infrastructure to meet the
needs of residents in new developments and/or to mitigate the
impact of new developments upon existing community facilities.
They can also be used to restrict the development or use of the land
in a specified way or require specific operations or activities to be
carried out on the land.

Sustainable Community Strategy
Single Equality Scheme
Supplementary Planning Document
The Bridge New Deal for Communities

Unitary Development Plan, former planning frameworks produced
by Local Authorities, replaced by LDFs (see above)

Urban Space Management Ltd

A small output area, relating to Haringey 025D on Neighbourhood
Statistics, also referenced as E01002072, referred to as ‘Wards
Corner LSOA' in this report for convenience only.

Wards Corner Community Coalition

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011



Page 113

URS

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Executive Summary

Background

Grainger Plc (‘the Applicant’) submitted a planning application for the redevelopment of the Wards Corner
site in Haringey in February 2008. The redevelopment included the demolition of existing buildings and the
erection of a mixed use development comprising 197 residential units, replacement market, new retail units
and restaurant, basement car parking and a new public square on Tottenham High Road.

The proposal was granted planning permission in December 2008. However, the decision to grant
planning permission was challenged by judicial review and the decision was quashed by the Court of
Appeal in June 2010. In reaching its decision the Court of Appeal considered that the Planning Committee
had not fully discharged its duty under section 71 of the Race Relations Act, 1976, to consider the need to
promote equality of opportunity between persons of different racial groups and the need to promote good
relations between persons of different racial groups.

Purpose

This equality impact assessment report has been independently prepared by URS Scott Wilson on behalf
of Haringey Council (‘the Council’). It has been undertaken as part of a process to help the Council ensure
that it discharges its section 149 duty under the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to:

e eliminate discrimination;
e advance equality of opportunity between different groups and;

o foster good relations between groups in Haringey.

This is with specific reference to the Council’s consideration of the planning application submitted by
Grainger Plc for the redevelopment of the Wards Corner site.

Approach

The assessment’s approach reflects current equalities legislation, drawing on guidance produced by the
Equalities and Human Rights Commission. It takes into consideration relevant London-wide and local level
planning and equalities policy. It considers the likely effects on equality as a result of the proposed
redevelopment proceeding in accordance with the planning application. To do this, it considers how
people sharing protected equality characteristics may be affected in ways that may worsen or improve
equal opportunities, discrimination and relations between protected groups and others. It includes
consideration of how the Council, the Applicant and other stakeholder bodies consulted with the affected
community, including people sharing protected characteristics.

Based on the findings of an initial screening, the assessment considered impacts with respect to the
protected characteristics of:

¢ Race
o Disability
e Sex

e Religion or belief

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011



Page 114

URS

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

o Age

e Sexual Orientation

The assessment responds to objections, views and concerns put forward regarding the proposed
redevelopment, including those referenced in the in Court of Appeal [2010] EWCA Civ 703 Approved
Judgment. It also includes consideration of whether people sharing protected characteristics face any
barriers preventing them sharing in the expected benefits of the redevelopment.

Equality Profile

The Wards Corner area is amongst the 5-10% most deprived local areas in England and Wales overall and
amongst the 5% most deprived with respect to barriers to housing, living environment and crime. It ranks
amongst the 2% most deprived areas with respect to measures of deprivation affecting older people and
children. Key characteristics of the area with respect to the profile of equality protected groups are:

e A young age profile, reflective of the Borough, with great ethnic and nationality diversity
amongst children and young people in the Borough

e Above-average rates of people with limiting long-term iliness, and a somewhat higher rate of
people claiming disability-related benefits compared with London-wide and national rates

¢ Falls within a highly ethnically diverse borough, with sizeable local populations of people of
Afro-Caribbean and African heritage. There are high proportions of residents born in
Turkey, Nigeria and Jamaica and other Caribbean/West Indies nations

¢ A study conducted in 2008 indicated that 64% of the market traders at Seven Sisters are of
Latin-American origin, and mostly Spanish-speaking, though it is understood that the profile
is likely to have changed somewhat over the last three years

e Christians form the greater proportion of the resident population, with a sizeable Muslim
population (this is based on 2001 Census data)

e The female unemployment rate in Haringey is above that in London. Economic inactivity
rates amongst both men and women are above London average rates

e Young people in Haringey have a higher claimant rate than other age groups, reflecting
regional and national patterns

e Single parents and people from black and minority ethnic communities were identified as
more likely to be in housing need in Haringey, according to a 2007 housing needs
assessment.

Consultation

Associated consultation undertaken by the Applicant, by the Council, and by the former The Bridge New
Deal for Communities. Have comprised a variety of formats (community days, commissioned surveys and
polls, drop-in sessions, formal public inquiry on the Haringey Unitary Development Plan, a forum event,
various presentations and question and answer sessions, exhibitions, meetings with traders and
residents). Information has likewise been presented in a variety of formats (leaflets, exhibitions, letters,
website) and made available in different languages.

Criticisms were raised by objectors to the planning application regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of
the consultation process in engaging with the local community.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
2



URS

i

Page 115

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

An analysis of responses to the planning application published on Haringey Council’s website shows that a
variety of equality-related concerns were raised, particularly with regards to:

Potential negative effects of the proposals for Latin American and ethnically diverse
community of traders and shop-owners

Potential negative effects for the specific ethnic and cultural communities served by the
market

Potential negative effects for the multi-ethnic character of the local community and for
community cohesion.

Potential positive effects for safety benefitting women, children and young people.

Both the Council and the applicant record responding to consultation feedback in terms of adapting the
development brief and in changes to the proposals. It is not possible to be certain how the changes reflect
the concerns of specific equality groups, due to limited diversity monitoring and analysis of the

consultation.

Assessment findings

The following highlights important findings:

Housing

Whilst it is understood that Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) residents predominate amongst
existing residents, a lack of precise data makes the equality effects uncertain. The
allocation of suitable alternative accommodation for those in social housing is considered
adequate to mitigate any serious negative impact for affected BME households.

For those BME in private rental, it is judged likely that suitable alternative accommodation
will be available to minimise negative impacts for affected BME households, though
additional measures may be necessary to assist households with particularly vulnerable
members.

For owner-occupiers, negative effects are more likely and recommendations are set out to
support affected households.

The provision of an increased number of family-sized dwellings is judged a positive impact,
whilst the loss on-site of affordable family housing is a minor negative impact.

Business and employment

Proposed S106 conditions and other measures, taken together, should contribute to
enabling a significant proportion of the affected businesses to plan for their temporary
relocation and develop their business in order to be able to afford to return to the new
market or to an alternative permanent location, as well as to enable the Latin American
market traders to continue to operate together. This will require effective collaboration
between all interested parties including the Council, the Applicant, the landowner, the
business owners (shops and stallholders) and the existing market operator. Thus it is
judged likely that negative equality impacts with respect to business and employment will be
minimised. Where it proves unviable for some of the existing businesses to continue to
trade, some negative equality impacts can be expected.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

3



URS

i

Page 116

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Wider employment and economic growth generated are potentially positive for enhancing
equal opportunities for Black ethnic groups and young people in Haringey.

In line with the findings regarding impacts for business and employment, proposed
measures are considered to provide adequate protection to prevent impacting unfairly on
people sharing Latin American, Afro-Caribbean or African racial identity in their access to
specialist goods and services.

Relations between protected groups and others

The assessment recognises the loss of the existing shops and market as a potential threat
to the cultural connections among the Latin American community employed at and visiting
the market. However, in line with the findings regarding impacts for business and
employment, proposed measures are judged appropriate to prevent the proposals unfairly
impacting on community cohesion for people sharing Latin American racial identities.

Likewise, the assessment recognises the loss of the existing shops and market as a
potential threat to the interactions between different racial groups at the existing site.
However, in line with the findings regarding impacts for business and employment, it is
judged that appropriate measures are proposed to enable the community cohesion to be
revived within the redevelopment.

Safety and accessibility

The proposed public realm and landscaping improvements are judged likely to enhance
local access at this transport interchange, particularly benefitting disabled people, although
it will not resolve existing limited accessibility inside Seven Sisters underground station.

The development is judged likely to enhance safety and reduce opportunities for crime,
thereby benefitting women, young people and possibly also LGB people and other equality
groups.

Sharing of benefits of redevelopment

The non-provision of affordable housing within the redevelopment is likely to prevent Black
African and Black Caribbean households, single parent households, and children living in
low income households, groups which disproportionately experience income-related barriers
to accessing housing, from sharing in the benefits of the new housing. The conclusion by
the Valuation Office that the development cannot afford to include affordable housing
provision indicates that on-site mitigation is not possible. However, planned provision of
new affordable housing within the Borough is considered to provide an alternative way to
address this barrier to an extent.

Equality groups are likely to share in the benefits of public realm improvements, streetscape
provision, decluttering and a safer environment, though additional actions to address fear of
crime may be required to overcome possible barriers to some individuals sharing protected
characteristics from experiencing these benefits.

Proposed mitigation measures are likely to overcome potential barriers to Latin American,
Afro-Caribbean, African and other BME business owners from sharing in the benefits of new
business premises and opportunities afforded by the new development.

Likewise, proposed mitigation measures are likely to overcome potential barriers to Latin
American, Afro-Caribbean, African and other BME working age people from sharing in the
potential new employment opportunities arising out of the new development.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

4



Page 117

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

o All equality groups are likely to be able to share in the transport infrastructure improvements
afforded by the redevelopment proposals.

e Disabled children are likely to be able to share in the benefits of the new play space
provision assuming it is built in line with London play standards.

Recommendations and conclusions
A full set of recommendations is set out in Chapter eight, in relation to:

e Housing

e Business and employment

e Goods, services and facilities

o Community cohesion and relations between groups
e Safety and crime

e Consultation and participation

Overall it is concluded that the planning application proposal is unlikely to give rise to major negative
equality impacts provided all the measures set out in the S106 agreement are honoured in full and in a
timely manner, as well as additional mitigation measures set out in the report. The assessment recognises
concerns expressed by objectors on potential impacts, particularly in relation to Latin American people and
members of other BME groups. In addition to measures previously set out in the S106 agreement and
voluntary financial contributions by the Applicant, the assessment has set out additional recommendations
to strengthen previously identified mitigation measures and to address residual negative impacts.

The proposal will give rise to negative equality impacts resulting from the non re-provision of affordable
housing on the site and lack of new provision of affordable housing, in conflict with existing Council policy.
The lack of suitable on-site mitigation is accepted on the basis of the independent judgment of the
Valuation Office. Groups that may be unable to share in the provision of new housing due to the lack of
affordable housing include Black African and Black Caribbean households, children living in low income
households and single parent households.

The planning application proposal is identified as giving rise to positive equality impacts in relation to safety
and crime, and a more accessible public realm. People sharing equality protected characteristics are likely
to be able to share in these general benefits.

Increased provision of family housing is identified as a benefit of the development. Affordability barriers
may prevent certain groups, including BME families, children living in low income households and single
parent households, from sharing in this benefit.

Expected improvements to the business and retail environment are likely to be shared by people from
different racial backgrounds subject to the successful implementation of recommended mitigation
measures.

Further opportunities remain for members of the public to express their concerns about potential impacts of
the development, including where these may affect people sharing protected characteristics. Opportunities
also remain for members of the public to identify additional mitigation requirements. Particularly important
in this respect is the forthcoming meeting at which the Council considers the revised application by the
Applicant for redevelopment at Wards Corner.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
5



Page 118

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

1 Introduction
1.1 Purpose
1.1.1 URS Scott Wilson was commissioned by Haringey Council (‘the Council’) to undertake an

independent Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA) for the Wards Corner redevelopment. The
EqlA will assist the Council in their consideration of the planning application to develop the site.

1.1.2 This EqlA is undertaken as part of a process to help the Council ensure that it discharges its
S71 duty under Section 71 of the Race Relations Amendment 2000 now incorporated and
replaced by the section 149 duty under the Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need
to:

e eliminate discrimination;
e advance equality of opportunity between different groups and;

o foster good relations between groups in Haringey.

1.1.3 The specific purpose of this assessment is to identify whether and to what extent the
redevelopment proposal for the Ward’s Corner site would:

e produce disproportionate disadvantage or enhance opportunity for any groups with the
protected characteristic defined in the Equality Act 2011;

o |dentify the nature of such disadvantage or enhanced opportunity and how it would impact
on those groups;

e Explore how any adverse impacts could be eliminated or reduced;
¢ |dentify specific actions that would help to eliminate or reduce those adverse impacts;

o Identify and explore actions to eliminate or reduce possible barriers that would prevent
groups that share a protected characteristic from accessing any benefits arising from the
proposed redevelopment;

¢ |dentify any potential impact the redevelopment may have on the social cohesion of Wards
Corner and explore what actions could be taken to address any adverse impacts in this
report.

1.14 This report documents the assessment process and findings.

1.2 Background

1.21 Grainger Plc (‘the Applicant’) submitted a planning application for the redevelopment of the
Wards Corner site in Haringey in February 2008. It included demolition of existing buildings
and the erection of a mixed use development comprising 197 residential units, replacement
market, new retail units and restaurant, basement car parking, a new public square on
Tottenham High Road incorporating landscaping, open spaces and play spaces, and public
realm improvements. The signed Section 106 agreement includes a financial contribution for
educational services and facilities; public art; establishing a management company for site
management; CCTV; local procurement of goods and services and recruitment of local people;
construction training and a local labour agreement; and the maintenance of the new gardens.
Following the Judicial Review Appeal Judgment the Applicant also proposes, as part of the

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
6



Page 119

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

1.2.2

1.23

1.24

1.3

1.3.1

redevelopment, a voluntary contribution towards the Market Traders’ relocation costs of
£144,000 and financial contributions to create a West Green Road Environmental Improvement
Fund for shop/building frontage improvements; street decoration and enhancements; servicing
improvements to allow improved access and servicing for vehicle and pedestrian traffic; an
Improvement Strategy for businesses/markets; open space and parking provision additional to
the other financial contributions as mentioned above.

The proposal was granted planning permission in December 2008. However, the decision to
grant planning permission was challenged by judicial review and the decision was quashed by
the Court of Appeal in June 2010. In reaching its decision the Court of Appeal considered that
the Planning Committee had not fully discharged its duty under section 71 of the Race
Relations Act, 1976, to consider the need to promote equality of opportunity between persons
of different racial groups and the need to promote good relations between persons of different
racial groups.

On 5 April 2011, a new public sector equality duty, as set out in Section 149 of the Equality Act
2010 (‘the Act’), came into force. This replaces duties under the Race Relations Act and other
domestic discrimination legislation. The Act includes a new single public sector equality Duty
(‘the Duty’) which brings together the previous race, disability and gender duties, and extends
coverage to include age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, and
gender reassignment in full. These are the grounds upon which discrimination is unlawful and
are referred to as ‘protected characteristics’. The Duty requires certain public bodies to
consider the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations in all their functions.

Haringey Council commissioned URS Scott Wilson to undertake an independent equality
impact assessment (EqlA) in order to demonstrate how it has fulfilled its equality duties in its
overall consideration of the planning application.

Assessment Structure

The methodology for the assessment is set out in the Chapter two, followed by a review of
equalities legislation and relevant equalities and planning policy at London-wide and local
levels in Chapter three. Chapter four provides a summary of the planning application and
related proposals. It provides relevant detail on the existing site conditions. Chapter five sets
out baseline evidence concerning the equality characteristics of the affected population (mainly
using lower super output area data), with additional information in relation to specific affected
groups, namely resident households, business and employees on the site of the proposed
redevelopment. Chapter six summarises the consultation and engagement process, the
equality-related issues and concerns raised and responses to the views expressed. Chapter
seven sets out the appraisal of equality impacts, drawing on evidence from the preceding
chapters, whilst Chapter eight sets out conclusions and the recommendations.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

7



Page 120

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

2.1

211

Methodology

Approach

The EqlA focuses on systematically assessing and recording the likely positive and negative
equality impact of the planning application for affected people sharing common attributes in
respect of the different equality protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010.

This assessment was desk-based and reviewed and analysed existing information. Further
detail on the sources of evidence is provided below. The assessment included analysis of
evidence on consultation in relation to progressing the redevelopment of Wards Corner, as
undertaken or commissioned by the Council, by Grainger Plc and their project team and by The
Bridge NDC.

The Council’'s equalities team reviewed two drafts of the report, providing feedback and
comments by email and further feedback at a meeting with URS Scott Wilson on 31 May 2011.
This input resulted in additions to the report, particularly to show how mitigation measures
respond to objections and issues raised in the consultation. It resulted in additional detail being
included on:

o which equality groups would potentially be affected by particular impacts; and

o whether people sharing protected characteristics would be likely to share in the expected
benefits of the proposed redevelopment.

Screening was first undertaken to identify likely negative and positive impacts in relation to all
equality protected characteristics, in order to determine the focus of the full assessment. For
the screening stage, potentially affected individuals, groups or sections of the affected
population were identified with respect to the protected characteristics of age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief,
sex and sexual orientation.

In the findings of the screening, the full assessment considered impacts with respect to the
protected characteristics of:

e Race

e Disability

e Sex

¢ Religion or belief
o Age

e Sexual Orientation.

The approach draws on guidance for the appraisal of equality impacts produced by the Equality
and Human Rights Commission (EHRC), as well as Haringey and other Councils’ models for
conducting EqlAs. The assessment addresses the potential impact of the development as
proposed in the Planning Application for affected people with respect to their sharing of equality
protected characteristics. It considers how the Council has fulfilled its duties, with reference to
the new public sector equality duty.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

8



Page 121

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

2.1.7 Criteria used to determine differential impacts with respect to equality protected characteristics
are:

Where current knowledge indicates that amongst the population affected by the planning
application, people who share protected characteristics are particularly vulnerable or
sensitive to a possible impact in relation to their possessing those characteristics.

Where the overall available evidence supports a conclusion that people who share a
protected characteristic will form a disproportionately large number of those adversely
affected by the planning application.

Where the overall available evidence supports conclusions that the planning application
may either make worse (negative impact) or ameliorate (positive impact) existing
disadvantage (e.g. housing deprivation or economic disadvantage) affecting people who
share a protected characteristic.

Where the overall available evidence supports conclusions that people with shared
protected characteristics amongst the affected population may be denied a fair share in the
expected positive benefits of the planning application, due to direct or indirect discrimination
or where the group experience particular barriers to realising those benefits, unless suitable
measures are proposed to overcome those barriers;

Where the overall available evidence supports conclusions that the planning application
may worsen existing community cohesion amongst the affected population or conflicts with
community cohesion policy objectives.

2.1.8 The assessment draws on a wide range of evidence, as summarised below:

Relevant legislation, GLA/Mayor of London and Haringey Council policy relating to the site
and equality objectives;

Evidence on the profile of the affected population, using Office of National Statistics (ONS)
data, data held by Haringey Council, Communities and Local Government (CLG) data and
other sources;

Evidence on the planning application proposals, including documents submitted by Grainger
Plc on the Haringey council online planning application site, documents on Grainger's
Wards Corner regeneration website, in addition to information provided directly to us by
representatives of Grainger.

Evidence on the potential nature of equality impacts, drawing on wider research and
evaluation concerning equality issues, reports and consultation responses relating to the
Wards Corner planning application. This included a detailed re-analysis of all consultation
responses posted on the Haringey Council online planning application site for
HGY/2008/0303. The assessment team also referred to the website of the Wards Corner
community coalition (WCCC).

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

9



Page 122

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

3.1.3

Equalities legislation and policy review

Equality Act 2010
General Equality duty

As of 5 April 2011, a new public sector equality duty came into force, as set out in Section 149
of the Equality Act 2010. This replaces duties under the Race Relations Act and other
domestic discrimination legislation, extending duties of public bodies to cover age, sexual
orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and gender reassignment in full. The
Duty requires listed public bodies to consider the need to eliminate discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations in all their functions.

Summary of General Equality Duty, Section 149 of Equality Act 2010,
taken from http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/

Those subject to the equality duty must, in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to
the need to:

e Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act

e Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

These are sometimes referred to as the three aims or arms of the general equality duty. The
Act helpfully explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:

¢ Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected
characteristics.

e Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these
are different from the needs of other people.

e Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other
activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

The Act states that meeting different needs involves taking steps to take account of disabled
people’s disabilities. It describes fostering good relations as tackling prejudice and promoting
understanding between people from different groups. It states that compliance with the duty
may involve treating some people more favourably than others.

The new duty covers the following eight protected characteristics: age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.
Public authorities also need to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination
against someone because of their marriage or civil partnership status. This means that the first
arm of the duty applies to this characteristic but that the other arms (advancing equality and
fostering good relations) do not apply.

This general equality duty applies to Haringey Council’'s consideration of this planning
application, as of April 6", 2011.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

10




Page 123

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

3.2 London-wide Policy
Draft Replacement London Plan 2009

3.2.2 The Draft Replacement London Plan’ includes strategic and planning policies to encourage
equal life chances for all, in recognition of social inequalities existing within the city. A number
of policies outlined in the Plan relate to equalities and the protection of disadvantaged groups,
specifically:

e Policy 3.1 ‘Ensuring Equal Life Chances for All’ requires that development proposals should
protect and enhance facilities that meet the needs of particular groups and communities.
The plan does not support proposals involving loss of these facilities without adequate
justification or provision for replacement. It also expects development proposals to pay due
regard to the Supplementary Planning Guidance ‘Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive
Environment’, which provides guidance on creating equal and accessible places within
London.

e Policy 3.2 ‘Addressing Health Inequalities’ is also relevant, requiring due regard to the
impact of development proposals on health inequalities in London.

e Policies 3.17 — 3.20 concern the provision of social infrastructure, including health,
education, sports and recreation facilities.

e Housing policies 3.3 — 3.16 concerning housing provision, affordable housing provision,
mixed and balanced communities, housing choice and provision of associated play facilities,
are all relevant to equal opportunities.

e Policy 4.12 ‘Improving opportunities for all’, addresses the need for equal employment
opportunities and removing barriers for disabled and disadvantaged people to gain
employment.

Equal Life Chances for All

3.2.3 ‘Equal Life Chances for All” is a strategy which emphasises tackling the remaining and
significant pockets of deprivation and inequality within London. It identifies the key challenges
as enabling inclusion and community cohesion and tackling disadvantage. It uses a framework
of equal life chances for all as an approach to overcoming existing disadvantage and inequality.
Relevant desired outcomes to which the proposals may be able to contribute, are:

e Ensure the capital’'s diverse communities, particularly the most vulnerable and
disadvantaged people, benefit from London’s success and are protected in the economic
downturn;

e Support deprived communities and vulnerable people and promote community cohesion;

e Support the development across the London economy of diverse markets, workforces and
suppliers, including through Responsible Procurement programmes;

¢ Increase in the levels of employment of excluded groups;

e Decrease in the difference in income between the equality groups and others from deprived
communities and the wider community; and

! Draft Replacement London Plan (2009), Mayor of London, GLA
2 Equal Life Chances for All' (2009), GLA, Mayor of London

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
1



URS

i

Page 124

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

3.3

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.3.4

3.3.5

3.3.6

e An increase in the feeling of personal safety experienced by everyone, whenever and
wherever they are in London.

Local Policy

Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief 2004

In 2004 the Council adopted a planning brief® for Wards Corner and Seven Sisters
Underground in order to help facilitate the redevelopment of the Wards Corner site and the
wider regeneration of the area. Some of the regeneration context for development includes:
the area around the station is perceived as unsafe by the local community and suffers from a
high degree of crime; that range of shops and facilities in the area is poor and the area suffers
from high deprivation (particularly crime).

The vision for the area is to “create a landmark development that acts as a high quality
gateway to Seven Sisters, providing mixed uses with improved facilities and safer underground
Station access”.

Development principles set out in the brief address:

e Urban design;
e Transport and access; and

e Land uses and development.
Relevant to equalities, the brief seeks to achieve:

e regeneration and improvement of the living and working environment and make best use of
site opportunities;

e a development that takes its cue from the richness and diversity of the communities and
small shops in the West Green Road area;

¢ significant and co-ordinated improvement to the public realm;

e a reduction in opportunities for crime, especially around the Station entrances, designed in
conjunction with the Police and the British Transport Police;

e improvements to pedestrian access and safety in the area;
¢ adevelopment that should be accessible to all; and
e a development is suitable for a range of land uses; including retail uses to promote the

vitality and viability of the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District Centre.

Unitary Development Plan 2006 / Local Development Framework

The Unitary Development Plan* (UDP) adopted by the Council in 2006 is the Council’s statutory
plan setting out the development and use of land and buildings in the borough. The UDP
policies and proposals are being replaced by the Council’'s Local Development Framework

® Haringey Council (2004) Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief [online] available at:
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/wards _corner_seven_sister _underground development brief.pdf

4 Haringey Council (2006) Haringey Unitary Development Plan Adopted July 2006 — Saved Policies Version July 2009 [online]
available at: http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/housing_and_planning/planning-
mainpage/policy and projects/local development framework/udp-2.htm#attached files

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

12



Page 125

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

(LDF). The main LDF document is the Core Strategy. Until the Core Strategy is adopted, the
Secretary of State issued a Direction (17 July 2009) which enables certain UDP policies to be
saved. Saved policies will continue to be used in determining planning applications (until the
Core Strategy is in place) although emerging national and London-wide policies and new
evidence over time will carry greater weight by the Council in planning decisions.

3.3.7 Saved UDP policies that are relevant to the Wards Corner development include:

e AC3: Tottenham High Road Regeneration Corridor — The accompanying policy narrative
acknowledges that the area has severe environmental, economic and social problems and
is in need of regeneration. Seven Sisters underground station (Wards Corner) is listed as a
major site for potential redevelopment and as a catalyst for prime regeneration of the High
Road and identifies that a planning brief has also been prepared for Seven Sisters (Wards
Corner). The policy seeks to permit developments that promote regeneration along
Tottenham High Road where:

o it will positively contribute sustainable development and to the regeneration of the
High Road;

e no significant adverse impacts will occur on neighbouring residential amenity, and
provides a safe and secure environment that combats crime and the fear of crime;

o there will be no loss of public open space;
e vehicular traffic on the High Road will not significantly increase;
¢ it won’t detract from the vitality and viability of the town centres;

e new housing will promote a more balanced, mixed, sustainable and less transient
community, and proportion of affordable housing won’t exceed 50 per cent, with the
maijority of housing for intermediate forms of housing (shared ownership, key worker
and sub-market schemes); and

e it encourages a change to residential use outside defined retail centres, subject to
other UDP policies.

e AC4: The Bridge — New Deal for Communities — The accompanying policy narrative
identifies Seven Sisters underground station (Wards Corner) as an important development
site in the area and that the planning brief advocates mixed use. The policy seeks to permit
developments that promote regeneration, tackle poverty and social exclusion and achieve
more sustainable communities in The Bridge where they:

o will positively contribute sustainable development and to the regeneration of Seven
Sisters,

e seek to provide a safe and secure environment, and combats crime and the fear of
crime;

e improve access to and the quality of open space;

e provide a choice of good quality housing that meets the needs of all in the community
and the proportion of affordable housing does not exceed 50 per cent, with the
maijority of housing for intermediate forms of housing; and

e promote an environment and conditions where opportunities for enterprise are open
to all.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
13



Page 126

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

3.3.8

3.3.9

3.3.10

3.3.11

3.3.12

3.3.13

3.3.14

LB Haringey Council Equalities Scheme 2010-2013 and Sustainable
Community Strategy 2007 - 2016

Haringey Council’s equality scheme adopts their Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) vision
for ‘A place of diverse communities that people are proud to belong to’ to help ensure there is
equality of opportunity throughout the Borough. The scheme also seeks to achieve fair
treatment, with a priority to promote equality through strategic planning. The scheme currently
covers six strands of equality, namely age; disability; gender; race; religion or belief; and sexual
orientation. The scheme does not cover gender reassignment, marriage or civil partnership
and pregnancy and maternity (though this may be addressed within gender).

The Equalities Scheme identifies the SCS priorities which mainstream equalities concerns into
the core business of the council. Relevant priorities include:

e Enhance community cohesion; common belonging and shared vision; group interaction
¢ Increase skills and educational achievement; fair treatment and equality of opportunity

¢ Increase resident satisfaction with services and the area they live in; low crime and concern
about crime

¢ Provide greater opportunity for civic engagement and patrticipation.

The strategy references the community cohesion framework as inextricably linked with the
Council’s equalities public sector duties and places a strong emphasis on evidence gathering
for knowing their communities and equality mapping within the Borough.

Haringey Strategic Partnership Community Cohesion Framework
Update 2010

The framework identifies community cohesion and equality of opportunity as inextricably linked
and as part of the core business of the Council.

The 2008 Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) Community Cohesion Framework defined
community cohesion as “what must happen in all communities to enable different groups of
people to get on well together.”

The updated Framework® adopts the HSP’s vision as identified in the Sustainable Community
Strategy 2007-2016: “A place of diverse communities that people are proud to belong to”. It
prioritises outcomes that help to achieve the vision, including:

e ensuring that people who live or work in or visit Haringey can expect equal access to high
quality services; and

e setting out a Delivery Plan involving organisations and individuals across the Borough,
including those who provide services to residents.

The Community Cohesion Framework itself consists of four outcomes and their priorities.
Relevant outcomes and priorities are summarised below:

o Fair treatment and equality of opportunity, including through strategic planning;

® Haringey Strategic Partnership (2010) Haringey Strategic Partnership Community Cohesion Framework Update 2010 Incorporating
the Delivery Plan [online] available at: http://www.haringey.gov.uk/community cohesion framework update 2010.pdf

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

14



Page 127

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

e Low levels of crime and concern about crime and confidence in the criminal justice system,
including by working together to prevent and reduce hate crime and harassment;

e Group interaction, including provide greater opportunity for civic engagement and
participation; and

e A sense of common belonging and shared vision, with priorities to enhance community
cohesion and engage with local communities and empower them to shape policies,
strategies and services that affect their lives.

3.4 LB Haringey Council Core Strategy Proposed Submission, May 2010

3.41 The Local Development Framework (LDF) is the new plan for Haringey and along with the
London Plan this will guide future growth and development in the borough for the next 15
years. The LDF will replace the Unitary Development Plan and its current ‘saved’ policies. The
main document in the LDF is a Core Strategy. The Core Strategy will be used in determining
planning applications. The Core Strategy6 was submitted to the Secretary of State on 9 March
2011 for an Examination in Public by an independent Inspector.

3.4.2 The Core Strategy policy that is most relevant to the Wards Corner development is:

e SP1 - Managing Growth — This policy focuses on the amount and the direction of growth in
the borough between 2011 and 2026. Development will be promoted in Growth Areas
(Haringey Heartlands and Tottenham Hale) and in Areas of Change (Wood Green
Metropolitan Town Centre, Northumberland Park, Tottenham High Road Corridor, and
Seven Sisters Corridor).

e The Seven Sisters Corridor area of change contains the Wards Corner
redevelopment site. The area is identified as having high levels of multiple
deprivation including unemployment, low educational achievements, poor/ lack of
affordable housing, a poor environment and high crime levels.

e Regeneration of Wards Corner to deliver new, high quality housing, new shops and
public realm improvements is one priority within the strategy for the Seven Sisters
Corridor Area of Change.

3.4.3 Core Strategy policies that promote equality are:

e SP2: Housing — This policy sets out density and design standards to deliver quality homes
including:

e compliance with the housing standards and range of unit sizes in the Council’s
Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and adopts the GLA’s Housing
Space and Child Play Space Standards;

e maximise housing for people whose circumstances makes them vulnerable and/or
people with specific needs; and

e new housing is built to 100% Lifetime Homes Standards with at least 10% wheelchair
accessible housing or 20% of housing adaptable for wheelchair users.

e The policy also aims to secure high quality affordable housing by:

6 Haringey Council (2010) Haringey Core Strategy Proposed Submission May 2010 [online] available at:
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/haringey proposed submission core strategy.pdf

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
15



Page 128

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

e requiring development sites able to deliver five or more units to provide 50%
affordable housing on site;

e imposing an affordable housing split of 70% Social Rented Housing and 30%
Intermediate Housing;

¢ allowing no net loss of existing affordable housing floorspace in development; and
¢ high quality design and full integration of affordable housing within schemes.

e SP9 - Improving skills and training to support access to jobs and community cohesion and
inclusion — seeks to address unemployment by facilitating training opportunities for the local
population, increasing the employment offered in the borough and allocating land for
employment purposes. It also encourages the provision and growth of education and
training facilities in areas of high unemployment, promotes diversification of the borough’s
economy, and will secure financial contributions from development that results in a net loss
of employment floorspace to invest in training and other initiatives promoting employment
and adult education in the borough.

e SP11 — Design — encourages new development to be of high quality, attractive, sustainable,
safe and easy to use to enhance Haringey’s built environment. Principles include:

e high design standards that respect local context and character that contribute and
enhance a sense of place; and

e incorporating solutions to reduce crime and the fear of crime by promoting social
inclusion, and well-connected and high quality public realm that is easy and safe to
use and by applying the principles set out in ‘Secure by Design’.

o SP14 - Health and Well-being - seeks to improve health and well-being in Haringey through
the following ways:

working with the NHS to reduce health inequalities in the areas with poorest health;
¢ identifying sites for new health infrastructure;
e supporting the provision of new or improved health facilities;

e prioritising interventions and resources to those areas of the borough where health
inequalities are greatest; and

¢ supporting the integration of community facilities and services, i.e. health, education,
cultural and leisure in multi-purpose buildings.

e SP15 — Culture and Leisure — aims to safeguard and foster the borough’s cultural heritage
and promote cultural industries and activities through:

o the development of cultural areas across the borough, including at Tottenham Green;

¢ supporting the provision of new work spaces and cultural venues that support cultural
businesses particularly in cultural areas;

e protecting and enhancing (where feasible) existing cultural facilities throughout the
borough; and

o safeguarding and fostering the borough’s existing recreational and sporting facilities.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
16



Page 129

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

4.1

411

41.2

41.4

41.5

4.1.6

41.7

Summary of planning application and related
proposal

Introduction

This Chapter seeks to summarise the related proposal and planning application for the
redevelopment of Wards Corner. The content of this Chapter relies heavily on the content
contained within the Planning Statement Addendum published by the Applicant, Grainger
Seven Sisters Ltd in December 2010. It includes relevant detail on the existing site conditions.

The 0.71 ha site proposed for redevelopment is located in a highly accessible public transport
area and comprises a group of two/three storey late Victorian and inter-war commercial
buildings along Tottenham High Road, further commercial units along Seven Sisters Road and
West Green Road and residential properties and parking to the rear along Suffield Road. Part
of the site lies within the Seven Sisters Conservation Area. None of the buildings on the site
are statutorily listed, although two have been ‘locally listed’ by the Council.

Housing provision

Existing housing which will be demolished

The existing 31 residential units, comprising 3 studio flats, 14 x 1-Bed, 5 x 2-Bed and 9 x 3-Bed
units, would be demolished prior to redevelopment of the overall site’.

Provision of new housing

The replacement scheme proposes a total of 197 residential dwellings in a mix of studio, one,
two and three bedroom units, as follows:

Studio — 5 (1%)

1 Bed — 48 (8%)

2 Bed — 107 (56%)
3 Bed — 37 (26%)

This equates to a net increase of 166 dwellings.

According to the Applicant, the proposed mix has been developed to take into account the
particular circumstances of the site. With the exception of Suffield Road, the main street
frontages are bustling retail areas, with high footfall and busy road traffic. Generally the site is
not ideally suited for families, with the exception of the Suffield Road frontage, where the
majority of the family units are to be located.

The proposed dwellings will be built to Lifetime Homes standards. Furthermore, 10% of the
proposed new homes will be designed to be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users.

" Based on ‘best estimate’ information provided by Cluttons 10/05/2011

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

17



Page 130

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

4.1.9

4.1.10

41.11

4.1.12

4.1.13

4.1.14

4.1.15

4.1.16

4117

Affordable housing

An independent assessment by the Valuation Office undertaken in June 2008 concluded: “/ do
not consider that the provision of affordable housing is viable on this development site.” This
supports the view of the Applicant that the particular circumstances of the site mean that it is
not possible to provide affordable housing, even with grant funding towards the regeneration of
the site.

According to the Applicant, an appraisal current at December 2010 also concluded that based
upon current costs and values, the development site cannot support the inclusion of affordable
housing. The report remains confidential.

Also according to the Applicant, even without affordable housing in the scheme, forecast
figures indicate that affordable provision within Haringey is likely to meet or exceed London
Plan targets.

Public realm and streetscape provision

In terms of overall scheme design, the Applicant has stated that the redevelopment proposal is
of the highest quality in terms of design and, as is demonstrated in the Design and Access
Statement®. One of the elements central to the proposal is creating a new public square,
corresponding to the Underground entrances and bus stops.

The scheme is to also provide residents with private and shared outdoor space, including
podium gardens, open space and play space and their maintenance.

Safety measures — natural and ‘hard’

The new public realm seeks to provide a safe and secure environment this includes reducing
the opportunities for crime and providing for the safety of users.

Footway lighting will be provided to improve the security and safety of the new public realm
while reducing the ground level clutter.

Also the public square on the High Road will be fully overlooked, as will the podium gardens.
The entrance to the service road will be gated, as will the entrance to the car park. The car
park itself will be designed to avoid dark corners and blind spots.

Decluttering

All existing street clutter is to be removed. Elements that will remain are the mature London
Plane tree and the two entrance stairs to the Underground station, which will be re-clad and
covered by glass canopies. There are no changes to the Underground station itself as they are
not included in the redevelopment, although the design allows for the future installation of lift
access to the ticket hall. Two new retail kiosks are located next to the stairs.

High quality paving, street lighting, signage, bus stops, benches and other street furniture will
be provided to avoid physical or visual clutter and keep clear routes and lines of sight along the
High Road.

® Pallard Thomas Edwards Architects (2008) Wards Corner Seven Sister Design and Access Statement [online] available at:
http://www.wardscornerregeneration.co.uk/downloads/design-access-

statement.pdf?bcsi scan E956BCBE8ADBC89F=0&bcsi scan_filename=design-access-statement.pdf

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

18



Page 131

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

4.1.18

4.1.19

4.1.20

41.21

4.1.22

4.1.23

4.1.24

The existing building line to the High Road will be carved out to give more space to the public
realm and create a curved public place at the centre of the site.

Public art investment

A work or works of public art is to be incorporated into the fabric of the buildings.

The final scheme features a curved corner block matching the parapet height of its neighbours.
The fagade is framed in stone with a cast sculpture frieze celebrating the history of the site: this
will be the subject of a separate competition to select an artist, but ideas include abstract
representations of the goods sold in the former department store. The stone frame contains a
recessed glass facade decorated with coloured glass fins set at right angles. The scheme will
also look at other opportunities to include ornamentation and decoration in the brick, plaster,
glass and iron work — within the cost constraints of the scheme, to support building individuality.

Business, retail and market floorspace

Removal of existing market and temporary relocation

In order to assist with relocation costs a S106 agreement will provide for £144,000 as a
“Traders’ Financial Assistance Sum” (an increase on the sum of £96,650 agreed at the time
that the application was considered by the Planning Committee in 2008). Although the Market
Traders operate on a license and presently have no security of tenure, this sum equates to the
aggregate rateable value of the Market occupied by the Traders.

Both the Applicant and the Council will also be required by the s106 to employ an appropriate
organisation to assess the opportunities for the temporary relocation of the market as a whole
or within an existing market. Continued discussions between the Applicant and the Market
Traders are required in order to manage the short term relocation issues and to secure the long
term success of the indoor market and to undertake the following tasks:

(i) to facilitate or fund a specialist professional facilitator to engage with the Traders in order to
find and provide temporary accommodation;

(ii) to liaise with those existing Spanish-speaking traders to promote their interests in the
temporary accommodation to be found and provided; and

(iii) to engage with and provide appropriate business support and advice to all Traders with the
objective of securing the maximum number of expressions of interest to return to the site.

The Applicant will employ Urban Space Management and Union Land to assess the
opportunities for temporary locations for the market as a whole or within an existing market.
They will also undertake to provide a minimum 6 months notice period to Traders for vacant
possession.

Proposed floorspace provision by use type

Retail uses

The Applicant wants to create a high quality retail floorspace, appropriate to the scale,
character and function of the existing centre. The inclusion of appropriate convenience retail,
coffee shop and restaurant units within the proposed scheme is intended to complement the
retail offer.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

19



Page 132

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

4.1.25

4.1.26

4.1.27

4.1.28

4.1.29

4.1.30

4.1.31

The proposed scheme replaces 3,182 sqm of floorspace, found within the existing retail
accommodation and the indoor market, with 3,792 sqm of new floorspace. The net increase of
retail floorspace is 610 sqm. The mix of unit types within the proposed scheme is devised to
ensure space for local traders, shops and businesses on the West Green Road and Seven
Sisters Road frontages along with larger units that would be attractive to national retailers on
the Tottenham High Road frontage.

For the units located on West Green Road, a Marketing and Letting Strategy will be developed
and promoted through the S106 agreement. The first lettings of these units would need to be
approved by Haringey Council and prior approval will need to be given for the amalgamation of
any of the units to form larger units.

Reprovision of Seven Sisters Market

A study undertaken by Urban Space Management (USM) commissioned by the Bridge NDC
indicates that the current market inside the former Wards Corner department store building
comprises 60 retail units, with approximately 36 shops/units, with a few units vacant. The
indoor units average 95 - 100 sq.ft each while spaces on the road frontage and around the
perimeter of the market vary in size. USM identify the current rental and service charges,
estimated at £31/sq.ft per year, as below open market rate, reflecting the poor condition of the
existing building. The building is leased by a market operator, with market traders holding
licenses with a 4 week break clause and a clause that vacant possession may be required for
the purposes of redevelopment.

In a letter to all market traders dated 6™ November 2008 from Grainger Plc, advice on the likely
future rent payable by market traders was stated as around £90/sq.ft per year.

The planning application revised ground floor plan shows provision of 50 small units suitable for
the re-provision of the Seven Sisters indoor market, fronting onto Seven Sisters Road and
Tottenham High Road, including spaces for cafes and reprovision of a toilet within the market
area. In the November 2008 letter from Grainger Plc to market traders, it was stated that the
revised plans included potential space for 50-60 market units, depending on seating
requirements.

According to the Applicant the re-provision of the indoor market is subject to reasonable
conditions to ensure that the market is provided for the benefit of the current traders and that it
will be successful in the long term. These conditions are to be incorporated into the S106
agreement:

e The market must be run by an experienced indoor market operator;

e This arrangement must be in place not less than 12 months prior to the due practical
completion date of the proposed development;

o A Market Lease must be in place not less than 6 months prior to the due practical
completion date of the proposed development; and

e The rent will be open market for A1 use class.

One of the conditions attached to the S106 agreement signed in 2008 was that the proposed
market operator had to demonstrate that no less than 60% of the market traders that previously
occupied the Seven Sisters market showed a formal interest in taking accommodation within
the new market. This was to ensure the new market operator ran the market as replacement of
the existing; rather than as a different concept. However, concerns have subsequently been

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

20



Page 133

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

4.1.32

4.1.33

4.1.34

4.1.35

4.1.36

4.1.37

4.1.38

expressed that, should a lower percentage of the market traders show a formal interest in
returning, the market could be lost altogether.

It is proposed to remove the reference to requiring 60% of the existing traders to formally
express an interest in returning with a condition requiring the Market Operator to offer a first
right to occupy to all existing traders on an exclusive and non-assignable licence of an
equivalent stall in the new market area, on reasonable A1 open market terms. This revision to
the conditions is designed to offer greater confidence to the existing traders that they will be
able to relocate to the site once the development is completed.

A stipulation will also be imposed requiring the Market Operator to have offered a first right to
occupy to all existing traders on an exclusive and non-assignable licence of an equivalent stall
in the new market area, on reasonable A1 open market terms.

Investment in street improvements

West Green Road Environmental Improvement Fund

There will be financial contributions to create a West Green Road Environmental Improvement
Fund of £250,000, to provide:

e £150,000 for shop/building frontage improvements
e £75,000 for street decoration and enhancements

e £15000 for servicing improvements that allow vehicle and pedestrian traffic to have
improved access and servicing

e £10,000 for an Improvement Strategy for businesses/markets, open space and parking.

Security / Public Safety

The proposed development will include 24 hour porterage/security, based in an office
overlooking the new public square. It is perceived that the presence of on-site security and
increased surveillance of public areas will serve to discourage criminal activity, to the benefit of
both the future occupiers of the development and the local community.

Improvements to transport infrastructure

Bus stops

From the proposed ground floor plans for the scheme, a bus shelter will be located on the
corner of West Green and Tottenham High Roads.

Station improvements

The proposed ground floor plans show two tube entrances on Tottenham High Road.

Cycle parking

As shown on the proposed ground floor plans the scheme includes 197 cycle storage spaces
for the residential units via a pedestrian gate with controlled access. Public bicycle racks will
also be provided in the public square on the High Road near the entrances to the Underground
station.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

21



Page 134

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Car club

4.1.39 There will be the submission and implementation of Travel Plans for key land uses, including
details of an agreement with a car club operator for the provision of car club facilities on the
site.

4.1.40 No entitlement for residential occupiers to residents parking permits with the exception of up to
12 permits for the houses to be built in Suffield Road.

Education investment
S106 contribution for Education provision

4.1.41 The Applicant will contribute £200,000 towards the cost associated with the provision of
facilities and services arising from additional demand generated for school places.
Employment creation

4,142 As part of the S106 agreement for the site a Construction Training and Local Labour
Agreement is proposed, and an undertaking to secure the procurement of goods and services
from local businesses and the recruitment of local people.

4.1.43 The completed development is calculated by the Applicant to give rise to an estimated 140
jobs, a mix of full-time and part-time jobs. The existing businesses on the site are estimated to
employ 111 people, a mix of part-time and full-time jobs.

Amenity Space and Play Space

4.1.44 The proposed scheme is to provide approximately 1,538sgm amenity space within an open
landscaped central courtyard. The proposed scheme includes a play space within the central
courtyard that is within a 400m walk of the Brunswick Road Open Space, which includes
recently upgraded play facilities for children aged 0-16.

4.1.45 The Wards Corner scheme is expected to have a child occupancy of 36, resulting in an overall
requirement of 360sgqm play space for the development (on the basis of around 1,538sqm
amenity space). This translates to a need for approximately 20% of the proposed amenity
space to be classed as “play space” in order to fully comply with the regional guidelines (GLA’s
Play Space Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)).

4.1.46 It is expected that 85% of the estimated child occupancy falls within the 0-11 age group using
information contained in the SPG. A designated playspace is therefore provided within the
central courtyard for this age group that will include items such as swings, slides and climbing
areas. However, due to the size of the courtyard it will not be possible to provide youth
facilities on site and areas such as basketball courts and a ‘kickabout' area cannot be
incorporated into the scheme.

4.1.47 It is proposed that a lack of boundaries between the spaces will make for a more transient
relationship between the open space and playable space, thus creating an overall larger area
for recreation.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

22



Page 135

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.1

5.11

5.1.2

5.1.7

5.2

522

Baseline situation

Wards Corner

Wards Corner falls within the Tottenham Green ward in the east of the London Borough of
Haringey. The site includes Seven Sisters Underground Station and its entrances and frontage
buildings on Seven Sisters Road, Tottenham High Road and West Green Road which houses
an adjoining parade of shops.

The Wards Corner site covers a very small area so that it is not possible to provide robust
demographic data to populate an equality profile solely relating to the site area. The baseline
data provided referred to is for the small area ‘Lower Super Output Area 025D’, referred to as
the ‘Wards Corner LSOA'’ for the purposes of this report.

The resident population within the Wards Corner LSOA in 2001 was 1,513, with a higher
population density than both Haringey and London (73.18 and 45.62 respectively) (Census
2001). Unfortunately more recent population estimates for small areas are being revised by
ONS and are currently unavailable®.

The latest figures for deprivation indicate that Wards Corner LSOA is amongst the 5-10% most
deprived neighbourhoods in England and Wales (Indices of Deprivation, 2010). Whilst it has
fallen consistently within this band since 2004, at 5.6%, in 2010, its overall ranking has dropped
since 2007.

The Wards Corner LSOA'" ranks amongst the 5% most deprived local areas in England and
Wales with respect to:

e Barriers to Housing and Services, particularly in terms of the sub-indicator that measures
overcrowding, homelessness and housing affordability;

¢ Living Environment (air quality, traffic congestion and housing quality); and

e Crime, dropping back to a ranking similar to in 2004, after a rise in the ranks in 2007.

The Wards Corner LSOA ranks amongst the 5 — 10% most deprived local areas in England
and Wales with respect to income.

The Wards Corner LSOA ranks amongst the 2% most deprived local areas in England and
Wales for measures of deprivation affecting older people and children.

Profile of potential affected groups sharing protected equality
characteristics
Age

Wards Corner has a young age profile, according to the latest available age population
estimates'’. Children aged 0-14 comprise 20 per cent of the population; whilst young people

® http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/Show _popStatus.do?page=populationEstimatesRevisions2010.htm

[Accessed 12/04/2011]
10 http://www.imd.communities.gov.uk/for LSOA E01002072 [ Accessed 12/04/2011]

" Resident Population Estimates by Broad Age Band, Mid 2009, from http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/ [Accessed

12/04/2011]

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

23



Page 136

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

aged 15 — 24 comprise a further 17 per cent. This sizeable population of children and younger
people reflects the profile of Tottenham Green ward, which has a larger proportion of 15-29
year than Haringey as a whole. People aged 25 — 49 comprise 55% of the population, whilst
people aged 65 and above comprise just over 7% of the population.

523 By 20210, the Haringey population is projected to number 239,300, comprising:
e 19.8% aged 0 — 15 - (London 19.9%, England 18.8%)

o 68.5% of working age - (London 66%, England 59.2%)
e 11.7% of pensionable age - (London 14.1%, England 21.9%)12

524 64% of 0-19 year olds in Haringey are from ethnic minority backgrounds (2001 Census), with
approximately 160 languages spoken by children in the borough (2007 School Census).
Disability

5.2.5 Wards Corner LSOA has higher rates of people with a limiting long-term iliness, at 18.4% of the

population, as compared to Haringey and London averages of 15.5% (Census 2001).

5.2.6 For 75 people in Tottenham Green ward, disability was the main reason for claiming out-of-
work benefits in 2010, This represents 0.8% of the working age population, slightly higher
than the average rate in Haringey (0.7%) and in line with the London-wide rate of 8%.

5.2.7 Incapacity Benefit (IB) and Severe Disablement Allowance (SDA) are sickness and disability
benefits that are claimed by people of working age who experience sickness and disability to
an extent that they are unable to work, either temporarily or permanently. There are currently
105 IB/SDA claimants in Wards Corner LSOA (May 2010), IB/SDA claimants in Haringey
comprise 7.5% of the working age population. The IB/SDA claim rate in Haringey is above
England and London (6.7% and 5.9% respectively)'®.

5.2.8 There are more than 1,700 people who are registered as either blind or with severe sight
problems in Haringey16.

Race

5.2.9 Haringey borough is one of the most ethnically diverse boroughs in the UK", reflected in the
make- up of the Wards Corner LSOA, as shown in 2001 Census data, presented in Table 5.1
below. This shows there are sizeable numbers of people of Afro-Caribbean and African
heritage in the local area.

"2 http://www.haringey.gov.uk/about _haringey/fact_file.htm [Accessed 12/04/2011]

" https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/ward/1308625542/report.aspx [Accessed 13/04/2011]
" NOMIS - Working-age client group - key benefit claimants (August 2010):
psttps://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=harinqev#tabwab

http://neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadTableView.do?adminCompAndTimeld=27328%3A340&a=3&b=286440&c=
025D&d=1418&r=1&e=9&f=27136&0=333&g=335645&i=1001x1003x1004x1005&I=1359&m=0&s=1302701677281&enc=1

1 Haringey Strategic partnership Community Cohesion Framework 2010 Update:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/lhow_the council works/equalities/community cohesion.htm

7 Haringey Community Cohesion Framework (2010 Update)

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/lhow the council works/equalities/community cohesion.htm

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
24



URS

i

Page 137

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.2.10

5.2.11

5.2.12

Table 5.1: Break down of ethnic groups in Wards Corner LSOA, Tottenham Green ward,
Haringey and London. Source: 2001 Census data

. . Wards Corner | Tottenham Green Haringey
0,

Specific Ethnic Group (%) LSOA ward LB London
White: British 28.7% 29.7% 45.3% 59.8%
White: Irish 4.0% 3.7% 4.3% 3.1%
White: Other White 12.8% 16.2% 16.1% 8.3%
Mixed: White and Black Caribbean 2.7% 1.8% 1.5% 1.0%
Mixed: White and Black African 1.3% 0.8% 0.7% 0.5%
Mixed: White and Asian 1.1% 1.1% 1.1% 0.8%
Mixed: Other Mixed 1.7% 1.4% 1.3% 0.9%
Asian or Asian British: Indian 1.8% 2.3% 2.9% 6.1%
Asian or Asian British: Pakistani 2.0% 1.1% 0.9% 2.0%
Asian or Asian British: Bangladeshi 3.6% 2.3% 1.4% 2.1%
Asian or Asian British: Other Asian 1.6% 2.0% 1.5% 1.9%
Black or Black British: Caribbean 17.3% 15.9% 9.5% 4.8%
Black or Black British: African 15.5% 15.2% 9.2% 5.3%
Black or Black British: Other Black 2.0% 1.9% 1.4% 0.8%
Chinese or Other Ethnic Group:

Chinese 0.3% 1.5% 1.1% 1.1%
Chinese or Other Ethnic Group:
Other Ethnic Group 3.7% 3.2% 2.0% 1.6%

Since the 2001 Census, considerable change in the population size of Haringey wards has
been observed. For example, the population of Tottenham Green ward has increased by 4%
from 2001 to 2005, and Seven Sisters by 32%. In Haringey as a whole, the largest growth
between 2001 and 2007 was among the Pakistani community (38%), followed by Chinese
(30%) and Bangladeshi (22%). More recent estimates from the Office for National Statistics
are currently under revision and therefore unavailable.

The Haringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment'® identifies the largest ethnic groups amongst
school pupils in Haringey in 2007 as: 20% White British, 18% Black African, 13% Black
Caribbean, 10.5% ‘White other’, 6.8% Turkish and 3.2% Kurdish. This ethnic diversity is also
reflected by the large number of languages spoken among Haringey school children:
approximately 130 in total.

In 2001, 55.5% of the Wards Corner LSOA population was born in the UK'®. The wide variety
of countries of origin of residents of the area indicates the high ethnic diversity amongst
residents, with 13% of residents born in Africa, 9% in Asia and 7% from North American
(including the Caribbean). The existence of pockets of different ethnic groups is indicated by
high proportions of residents of the Wards Corner LSOA (as compared to London as a whole)
sharing a particular country of birth, including Turkey, Nigeria, Jamaica and other
Caribbean/West Indies nations, as shown in Table 5.2.

18 Haringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (Ch.2) http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/hsp/ourplace.htm
192001 Census: Country of Birth (UV08) http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

25



URS

i

Page 138

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Table 5.2: Country of Birth (2001 Census data) for residents in Wards Corner compared
to Tottenham Green, Haringey & London (due to rounding, may not sum exactly to
100%)

Country of Birth % | Wards Corner Tottenham Haringey LB London
LSOA Green ward

UK 55.5 53.6 62.9 72.9

Republic of Ireland 2.7 2.6 2.7 2.2

Turkey 74 6.4 4.0 0.5

Other European

countries 3.6 54 5.9 4.3

Nigeria 2.5 2.3 1.2 1.0

Other African

countries 10 10.2 7.6 5.4

Jamaica 4.8 4.4 2.5 1.1

Other Caribbean &

West Indies 2.4 2.5 1.6 0.9

Bangladesh 2.0 1.5 0.8 1.2

Other Asian

countries 7.0 8.2 7.5 7.5

All Other Countries 2.3 2.8 3.0 2.7

5.2.13 A report on the Seven Sisters Market by USM notes that since the 1990s, London has received
a major influx of Latin American migrants.

Race/ethnic identity of affected groups

5.2.14 A study by USM conducted in 2008 reported that 23 (64%) of the market traders at Seven
Sisters market are of Latin-American origin, and mostly Spanish-speaking, whilst the remaining
13 (36%) of traders represent a mix of Afro-Caribbean, African, European and English
backgrounds. It is understood that the profile of the traders is likely to have changed to some
degree over the last three years, though with a continued significant presence of people of
Latin American origin and other ethnic minority backgrounds.

5.2.15 It is understood that BME households comprise the majority of households living within the
existing housing on the site, although detailed data on the ethnicity of affected households has
not been collected.

Religion or belief

5.2.16 In Wards Corner, 54% of the population consider themselves Christian, compared to 53% in
Tottenham Green ward, 50% in Haringey and 58% in London. For Muslims, the equivalent
figures were 13% for Wards Corner compared to 16%, 11% and 9% for Tottenham Green,
Haringey and London, respectively. Less than 5% of the population belonged to each of the
other religions listed in table 6.2, while 15% had no religion (compared to 15%, 20% and 16%
in Tottenham Green, Haringey and London, respectively). The question of religious belief is
voluntary in the census. Absolute figures are detailed in Table 5.3.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

26



Page 139

URS

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Table 5.3: Religious belief in Wards Corner, Tottenham Green ward, Haringey LB and
London (person count). Source: Census 2001 data. Those who did not respond to this
question are classified as ‘religion not stated’

Religion Wards Corner Tottenham Haringey LB London
LSOA count Green ward
Total people in area 1,513 11,966 216,507 7,172,091
Christian 823 6,342 108,404 4,176,175
Buddhist 26 171 2,283 54,297
Hindu 27 234 4,432 291,977
Jewish 17 91 5,724 149,789
Muslim 196 1,876 24,371 607,083
Sikh 6 21 725 104,230
Any other religion 10 68 1,135 36,558
No religion 227 1,834 43,249 1,130,616
Religion not stated 181 1,329 26,184 621,366

Sex

5.2.17 In Wards Corner LSOA the population was 1,513 in 2001, of which 46.5% were male, 53.5%
female, compared to 46.9% and 53.1% in Tottenham Green ward, 47.9% and 52.1% in
Haringey, and 48.4% and 51.6% in London, respectively. Figure 5.1 shows the age-sex
structure for Haringey: in 2006, 31.1% of females and 36.1% of males were aged less than 25
yearszga difference of 5%), whilst 11.9% of females and 9.1% of males were aged over 65
years®.

5.2.18 In recent years, the male population has increased slightly more than the female population21, a
trend that may continue given the higher proportion of males aged under 25 in 2006.

2? Haringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2008): http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/hsp/ourplace.htm
Ibid.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
27



Page 140

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.2.19

5.2.20

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

Popuiation Pyramid, Harngey 2006

Population (1000s)

O Females. B Makes

Figure 5.1: Population pyramid for Haringey in 2006, showing age-sex structure®

Sexual orientation

ONS Integrated Household Survey (IHS) Data, using recently introduced questions on sexual
orientation, indicate that across the UK, 95 per cent of adults identified themselves as
heterosexual/straight, 1 per cent of adults identified themselves as gay or lesbian and 0.5 per
cent of adults identified themselves as bisexual while a further 0.5 per cent identified
themselves as ‘Other’. London as a region had the largest proportion of adults identifying as
Lesbian, Gay or Bisexual (LGB) (2.2 per cent). Estimates are not available at borough level or
below due to small sample size®.

The GLA records a positive increase in the number of lesbian and gay people who believe that
Londoners are tolerant of different sexual groups®.

Employment & business ownership

The most recent data available describing employment in the area is from the ONS Annual
Population Survey for October 2009 to September 2010, available at local authority level.
67.9% of Haringey borough residents aged over 16 were economically active in October 2009
— September 2010; this was lower than in London (74.7%) and Great Britain (76.3)25.
‘Economically active’ includes all residents that were employed or in employment at the time of
the survey.

As shown in Table 5.4, unemployment levels amongst Haringey residents are higher in
Haringey (11.4%) than in London (8.9%) and Great Britain (7.7%), whilst self-employment
levels in Haringey are in line with London-wide levels (10.8%).

ZHaringey Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2008): http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/hsp/ourplace.htm

2 Joloza, T., Evans, J. & O’Brien, R. (2010) ‘Measuring Sexual Identity: An Evaluation Report’, Office of National Statistics (ONS)
* Source: Annual London Survey, GLA 2002 — 2007 [Accessed 12/04/2011]

% ONS Annual Population Survey, via NOMIS https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=haringey

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

28



Page 141

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.3.3 Table 5.5 compares economic activity among the male and female populations of Haringey in
2009/10. Employment rates were higher among males than females in all regions, but there
was a more marked gender difference in employment rates in Haringey. The rate of female
unemployment in Haringey is above that in London (12.1% compared to 8.8%) whilst the rate
of male unemployment in Haringey is below that in London (6.8% compared to 9.0%).

534 Economic inactivity rates among Haringey residents are significantly higher than rates recorded
across London (32.1% compared to 25.3% in London (Table 5.5). Economic inactivity while
‘Not wanting a job’ was much more common among women (31.7%) than men (17.7%).

Table 5.4: Breakdown of economic activity, employment and unemployment Haringey
borough, London and Great Britain (October 2009 — September 2010)*.

Haringey Haringey London Great Britain

(numbers) (%) (%) (%)
All people
Economically active 111,600 67.9 74.7 76.3
In employment 101,400 61.6 68 70.4
Employees 82,500 50.5 56.8 60.9
Self employed 18,300 10.8 10.8 9
Unemployed 13,100 1.4 8.9 7.7
Males
Economically active 62,800 74.8 82.2 82.6
In employment 58,500 69.6 74.7 75.4
Employees 45,500 54.5 59.5 62.1
Self employed 12,400 14.4 14.8 12.8
Unemployed 4,300 6.8 9 8.6
Females
Economically active 48,800 60.6 67.2 701
In employment 42,900 53.2 61.3 65.4
Employees 37,000 46.2 54.1 59.7
Self employed 5,900 7 6.8 5.3
Unemployed 5,900 121 8.8 6.5

%8 ONS Annual Population Survey, via NOMIS https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/imp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=haringey

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
29



URS

i

Page 142

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.3.5

5.3.6

5.3.7

53.8

Table 5.5: Breakdown of economic inactivity among male and female residents of
Haringey borough, London and Great Britain (October 2009 — September 2010).

Haringey Haringey | London | Great Britain
(numbers) (%) (%) (%)
All people
Economically 52,200 32.1 25.3 237
inactive
Wanting a job 12,400 7.6 6.3 5.7
Not wanting a job 39,800 24.5 18.9 18
Males
Economically 21,000 25.2 17.8 17.4
inactive
Wanting a job 6,300 7.6 5.2 4.9
Not wanting a job 14,700 17.7 12.7 12.4
Females
Economically 31,200 39.4 32.8 29.9
inactive
Wanting a job 6,100 7.7 7.5 6.5
Not wanting a job 25,100 31.7 25.3 23.5

2001 census data also shows that among unemployed residents in Wards Corner LSOA, long-
term unemployment was higher than in Haringey, London and England both amongst men and
women (Table 5.5).

Table 5.5: Long-term unemployment among unemployed residents, Census 2001%.
% Long-term Wards Corner .
unemployment (2001) LSOA Haringey LB London England
Unemployed males 40.4 31.6 31.1 29.6
Unemployed females 48.4 34.0 314 314

The most recent data available regarding Jobseekers Allowance (JSA) claimants is from March
2011, collated by the ONS via Jobcentre Plus records®. At this time, a total of 10,300 people
were claiming JSA in Haringey borough, representing 6.4% of residents aged 16-64; this was
higher than in London (4.1%) and Great Britain (3.8%). The rate was higher among males than
females, with 6,587 males claiming in Haringey compared to 3,713 females; a similar pattern
existed for London and Great Britain.

Table 5.6 shows JSA claimants broken down by age group and duration of the claim. Haringey
residents have higher claimant rates across all three age groups (18-24; 35-49; 50-64) than
London. Young people in Haringey have a higher claimant rate than other age groups,
reflecting regional and national patterns.

The majority of claims were for a shorter duration (less than 6 months), except for older
residents, among which claims over 12 months were almost as common as those under 6
months. This differs from London and Great Britain, for which the majority of claims were less
than 6 months among all age groups. The rate of claims over 12 months among older
residents in Haringey was 2.0% compared to 0.8% in London and 0.4% in Great Britain.

# ONS Annual Population Survey, via NOMIS https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=haringey
%2001 Census (UV41) http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination
? NOMIS: ‘Total JSA claimants (March 2011)’ https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=haringey

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

30



Page 143

URS

i

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Table 5.6: Jobseekers Allowance (JSA) claimants by age group and duration of claim,
March 2011. Percentages represent the number of JSA claimants as a proportion of the
resident population of the same age

Haringey Haringey London | Great Britain
(number) (%) (%) (%)
Aged 18 to 24
Total 2,085 10.1 6.8 7.3
Up to 6 months 1,695 8.2 5.7
6 — 12 months 295 14 0.9 1
over 12 months 95 0.5 0.2 0.3
Aged 25 to 49
Total 6,635 6.3 4.1 3.9
Up to 6 months 3,620 3.4 25 25
6 — 12 months 1,325 1.3 0.8 0.7
over 12 months 1,695 1.6 0.8 0.7
Aged 50 to 64
Total 1,530 5.3 3.1
Up to 6 months 675 2.3 1.6 1.2
6 — 12 months 285 1 0.7 0.4
over 12 months 570 2 0.8 0.4

5.3.9 Data describing JSA claimants by gender is available for August 2009 for the smaller output
area of Haringey 025D (‘Wards Corner LSOA’), as shown in Table 5.7. JSA claims were more
common among the male population (65%) than for females (35%); the same trend was true
for Haringey, London and England.

Table 5.7: JSA claimants by age group and gender, as a proportion of claimants in
August 2009%.
JSA c(lf\/:;nants Warﬂ;gzrner Haringey LB London England
Male 65 67 66 72
Females 35 33 34 28
5.3.10 With regard to JSA claimants by ethnicity, the smallest area for which data is available is local

authority. The proportion of JSA claims in Haringey borough between October 2008 and
September 2009 was lower for ‘White’ and higher for ‘Black or Black British’ and ‘Chinese or

other’ than in London or England (Figure 5.2).

% JSA Claimants 2009, Department of Work & Pensions via http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

31

June 2011



Page 144

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

100.0 -

80.0 -

60.0

40.0 -

% of JSA claimants

20.0 +

0.0 ~
White

Mixed

Black / Asian /
Black Asian
British British

Other

Ethnic Group

Chinese / Unknown Prefer Not
To Say

@ Haringey
@ London
O England

Figure 5.2: JSA claimants by ethnic group in Haringey, London and England for the

period October 2008 to September 2009

5.3.11 Regarding all key benefits claimed in Wards Corner LSOA in 2009, Table 5.8 provides details
of the main reason for / type of benefits claimed, as well as the age and gender of all people
claiming a key benefit. The proportion of claimants for incapacity benefits in Wards Corner
LSOA was notably higher at 12% of the working population, than in Haringey (8%) and London
(6%), (see also ‘Disability’ section above).

Table 5.8: Benefits data indicators: reason, gender and age for key benefits claimants in
2009*
% of working age population Warﬁg gxrner Haringey LB London
All People Claiming a Key Benefit 27 20 15
Job Seekers 7 6 4
Incapacity
Benefits 12 8 6
. Lone Parent 4 4 3
Main reason
.. Carer 1 1 1
for clalmlng a Others on Income
key benefit | o lated Benefits 1 1 1
Disabled 1 1 1
Bereaved 0 0 0
Unknown 0 0 0
Male 14 10 7
Gender Female 13 10 8
Aged 16-24 5 3 2
Age group Aged 25-49 14 12 9
Aged 50 and Over 8 5 4
5.3.12 Data for ‘New Deal’ starts in Haringey borough in 2008 show that for ‘New Deal Young People’

and ‘New Deal Lone Parents’, the ethnic group with the highest proportion of starts was ‘Black

%" ONS ‘Benefits Data Indicators: Working Age Client Group’ for Haringey LB:
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment
32

June 2011




Page 145

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.3.13

5.3.14

5.4

541

542

or Black British’ (33.0% and 42.9% respectively), compared to London (25.7%, 28.5%) and
England (6.7%, 8.1%)%.

As shown in Table 5.9, the proportion of residents in Haringey 16-64 with no qualifications
(16.0%) was higher than in London (11.8%) and Great Britain (12.3%) whilst there is also a
sizeable proportion of residents in Haringey educated to degree level.

Table 5.9: Total numbers of people who are qualified at a particular level and above in
2009%

Haringey Haringey London B?i::iar:

(numbers) (%) (%) (%)

NVQ4 and above 69,500 43 39.7 29.9
NVQ3 and above 86,800 53.8 53.2 49.3
NVQ2 and above 101,800 63.1 64.5 65.4
NVQ1 and above 111,300 69 74 78.9
Other qualifications 24,300 15.1 14.3 8.8
No qualifications 25,700 16 11.8 12.3

Definitions:

NVQ 1 equivalent: e.g. fewer than 5 GCSEs at grades A-C, foundation GNVQ, NVQ 1,
intermediate 1 national qualification (Scotland) or equivalent

NVQ 2 equivalent: e.g. 5 or more GCSEs at grades A-C, intermediate GNVQ, NVQ 2,
intermediate 2 national qualification (Scotland) or equivalent

NVQ 3 equivalent: e.g. 2 or more A levels, advanced GNVQ, NVQ 3, 2 or more higher or
advanced higher national qualifications (Scotland) or equivalent

NVQ 4 equivalent and above: e.g. HND, Degree and Higher Degree level qualifications
or equivalent

Regarding business ownership in Wards Corner, a survey of the Seven Sisters Market was
conducted by USM in 2008 which found of the 36 traders leasing stalls in the market, the
majority (64%) originated from Latin America and were mainly Spanish speaking. The
remaining 36% traders were mainly English speaking, from a mixture of racial backgrounds,
including Afro-Caribbean, African, Asian and White.

Housing

Wards Corner LSOA* experiences very high comparative levels of housing deprivation in
terms of the sub-indicator for overcrowding, homelessness and housing affordability, according
to CLG’s Indicators of Deprivation 2010, which mainly use data from 2008.

A housing needs assessment conducted across Haringey in 2007 identified that single parents
and people from black and minority ethnic communities were more likely to be in housing need.

%2 Department for Work and Pension, via ONS ‘New Deal Programme: Starts by Ethnic Group, 2008’
http://www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination

* NOMIS ‘Qualifications (Jan 2009-Dec 2009)’ https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/imp/la/2038431864/report.aspx?town=haringey
% ‘Seven Sisters market Report’ Urban Space Management, 2008. Available via Consultation Response #154 at:
http://www.planningservices.haringey.gov.uk/portal/serviets/ApplicationSearchServlet?PKID=173237

3 http://www.imd.communities.gov.uk/ for LSOA E01002072 [ Accessed 12/04/2011]

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
33



Page 146

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

543

544

5.5

55.1

5.5.2

553

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

Black and Black British households are reportedly more likely than other groups to be living in
social rented housing. 'White - Other' households are more likely to live in the private rented
sector whilst 'White - British' and ‘Asian’ and ‘Asian British’ households are most likely to be
owner-occupier, across Haringey36.

There are 31 existing homes on the site on Suffield Road and at first floor on Tottenham High
Road, Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. The existing housing stock is a mixture of
owner-occupied, private-rented accommodation and social housing units. The existing dwelling
stock comprises 3 studio flats, 14 x 1-Bed, 5 x 2-Bed and 9 x 3-Bed units®.

Within the South Tottenham (N15) area, there are 409 housing units in the pipeline to be
completed in 2011/12. Of these units 169 will be for social rent and 31 will be intermediate
rent>®.

Access to services and facilities

There are two primary schools in the Tottenham Green ward — Earlsmead and Wellbourne.
Data from 2007 showed that all reception places were filled although both schools had overall
excess capacity of 10%°. As at 2007, a number of approved developments in the vicinity,
particularly Hale village, were expected to give rise to additional demand for school places in
the local area. The 2007 report concluded that demand would be kept under annual review,
although more recent data has not been identified online.

Haringey PCT identifies 56 GP practices within the borough. The PCT also identifies 10 dental
practices providing NHS services within the South East Haringey area. Strategic planning of
health services is currently the responsibility of the PCT, although proposals for greater control
of service commissioning by GP practices currently being debated in parliament may influence
future provision of health services and facilities for residents of the development in the future.

The existing shops are understood to include a mix of local food, convenience and other retail
outlets. The overall local retail mix is understood to include a Tesco store but otherwise no
national chain stores.

Public realm, transport, safety

Current access provision at Seven Sisters underground station includes facilities for the visually
impaired or blind; assistance dogs welcome; facilities for the mobility impaired (escalators);
facilities for hard of hearing people; induction loop; staff assistance available and alternative
wheelchair accessible service available. The station does not have lift access*.

Seven Sisters railway station has staff help; accessible ticket machines and induction loop.
However, no part of the station has step free access, there is no disabled parking and no other
facilities for wheelchair users of people with mobility impairments*’.

3 http://www.haringey.gov.uk/jsna_chapter_3_social_and_environmental_context_-_towards_jsna_in_haringey.pdf [Accessed

12/04/2011]

% Based on ‘best estimate’ information provided by Cluttons 10/05/2011

¥ Email correspondence from Shannon Francis, Housing Assets Officer, 19/04/2011

% http://www.haringey.gov.uk/school_place_planning_report.pdf [Accessed 12/04/2011]

4 http://www.directenquiries.com/ & http://www.tfl.gov.uk/gettingaround/stations/1000201.aspx [Accessed 12/04/2011]
I http://www.nationalrail.co.uk/stations/svs/details.html [Accessed 12/04/2011]

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

34



Page 147

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

5.6.3

5.6.4

5.6.5

5.7

571

5.7.2

573

574

5.7.5

Numerous bus routes and bus stops serve the Wards Corner site. All London buses are low
floor and include at least one wheelchair space. Transport for London has also improved
accessibility at bus stops.

Online crime mapping for the Wards Corner LSOA (E01002072) reports total notifiable
offences in February 2011 as average (9.91) with a lower rate than for the Tottenham Green
ward (12.45), though the rate is higher than the overall Haringey rate (8.91)**. Annual trends
show falling crime rates for both Tottenham Green Ward and Haringey between 2007/08,
2008/09 and 2009/10.

Hate crime or harassment is any behaviour that is perceived by the victim or any other person
to be motivated by hatred of the group to which the victim is believed to belong. In 2007/08
there were 192 racist offences. Haringey had the 6th lowest rate of racist offences in London in
2007/08 for the number of racist offences and lowest amongst its ‘Most Similar and
neighbouring boroughs. Haringey has the 10th highest number of faith hate offences in
London and 7th highest number of homophobic offences™®.

Community cohesion and relations between different groups

Community cohesion is strongly identified as a priority in Haringey council policy, the
achievement of ‘A place of diverse communities that people are proud to belong to’
emphasised in their SCS, Single Equality Scheme and community cohesion framework,
towards ensuring equality of opportunity throughout the borough.

The updated community cohesion framework identifies the eastern wards of Haringey,
including Tottenham Green ward, as tending to be home to higher numbers of BME groups,
newly arrived migrants, refugees and asylum seekers, people from diverse faiths and people
who have limiting long-term illnesses™.

The framework furthermore recognises the diversity of the borough’s population as well as the
existence of a large number and variety of voluntary and community based organisations
serving different sections of the population.

A Community Cohesion Forum was established in 2008 to bring together a vision of common
belonging and shared vision. The forum include groups who work with residents of different
ages, genders, disabilities, ethnic backgrounds and cultures, religions and those with no
religion and people from lesbian, gay bisexual and transgender communities.

Hate crime or harassment is any behaviour that is perceived by the victim or any other person
to be motivated by hatred of the group to which the victim is believed to belong. In 2007/08
there were 192 racist offences. Haringey had the 6th lowest rate of racist offences in London in
2007/08 for the number of racist offences and lowest amongst its ‘Most Similar and
neighbouring boroughs. Haringey has the 10th highest number of faith hate offences in
London and 7th highest number of homophobic offences™.

“2 Rates for February 2011, for sub-ward area E01002072, http://maps.met.police.uk/ [Accessed 12/04/2011]
“3 http://www.haringey.gov.uk/jsna_chapter_3_social_and_environmental_context_-_towards_jsna_in_haringey.pdf [Accessed

12/04/2011]

“ hitp://www.haringey.gov.uk/community _cohesion framework update 2010.pdf [Accessed 12/04/2011]

“® http://www.haringey.gov.uk/isna_chapter 3 social_and_environmental_context - towards_jsna_in_haringey.pdf [Accessed

12/04/2011]

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

35



Page 148

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

Consultation and Engagement

This chapter summarises and analyses the consultation and engagement conducted in relation
to the development of proposals for the redevelopment of Wards Corner and the planning
application. It includes a record of activities undertaken since 2003. It considers the adequacy
the consultation and engagement processes to identify and engage with affected sections of
the population who share protected characteristics. It records different issues raised in the
consultation which are of potential relevance to equality impacts, the range of opinions
expressed. It considers how Grainger PLC (‘the Applicant’), The Bridge New Deal for
Communities (NDC) and the Council have responded to concerns.

Consultation and engagement process

Consultation with regards to the proposed redevelopment of Wards Corner and the planning
application has been undertaken by the Council, the Applicant and their project team, and by
The Bridge NDC.

Table 6.1: Summary of consultation activities undertaken re. proposed redevelopment of
Wards Corner

Timeline Activity Conducted by Stakeholders
Sat 15" Feb Community conference day | The Bridge NDC
2003
2003 Face to face street survey Atis Real Local population
Weatheralls
2003 Public consultation on Haringey Council | Haringey residents /
Haringey UDP businesses / wider public
Sept 2003 Public consultation on Haringey Council | 12,000 local households &
Wards Corner development businesses
brief, including leaflet drop
2 drop-in sessions
Presentations
Translation of leaflet
available
Questionnaires
2004 Public consultation on Haringey Council | Haringey residents /
Haringey UDP businesses / wider public
12 April = 13 UDP public inquiry Haringey Council | General public
Sept 2005
28 March Event NDC NDC area residents & local
2006 stakeholders
2" Oct — 1™ Conservation Area Charter | Haringey Council | Haringey residents /
Dec 2006 Appraisal public businesses / wider public
consultation
9 Dec 2006 Event NDC NDC area residents & local
stakeholders
13 June 2007 | Letter sent to tenants of Grainger Site tenant
current Wards Corner site
28/29 June Newsletter sent to 10,000 Grainger plc
2007 homes; 1100 sent by Haringey Council
Haringey council local local
Neighbourhood Office; info. | neighbourhood
On exhibition in Tottenham | office

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

36

June 2011




Page 149

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Timeline Activity Conducted by Stakeholders
Journal & Haringey
Independent
10 July 2007 Presentation / Q&A at Grainger plc Local councillors
Tottenham and Seven project team
Sisters Area Assembly
12 July 2007 | Preview exhibition Grainger plc Cabinet members, ward
presentation in Apex House | project team councillors, NDC board
members, Tottenham
Partnership Forum
13 & 14 July Exhibition held on site in Grainger plc General public, including
2007 trailer project team 350 residents, local
businesses & retailers,
commuters. North London
business attended,
circulated information to
local business and market
traders
13 Aug 2007 Letter to Tottenham Civic Grainger plc Tottenham civic society
Society
6 Sept 2007 Presentation Grainger plc Cabinet members, ward

project team

councillors, NDC board
members, Tottenham
partnership forum

18 Sept 2007

Consultation event at
Tottenham Civic Society

Grainger plc
project team

3 Oct 2007 Meeting with traders and The Bridge NDC | Traders and residents
residents
7 October Presentation to Haringey Grainger plc Haringey design review
2007 Design Review Panel project team panel
Nov 2007 Update leaflet sent Grainger plc 11,000 Local households
28 Nov 2007 Meeting with traders and The Bridge NDC | Wards Corner coalition;
residents Clyde Area Residents’
Association, the Fountain
Area Residents’ Association
and the Mayes West
Residents’ Association
12 Dec 2007 | Meeting with traders and The Bridge NDC | Traders and residents
residents Tottenham Civic Society,
Resident Association
representatives, WCC
members
06 Feb 2008 Submission of planning Grainger plc
application, press release
12 Feb 2008 Comments, objections, Haringey Council | General public
— ongoing support, queries regarding
(April 2011) planning application
14 Feb 2008 Workshop held in English & | The Bridge NDC | 33 affected local
Spanish businesses & traders
Feb 2008 Leaflet sent to 10,132 with Grainger plc Homes, stakeholders &
update on scheme and project team local businesses
invitation to public
exhibition
Fri 29 Feb Public exhibition at site Grainger plc 150 people attended — local
1200 — 1900 Questionnaire project team residents, businesses &
& Sat 1% stakeholders

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

37

June 2011




Page 150

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Timeline Activity Conducted by Stakeholders
March 1100 — 109 responses to
1500 2008 questionnaire.

3 March 2008

Workshop held in English &
Spanish

The Bridge NDC

Affected local businesses &
traders

2008 post- 1-2-1 consultation offering The Bridge NDC | Affected local businesses &
workshops support & guidance traders
| 15"Mar —end | Permanent exhibition at Grainger plc Local residents,
Nov 2008 Marcus Garvey Library, project team businesses, stakeholders
drop-in sessions last Tues
each month 5pm — 8pm
Quarterly Updates about Wards Grainger plc/ NDC households; other
basis Corner proposals in NDC local residents, businesses
magazine hand-delivered & & stakeholders
placed in local libraries &
agencies.
Ongoing Grainger/project website Grainger plc / General public / NDC
updates updates & NDC website NDC constituency
18 March Meeting with Tottenham Grainger plc Residents, market traders,
2008 Civic Society, Resident project team interested stakeholders
Association
representatives, market
traders, residents & WCC
members
20 March Present revised site Grainger plc Wards Corner development
2008 proposals, Q&A session project team forum, general public
2" - 13" May | Independent telephone poll | ICM market 500 local residents
2008 re feedback on site & research
aspirations for area
9 May 2008 & | Meeting & follow-up with Grainger plc Local MP
7 July 2008 local MP re revised
proposals
8 Aug, 19 Series of meeting re way Grainger plc Market traders, shop
Aug, 1 Sept & | forward for markets and owners, local businesses
2 Oct 2008 local shops & businesses
28 Oct 2008 Open meeting with all Grainger plc Market traders
market traders re. way
forward for Seven Sisters
market
30 Oct 2008 Meeting with residents, Grainger plc Residents, traders, local
traders & members of council
Haringey council inc.
Council Leader
6 Nov 2008 & | Letter in English & Spanish | Grainger plc All market traders
28 Jan 2009 to all traders to confirm
Graingers position &
relocation & reoccupation
options, update on devt.
Timescales & position re
liaising with tenants
1 February Development Forum held at | Haringey Council | General public, attended by
2011 College of North East approx. 200 people.

London

Following a legal challenge to the planning decision, Haringey council has continued to receive
responses to the planning application. The Applicant (Grainger plc) has not undertaken further
consultation in the wider community since January 2009.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

38

June 2011




Page 151

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.2.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

Activities and processes to express views regarding the proposals have also been undertaken
by others. In particular, the Wards Corner Community Coalition (WCCC) has co-ordinated
activities to oppose the development via a website, an online petition, regular meetings, press
coverage and their own development of an alternative proposal for redevelopment at Wards
Corner.

Engagement with different sections of population, including
those sharing protected characteristics

Consultation undertaken by Haringey council on the Wards Corner draft development brief

Haringey council undertook consultation with regards to the development brief in 2003. For this
it undertook diversity monitoring of written responses, with respect to age, gender, disability
and ethnicity. It provided translation options and alternative formats to enable different sections
of the community to put forward their views. A cabinet report concludes that the consultation
on the draft development brief took appropriate measures to consider equal opportunities and
to ensure wide consultation.

Consultation undertaken by Haringey council on the planning application for Wards Corner

Haringey Council consulted with a range of statutory, internal and external consultees,
including consulting with 2,754 local residents, as of January 2011. Online responses to the
planning application numbered 303, as of April 2011.

Table 6.2: Haringey Council record of consultees for Planning Application

Statutory Internal External

Greater London Authority (GLA) | Transportation Waltham Forest council
English Heritage Group Hackney council
Commission for Architecture Cleansing
and the Built Environment Building Control Amenity Groups

(CABE) Conservation Wards Corner Community Coalition
Met Police Design Tottenham Civic Society

Government Office for London Regeneration Tottenham Conservation Area Advisory
(Gol) Policy Committee (CAAC)

London Fire Brigade Design Panel The Bridge NDC

Environmental Agency
Local Residents

Total No of Residents Consulted: 2,754

Consultation undertaken by Grainger and their project team

The record of consultation demonstrates that over 2007 and 2008, Grainger’s project team
engaged widely with the local community, making efforts to meet with different affected groups
including market traders, businesses and retailers, residents of the site, local residents and
resident associations, the local MP and local councillors, as well as local civic groups with an
interest in the proposals for the site. Efforts to enable different groups are demonstrated by
their preparation of letters in both English and Spanish, extensive leafleting of households,
arranging meetings with particular interest groups, conduct of meetings and exhibitions at a
variety of venues, including on the site, running drop-in sessions and holding events at a range
of times of day, including evenings and weekends. The conduct of focused meetings with
market traders, including Latin American traders, enabled Grainger to take account of their

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

39




Page 152

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

particular concerns and address them in revisions to proposals for the site. The record of
consultation does not make explicit how consultation was made accessible and inclusive for
disabled people.

The statement of consultation submitted indicates limited monitoring by Grainger and their
team of the diversity of consultees. Written consultation questionnaires included questions that
enabled monitoring by age and sex local resident status. However, no formal monitoring was
undertaken with regards to ethnicity, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief.

In an equality impact assessment by Clutton’s commissioned by Granger Plc, analysis of
consultation undertaken in relation to the planning application identified the following concerns
held by groups sharing equality protected characteristics:

e 68% of young people aged 18-24, and 65% of people aged 25 - 34 in an ICM poll reported
feeling unsafe in the Wards Corner area at night;

o 62% of women as compared to 46% of men reported feeling unsafe at night, across all age
groups, according to the ICM poll;

e People from BME groups predominate amongst those owning or working in existing
shops/business premises and the indoor market. Traders within the indoor market are
identified to be around 64% Spanish-speaking. People who own or work within shops and
businesses on the site expressed strong concern about the loss of their businesses and
jobs. The market traders expressed their desire to continue to operate from the site and
their concerns about finding alternative equivalent accommodation, either in the long term or
as a temporary measure until they are able to return to the completed scheme. Market
traders also expressed concerns about the affordability of alternative accommodation and of
space within the completed scheme. Spanish-speaking traders expressed a strong desire
to be able to stay together as group as they believe that their businesses benefit from being
part of a Latin American market;

o People belonging to BME groups predominate amongst those living in existing housing,
some of whom also operate businesses from the Wards Corner site, raised particular
concerns about the loss of their homes and their ability to find alternative accommodation.

Issues raised and differing views

Analysis of all the comments received by Haringey council in relation to planning application
HGY/2008/0303, as published on the planning application website, was conducted by URS
Scott Wilson to identify the range of issues raised, the differing views of respondents and how
these relate to affected groups sharing protected characteristics. This analysis focused on
concerns that may have a differential impact with respect to equality protected characteristics.
The responses cover a time frame from February 2008 until April 2011. Some of the
responses pre-date more recent changes to the submission, including amended drawings, a
revised ground floor layout and amended planning statement.

Consultation process

Objections criticised the planning process and consultation process to date for failing to listen
to the community, lack of genuine consultation, retrospective consultation and lack of
engagement with local community in the production of the EQIA produced on behalf of
Grainger.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

40



Page 153

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.4.5

6.4.6

6.4.7

6.4.8

6.4.9

6.4.10

The record of consultation process summarised in Table 6.2 shows that wide-ranging
consultation was undertaken and included processes to listen to the community and particular
affected groups. A lack of specific engagement with the local community in the production of
the EQIA produced on behalf of Grainger, and indeed, for this EqlA, is acknowledged.
However, this EqlA included the conduct of a thorough re-analysis of available records of
consultation to date, including all responses which were published on Haringey Council’s
planning application site with regards to application HGY/2008/0303. This EqIA recommends
the Applicant and the Council review their approach to engagement in relation to the
redevelopment, to identify how concerns about the quality of engagement and effective
listening can be improved.

Housing-related impacts

Objectors criticised the lack of inclusion of affordable housing, expressed concern that the
proposal will give rise to homelessness and expressed the view that the housing would be
unaffordable for local people. Supporters expressed the view that more private housing in the
area was desirable.

Provision of affordable housing in line with Council and GLA policy would normally be expected
to enable groups disadvantaged by income/savings barriers to benefit from the new housing
provision on the site. The non-provision of affordable housing either on site or off-site via
developer contributions is therefore identified in this EqIA as a negative equality impact. The
independent judgment of the Valuation Office is referenced by the Applicant as justification for
the non provision of affordable housing. An independent viability assessment has been
submitted to Haringey Council and a final decision on the acceptability of non-provision of
affordable housing within the development will be taken by members on the basis of this
assessment. Neither the assessment of the Valuation Office or the independent viability
assessment referenced above has been seen by URS Scott Wilson.

Objections were also raised with regard to provision of too many flats and not enough family-
size housing.

The development proposes an increase in numbers of family-sized housing on the site as
compared to the current provision. Affordability barriers mean that low income BME
households, single parent households and children in low income households are unlikely to
share in the benefits of this housing. This EqIA recognises this is a negative equality impact.

A number of objections questioned the basis and transparency of the justification for non-
inclusion of social housing within the development.

The Applicant has given reasons of commercial confidentiality to explain why information
forming the basis for judgments regarding the non-viability of affordable housing provision as
part of the redevelopment. This means that some interested parties, including the WCCC have
not been given the full information on which decisions have been made. This EqlA
recommends that the Applicant and the Council co-operate to make publically available
information that has formed the basis for decisions on non-provision of affordable housing on
the site.

Employment, Business and Economic Regeneration

Support was expressed that the proposal would attract new businesses, creating new jobs
whilst objectors considered the proposal would give rise to job losses relative to the existing
shops and market.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

41



Page 154

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.4.11

6.4.12

6.4.13

6.4.14

6.4.15

6.4.16

6.4.17

6.4.18

The Applicant’s proposals indicate intensified commercial activity on the site, including a mix of
national and local shops. New retail jobs are likely to be created, which local residents,
including existing employees at the site, are likely to be able to share in these new employment
opportunities. Some existing jobs are likely to be lost, affecting BME employees, particularly
affecting Latin American employees, though existing employees are likely to have equal
opportunities to take up new jobs created as a result of the development.

Support was expressed that the proposal will regenerate the area, attracting new business and
custom for existing businesses. One respondent commented on the desire for a decision to
overcome the uncertainty which was detrimental to business. One objector considered that a
loss of local shops at the expense of national chain stores would result in loss of money from
the local economy. Objectors expressed the view that the proposal would be detrimental to
local businesses, to local small traders, to specialist ethnic shops, including Indian, Chinese
and new migrants and to nearby Brazilian businesses.

The entry of national retail chains at the site is likely to result in channelling of a proportion of
local spend outside the area. It is unclear whether this will be at the expense of local shop
profits, since overall spending in the local area can be expected to grow as a result of the new
investment. Local BME-owned businesses are likely to share in new business and custom
resulting from the redevelopment. The proposal includes provision for seven outlets suitable
for local shops. BME-owned businesses are likely to share in the benefits of this provision.
Proposed West Green Road environmental improvement fund is likely to support capture of
benefits by local businesses, including local BME-owned or run businesses.

Objectors emphasised the significance of the market as a specialist Latino market, judging that
the proposals would adversely affect Iberian and Latino trade, whilst comments also identified
the market as offering a mix of specialist BME goods and services. Objectors considered that
the proposed reprovision for the existing market would be inadequate and criticised a lack of
plans for temporary relocation of the market. One objector commented that the business class
restrictions of the proposed retail units would exclude many existing traders.

The EqlA recognises the significance of the market to Iberian and Latino trade and the multi-
ethnic composition of traders (see 7.3.2 below).

This EqlA’s identifies the successful temporary relocation of the market as extremely important
to securing the future success of the market stallholders and sets out additional mitigation
measures to this end in Chapter eight under the heading Business and employment, as well as
recognising the importance of mitigation measures negotiated for the most recent S106
agreement, referred to in 7.3.4 to 7.3.6 below. The latest proposed reprovision for the existing
market is to reprovide it in its entirety, which, supported by measures to secure the right of
return for existing stallholders, should support affected BME-owned businesses to share in the
benefits of reprovision. The proposed business class restrictions are considered unlikely to
exclude existing traders, including street food sellers, in the view of URS Scott Wilson. The
Applicant has indicated to URS Scott Wilson that this is not their intent.

Character and vitality of area

Supporters considered the proposal would improve the appearance of the area, making it a
more welcoming environment and overcoming blight effects of the current site.

The EqIA identifies benefits of the public realm and open space improvements and improved
appearance of buildings for crime and a feeling of welcome in 7.7.1 below. These benefits are
likely to be widely shared and to be particularly important for certain groups sharing protected

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

42



Page 155

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.4.19

6.4.20

6.4.21

6.4.22

6.4.23

6.4.24

6.4.25

6.4.26

characteristics, including young people, women, and possibly also LGB people. Local
residents from different ethnic backgrounds are also likely to share in these benefits.

Objectors identified the proposal as out of keeping with the character of the area and one that
does not support the diversity of the local community. Such comments also referenced
preferences for alternative proposals put forward by the WCCC.

The proposals, as summarised in Chapter four: Summary of planning application and related
proposal, include units of a size suitable for use by local businesses within the retail mix, re-
provision of the existing market in its entirety and measures within the S106 agreement to help
existing businesses strengthen their models, to temporarily relocate, keeping all the Latin-
American businesses together, and to protect their right to return. This EqlA considers these
measures demonstrate that the Applicant recognises and has tried to support the existing
diversity of the local community, by enabling existing traders to form part of the mix of the
future development.

Alternative proposals for the redevelopment of Wards Corner by the WCCC were submitted in
an application which was accepted as valid 28 Jan 2008 despite it lacking a clear site plan
showing the land which the application relates to. The Council did not make a decision on the
application so the applicant appealed to the Planning Inspectorate on the basis of “non-
determination”. This meant only the Planning Inspectorate can decide the application, which
they decided not to do. The Council has invited WCCC to resubmit a new application so that
they can take it through the normal planning process.

Safety concerns

Supporters considered the current site is uninviting and hostile at night and a focus for anti-
social behaviour, and indicated confidence that the re-development would help overcome these
problems.

Objectors identified the current market as family friendly and considered that crime levels have
been misrepresented by the Applicant to justify demolition. One objector considered that the
proposal would worsen safety in the area. In one letter of objection, a respondent indicated
that the proposal fails to address the lack of provision of bars, coffee shops or restaurants to
attract women and young people, in order to make the area safer.

Existing safety concerns are identified at 5.6 above. The EqlIA considers the proposals are
likely to have a beneficial impact for safety, benefits which are likely to be shared by people
sharing protected characteristics, including women, young people, children, local BME
residents and possibly LGB people. Measures to safeguard the future of the market make it
possible for the family-friendly nature of the current market to be realised within the
redevelopment.

The proposed retail mix does not preclude provision of coffee shops or restaurants as part of
the overall mix. The Applicant should consider how the proposed layout could accommodate
such provision as a potential way to enhance the development’s contribution to the sense of
safety and welcome for different groups.

Provision & access to goods, services & facilities

Supporters considered the proposed redevelopment would provide a better choice of goods
and services, criticising the current shops as serving a small proportion of the existing
community.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

43



Page 156

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.4.27

6.4.28

6.4.29

6.4.30

6.4.31

6.4.32

6.4.33

6.4.34

6.4.35

The redevelopment is likely to achieve a widened choice of goods and services appealing to a
wider range of people. Nevertheless, the specialist provision aimed at particular groups is
important in itself and mitigation measures to maintain this specialist provision as part of the
overall future mix should be retained.

Objectors criticised the proposal as lacking in provision of public space, green infrastructure,
and health and school services to meet the needs of new residents.

The proposals include provision of public space and play space for young children, described in
Amenity Space and Play Space. The proposals indicate that non- provision for older children
within the development is due to space constraints and is justified by the close proximity to a
newly refurbished playspace (see 4.1.46 above). The S106 agreement includes an agreed
amount for educational provision, whilst no specific demands for health provision were made.

Objectors considered the proposed redevelopment will deprive residents of goods and
services, particularly convenience and specialist ethnic services provided to a wide community
and to people from ethnic minority communities.

The redevelopment proposes both new retail and opportunities for existing providers of goods
and services to form a part of the new development to widen the choice of goods and services
to local residents. The EqlA recognises that open-market rent levels may prove unaffordable
for some existing ethnic minority businesses to operate within the redevelopment. But it
considers that the combination of the proposed and additional recommended mitigation
measures are adequate to protect access to specialist goods and services for BME
communities goods and services.

Community cohesion

Many letters of objection criticised the proposed development as offering reduced community
benefit and failing to address the needs of the local community. The proposed demolition and
potential loss of local shops was judged by some objectors to threaten local cultural
connections. Some expressed the view that the existing market brings ethnic diversity together
through a multi-ethnic mix of traders, with one letter mentioning Latin-American, Afro-
Caribbean traders as West African, Kurdish and Asian-run shops.

The proposals include measures to try to sustain the existing mix of traders, through both
temporary relocation measures and measures to safeguard the eventual return and successful
continuation of existing businesses as part of the development. These measures (summarised
in Table 7.2: Summary of Business and Employment Impacts for Affected Groups & Table 7.3)
are expected to indirectly address the needs of the local community and sustain ethnic diversity
and community cohesion (see Table 7.4).

Several objection letters criticised the proposed development as detrimental to the livelihoods
of local workers and their families, as giving rise to a loss of a unique space for the Latino
community, in terms of family recreation, Latino friendships and integration. In two letters of
objection, one person indicated that the development could jeopardise the future of the nearby
Catholic church. Letters of support questioned the significance of the market’s contribution to
the Latin American community.

The EqIA recognises the contribution made by the existing market to the Latin-American
network in London, for the livelihoods of traders and their families and wider social impacts, as
referred to in 7.5.3 below. The proposals (summarised in 7.3.4 to 7.3.7) include measures to
enable the continuity and cohesiveness of the Latin American trading community, via measures

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

44



Page 157

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

set out in the S106 agreement. Specific measures directly to mitigate secondary or indirect
negative social impacts for family, friendships and integration are not identified. In the view of
URS Scott Wilson, the Latin-American community in London is likely to have sufficient
resilience to adapt to temporary and long-term changes to the Seven Sisters market, such that
the redevelopment is unlikely to give rise to permanent or irreversible significant loss to Latin-
American community ties.

Effects for equality objectives

6.4.36 A number of respondents questioned whether the planning application process was in line with
equalities legislation and local policies for community cohesion.

6.4.37 This EqlA has been undertaken in line with existing Council policy, London-wide policy and
national equality legislation. The Council has undertaken consultation in relation to its
consideration of the Planning Application. These both have been undertaken to ensure that the
Council has fulfilled its duties to pay due regard to its equalities responsibilities under Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010.

6.5 How the Council and the Applicant have responded to
concerns

6.5.1 A report to Haringey Council planning application sub-committee in 2003 records how the
council responded to views raised in the public consultation on the draft development brief*.
Amendments to the brief addressed open space, green space, public art, cycle parking
provision, whilst amendments of clarification were made regarding affordable housing. For
other issues considered, no changes were made, with justifications provided. A specific issue
raised was that the loss of the Wards store could be a blow to the personal identity of older
people who are long term residents did not result in amendments to the brief. The response
given was that the building had been vacant and boarded up for thirty years and its loss
needed to be balanced against the benefits of works to the physical area, including for safety
and access. Issues relevant to equality considerations and the responses of the sub-
committee to them have been extracted from Appendix B of Wards Corner/Seven Sisters
Underground — Report on Draft Development Brief consultation (PASC 8 July 2003) and are
reproduced in Table 6.3. The table of all issues and responses is reproduced in its entirety at
Appendix One, whilst the report itself can be requested from the Council committee clerks.

46 Haringey Council PASC: Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground — Report on Draft Development Brief Public Consultation. 8th
December 2003

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
45



Page 158

L10¢ sunr

o

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

;uolenyis
ay) Ajuiejo o) joug ay) puswy, L€

;uonenyis
au) Ajuejo o) joug ay) puswy, 6

,uonepowwoooe ‘diysiaumo paleys pue ‘isyiom Asy Ajleioadss ‘seinus)
pue $82IS SNOLIEA JO }JSISU0D [|IM SIU} ‘ebe)s pajielsp ay) e paalibe aq pjnom ainua) Buisnoy jo ainjeu asioaid 8yl, /€

.yoeoudde siyj spoddns ABajens peoy ybiH weyuapo |
ay] ‘diysioumo paleys Jo Jayiom Ay peajsul Ing ‘alay Buisnoy |eioos aind 10} 00| pjnom [19UnoD ay} Jey; Aj@yijun
s1]] |eaido} si ybnoiog oy} Jo sped UIepaD UIylm UOREIUS2UO0D S pue ‘uoisiroid Buisnoy a|geploye Jo anssi ay], ‘6

Buisnoy a|gepioyy

,pasodoud
sl Jouq ayj 0} 8bueyo oN, '9¢

Jwjeal
211gnd a8y} aAnosdwi 0} pasu ayy
aziseydws 0} Jouq 8y} puswy, ‘82

. pasodouid
sI Jaliq 8y} 0} abueyd oN, 'L.g

. pesodoud
Sl Joliq 8y} 0} 8bueyd oN, "/ |

;ssao0ud ubisap Ayjigises) ay) Jo ued se palapisuod aq ueo siy] ‘padejdal
aq p|noys Asy} jey) sAes yoiym ‘Jalig ay} Ul 0} paliajal si 8)is asnoH xady 8y} uo s19)10} olignd Jo 9ouL)sIxa ay], ‘9¢

. pabpajmouoy, :asuodsay JUSWUOIAUS 8y} O} UORUS)E SIOJSIA MeIp pue eale oY)
aoueyUs [IM Jey) SBUIY) JopISU0D PINOYS [IoUN0Y By) pue ‘pallliojul Jdey 8q JSnuw Sjuspisay :anssi ay) Buipiebey gz

eale ay) Jo JuswdojaAap ||eJano ay) Jo Jed se sjuswebuelle
SS900E JOPISUOD 0] Paau 8y) Saluspl Jjalg ay) ‘Janamol -abejs siy) 1e pepuodsal Jou aAey Ing ‘Jalig 8y}
UO Pa}NSU0D UBaQ SABY ‘UOIIE]S BY) 0} SUORIB)|E J0} B|gisuodsal A[gjewiyn 8gq pinom oym ‘punoibiepun uopuot, Lz

/018 ssa20e ‘Alajes Jo swud) ul Aenonied ‘eale ay) Jo ouqe} [eaisAyd ay) 0] sylom ay) Jsuiebe pasuejeq aq 0} pasu
pINOM MJewpue| 8y} JO SSO| 8y "sieak og Joj dn papleoq pue jueoeA uaaq sey [a.40js 4auio) spiep] buipiing ayy, "/1

wieal olgnd

. 9oeds uaalb Jo souepodwi sy}
aziseydwsa 0} Jalqg 8y} puswy, ‘G|

,109|}21 0} JoLg puswy, '/

,eale 8y} Jo AJluswe [|eJsA0 8y} 0} UoNALIU0D Juepodwi ue ayew o} [epusjod
8y} eABY S80p 11 Ing ‘Juasalid Je s Il uey) Jayeq pajesl) aq p|nod [usels) sebe ] eoeds uado ayj jey pejdaooe st |, ‘Gl

;aoe|d aye) pinoys wieal olignd 8y} 0} JuswaAcidwi ‘psajeulpio
-00 pue ‘Jueoyiubis jey Jes|o JI 8yew saop Jng ‘@oeds uado Jo Juswiyesal) Jo s|ielep Aue apnjoul Jou seop Jelg ayl, /

ue olgnd ‘eoeds
uaaib ‘eoeds uadQ

uonoy

(j1oday ayj jo g xipuaddy Jad se siaqunu) aapiwwos Bujuue|d jo asuodsay

joeduw] jo ainjeN

Joliq Juawdojanap Jelp ay} uo uolje}nsuod dlgnd Ul pasied SMaIA 0} dapIwwoo-gns Buluue|d Aq sasuodsay :¢79 ajqe

juswissassy joedw| Ajjenb3 juswdojanapay Jaulo) spiep

|19uno) Aabuiieq




Page 159

L10¢ sunr

Ly

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

. pasodoud si jaug ay} 0} abueyd op, “L§

. pasodoud si Jjaug ay} 0} abueyd oN, ‘0L
,pasodoud sj jalg ayy o} abueyod oN, "/Z
,pasodoud s| jaug ayy o} abueyd oN, ‘61

,’suoljesiueblo ssauisng [BJ0] Ym syul|

Buibeinoous Aq siapel) JO Uoledo|-al 84NNy
Aue ul 1sISSe 0] ¥98S ||IM [IoUN0) 8y, ‘gl

MONnJIs 8q 0} spasu jey) aoue|eq JNoIIP 8y} Jo uonessn||i ue
s| ‘yeyy Ajesioaid 0} Joalgo siayjo 1sjiym ‘eoussald |Iejal [euoljeu-ijinw e Juem sjuspuodsal uleps jey) 1oe) ay |
"abe)s siy) Je umouy jou ale juswdojorsp pasodoid Aue jo siaidnooo Aoy 8y Jo Ayjuspl pue sjieyep ayl, ‘Lg

. pabeinoous Ajjeoioads aJe sasn |lejay sjeudoidde buieq se ,sasn pue| jo abuel e, 0} siajal
} peajsul ‘pue ‘sash o110ads Jo swud) ul ‘9Anduosald-1ano 00} 8q Jouued Jjoug ay], :asuodsay ¢ asn Apunuwiwiod
J0j 8oeds aq aJay] [liM “papiroid 8q pinoys jooyas Jybiu abenbuej io ‘ewsurd asnoy Uy, anssi buipiebay 0|

,'1SIX@ 0} PaJapISUOI S| JI WO} JaASJeYM Ul ‘8inynd uo Joedwi O} Jou S| Jolg
ayj Jo uonuajul ay] “pabpamoundy, :asuodsay ,sjoxsewiadns jou ,0in3na, spasu eale, anssi buipiebay /g

oIS ay} Jo yuswdojanap aininy apinb 0] S)99s Jaug 8y, :asuodsay,;JSof Jou SI SaIuUNWILIOI [B20] JO A)SIONIp
pue ssauyoll 8y} jey; ainsus o} paesodo.d Buiaq aie sjuswabuelle oaeuls)e jeym -, anssi Buipiebay ‘61

Jadojaasp aininy Aue yym Buoje ‘seses| Wisl-Loys Uo aq 0}
poojsiapun ||e ale oym ‘sispel) 8y} Aq peaibe aq 0} peau pinom pue jalig 8y} jo 8dods 8y} apISINO S| }8yJew ay)
1O 8Inny 8y} ‘JOABMOH * PBWOD|aM 8q PINOM, 18xJew 8y} Jo Juswaoe|dal ay) 1ey) 81e2Ipul S80p Jolg ayl, ‘8|

$8sn JO XIW pue
Ayislanip [eanyn)

Juawdojanapal
8y} woly syyausq Alajes |euosiad Aoy
ay) aziseydwa 0} jalig dY} puswy, "0f

,way} punole saoeds pue sbBuip|ing mau Aue ul awu) InO Bulubisaq, jo seidiound ayy
ajesodiooul 0} saniunuoddo aAlb pjnom juswdojaaap pasodoud ay] ‘swlo Jo s|aAd| ybiy o} 109lgns ale |essusb
Ul eale 8y} pue jax)Jew ay} ‘Uuoiie)s 8y} Jey} pawluoD aAeY 891104 Hodsuel] ysiig ayj pue aoljod 8y} yjog, 0

eale ay} Jo Juswdojaaap ||elano 8y Jo Led se sjuswabuelle SS800E JapISU0D 0}
pasu a8y} sauuap! Jalg auy) ‘JIenamoH “abe)s siy) je papuodsal jJou aAey Jng ‘Jalig 8y} UO Pa)iNSuod usaq aAey
‘uoijels ay) 0} suolje.s)e Joj a|qisuodsal Ajgjewiin aq PiNOM oYM ‘punolBispun UopuoT, :esuodsay " e

. pasodoud si jaug ay} o) abueyd op, “1LZ 40} ,sjods-joy, ayj buronpau ‘jongj 198.3s je buiaq aq parosdwi 8q Jybiw uonejs aqn, :anssi buipiebay "1z aw
.salo1j0d a1ep-0}-dn jsow S [1I0UNOYD By} Y)IM dul| Ul 8] 0}
pasodoud s| jaug sy} 0} aBueyo oN, ‘0c | Se 0s pue ‘eale sy} ul ss800e podsuel; olignd Jus|Boxe 8y} UsAIB ‘wnwiuiw e o) 3daey 8q pinoys Buiyied JeD, “0¢
. Bapl 8y} Jo AJjigex om ay) Inoge sygnop passaldxs aaey ‘Buiuue|d podsuel] jo

peaH s,|IounoD 8y} pue ‘sasng uopuoT yjog pue dn payJom usaqg aAeY S|ie}ap ou ‘JanamoH ‘Buipjing spiepp au} ainjonJjselyul

.pasodoud si jaug ay} 0} abueyo oN, ‘Gz | 10 JuoJy} 8y} 0} eale ay} ul Ajqissod ‘sasnq pue uoljels agn} ay} usamiaq sabexul aAoidwi 0] SI UonuUBIUI 8Y], G2 yodsues]

juswissassy joedw| Ajjenb3 juswdojanapay Jaulo) spiep

|19uno) Aabuiieq




Page 160

L10¢ sunr

114

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

pasodoud si jaug ay) 0} abueydg op, ‘9Z

pasodoud si jaug ay) 0} abueydg op, ‘6&

solued pajsalaul
0} Jalig 8y} JO Sjuau09 ay) Aejas 0} Japlo ul jsed ay) ul sBuizeaw jo Alalien e usaq Apealje
aAey alay] ‘paidaocoe jou si 8jenbapeul usag sey uole)nNsuod sy} jey) uonsabbns ay], "9z

laumopue| ay
YlIM passnosip aq 0} paau pjnom asn pasodolid Auy “j1ounod ayy Aq paumo jou si Buip|ing ayJ, "6¢

saAljeuls)e
JO UolEIapISU0D
9 UOIE}NSU0D 21|qnd

- pasodoud si jaug ay) 0) abueyd op, ‘ge

.suonesiuebio ssauisng |eo0|
yum syui buibeinooua Aq siaped) JO UOied0|-al
ainyny Aue Ul }SISSE 0} %99S [|IM |IoUN0D dyl, "glL

JJuswiuoJiAuS 8U) Jo Ajlenb saoidwi pue esie sy sjelsusbal
(1M Juswidojerspay 'sieak g JaAo Joy Buip|ing jolelep ayy Aq paybijg ussq sey eale 8y, 'g¢

Jadojanap ainny Aue yum Buoje ‘seses| WIs)-1I0ys Uo 8q O]} POOISISPUN [[B 8Je OYM ‘Sispe.)
ay) Aq peaibe ag 0} paau pjnom pue Jauqg sy} Jo 2doos sy} SpISINO S| JoxIBW BY} JO 81NN} B}
‘JOABMOH *, PBLIODIOM 87 PINOM, }8¥Jew ayj Jo Juswaoe|dal ay) Jey) 81edlpul Seop Jaug ayl, ‘gl

slapels)
193JeW / Jo)Jew Jo SSO

juswissassy joedw| Ajjenb3 juswdojanapay Jaulo) spiep
|19uno) Aabuiieq




Page 161

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

The Applicant responded to concerns raised in consultation on the proposed design with a
number of changes to the design and other measures, including in renegotiations of S106
measures. Changes which are chiefly design changes and not relevant to consideration of
equality impacts are not included here. Changes relevant to equality considerations, as
summarised in a document prepared by the Applicant’s project team, are:

¢ Including accommodation suitable for the re-provision of the entire Seven Sisters market

¢ Redesigning the retail accommodation to attract a mix of local and independent traders to
smaller units on West Green Road and Seven Sisters Road as well as to attract a range of
national retailers to the High Road frontage, principally for convenience uses

e Changes to S106 agreement with regard to conditions for the return of the existing market
traders to a future replacement market

¢ Increasing the value of their offer of voluntary financial contributions to create a West Green
Road Environmental Improvement Fund.

This EqlA identified that limited diversity monitoring or analysis of consultation responses has
been undertaken to date by the Council in its consideration of this application. In the future, it
is recommended that the Council more systematically monitor and analyse how the concerns of
different equality groups are addressed in future consideration of the development and in
implementation of agreed mitigation measures.

Summary

A process of community consultation and engagement was undertaken in relation to the
development brief by Haringey council and in relation to the planning application by the
Applicant, the Bridge NDC and Haringey Council. This has included measures to engage
widely with different sections of the affected population, including people sharing equality
protected characteristics. However, a significant number of consultation responses received by
Haringey council raise objections regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the consultation
process in engaging with the local community.

Analysis by URS Scott Wilson of both consultation responses and survey questionnaires
relating to the development proposal indicates that concerns of potential negative impacts
particularly relate to equal opportunities for local BME residents, for Latin-American, Afro-
Caribbean and other ethnic minority market traders and local shop owners as well as to
community cohesion for the Latin-American community and the local multi-ethnic community.

Analysis of face to face questionnaire responses by URS Scott Wilson indicates that safety
around the existing site is a particular concern for young people and for women living in the
local area. Limited diversity monitoring of consultation to date means that little evidence has
been identified regarding the impacts of concern to other equality protected groups, including
disabled people and people of different religions or beliefs.

The available evidence, as presented to URS Scott Wilson, indicates that both the Council and
the Applicant have responded to consultation responses, both in terms of adapting the original
development brief and in terms of changes to the design proposals and the terms of the S106
agreement.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

49



Page 162

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.1

7.11

7.2

7.21

7.2.2

7.2.3

7.24

Appraisal of Equality Impacts

Appraisal introduction

The appraisal considers the potential impacts for affected people sharing protected
characteristics arising from the planning application and associated proposals for Wards
Corner.

The appraisal addresses impacts in relation to key themes, identified from the review of policy,
the screening findings and the review of baseline evidence and consultation evidence.

Equality impacts on business and employment, goods services and facilities and for community
cohesion are identified as highly inter-connected, in relation to the future of the existing market
and shops.

Housing

URS Scott Wilson understand that BME residents predominate amongst the residents of the
existing housing on the site, across a mix of tenure types, reflecting the wider ethnic diversity of
the local area. Housing impacts are likely to differ according to tenure type. The lack of
precise data on the identity of affected households makes it impossible to identify if the
individuals affected may be particularly sensitive to the effects of losing their existing housing
on grounds of their possessing equality characteristics. It is noted that single parents and
people from black and minority ethnic communities are identified as more likely to be in housing
need in Haringey, so where affected households share these characteristics, it would indicate a
potential negative equality impact, exacerbating existing disadvantage amongst these groups.

For those residing in social housing, whether in secure tenure council housing or in housing
association, it is considered that suitable offers of alternative provision, on the same tenure
basis, can be made within the locality. Information provided by Haringey Council officers
indicate that within the South Tottenham (N15) area, there are 409 units in the pipeline to be
completed in 2011/12. Of these units 169 will be for social rent. The Council will be able to
allocate suitable alternative accommodate to the three households currently in social rented
units scheduled to be displaced as part of the Wards Corner redevelopment. Similar re-
provision for tenants of the seven housing association units should also be expected. It is
judged that no major adverse impact is identified for this group of households, although
additional recommendations are made to ensure suitable re-provision.

For those living in private rental, we consider that suitable alternative provision can be found
within the locality. On the understanding that within the South Tottenham (N15) area, there are
409 units in the pipeline to be completed in 2011/12, it is judged likely that a suitable choice of
alternative private rental or intermediate housing options will be available. However, in the
case of any individual households or household members who may be particularly vulnerable
(e.g. due to disability, long term illness, low income lone parent households), there may be
negative impacts. Additional recommendations are set out in Chapter Eight to support affected
households to access a choice of suitable alternative accommodation.

Those households who own their own home are more likely than other residents to be
negatively affected by the loss of housing, in particular the small number of households who
also own businesses on the site. Existing blight effects of the site are likely to reduce the
market value of their homes, negatively affecting their ability to afford to purchase a suitable

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

50



Page 163

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.2.5

7.2.6

choice of alternative housing in the locality. In the absence of detailed information regarding
the profile of existing residents, it is not possible to identify if the impact of the loss of existing
housing and consequent possible displacement from the local area will disproportionately affect
people sharing protected equality characteristics. If the households concerned are from BME
backgrounds or lone-parent households, groups identified as particularly affected by housing
deprivation in the borough, equality impacts are likely. Recommendations are set out in
Chapter Eight to support affected households to access a choice of suitable alternative
accommodation.

Consultation responses criticised the lack of family-sized housing proposed for the site. The
proposed provision is for 37 3-bed housing units, a four-fold increase on the current provision
of nine 3-bedroom houses. It is thus considered that there is likely to be a positive impact for
children, by increasing provision of suitable family housing on the site. The loss of two family-
sized social housing units on the site is considered a potential negative impact affecting
children living in households experiencing housing need. The re-provision of housing for
affected tenants by the council and the housing association respectively is considered
appropriate to mitigate this impact. It should be noted that URS Scott Wilson do not know
whether the 3-bedroom social housing units are currently occupied by households with
dependent children.

The EQIA screening and the consultation responses raised concerns about possible negative
equality impacts of not including affordable housing on the site, against London-wide and local
policy requirements. Possible impacts could be important for black and minority ethnic
households and single parent households, reported to experience higher rates of housing
need. The non-replacement on site of affordable housing is considered to be a negative
equality impact. However, URS Scott Wilson has referred to the Valuation Office’s
independent appraisal that the development cannot afford affordable housing as the basis for
accepting the Applicant’s justification for the non-provision of affordable housing as part of the
Planning Application. The expected completion of 409 units within the South Tottenham (N15)
area, of which 169 will be for social rent, provides assurance that alternative provision is being
made to meet affordable housing targets in the East of the Borough. On this basis, the non-
provision of affordable housing on the site is judged to have a minor negative impact for
equality.

Table 7.1: Summary of Housing Impacts for Specific Affected Groups

mitigation
measures

Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation
implementing measures

not possible

Loss of social

Afro-Caribbean,

Re-provision in social

Following granting

Re-provision of

rented African, and housing on same tenure | of planning affordable
housing, households from | status within borough, permission housing on site
including other ethnic with additional judged
family-sized backgrounds compensation in line Site preparation unaffordable
houses on living in social with Haringey Council phase by Valuation
site, due to rented housing policy. Office
demolition &
re-housing. Children in

affected

households

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

51




Page 164

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.3

7.3.2

7.3.3

Nature of Affected Agreed mitigation Indicative Reason why
Impact Group measures (if any) timeframe for mitigation
implementing measures
mitigation not possible
measures
Loss of Afro-Caribbean, No agreed mitigation Following granting Re-provision of
private rental African, and measures. of planning affordable
housing on households from permission housing on site
site; no other ethnic Recommended judged
guarantee of backgrounds mitigation of support, Site preparation unaffordable
reprovision on | living in private particularly to phase by Valuation
site within rental housing households with specific Office —
new private needs, to identify understood to
housing. Children in suitable alternative include
affected housing in the locality intermediate
households housing and
below-market
rental rates.
Loss of Afro-Caribbean, No agreed mitigation Following granting Re-provision of
owner- African, and measures. of planning affordable
occupied households from permission housing on site
housing on other ethnic Assumed recommended judged
site, including | backgrounds mitigation of negotiated Site preparation unaffordable
family-sized living in owner- purchase and phase by Valuation
houses; no occupied housing | compensation, as well Office —
guarantee of as support, particularly understood to
reprovision on | Children in to households with include
site within affected specific needs, to intermediate
new private households identify suitable housing and
housing. alternative housing in the discounted
locality purchase
rates.
Indirect: On- BME households, | New affordable housing Over timeframe of N/A
site loss of lone parent provision planned within | site preparation and
affordable households East Haringey at other construction.
housing, (details according | site resulting in net
exacerbating to Haringey HNS | increase
existing 2007)
barriers to
housing

Business and employment

Market traders

The market is understood to include 64% Latin American owned businesses and to also
include a significant proportion of other BME-owned businesses. It is also understood that the
employee ethnicity profile reflects the ownership of the businesses, including family-operated
businesses. Consultation responses identify the market as particularly significant to the Latin-
American community in London.

The EqlA screening and consultation responses identified potential negative equality impacts
arising from possible loss of livelihoods and employment for Latin American and other BME-
owned businesses and their employees, following closure of the existing shops and markets.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

52

June 2011




Page 165

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.3.4

7.3.5

7.3.6

7.3.7

7.3.8

7.3.9

7.3.10

7.3.11

7.3.12

Revised plans submitted to the Council include space for re-provision of the existing market in
its entirety. The proposals, for incorporation in a S106 agreement, include measures to protect
the existing stallholders’ ability to return to the replacement market. However, the predicted
increase in rent to open market levels in the new market may make it unviable for some
existing stallholders to return to the site.

The period of demolition and construction, when the space will be unavailable for market
holders, poses a threat to the ability of stallholders to continue to operate their businesses and
to employees of existing shops and market stalls.

The S106 conditions require both the Applicant and the Council to assess the opportunities for
the temporary relocation of the market, including re-locating all of the Latin-American
businesses together. The Applicant has also offered compensation, a minimum 6 months
notice period and business support.

These measures, taken together, should contribute to enabling a significant proportion of the
affected businesses to plan for their temporary relocation and develop their business in order to
be able to afford to return to the new market or to an alternative permanent location, as well as
to enable the Latin American market traders to continue to operate together. This will require
effective collaboration between all interested parties including Haringey Council, the Applicant,
the landowner, the business owners (shops and stallholders) and the existing market operator.

Shops

The shop units on the site are understood to include a business selling Halal meat for Muslim
customers and other BME-owned shops and businesses.

Revised plans submitted to the Council include space for six small shop units along the West
Green Road intended to be suitable for local and independent retailers.

Measures within the West Green Road Environmental Improvement Fund to pay for
shop/building frontage improvements, investment in street decoration and enhancements,
service improvements, improved parking and an Improvement Strategy for businesses/markets
are proposed as mitigation measures to benefit local businesses.

URS Scott Wilson consider that the provision of new shop units, improvements to the wider
West Green Road retail environment and availability of alternative premises for relocation
mean that existing shops, including Muslim-ownership businesses and BME-ownership
businesses and their employees are unlikely to be unfairly affected by loss of the existing shop
units. Whilst recognising that those businesses that lease or rent their existing premises at
below-market rates may find it hard to afford the future rental/leasehold rates of new units, URS
Scott Wilson consider that, with appropriate compensation for costs of disruption, these
businesses should be able to share in the benefits of the improved retail facilities as part of the
redevelopment.

URS Scott Wilson consider that the proposals are likely to have some negative impacts for
equality, where it proves unviable for some of the existing businesses to continue to trade,
despite proposed measures for temporary and permanent reprovision, because they will lose
the benefit of current low rental costs. However, the proposed measures are considered
appropriate to support equal opportunities of Latin American and other BME businesses and
employees to share in the benefits of the new development. Further recommendations are
identified below to strengthen positive outcomes and limit potential negative equality effects
with respect to business and employment.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

53



Page 166

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.3.13

Consultation responses in support of the planning application identified new jobs and new
investment as benefitting employment, whilst some responses objecting to the planning
application, considered that the proposal would result in a loss of employment affecting BME
people. Figures presented by the Applicant indicate that there would be a net increase in
employment as a result of the redevelopment. The local employment and procurement policy
is also expected to generate local employment during the construction phase. The baseline
evidence indicates that unemployment rates are disproportionately high amongst young people
and Black/Black British ethnic groups in Haringey. Black/Black British young people had the
highest proportion of New Deal Young People starts in Haringey. It is considered that the wider
employment impacts are potentially positive for equality groups. Recommendations are
identified in Chapter eight to strengthen positive equality outcomes with respect to employment.

Table 7.2: Summary of Business and Employment Impacts for Affected Groups

Nature of Impact | Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for Reason
mitigation implementing why
measures (if any) | mitigation mitigation

measures measures
not
possible

Business closure/ Latin- Reprovision of all Following granting | N/A

non-viability of American/Spanish- stalls within of planning

business following speaking ownership reprovided market permission

permanent loss of businesses within new

existing low-rent development at Site preparation

market site Afro-ownership open-market rental phase

business in improved venue
African ownership Measures to protect
businesses right of return of
existing stallholders
Other BME- Identification of
ownership ; .
. suitable alternative
businesses
venues for
temporary
reprovision of
market

Interim loss of Latin- Measures to protect | Following granting | N/A

existing market site | American/Spanish- right of return of of planning

during speaking ownership | existing stallholders | permission

redevelopment, businesses

affecting temporary Identification of Site preparation

operation of Afro-ownership suitable alternative phase

business and long business venues for

term continuation of temporary

businesses African ownership reprovision of

businesses market
Other BME- Intention to identify
ownership single site for all
businesses Latin American
traders together
Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011




Page 167

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

55

Nature of Impact | Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for Reason
mitigation implementing why
measures (if any) | mitigation mitigation

measures measures
not
possible

Break-up of Latin- Latin- Measures to protect | Following granting | N/A

American market American/Spanish- right of return of of planning

affecting viability of speaking ownership | existing stallholders | permission

individual stallholder | businesses

businesses & overall Identification of Site preparation

vibrancy. suitable alternative phase
venues for
temporary
reprovision of
market
Intention to identify
single site for all
Latin American
traders together

Loss of employment | Latin- Indirect benefits of Following granting | N/A

due to stall business | American/Spanish mitigation measures | of planning

closure / restructure | speaking employees | directed at permission
businesses

Afro-Carribean Site preparation
employees phase

African employees

Other BME

employees

Loss of shop / Muslim shop owner Provision of 6 new Construction N/A

business property BME-ownership retail units suitable phase

on site shops and for local shops

businesses Site preparation
(understood to Investment in phase /

include Asian, improvements to construction phase
African, Afro- West Green Road

Caribbean and Latin- | retail environment.

American owned

businesses)

Business closure BME-ownership Provision of 6 new Construction N/A

due to inability to shops and retail units suitable phase

afford new market- businesses for local shops

rate rental/leasehold | (understood to Site preparation

include Asian, Investment in phase/construction
African, Afro- improvements to phase
Caribbean and Latin- | West Green Road
American owned retail environment.
businesses)
Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011




Page 168

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.4

741

742

743

744

Nature of Impact | Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for Reason
mitigation implementing why
measures (if any) | mitigation mitigation

measures measures
not
possible

Loss of employment | Muslim employees Creation of new jobs | Construction N/A

following any of Halal business as a result of new phase

closure/restructure BME Employees development,

of affected shops / (understood to including in larger Competed

businesses include Asian, shops, and development —

African, Afro-
Caribbean and Latin-

generated indirectly
from investment.

recruitment by
businesses

American people)
Indirect benefits of
support to existing
businesses (as
above)

Construction
phase

Creation of
construction
employment

Goods, services and facilities

For the existing business selling Halal meat for Muslim customers, it is considered that there
exist both: suitable opportunities for this business to relocate either within the redevelopment or
in alternative local premises; and suitable alternative local retailers of Halal meats; to ensure
that the development will not disadvantage local Muslims in their ability to purchase goods in
accordance with their belief.

The market includes a variety of Latin-American stalls/shops selling specialist goods as well as
providing specialist services for Latin American customers, understood to be drawn from a wide
area across London. The consultation evidence includes a mix of views regarding the
significance of the market for providing specialist services to Latin American people, although
the greater numbers of responses relating to this indicate that the market is important to the
community. The market and shops on the site also provide specialist goods and services to
other racial and cultural groups, including goods and services aimed at an Afro-Caribbean and
African clientele.

In line with the findings regarding impacts for business and employment, URS Scott Wilson
consider that proposed measures provide adequate protection to prevent unfairly impacting on
people sharing Latin American, Afro-Caribbean or African racial identity in their access to
specialist goods and services. Furthermore, measures to enable the Latin American market
traders to continue to operate together and return to the site should support the equal
opportunities of Latin American people to share in the benefits of the completed development
as a focal point for trade in specialist goods and services. Recommendations are identified in
Chapter Eight to secure this outcome.

The EqglA screening identified provision of play spaces and schools provision to meet the
specific needs of children as a potential issue. Objectors also raised concerns about
inadequate provision for children. The planning application includes proposals for provision of

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
56




Page 169

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

745

play space to meet the needs of children living in the new residential units. The S106
agreement includes a contribution for educational provision negotiated between Haringey
council and the Applicant. URS Scott Wilson consider that the development has a neutral or
minor positive impact for equality impacts, with respect to education.

The EqlA screening identified equal access to shopping facilities for disabled people as a
potential issue. Consultation responses also expressed dissatisfaction with the quality of the
existing public realm, including cluttered pavements. The existing buildings do not meet
current access standards. The future development would be required to abide with current
building standards and guidance concerned to achieve accessible environments. URS Scott
Wilson consider that the development would make a positive contribution to improving
accessibility, particularly benefitting people with physical and sensory impairments, as well as

parents of babies and toddlers using pushchairs.

Table 7.3: Summary of Goods, Services & Facilities Impacts for Affected Groups

Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures

not
possible

Loss of access to Muslim customers of | Provision of 6 new Construction N/A
outlets for goods & Halal meat selling units sized for local phase
services specific to business shops in proposed
religion/belief redevelopment.

Alternative suitable Site preparation

premises available phase

in local vicinity

Alternative retailers

exist in area
Permanent African / Afro- Measures to protect | Site preparation N/A
worsening of access | Caribbean and other | right of return of phase
to outlets for goods BME communities in | existing stallholders
& services specific Seven Sisters area Identification of
to Other BME- suitable alternative
race/ethnic/cultural ownership venues for

businesses temporary

reprovision of

market — possibly

within other local

existing markets.

Variety of alternative

suitable retail outlets

within wider Seven

Sisters / North

London
Permanent Latin- Measures to protect | Ongoing from N/A
worsening of access | American/Spanish- right of return of planning
to outlets for goods speaking existing stallholders | permission
& services specific communities in granted - site
to London Identification of preparation -
race/ethnic/cultural suitable alternative construction

venues for phase —

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

57




Page 170

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures

not
possible
temporary completion
reprovision of
market Following
planning
Intention to identify permission
single site for all granted — site
Latin American preparation
traders together
Temporary Latin- Measures to protect | Following N/A
worsening of access | American/Spanish- right of return of planning
to outlets for goods speaking ownership | existing stallholders | permission
& services specific businesses Identification of granted - site
to suitable alternative preparation
race/ethnic/cultural venues for
identity temporary
reprovision of
market
Intention to identify
single site for all
Latin American
traders together
Increased demand Children, including New doorstep play Construction N/A
for play spaces and amongst future space provision phase
school provision residents of within development
development to meet needs of
resident children.
Contribution to Construction
educational phase
provision
Share in benefits of Disabled people, De-cluttered Construction N/A
improved public particularly those pavements, public phase

realm and shopping
facilities

with physical or
sensory
impairments.

realm to latest
access
requirements.

Community cohesion and relations between groups

The EqlA screening identified that the proposal may have the effect of worsening community
cohesion by displacing predominant BME groups among existing residents, market traders,
shop owners and employees. Consultation responses identified the proposed development as
threatening community cohesion and cultural connections, both for Latin American community
and for the wider ethnic diversity arising out of the multi-ethnic mix of the existing market.

Equality legislation emphasises the importance of supporting positive relations between
different groups whilst local community cohesion policy supports group interaction, fair
treatment and equal opportunity and a sense of common belonging, including empowering
local communities to shape decisions affecting their lives

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011




Page 171

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.5.3

754

URS Scott Wilson consider the loss of the existing shops and market poses a potential threat to
the cultural connections of the Latin American community employed at and visiting the market,
given the evidence that the market provides a hub for social as well as commercial interaction
for this group. However, in line with the findings regarding impacts for business and
employment, URS Scott Wilson consider that proposed measures to safeguard the future of the
Latin-American businesses to operate together provide adequate protection to prevent the
proposals unfairly impacting on community cohesion for people sharing Latin American racial
identities.

URS Scott Wilson consider the loss of the existing shops and market poses a potential threat to
the interactions between different racial groups at the existing site that contribute to community
cohesion. However, in line with the findings regarding impacts for business and employment, it
proposed measures to re-provide the market in its entirety, in addition to measures to support
affected businesses to continue trading and to give priority to existing stallholders to return are

appropriate  measures to enable the community cohesion to be

redevelopment.

Table 7.4: Summary of community cohesion impacts for affected groups

revived within the

Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures

not
possible
Worsening Latin-American & All measures set out | Following Measures
community cohesion | Spanish-speaking in Tables 12 & 13 planning specifically
by displacing community above to protect permission directed at
predominant BME permanent and granted - site sustaining
groups amongst Afro-Caribbean temporary viability preparation, community
existing residents, of market and continued cohesion not
shop owners, market | African businesses, through to identified.
traders and including those construction and
employees. Other BME measures specific to | completion
communities Latin-American
stallholders. The
benefits of such
measures on
community cohesion
would be
secondary.
Loss to cultural Latin-American, All measures set out | Following Measures
connections and including Spanish- in Tables 12 & 13 planning specifically
social interaction speaking people above to protect permission directed at
amongst specific permanent and granted — site sustaining
community with temporary viability preparation, community
shared racial identity of market and followed through | cohesion not
businesses, in construction identified.
including those and completion.
measures specific to
Latin-American
stallholders. The
effect of such
measures on
community cohesion
would be indirect.
Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011




Page 172

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.5.5

7.6

7.6.1

7.7

7.71

Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures

not
possible
Threat to ethnic All ethnic groups All measures set out | Following Measures
diversity of area reflecting make-up of | in Tables 12 & 13 planning specifically
associated with existing market stall- | above to protect permission directed at
multi-ethnic mix of holders and permanent and granted - site sustaining
existing market clientele. temporary viability preparation, community
of market and followed through | cohesion not
businesses. The in construction identified.
effect of such and completion.
measures on
community cohesion
would be indirect.

Recommendations identified in Chapter eight to strengthen the achievement of positive
outcomes for businesses and employment are expected to also benefit community cohesion.
Additional measures specific to community cohesion are also set out in Chapter eight.

Inclusive public spaces and transport

The EqIA identified potential impacts for disabled people in relation to accessible transport.
The baseline evidence indicates that Seven Sisters underground station includes some
accessibility features but does not have a lift and is not accessible to wheelchair users.
However, alternative provision is available. All main TfL bus services are now wheelchair
accessible. The proposed public realm and landscaped areas would be designed and
constructed in line with latest access requirements. URS Scott Wilson thus consider that the
proposal will enhance local access at this transport interchange, although it will not address the
existing limited accessibility at Seven Sisters underground station. Recommendations are
identified in Chapter eight to secure the accessibility of the public realm and at any new bus
stops.

Safety and crime

Crime is identified as a major basis for seeking the redevelopment of the Wards Corner site by
Haringey Council and the Applicant. Many supporters commenting on the proposals identified
existing safety concerns and crime levels in Wards Corner as a major concern that they believe
the development will address. Responses identify young people and women as particularly
affected by concerns about safety. The EqIA screening also identified LGB people as a group
who may be disproportionately affected by safety concerns. Current crime data identifies a
downward trend in crime levels in Wards Corner, suggesting that past high levels of crime have
to some extent been addressed. Nevertheless, mentions of crime and safety are evident
amongst more recent consultation responses. The proposed replacement of existing run-down
buildings with new buildings with more active frontages, as well as newly designed public
realm, in line with designing out crime principles is likely to enhance safety and reduce
opportunities for crime. URS Scott Wilson considers that the completed development is likely
to enhance safety, with positive equality benefits for women, young people and possibly also

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
60




Page 173

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.7.2

7.8

7.8.1

7.8.2

7.8.3

for LGB people. Local residents from different ethnic backgrounds are also likely to share in
these benefits.

During demolition and construction, the presence of a large inactive frontage is likely to
adversely affect perceptions of safety, without suitable mitigation measures. This may result in
negative equality impacts, particularly affecting women, young people and LBG people.

Recommended suitable mitigation measures are set out in Chapter eight.

Table 7.5: Summary of crime and safety impacts for affected groups

Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures

not
possible
Need to ensure BME people, Active, overlooked Completed N/A
redevelopment women, young frontages in new development
contributes to peope (both men development.
addressing crime and women),
levels and fear of children, older New public realm
crime associated people, lesbian, gay | designed with
with the site & bisexual people, consideration of
disabled people. security.
Risk of increased BME people, Recommended best | Demolition & N/A
fear of crime / women, young practice measures construction
increased peope (both men to enhance external | phase
opportunities for and women), appearance of site,
crime during children, older including
demolition & people, lesbian, gay | appropriate
construction phase & bisexual people, additional lighting.
disabled people.
Recommend consult
police on
appropriate
additional security
measures e.g.
patrolling by police
or private security
staff

Wide ranging consultation and enabling participation

Consultation responses raised criticisms with regards to the quality of consultation undertaken
in relation to the planning application. Local policy on community cohesion and equality
promotes engagement with local communities and empowering them to shape policies that
affect their lives.

Analysis of the consultation process indicates that Haringey Council took account of equal
opportunities and took measures to enable people from protected groups to participate in
consultation. It undertook diversity monitoring of respondents, although it is unclear whether the
results of the monitoring informed subsequent consultation.

Grainger PLC and The Bridge NDC led the consultation activities in relation to the planning
application, chiefly during 2007 and 2008. Consultation appears to have included a variety of

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
61



Page 174

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

measures to enable wide engagement, via use of a variety of venues, conduct of sessions at
different times, targeted meetings with specific affected groups, flexible drop-in sessions as
well as formal measures for recording feedback. A shortcoming of the consultation with
regards to equality concerns a failure to effectively monitor how consultees reflected the mix of
the local community, in relation to protected characteristics. This, in turn, makes it harder to
demonstrate the consultation’s reach and how effectively the Applicant has responded to the
concerns of people sharing equality characteristics.

7.8.4 The long delay in progressing the redevelopment during the period of legal challenge has
interrupted consultation and engagement. In order to realise the sharing of the benefits of
redevelopment, it will be important to prioritise re-establishment of a new process for
consultation and engagement. Recommendations in Chapter eight are set out to enable this to
support realisation of positive equality outcomes from the development.

Table 7.6: Summary of Consultation Impacts
Nature of Impact Affected Group Agreed Timeframe for | Reason
mitigation implementing | why
measures (if mitigation mitigation
any) measures measures
not
possible
Effective All equality groups, Approach to date Following N/A
consultation with including BME has included variety | decision on
affected community, | residents, of means of Planning
recognising diversity | employees & consultation. Application — as
and different interest | business owners, a matter of
groups to contribute | visitors & customers. | Recommend urgent | urgency
towards sharing of revisit of
benefits of consultation &
regeneration. engagement
approach to
respond to criticisms
of not listening,
quality of
consultation and to
address long gap in
engagement
Diversity monitoring | All Haringey Council to | Consideration of | N/A
to understand monitor consultation | planning
effects on equality and record application
protected groups mitigation impacts
for groups sharing Ongoing
protected following
characteristics granting of
planning
permission

7.9 Sharing in benefits of redevelopment

791 This EqlA identifies the following potential benefits of the redevelopment:
¢ Provision of new housing
e Public realm and streetscape provision, including de-cluttering

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011




Page 175

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

o Safety measures that would reduce opportunities for crime and provide for safety
o Business opportunities, particularly retail

o New employment opportunities

e Transport infrastructure improvements

o New play space.

7.9.2 One of the criteria for assessing equalities impact of a proposal is the extent to which any
benefits from the proposal will be available to all groups affected by it. Table 7.7 identifies
possible barriers to people sharing particular protected characteristics may be prevented from a
fair share of these benefits of the redevelopment. It identifies the nature of the barriers and
how those barriers might be removed or reduced, or where this is not possible, the reason why.

Table 7.7: Possible Barriers to People Sharing Particular Protected Characteristics

Expected Affected Group Barriers to their How barrier Why barrier
benefit of getting a fair share | can be cannot be
redevelopment in benefit of removed or removed or
redevelopment reduced reduced
(specific to

redevelopment)

Provision of new | BME groups — Affordability barriers, Planned delivery Valuation
housing African, Afro- related to low of new affordable | Office
Caribbean (but also | income/savings levels housing identifies
affects low income elsewhere in development
households from borough as unable to
different afford
racial/ethnic inclusion of
backgrounds) affordable
housing
Provision of new | Single-parent Affordability barriers, National Valuation
housing households, related to low strategies to Office
disproportionately income/savings levels tackle child care identifies
female-headed Cost/availability of affordability offer development
child-care, particularly some help e.g. as unable to
affecting women in low- | child care element | afford
to middle-income of working tax inclusion of
employment. credits. affordable
housing

Planned delivery
of new affordable

housing
elsewhere in
borough
Provision of new Children in low Affordability barriers, National Valuation
housing income households | related to low strategies to Office
income/savings levels tackle child care identifies
affordability offer development
Cost/availability of some help e.g. as unable to
child-care, impact on child care element | afford
household income, of working tax inclusion of
particularly where credits but unlikely | affordable
parents in low- to to adequate. housing
middle-income
employment. Planned delivery
Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

63



Page 176

Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

64

Expected Affected Group Barriers to their How barrier Why barrier
benefit of getting a fair share | can be cannot be
redevelopment in benefit of removed or removed or
redevelopment reduced reduced
(specific to
redevelopment)
of new affordable
housing
elsewhere in
borough
Public realm and | Older people and Fear of crime, including | Planned
streetscape some disabled hate crime, or anti- measures to
provision, people; women, social behaviour, may design out crime
including de- especially from prevent individuals from | likely to be
cluttering certain faith groups | amongst these groups beneficial.
(e.g. Muslim) or venturing out or lead
racial groups; them to avoid area, Measures to
children; some based on past promote new
young people. experience/reputation identity for area.
Community
support officers.
Engagement with
support groups to
identify specific
concerns and
identify
appropriate
actions.
Safety measures | Older people and Fear of crime, including | Effective
to reduce some disabled hate crime, or anti- communication of
opportunities for people; women, social behaviour, may new safety
crime and make especially from prevent individuals from | measures,
for safer certain faith groups | amongst these groups effective targeting
environment (e.g. Muslim) or venturing out or lead of
racial groups; them to avoid area, communications
children; some based on past at key groups
young people. experience/reputation
Business Latin-American, Existing businesses Targeted business
opportunities, including Spanish- may not have turnover / | training / advice
particularly in speaking robust business model
retail sector to be able to afford Measures outlined
Afro-Caribbean, open market rental in table 12 likely to
African and other levels or compete with contribute.
BME groups national chains
New employment | Young people Lack of Targeted skills
opportunities experience/skills training;
BME people with apprenticeships;
low skills Lack of relevant targeted
experience/skills promotion of
opportunities
Transport All groups No barriers identified London-wide
infrastructure measures to
improvements enable transport
affordability likely
to be beneficial
Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011




Page 177

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.9.3

7.94

7.10

7.10.1

7.10.2

Expected Affected Group | Barriers to their How barrier Why barrier
benefit of getting a fair share | can be cannot be
redevelopment in benefit of removed or removed or
redevelopment reduced reduced
(specific to

redevelopment)

New play space Disabled children Construction of non- Use of inclusive
inclusive play play equipment /
equipment may exclude | construction to
London Play
standards

Adherence to the recommended mitigation measures, where available, is likely to enable
barriers to the fair share of benefits by people sharing equality characteristics to be overcome
with respect to most of the benefits of the redevelopment.

Non-affordability of housing is a significant barrier likely to prevent people from some BME
backgrounds, lone-parent households (largely female-headed) and children in low income
households sharing in the provision of new housing. Adequate mitigation measures to enable
them to share in the benefits within the new redevelopment are not identified. Within the wider
context of Haringey, provision of new affordable housing elsewhere in the East of the borough
is considered to mitigate the negative impacts specific to this site.

Consideration of objections and concerns raised in Court of
Appeal [2010] EWCA Civ 703 Approved Judgment

The objections and views referred to in Paragraphs 12 — 16 and 21 of the Judgment Approved
by the Court of Appeal for handing down in are addressed in turn below.

Paragraph 12: letter of objection from a local resident, Mr Lagu
Sukumaran:

“May | kindly request you and all decision makers to carefully consider the Human suffering
the loss of achievement, of the Ethnic Minority Businesses in West Green Road, Seven
Sisters Road and the High Road, known as the Wards Corner. | live above my Business
with by family, and it is a live and work business concept ... | am part of this Diverse local
Ethnic minority Community who | serve and depend on my Shop for their unique and
specialist Food products that is non available in National Supermarkets. Demolition will
destroy the existing Ethnic Minority Business, the Owners, their families, employees and
their suppliers. The owners and their families have built up their existing businesses with
many years of hard work and determination, in some cases hard work of three generations
of the family. There are a number of traders who live above their businesses and in this
case they will be forced out of their homes. The traders will not be able to relocate their
business to a new location and be successful due to the poor state of the world economy

The customers and residents will lose their choice of shopping and the specialist
shops.”

The concerns raised by Mr Sukumuran are addressed within the assessment in sections 7.2
above, 7.3 and 7.4 above. The potential threats to livelihoods of ethnic-minority owned
businesses, particularly family-owned businesses where the family also will be affected by the

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

65




Page 178

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

demolition of their existing home, are recognised. The consequential loss to existing
customers and local residents of access to specialist goods and services is also recognised.

7.10.3 Planned measures to minimise or prevent negative impacts proposed by the Applicant include:

e Provision of six small shop units along the West Green Road suitable for local and
independent retailers

o West Green Road Environmental Improvement Fund to pay for shop/building frontage
improvements (which could benefit businesses relocating from the site to other premises on
the West Green Road

¢ Funding for Improvement Strategy for businesses/markets.

7.10.4 Additional recommended measures are further proposed, as set out in 8.2 below. These
include:

e For owner-occupier households (leaseholders and freeholders), the Applicant should seek
to negotiate on a case-by-case basis a reasonable value for purchase and compensation for
disturbance, with the objective of enabling households who wish to do so to afford
alternative accommodation of comparable size in the local area. A reasonable timeframe for
such negotiations prior to compulsory purchase order should be agreed between the
Applicant and the Council. Where the household comprises a family that also runs a
business on the site, negotiations should be conducted to address relocation of housing and
business relocation either separately or together, to best fit the preferences of the affected
household.

e An updated S106 agreement should incorporate existing proposed measures (from the
previously negotiated S106 agreement) to support the existing shops and businesses to
continue to trade and to develop their businesses successfully, including for temporary
relocation during the demolition and construction phase.

e Support to enable the existing businesses to develop a shared marketing strategy and other
business improvements, including employee training, will be an important measure to
support realisation of positive equality outcomes.

e For existing leaseholder and freeholder shop businesses, the Applicant should seek to
negotiate on a case-by-case basis a reasonable value for purchase of the premises and
compensation for disturbance, with the objective of enabling businesses who wish to do so
to relocate to alternative premises along the West Green Road or elsewhere in the Seven
Sisters/Tottenham area. For those who live above their businesses, the negotiations may
concern either separately or together relocation of business and housing. A reasonable
timeframe for such negotiations following planning permission and prior to compulsory
purchase order should be agreed between the Applicant and the Council.

e Struggling businesses and employees should be signposted towards existing appropriate
bodies to assist individuals to find suitable alternative employment.

e Planned support to help existing businesses find temporary or permanent alternative
locations or premises will be important to ensure that existing customer bases who share
equality characteristics are able to continue to access specialist goods and services.
Marketing and advertising advice is likely to provide an important component of this support
to ensure existing and new customers are made aware of temporary relocations of
businesses.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
66



Page 179

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.10.5 Whilst it is recognised that wider economic circumstances may increase the difficulty of
achieving successful outcomes for all affected businesses, this is outside the control of the
Applicant. The proposed and recommended mitigation measures are considered appropriate
to prevent the development unfairly causing adverse impacts for ethnic minority businesses,
including family-run businesses, currently operating on the site.

Paragraph 13: objections expressed by Wards Corner Community
Coalition

“Local planning processes are required to demonstrate that meaningful community
engagement and equalities issues have been accounted for and that diverse groups are
not systematically disadvantaged by public authority processes. There is no reference in
this planning application to the impact on diverse communities and the needs of diverse
local communities, including ethnic minority communities. Members of particular minority
ethnic communities are being disproportionately disadvantaged by these proposals.
Virtually all the businesses that will be ended by the proposals are from ethnic minority
communities that provide some ethnically distinct and important services and goods. The
Coalition contends that the needs of the growing Latin American community are being
explicitly negated in these proposals.”

“Public authorities should support the social and business networks in an area. These
plans from Grainger represent the destruction of existing community and replacement by
an alternative, selected community. This is Council-backed, unethical social engineering
which WCCC rejects.”

7.10.6 The concerns raised by WCCC are reflected and addressed in this EqlA’s assessment of
impacts on housing, business and employment, access to goods, services and facilities and
community cohesion. As such, the entire report and all mitigation measures, both those
proposed by the Applicant and those additionally recommended in this EqlA should be
referenced in seeking to understand how Haringey Council has responded to these objections.

7.10.7 The EqlA recognises that the non-provision of affordable housing within the development and
the likely change in balance of the retail mix will result in changes to the overall profile of the
resident and visitor community to Wards Corner following redevelopment. However, the EqlA
identifies measures to support the opportunity for return of existing businesses as part of the
redevelopment, which will help to prevent the loss and wholesale replacement of the existing
diverse community. This includes recognition of specific measures set out in Chapters seven
and eight to support the Latin American traders to respond to the needs of the Latin American
community.

Issues/objections raised by Ms Siobhan Crozier in evidence

“This is of great importance for Seven Sisters as it contains, within the proposed
development, businesses that provide “essential convenience and specialist” shops which
provide for, and add to, the cultural diversity of Tottenham. These shops would be lost
forever if the demolition goes ahead and the local community would be bereft. Several
long-established businesses will lose their livelihood and in some cases, their homes.
Local authorities are supposed to support SMEs [small and medium enterprises], not
eradicate them in favour of units designed to appeal to high street multiples.”

7.10.8 The concerns raised by Ms Crozier are acknowledged in the assessment in 7.3 above, planned
measures to minimise or prevent negative impacts for existing SMEs which comprise shops
and stalls currently operating on the site are set out in Table 7.2, with additional recommended

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
67



Page 180

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

7.10.9

7.10.10

7.10.11

7.10.12

7.10.13

7.10.14

mitigation measures proposed in Chapter eight on page 70. These measures are considered
appropriate to support the existing SMEs to continue their businesses.

Objection referenced in paragraph 15

“the Market which has been created, and which has added vibrancy, richness and diversity
to the area, would be lost’.

This EqlA reflects this objection’s concern for the market’s contribution to the ethnic diversity
and community relations in the area in its assessment of impact on community cohesion,
addressed in 7.5 above. Additional mitigation measures to safeguard this are set out in
Chapter eight on page 71. These measures are considered appropriate to support the
continued contribution that the market makes to ethnic diversity and community relations in the
area.

Views expressed by Wards Corner Community Coalition in letter 8
July 2008 to Council

“The Wards Corner Community Coalition takes the view that the Grainger scheme for the
site will not deliver regeneration for the people of Tottenham and will damage the material,
social and economic fabric of this diverse community. Further, the Wards Corner
Community Coalition believes the Grainger proposals to be based upon questionable
premises and have put forward an alternative vision for the site.”

These views are reflected in Chapter six - Consultation and Engagement, which makes
reference to the alternative vision put forward by WCCC. It is considered that the proposals
demonstrate consideration and efforts to incorporate the alternative vision most clearly in the
resubmitted layout of the ground floor to accommodate the existing market in its entirety as part
of the redevelopment and in the negotiating the S106 contributions.

The assessment recognises potential adverse impacts on community cohesion, whilst also
recognising measures proposed by the Applicant to mitigate these.

Whilst differing from the WCCC vision, this proposal does include measures that are supportive
of regeneration for Tottenham’s diverse community.

The application for the alternative vision has not been considered by the Council. In light of this
the WCCC appealed to the Planning Inspectorate on the basis of “non determination”. Due to
the appeal, only the Planning Inspectorate could decide the application, which they decided not
to do. In order for the planning application to be considered, the application needs to be
resubmitted to the Council following normal procedures.

Objection raised by Councillor Diakides recorded in paragraph 21

“... the local traders reflected the rich cosmopolitan mixture of the local community and
their businesses responded to the special needs of those communities...these would not
be accommodated within the proposed development.”

These concerns raised by Clir Diakides are addressed within the assessment in sections 7.3,
7.4 and 7.5 above. Additional mitigation measures to safeguard this are set out in Chapter
eight. These measures are considered appropriate to support the continued contribution that
the market and shops makes to ethnic diversity and community relations in the area as well as
support the existing SMEs to continue their businesses.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

68



URS

i

Page 181

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

8 Recommendations and conclusions

8.1.1 This chapter sets out recommendations to strengthen, secure or enhance positive equality
impacts and to mitigate for potential negative equality impacts. It also concludes on the overall
impact of the planning application proposals for equality.

8.2 Recommendations

8.2.1 The following recommendations are set out to be undertaken once planning consent is given:

Housing

Haringey Council to engage in direct dialogue with secure and non-secure council tenants
residing on the site regarding their needs and choices for re-housing within the local area,
where this is their preference.

Re-housing should be on existing tenancy terms. Homes offered should be based on need
or one additional bedroom for under-occupying tenants.

An offer of a property with a garden should be made for residents who currently have one.

The Council should ensure tenants requiring special adaptations have their needs assessed
and necessary adaptations are completed to the replacement property before the tenant
moves in.

Home loss compensation and compensation for tenant’s improvements (or similar forms of
compensation) should be provided in line with existing legislation and Haringey’s current

policy.

For existing housing association tenants, the housing association should offer alternative
housing to affected tenants, in accordance with existing legislation and its current policy.
Haringey council should brief the housing association regarding the scheme’s progress to
ensure adequate time for them to identify suitable alternative provision for affected tenants.

The Applicant and/or Haringey Council as appropriate should consider providing or
signposting support to existing private rental tenants on an individual basis regarding
possible alternative accommodation choices for them, including intermediate housing
options. Additional appropriate support should be offered to individual households or
household members identified as particularly vulnerable, where there is considered to be a
potential risk of homelessness or economic hardship.

For owner-occupier households (leaseholders and freeholders), the Applicant should seek
to negotiate on a case-by-case basis a reasonable value for purchase and compensation for
disturbance, with the objective of enabling households who wish to do so to afford
alternative accommodation of comparable size in the local area. A reasonable timeframe
for such negotiations prior to compulsory purchase order should be agreed between the
Applicant and the Council. Where the household comprises a family that also runs a
business on the site, negotiations should be conducted to address relocation of housing and
business relocation either separately or together, to best fit the preferences of the affected
household.

It is recognised by URS Scott Wilson that the Applicant has previously sought to engage in
negotiations with existing freeholders and leaseholders of residential properties on the site.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

69



URS

i

Page 182

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

The above recommendations set out further steps to be undertaken following the awarding
of planning permission.

Business and employment

An updated S106 agreement should incorporate existing proposed measures (from the
previously negotiated S106 agreement) to support the existing shops and businesses to
continue to trade and to develop their businesses successfully, including for temporary
relocation during the demolition and construction phase.

The Applicant should discuss with the market holders mutually acceptable measures to
safeguard the option to return of existing market holders, to be set out in the updated S106
agreement.

Haringey Council should require the Applicant to undertake a baseline study and
subsequent ongoing monitoring of the business owners and market holders at key points in
the progression of the planning application and construction of the development (suggested
points are approval of planning application; acquisition of site; point of serving of notice;
point of vacating of site; at annual intervals during the construction; at the point of allocating
occupancy of new sites). This monitoring should include diversity monitoring of business
owners and employees; recording of current business location & business ‘health’/employee
numbers; status & intentions of business re return to site. Suggested decision points for
ceasing to monitor individual businesses are where businesses are recorded as having
ceased to trade or expressed a definite intention not to return to the site.

The appointment of an advisor to assess opportunities for the temporary relocation of the
market and additional measures to support businesses, as set out in the existing S106, will
be extremely important to ensuring the long term survival and opportunity to return to the
new site. Haringey Council should undertake or require of the Applicant submission of
regular progress reports on the appointment and activities of such an advisor, as well as on
other measures to support the traders.

Support to enable the existing businesses to develop a shared marketing strategy and other
business improvements, including employee training, will be an important measure to
support realisation of positive equality outcomes.

For existing leaseholder and freeholder shop businesses, the Applicant should seek to
negotiate on a case-by-case basis a reasonable value for purchase of the premises and
compensation for disturbance, with the objective of enabling businesses who wish to do so
to relocate to alternative premises along the West Green Road or elsewhere in the Seven
Sisters/Tottenham area. For those who live above their businesses, the negotiations may
concern either separately or together relocation of business and housing. A reasonable
timeframe for such negotiations following planning permission and prior to compulsory
purchase order should be agreed between the Applicant and the Council.

Struggling businesses and employees should be signposted towards existing appropriate
bodies to assist individuals to find suitable alternative employment.

The local employment and procurement policy should include a requirement for contractors
to adhere to national or local schemes to promote employment amongst under-represented
equality groups, e.g. the Disability Two Ticks scheme.

Goods, services and facilities

Planned support to help existing businesses find temporary or permanent alternative
locations or premises will be important to ensure that existing customer bases who share

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

70



Page 183

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

equality characteristics are able to continue to access specialist goods and services.
Marketing and advertising advice is likely to provide an important component of this support
to ensure existing and new customers are made aware of temporary relocations of
businesses.

o Future marketing of the completed development should capitalise on the Latin American
market identity to support its success and to make its specialist goods and services
available to a wider customer base.

Community cohesion and relations between groups

e Future marketing of the completed development should capitalise on the Latin American
market and local ethnic diversity of the local area to support its success and to wider
community cohesion objectives.

e The new public realm and open spaces should be designed and built in line with existing
building regulations and regional guidance on accessible design.

e Any new bus stops should be designed and built in line with Transport for London’s
accessible bus stop guidelines and any updated best practice.

Safety and crime

o Itis recommended that during the demolition and construction phase, suitable measures are
put in place to enhance the external appearance of the site, including appropriate additional
lighting.

e The police should be consulted on any appropriate additional security measures, either by
the police or by security officers, during the demolition and construction phases.

Wide-ranging consultation and enabling participation

¢ Following a planning decision, Haringey Council and the Applicant should urgently develop
a renewed strategy for ongoing community engagement. This should include adequate
attention to diversity monitoring and measures to enable the participation of different
sections of the community in future consultation and engagement.

e Further opportunities remain for members of the public to express their concerns about
potential impacts of the development, including where these may affect people sharing
protected characteristics. Opportunities also remain for members of the public to identify
additional mitigation requirements. Particularly important in this respect is the forthcoming
meeting at which Haringey Council considers the revised application by the Applicant for
redevelopment at Wards Corner.

e A future strategy should set out specific engagement pathways for particular affected
groups, including existing shop owners, stallholders, employees and residents on the site,
and other local residents and business owners.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011
71



Page 184

Haringey Council
Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

8.3.5

Conclusion

Overall URS Scott Wilson conclude that the planning application proposal is unlikely to give
rise to major negative equality impacts provided all the measures set out in the S106
agreement are honoured in full and in a timely manner, as well as other recommended
mitigation measures set out in this report. The assessment recognises concerns expressed by
objectors concerning potential impacts, particularly in relation to Latin American people and
members of other black and minority ethnic groups. In addition to measures previously set out
in the S106 agreement and voluntary financial contributions by the Applicant, the assessment
has set out additional recommendations to strengthen previously identified mitigation measures
and to address residual negative impacts.

The proposal will give rise to negative equality impacts resulting from the non re-provision of
affordable housing on the site and lack of new provision of affordable housing, in conflict with
existing Council policy. The lack of suitable on-site mitigation is accepted on the basis of the
independent judgment of the Valuation Office. Groups that may be unable to share in the
provision of new housing due to the lack of affordable housing include Black African and Black
Caribbean households, children living in low income households and single parent households.

The planning application proposal is identified as giving rise to positive equality impacts in
relation to safety and crime, and a more accessible public realm. People sharing equality
protected characteristics are likely to be able to share in these benefits.

Increased provision of family housing is identified as a benefit of the development. Affordability
barriers may cause certain groups, including BME families, children living in low income
households and single parent households, from sharing in this benefit.

Expected improvements to the business and retail environment are likely to be shared by
people from different racial backgrounds subject to the successful implementation of
recommended mitigation measures.

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment June 2011

72



Page 185
URS

% Haringey Council

Wards Corner Redevelopment Equality Impact Assessment

Annex: Appendix B of Wards Corner/Seven
Sisters Underground — Report on Draft

Development Brief consultation (PASC 8 July
2003)

Wards Corner Planning Application Equality Impact Assessment

June 2011
73



V.

LLoZ aunp juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn
S QEn0I0oF M o sued uenas upjibn UonTnuaoue? T ApRal|E BalE AL UL YEINOUA 51 33
UOTITMIS AU AJLIE[D o) JaLlg pusury syt pue ‘vorsiaosd Sursnoy ajqepiogge jo ansst ay ] | e "Huisnor jqEpCE 0] uaannbar sy aacway ]
quaudo[aasp Aue jo red se .

wyBnos aq proys santiae) aadag jo Justmasoidiu paanponm

10 “HOISN]T *1aAm O} 'SSRIISN TR0 aq 0] paau samswan Funu e Jyjel], paplaoad

o spuaasoadun Smpnpom wyiom e aq pmoys Furgred sj2501q pue aam L) uey) 20000

Aue aa03e o) pasu piros ofm VL Jo Anpqrsuodsal | rep inoqe JyFnog) 3q 01 pIau sISIAD) PAONPONE-a1

“1napyal o) JAg pusry atp) aue peoy YT pue PEOY SIANEIE UIAIS | WSAS ABM-0m) B PUR PAAOILIAL 3q 15 ssmdiapup) g

“aaepd sqw) oS wiEs Jjgnd
211 o1 Jaaacidun ‘pareurpio-o pue Yugs s

RE Tea[a o ayew s20p g ‘aaeds uado Jo ‘pe anjgnd spnjaur pue patsard ag

1232l o) JaUg pUALY | JUMUIEAD JO S{IEIAP AUR IPN[IUT OU S0P JAUE AL | 1SN eIy -aonds wado sgnd o) Gonuage Jo yowy | f
- “Eale any Jo " EPUATE uppIY
modjeIuafan 2y ut sjol jexgds v depd o) Aayy B 10] ST B 1], SPUNos PUe 5]qIsuss Jou

-pasodaid s1 jaug sy o1 2a8ueya oy 3¢ 01 PAIAPTSEOD §1 JaLig] AU Ag PaIaA00 ays Ay | [eFoy aygnau 51 juawdoaaapal jof uoneuepdxg ']

‘Kus 9TeIUIE] YSI[AUL IO [IIUN0y 21
pasodoid s jaug s o afueys oy ‘¢ ssuodsal 3sg | yerpm jo ssajprelan pauieal aq ismus Fuippng SpIEy g

Page 186

Juandojasapal

Aue jo yred juepodun ue se paueial ag

PIMOYS 1EY] A0 ) JO JUALL)D JU0 2] 81 J0]
e Tl pRUIEIRL 3q j0U [jim | ST s A o sTup)mg 1a0 i pue Jlasy s

§ uonae aag) pasodosd s Jalig ) o) AFuEyd oN | puE sread (f 19a0 10f jUeoes uaag seg uipiing sy SPIE M 1 U33m13q IPIL 39 0} FPIIL UONIUNSK] ¥

"IN PSISUT 3G 10U [T TOnEaa

‘geancad S0 1N “EIY UONEAISSTOT) 3] JO IR0RIEYD “JEELLIpUR] [RM0] pasiudosa
jonuey wamdogaaac] sy jo wed s sAupimg A ‘OUBYUS 10 ‘SAlSAId IS O) pASPISUDD | -2 JOUNSIP B 58 PIUIRIRL 3q PINOYS SPIE AL (SIIRIS
jusipaaepdan ) Jo SJLA 21 wo 2amang w 33e)d sem JuaMuacw[dal ST J1 paysOmap 20 A[U0 | B2V UONEAIISUDT) JO A13I0W T S3YELL UOTH]OMAP
aye i AT e ysEus qiis TonmmEuo I | prnoa 11 e pres Futaey Bunst] jo Agaos jou gE ‘panmal agq prnoys Furppng Suwppng
‘ays 2 jo wamdojaaap enmaas spaeso) dags | ST umpiing g R AS1A N PO JARTY ‘afeaap spIE p, 31 Jo aFmuoy uedas {Furyins s
151y 3 st Jaugg ot aredaad oy ssazoud Juama Ay | gt fug gaisw voneynsuoa Ul ‘[une) L | Se0oudl jag S| PAuRIAL Aq 1S FUTp NG SPIE A, iy
“RENEDS PEOY B WRUINO |, I M Aur] (38puaq Aem{IE WRGUAN0L nes |
‘monae amyng 10] DN SFpug g Aq | aq pnos pue B8 i 0 gpuaaaoidun s jo wwed o -fa) wamdopaaap oy spdoad Fwpmd ‘papracad
palapisuoa aq o] ‘pasodord s1 paug ap o1 aFuEyd Op) su passaifond 3q pinos yep vonsaBine v srsnp], aq pinoys aFeuis | Weyusno | o) SWONIM.,. T
“TITUALIE [ENSIA O] WLTEY JS0W I5NED Jargm “Eale Uk ) T made wo)
pUE pasUonEUN 3¢ o) pUnoj ae ey sudis asoyl | jo souepadde sy wo poedun sjgmdasoerm ue ey siaena] Aesmiue BT ag [[ia s Jo 1S
Funyafie) sapisuod ppnoys usuraasogu Sunire]] wea sufts ‘yuaunuord Ajaassasxa 1o paps fjoog | 'paa0wal 3q pIROYS Bale 2 W afeus Apyfsun T
NOLLOY HEMO4STH =SHNSEI

juswssassy 1oedw| Ajljenb3g juswdojonapay Jaulo) spiepn
l19uno) Aabuney




Page 187

L10g aunp

72

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

e

“SLOEZIUETI0 SSaLENg
[E20] [ila sym| Sndemosus g SI3pTO JO UOHNEI0]|

“PUE JaLig ) J0 2038 ai} SpISING §1 [9TET ) 10
BN B IPARMOH L PSUO0]as 3 PlRom,, 1Y

Jo gare uljitlal ajqels a1 0o spuadap wae N
J0 AMIRIGEA PUE SS2300% Wi Fuo] 1eg 81 siapen

=30 2AOR0Y AUE UT 51550 O Y235 ||t [Laune’y ag], | #p o yuamangjdal Sy 1 NEIPUN 530D NI ST JONIUL O 10 Cf U] JO SAA ) JO SNSUASUDT | R[]
oA 53008
“Kaapes Jo suua up Sppenonsed “eare sy 30 2uge) “Hurag-[[a# jo 25uas pue Appuapm
ressAud sy o) sy1om g ismede paoun(eq ag | |euosiad 01 mO0[q B a0 WD (21005 SPIRAY, ) jIepus]
0] pasu ploos jlewpue] ag) Jo ssof Ay smeal of [ea0] panjea ¢ ‘0] aSemep 10 o §50] ‘EAE
‘pasodosd s pairg 2 o afiuega op] 107 dn papieog pUE Jueses uaaq svy Surpping ayj, | ue J0 SHUSPISII wal-Fuo] are oy *apdoad Jappe og | L
' Jusmrdojaazp myssasonsun
‘pasodoxd 51 jaug g o1 aBuEys oN padpaimowpy | ferewyn pue sood e w ynsar jjis jaug £ddojs., | 91
,..1 EATE M) JO ANUSLLIE [[RISAD
L) 0} UOHNRGLINOS Jwepodun ue s of peLyaied
‘gaaeds uzard 2ty aary s20p 11 ing “yasasd 18 5191 wer) 1anaq WMANS YSIQg A[JUEIsnod §1 ] paguiasap
Jo asunpodun st sxstydiua o) Jatg Ay pualy paigan aq pmoo aoeds uado agp yeq pardasow 513 i “aseds wado asnoeme ue you st uaany safeg | G|
‘ggasond “1dojasap
jonuey wawdofasag] a jo wed se ‘sTmppng | Ap 10§ 1auEw € aq pnom Axurdnado poe dnaso
yusuaoe]dad U1 Jo SIS uo sy ul ade)d M1 JO ML H [ IOUI0T SPIR Y uo s{aoiE g
ayel || dF IR YST[TUT s UOnE nEnod LAum.g FEPOUITIOASE P{AOD 3118 211 1B PApI2ap u2ag s8y
‘2918 21 jo Jusndojasap Enmaas spaeao) das 1 ng *Ajenb uBEap 10 JUMATSEISSE [[RIAAC ) W gAmppng wapow ‘Adws mynsas Ldons
ysany anpy s1 ganrg 2 aawdasd oy seaoosd yuarma af | UOHEISPISTOD U0 Ao s Buprng e jo wFiey oy | mag pepest w aeudesdde you Fuippng L2008 9-5 | gl
I [RINOQYIYIIE PN JO 51 Jaso] 3t
Enos 3 [[Lw uolents Funsr mp o 1e) paBpamotn{Ie 51 1] UM yrewpue] e ‘pandsip st Jamon 1202 aanmne
pusnasosdur ue yep szseydios o) JalIg ST puamy o [enba,, yo sameay ajgnd € soj fse Jang ML e sapran Fuippmeg xady am peq) usmes agg | gl
- RAIW AMJRIITUN UN SE WEUI0 |,
Jo uondaxad s o) sAIRGLOUOD 015 A JO
‘pasodord 51 jaisg o 0 AF0ED op) pafpapmotryay | ES waop-um s |, anpraso Juof s wamdojasag | 71
" Alyem ss2(Fulueaw,,
Jo [e3p pood e pue [im e jsnl st s
sdnosd pajsazeqm Jo spaau | anoynpy sasidiaud [RSISUIU0D M0 10 SIA[IEA1
a1 WSy pIROYS JEIIIXD UOHENSUOD Y], "a01S ol 53 [Enuod ojul Yaieasal punMERIeq
atpy jo msudojaaap amyng spma o) $4395 Jauq ay | Aue Jo aouapiaa agr Sunuioddesip 81 Jauy | 11
PazeImodua A|[eaniaads
am sasm [imay aeudoidde uaag se ° saen puel jo Lan
aFum1 &, 0] S1aJal )] ‘PRSI ‘puE ‘sasn ayiaads jo Apunwses 1o aseds ag aagl [y papracad aq
‘pagodord g1 jang 2 o) afueyD op | Wl U ‘aandussard-1aa0 0o) 5q 10WTE Jaig AL | pIRoYs ooy iFu sfendue] 10 musus ssnog 1y | 0l

i

Woeoiddr sy spoddns AFaeDs peoy
yEupy wreyquapo [, St [, disianmo paieifs 10 a0
Kay pearsu) Ing ‘s Fursnoy (1308 amd 1o

FOoo| plros [I2UnN0D i 19 h_:..__u__._ﬂ-. 1 3] [esrdo

juswssassy 1oedw| Ajljenb3g juswdojonapay Jaulo) spiepn
l19uno) Aabuney

s




Page 188

L10g aunp

9/

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

..... Xpeanje aaey 219y paidadow 10U 51 pnbapuul | uf aovd uaE) svy 1Ry UONEINSU0S ST SMIA E [ |
-pasodord 51 parg ayp o sFuey op] 133 SEN UONRIMSUOD i 1oy uonsading sy | reay o1 play 2q pinoys Sunssu sonensuod Mjgng | (of
; “BApl Y1 jo AN[IQENIoM 20 NOGqE DIqnop passaidud -
aany ‘Buiuue]g wodswel] jo pesy s, [1a2unoly 3yl
PUE ‘S2asmE] WopEoT Jlog pue dn payiom usaq asey
SIIMp OU 1A “BUIP[Ing SpIRy, ) Jo oy
*aamd 3R] 0 SUOLEENIED 21 o) e 3wl Aqissod ‘sasng pue ooyers agny
ISYLING 10] Pastl M) 133[TAT 0] JAUE M) puaiy A usawlag saFequn aacsdun o st oonuau g i, Bunod uongers sng sou oy s (A pue) ays | ST
e ‘norssnrad funme]d
10} UOISSILIGNS [ETro] SUR UF UONRISpISE0D
JuEIoduT we 2 pInos KENTUoIATD St
'soan | Jo  Bumsard,, syl #gissod asym,, paraajoad ag ‘axwyd aym
Jo souepodun 23 azseyduns 0] Jairg s puauny pImoys saan amnem JupsTa 1 sa1es gaug agp | preoys Jupuepd son wnxy 180] 39 pnogE s200 0N | P
....... JaLg At o mmal “BalE 2A0I0)
'pasodord 51 Jaurg 2 o aFueyas op] | oy spising e SeagFy o) o) SUOTEIYE go spmag] | 30y wo 1dedwn jou jsm gnode] peol o) sa3uey | CEf
|.; EET I
O 51 2030 13m0 AIrEsacal J1 asegamd
Kospndo: Sunaprsuos pus “a[oys © 5B B8 U Ik
Furyoo| g usndojaasp eauacnd proar o) yaas
"pasodord 51 fang syl 03 3fueys op) 0y Appsioasd st pury snp go Jaug e po ssodmd sy ¢ amdopaaap jeauasard 8 proae nod op sop 44
a “Bare ;1 jo juatudojasap
[[edaas s jo ped 58 STUMEETUTLIR SS3008 IPISod JURG3IE 01
O] pa3L SU) SALNUAPE 13LE AU ‘13aamof] a8ms sug LEQE] D 0 Pl Uiy (SIDST SIEya a0 sesd)
 papundsan 100 SAELY {r “JaTIg S U0 pANSTOD E3TISE] SE0008 218 2130 ], (LaaI0y POo iy,
W33 AATY ‘TONES A 0] SUonEe|e 10} s[qisuodsa 1e SE) 2w Jog  siods-ao,, M Fuianpal ‘[ana
‘pasododd st Jaug 2 o) 28uwy on Ap2penin 3q pinosm oys ‘puncaftapur) uopuo] | 1eans 18 Suiaq Aq pascadinl aq yyEnu nones qnL | 17
T EENTT . BADI Aoup Jruaya anjea [[ng 129 jdoad
pasodoud st jaug 2 o) JBuRgD OR] Furmmed e a0 o] parapsuos 100 §1 anes Auadolg Ay anpea Auadord vo joedun inoge pawaowoy | o7
4150
JOU S| SAIUNLIMNOS [#20] J0 AISI3ATp PUE Ssajai
s yep amsua of pasodord Suag are susmafurie
s AR Jeys “premiog Aem agi s juawdojasap
pasodoud s1 Japg 2 o aFuryo on | 3 Jo wawdojasap aming apind o) s3298 jawrg aq, anisuRyadwon 1wyl 9p1aap [runo)) S | 6l
) T T EalE oup i jdE e ) susFuans
prue a5E JSWHFETD D120 SUTRIal Sa0ull [B3O]
at) Anm 5[ S0 AQ paoepdar am pue uo asom
“tadojasap aomng Auoe A1) ‘paaaons (3] J] SEAUISNG [[FLS W0 12U
i FUolE ‘Sa5Ea] WLIA-W0S To aq 0) pomsiapun weys o) apdoad peao] tof Apumaoddo we s1 e
[I® a1 oy ‘siapen A AQ peedde ag o) past pinom aauasaad [BuonE-TnL ou *sdoqgs [ems |

-

juswssassy 1oedw| Ajljenb3g juswdojonapay Jaulo) spiepn
l19uno) Aabuney

s

Sun



Page 189

L10g aunp

1L

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

pasodoid 51 Jaug A o 98uEgs op)

Fanan] peanidin pue saoy sqol Juea
“pare ) o uonmauafal sy on funngrouos
‘waIm auf JO uoneIRnAEal i o] ayngLIue

[1ia dauiony spae g, e uandojasap pasodoad 2]

“sEad0Id

jonuey wawdojaas sq jo wed sv sSupling
wawaepdar 2y} o S ) o aming u ased
ayen [ aFELap ysnRug s WonEnsund 1agm g
“aNs A Jo Jusudojaaap [pruass spresaa) dags

ysI s st jaiag ot aredaad o) ssaooad quatms ag ],

we [ qrouncy tagdng afieys ple aseamn o)
asodind 5 1aunoy 21 saadas Ajuo ng A

atf) WAL Jou (L Juaudopaasp yrewpus]

quswdofaasp Jo uue] Hqeidasos ue w0j spraodd
gARMIT 100 Sa0p uonn[os ayansed 8 YsEnno

U Tras auop st yey) Surpiaosd ‘woneso] duw m
Furgrosm jo apgedes s amyaaiigare Aremodisgmoy

e ——

._.u_uwamEn 51 JALEE 241 o) ST UTYS Op]

(5,0083 ] :33) $IRE|S UIAIF UL JOU NG
‘unpuo jo saed UTELSd 01 §Iom TED JIas e
wapogy - feuopen,, oF 'sullisap wapo oy

‘15 osuodsar aag

T

't

{juoraur]s]
‘[afry 1 2911} anuas Smddogs wans g
SMOULALOUR JAUoue j5n unoag o) 11 20ey pino g,

e

‘pasodosd 51 jaug 1 o a8uEy2 oy

ANNS 3 M Fpaall JEY) 3R]

YnoLIIp 3 Jo uopensn(( ue st ey Ajasiaand o)
13alqo s1aupo 15|y “aouasand [re1ad [RuogEL-1nw
e juem spuapuodsal mrepan yeg 10wy ) -afns

SO 1R Wedry 100 a0 usndojassp pasodoad dus
Jo s1apdnace Aoy A jo “KHuapt poe ‘s[eap syl

-pasodosd s jaug ap o 2Fueys op

e Apewnd 3q pnoys

o Furps] ‘[Pfry e ey waudojaaagg -aooys
Japim B apdoad sainy (pony Aeme-aqE Sanuas
jlex jeuonewsay 28eddn) (3a) eare s w Apeaaqe
asou Jo atow you “papasu aie sdogs upenb ydgg

satanod atep-0
<dn 8010 5 [Iatmosy 31 il S| Ul 3 0] 5B 0§ pUE

‘gade s wy ssaaoe podsuen signd waplaaxa
naard mwmn & of wday g ppnoys Surjred moy

e

‘pasodord 51 Jaug s o1 afueys oy

1t

“Rurypred
e aypgnd ajenbape st syl 1eY) ams FYRRH

“B2lE ) UT 3|qE[IRAE SaN[I38] JO afuel au
0] JANQUIIUOD PRGOS J93IRL § “ssajatpuasan suondo
WAUATRURL STJEn 3Pl BT [ O IHNS5I5E
antsuaixa urnmbas aoepd sy on ataw
JUSEpIC) JFRI L JO JaquIn ® o] 193lgns aq pinosm
PUE J3LIg] 3L JO I I PISIAG 3G PIROM ST |

L3

AT B O PROY] uaaIn) 183 Funumian 1apee

wpear mpgqnd a4
anoudun o) paau 2y szrseyda o) Jaug Sy puswy

paipapmolyay

JOSUIOITANS SO} 0 UONUST S10]151A MEID PUE
BaIE ) SsumUa [[Ia R SHUMp JApTSUOS pnoys
[1unoy S pue pemour day aq s suapissy

8z

‘pasodord st jaug syl o1 3R 0N |

e

000 LLMOJ JAASECM U1 “aIng|is uo paedun
0] 10U §1 JOLIG A JO uonuAIL A pREpIjmowyay

‘sa1ed paisadann 0] JaLiq ) JO SIUAN0s M Ae]al
o) 1apao w jsed 241 w sBunaawm jo Hates T uaag

“glanreiadns jou *, aunyjng,, spa Bany

“apenbopeun A[[oysm §1 LG AP M EOHISUT0D

juswssassy 1oedw| Ajljenb3g juswdojonapay Jaulo) spiepn
l19uno) Aabuney

s

Sun



Page 190

L10g aunp

8.

juswissassy joedw) Ajjenb3g uoneolddy Buluueld Jauiod spiepn

uaudojaaapal 3 way sausg L3JEs

W) PUMCIT 5308E

pur sBup[ing mau Luw ur oWy ng Furlisa,
o sapdionud s #eodioou of ssnmuedde

aa1d pprom wamdozasp pasodoad ay

‘a2 o sjaaa] 43y o1 10algns ore [E1auad Ul vaIe
) PUR J{IE Suh UONeE U Ve PAIU0D asmy

pafrmoaus
aq prnoys sugy 2Fueys o) sdpeg g Junpluy

rewosiad Afayr) Ay smseydus o) JaLig ) pusy acjog wodsuel | YU A pue 32004 241 pog LD o s[aas] Y3y o) 1afgns st ease AL | 0F |
) - “IHLAOPUE] “aseds au) 12|
1 s PISSTISIP ag 0F Pasul pinosm asn pasodord | o1 Suumysoddo sy pasngad uaag aaey g "Fopng
“pasodoad 51 jarsg 3y o) aFuEys oy fuy aanoyy s Ag pauso jou si Juppng aty ], spae, a1 U1 1sasaur passandxo aaey ajdoag | 6f
- ] uawmoIAua 3 jo Lenk asordl pue g2 ag) PEOY PIRLYNS Ul S38N01] AL) PUR 35T0Y]
alezuafal [ jusdojaaapay “siwad Of 1aa0 10) wady ‘Surpiing spie g, 211 IR 20 jo 201 1)
-pasodond st jaug ays o1 33ueyp o | Fwnpmq yanasap sy £q pagBig usaq sty EaE AYY | 0 12310 quaudojaasp s 10y puewap ajgnd oN | 8E
UOHEPOURUOIIE "dIyS13Umo PaIws pur
“payios A3 ApEroadss ‘samua) pue sazis SOOUEA -adefpow
JO 1si5u0a [[Ia s ‘aBeis papeiap s 16 paaide & paogge 1ounes oy apdoad o) wandopasap
O ENIS 1 AJLIED O] JH11g ag) pusiiy aq pnom amuz Fuisnoy jo ammyen asaand sy al aaoge paptacad aq pinoys siey HBmg | LE
_ T ssasoud ultsap iqisea) ag jo )
ped sv paIapisu0d ag ues sy |, paoejdan 3 pIAos
Kaup ey SABS AT “JILIE S U O} pALIfa ST 218 uorgianad yapion angnd
‘pasodasd st jaug ap o) 2Jueyo op] | 3snoy wady atp uo syapo) arqnd Jo aouaisTea Ayl | JO U0ISAG jo UONLALI 0U 51 353 1Ty pasudimg | og
. aps "AMET] A1) MO o) asap
a1 o Kpuisia ap m swajgond wawamojus Juppied | paULIoU aq |Im UoNdag uopEuodsurl ] 5, puno]) | mau e aa0jaq uasa “Burgred (eEag daoys of 1apuo u
3ty Jo uoTipag BolELodsUEL ] S, [19UN00) Ayl WIOJUL | Y1 NG JALE 4 JO IHAT A apisino st ansst sng) | popaou st eae 2y wi Juryred 183 jo jonuod samiip | osg

i

juswssassy 1oedw| Ajljenb3g juswdojonapay Jaulo) spiepn
l19uno) Aabuney




Page 191

APPENDIX 5
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF TOOLKIT ANALYSIS
BY DVS



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 193

DEVELOPMENT VIABILITY ASSESSMENT EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
WARDS CORNER SITE, LONDON N15

RE: PLANNING APPLICATION HGY\2008\0303

SUBMITTED BY: GRAINGER (SEVEN SISTERS) LIMITED

1. Introduction:

1.1

1.2

1.3

Grainger (Seven Sisters) Ltd (G) has submitted a planning application on the Wards
Corner Site for the:

"Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of a mixed-use development
comprising Class C3 residential, Class A1, A2, A3, A4 uses, with access, parking and
associated public realm improvements”

The application scheme comprises a mix of uses including 197 residential units of
varying sizes. The application has been brought forward in accordance with the
planning brief for the redevelopment of the Wards Corner site. The scheme as
submitted departs from the GLA's planning policy requirement for the provision of
50% affordable housing.

In support of this new planning application G has submitted a viability report prepared
by Cluttons (C).

2. Scope of report

2.1

2.2

Planning Policy Statement 3 says that grounds for the reduction in provision of
affordable housing obligations could be agreed because of the effect these might
have on the viability of the development (PPS3 Para 29). In order for this to be
demonstrated, the applicant needs to provide a viability study that shows why a policy
compliant scheme would render the development unviable. This study needs to be
sufficiently detailed with evidence supporting the key inputs into the study.

My role is to provide a report to you in which I

a) Appraise the study to consider whether this is based on the correct viability
methodology.

b) Assess whether the inputs are properly evidenced and reasonable.

c) Review the toolkit to check it has been correctly applied.

3. Viability methodology.

3.1

3.2

Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing) and Delivering Affordable Housing advise that
grounds for the reduction in provision of affordable housing obligations could be
agreed because of the effect these might have on the viability of the development

Advice on the appropriate way to assess viability is provided by the RICS Valuation
Information Paper- VIP 12 (Valuation of Development Land). This paper gives clear
guidance that:

a) Valuation of development land should be primarily based on market evidence if it
can be used to compare the site being valued to the comparison site.

b) It is unusual that a proper comparison can be made and that therefore the more
usual way of assessing land value is through a Residual Land Valuation
(RLV) approach.

c) If assessing on a residual basis, the actual condition of the property at the
date of assessment and current market factors should be taken in to
account.



Development viability assessment- ExEc%g/% gu?n‘}nary DVS Property Specialists
Wards Corner site, London N15 for the Public Sector

3.3 Homes and Community Agency (HCA) published a Good Practice Note — Investment
and Planning Obligations: Responding to the Downturn. This looks specifically at the
issues of development viability and supports the principles on VIP12, both on
delivering in the current economic climate as well as recommending how viability
should be assessed.

3.4 As a final aid we have a number of planning appeal decisions, many of which
comment on viability. These decisions are helpful in clarifying the approach the
Planning Inspectorate and Secretary of State adopt in assessing viability. The general
principle inspectors seem to adopt is that viability should be assessed assuming a
planning policy compliant assessment. It should be based on a RLV approach,
using current sale values and build costs.

3.5 Having assessed the RLV, the assessor needs to compare this to the market value in
its existing planning use, or an alternative use if planning consent can reasonably be
expected. If the RLV is in excess of the higher of these values, the scheme is viable.
If it is not, the assumption is that the scheme is not viable and in these circumstances,
it may be necessary to reduce the s106 or affordable housing requirements.

4. Viability approach adopted:

4.1  The viability report prepared by C is in general terms compliant with the recommended
methodology. The assessment is based on a residual appraisal approach in the
absence of good market evidence of comparable sites having recently sold. Values
and costs are current day, with no inflation or growth assumptions made. The
exception to this is build costs, where a 5% inflation figure has been included.

4.2 C has not prepared a viability report showing a policy compliant development. This is
because they consider it to be unnecessary in view of the lack of viability even without
the provision of viability. C have therefore shown a viability assessment purely based
on the application proposals to demonstrate lack of viability on a policy compliant
scheme. Whilst this is technically an incorrect way to demonstrate lack of viability, |
consider that it is not unreasonable in the circumstances of this application.

5. Applicant’s development assessment:

5.1 The proposed scheme provides
a) 197 flats, comprising 5 x Studios, 48 x 1 beds, 107 x 2 beds, 37 x 3 beds
b) 3,736 m2 of commercial floorspace.

5.2 In support of the development, financial assistance is proposed as follows:
a) 'New Deal for Communities' programme grant assistance: £1.5 million.
b) LB Haringey: £500,000 in reduced receipts from their part of the site.

5.3 Development values: C has re-considered the development value of the scheme.
These values are slightly lower than the earlier assessment carried out in 2008. |
have reviewed the development values and | agree these development values.

5.4  There is limited good market evidence of new flats in this type of location. The
development is in an area where sales values are relatively low, both for residential
and commercial properties. However, there is potential to improve sales levels if the
development is carried out well. There may well be a “regenerative” gain resulting in

higher development values than are currently assessed. This is speculative at this
stage and therefore cannot reasonably be taken in to account.



Page 1
mm

Development viability assessment- Executive ar? DVS Property Specialists
Wards Corner site, London N15

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

for the Public Sector

Development costs: | have reviewed the market value in existing use. The value
assessed by C overall is slightly higher than the 2008 assessment. This increase is
based on improved market sales evidence in the area. | understand that some
properties not yet acquired may need to be purchased either with CPO powers, or
with them “in the background”. | consider this revised estimate to be realistic.

Build costs were assessed by COMO was assessed in 4.10. This figure is inclusive of
5% inflation, which should be excluded. There may be duplicated costs included in
the preliminary, profits and overheads category, and savings may be achieved
through “value engineering”. In my opinion, build costs should be about 5% lower
than the updated COMO estimate and may be as much as 12% lower once G
has obtained more detailed advice on construction options.

Professional fees are about 10% of build costs, which is reasonable, taking in to
account the abnormal costs in this development, and the need for professional advice
to deal with these abnormals.

Interest costs are shown at 7% and 0% credit rate. | consider that the interest rates for
this type of scheme will more typically be about 7% debit rate (Inclusive of fees) but
also should include a 2% credit rate.

Other development costs, such as marketing costs are acceptable.
Development programme: No specific information has been provided about the

estimated development programme. From the submitted viability toolkit, | believe the
programme is assumed to be as follows:

Action Commence (Month) | Finish (Month)
Preliminary 0 36
Build period 36 60
Sale period 60 76

The site assembly in this type of development is complex and may well involve more
time than is usual in sites where there are fewer interests to be acquired. However,
there are ways of mitigating the costs of long term holding, such as short term letting,
conditional contracts, options etc, all of which can reduce the preliminary stage. In the
case of this particular site there has been the additional complication of the judicial
review.

The guide in assessing viability is to assess the situation as it is at the date of
valuation, and does not include taking account of activities that may not reasonably
have been anticipated. The particular circumstances of this judicial review would not
have been anticipated, and should not therefore be taken in to account in this
assessment- it is part of the developer risk.

In my opinion, the development programme would be phased, which would reduce
the amount of borrowing required and improve the cash flow of the development.

A target profit level of 20% of Gross Development Value (GDV) has been assumed,
which | agree.

Conclusion on applicant viability assessment:

a) The general approach adopted by C is broadly correct, excepting the allowance for
build cost inflation.



Development viability assessment- ExEc%g/% gu?n@nary DVS Property Specialists
Wards Corner site, London N15 for the Public Sector

b) | generally agree with most of the inputs, except the build costs, the interest rates
and development programme.

5.16 Based on C’s assessment, the development as shown provides a development profit
of 10.41% of gross development value. This is totally unviable and | question whether
a developer would receive funding for a development showing such a low return,
taking in to account the risks involved.

5.17 Because of funding problems, | consider a development as shown in the C report
would be undeliverable. It could not sustain any affordable housing, and would not be
able to contribute towards other s106 obligations, Crossrail subsidy or other public
realm requirements.

6. DVS assessment:

6.1 | have carried out an appraisal to look at viability on the assumptions and inputs as
assessed by me. | have used the same toolkit as used by C for ease of comparison.
Whilst GLA recommend the use of Three Dragons Toolkit, it is not well suited to
mixed use developments of this type, nor of calculating complex cash flow interest
costs.

6.2 The results of my assessment are as follows:

a) The main difference in addition to the reduced build cost is finance costs which are
substantially reduced to £1,311,363. This is a result of altered programming and
credit on capital receipts.

b) The residual profit is £15,970,593 compared to the C assessment of £7,771,329.

c) Profit is 21.4% of GDV, which is just above the target profit required of 20% for the
scheme to be viable.

6.3 Based on this assessment the scheme is just viable. It cannot viably provide affordable
housing, but the scheme is deliverable on this basis.

7 Results and conclusions

71 The general methodology approach adopted by C is broadly correct. The appraisal
should assess the residual land value and compare this to the higher of Market value
in existing use. If the RLV is higher than these, the scheme is viable. If it is lower, the
development may not be viable, and consideration would then need to be given to
reducing the S106 obligations.

7.2 The development is in an area where sales values are relatively low, both for residential
and commercial properties. However, there is potential to improve sales levels if the
development is carried out well. There may well be a “regenerative” gain resulting in
higher development values than are currently assessed. This is speculative at this
stage and therefore cannot reasonably be taken in to account.

7.3 Areas in which | disagree with C are the build cost, where an inflation element has
been included, the interest rate and the development programme which affects the
cash flow and overall interest costs.

7.4  C show in their Three Dragons Toolkit assessment that the residual value was
£6,904,000. This is substantially less than the MV in existing use. Based on these
figures the development would be unviable.

4



Page 1
mm

Development viability assessment- Executive arz DVS Property Specialists
Wards Corner site, London N15 for the Public Sector

7.5 C also show an Argus toolkit appraisal. This is more suited to this type of mixed use
development. It shows the profit assuming the site purchase costs are taken in to
account. On this basis, the residual profit is about 10.4% of GDV, well below the
target profit level usually required of 20%. Based on these figures, the development is
clearly unviable, and | would not expect banks to provide finance on this scheme as
shown.

7.6 My conclusion on the C viability assessment is therefore that it is generally reasonably
based, but with some areas of disagreement.

8. DVS viability assessment:

8.1 My appraisal shows a residual profit of £15,970,593, which makes the scheme just
viable, but without including any affordable housing. My appraisal shows that there is
a greater likelihood of delivery, particularly if G can carry out “value engineering” that
reduces development costs without affecting sales values.

Charles Solomon MRICS
Head of Development Viability, DVS
2 June 2011



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 199

APPENDIX 6
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT FORUM
MINUTES 01 FEB 2011



Page 200

Haringey

PLANNING & REGENERATION
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT TEAM

MINUTES

Meeting Development Management Forum - Wards Corner

Date 1 February 2011

Place College Of Haringey Enfield & North East
London, Tottenham Centre High Rd London, N15 4RX

Present Paul Smith (Chair); David Walters, Andrew Beharrell, Clir Hare,
Clir Schmitz, Clir Mallett, Clir Allison, Clir Diakides, Clir Engert,
Clir Watson, Approx 220 people attended ( Local Residents,
Market Traders and Local Businesses)

Minutes by . Tay Makoon

Distribution :

1. Paul Smith welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained Action

what the meeting was about, that it was not a decision making
meeting. A number of people were setting up professional video
equipment to video tape the meeting and for photographs to be
taken. Paul Smith asked the people not to film the meeting as no
prior arrangements or agreements had been made and it was
unfair to applicants and officers to be filmed without prior
knowledge and consent. A short break was taken to determine
whether or not the meeting should go ahead. David Walters said
that he would be happy to carry on with the meeting and that any
video recordings and photographs taken should be used in the
spirit of the presentation made and that he would be very grateful
if a copy of the video/ photographs taken tonight could be sent to
him.

Proposal

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of mixed use
development comprising Class C3 residential and Class
A1/A2/A3/A4 with access, parking and associated landscaping
and public realm improvements.

Presentation by David Walters

| met most of you about two years ago; hopefully | am older and
wiser than | was back then. A lot has happened since then, a
number of issues have come up in the way that the application
was considered and questioned. We have also got one of the
largest recessions in our lifetime.




Page 201

Wards Corner as pictured on the screen is what it looks like foday
and many of you live and work on this site and | have met a
number of you before. | want to talk to you about Grainger’s
commitment to this development as it has been questioned a
number of times. We are absolutely committed to this
development; we have a slide of the Hornsey Road Bath Scheme
in Islington. | have taken some of you round it before, it completed
in May 2009, it was a Local Authority joint venture with Islington
Council on exactly the same basis as Wards Corner it was 212
Residential Units approximately the same size. It was a Council
office building , it is an extremely successful development and the
fastest selling building in 2009, voted the best public/private
partnership award

and most importantly the architect is the same for wards Corner,
the man who delivered the project is the same Grainger’s project
manager. We have learnt things from that scheme, we are
improving and we are taking the same qualities of that scheme to
Wards Corner and we are very committed to doing it. Grainger’s is
not a build and run organisation, we are a long term investor and
manager of communities and residential dwellings. That means
when we build, we will carry on managing it and that means when
we have designed it we have considered the management into
the design.

A site Plan showing site and surrounding including Spurs. We hope
Spurs stays in the location it is and not move to the Olympics Park.
At some time you have got to believe somebody, you can look at
our track record and of course Spurs doesn’t have a track record
of building lots and lots of different stadiums. You can look at our
track record. Tottenham Hale receiving significant amounts of
investment at the moment. We have the building we are in at the
moment, a fantastic amenity for Tottenham and one that needs to
be helped in everyway it can. 1200 students, 700 staff, Wards
Corner is the gateway for this establishment.

When we talk about Wards Corner, there are a number of things
we talk about a lot of opportunities and challenges, in 2003 there
was an independent health check done on Seven Sisters and
another one done in 2008 both came to the same conclusion, so
what are the positives, accessibility. Fantastic accessibility notable
independent fraders and independent shops and what are the
negatives poor quality and physical environment, retail
competition and night fime economy those were the things that
were flagged up by the independent report.

Consultation started before 2004 development brief the slide is




Page 202

showing some of the consultation we did during the period we all
remember when 2006/7/8 when the application last considered.
The slide shows leaflet, Exhibition, letters, presentations website.
The website is changing and there is valuable information on it and
| would urge you to have a look at the information submitted
before Christmas or just after, which we can talk about in detail.
The scheme that is proposed today is the same planning
application as it was in 2008 following the October 2008
amendments to that application. Is there an alternative plan, |
think it is very important to acknowledge the work that has gone in
to bring this scheme together. We have looked at it, we have
considered it, when | first met a number of you on 12th December
2007 it wasn't long after that being in River Park House with Clir
Amin and a number of Wards Corner Coalition members and we
first discussed this proposal with the Wards Corner Coalition and at
that point to pay for an advisor of the Wards Corner Coalition
choosing to assess the viability of our own proposals and that for
this scheme for refurbishment led scheme. The bottom corner of
the slide shows the public subsidy requirement to deliver 50%
affordable housing of 25

million pounds and public subsidy requirement of 0% of affordable
housing of 18.5million pounds. The Grainger proposal does require
public subsidy of 2 million pounds.

The Brief

The brief was provided to us following our selection from the
tendering process in 2004. The vision that was given to us - to
create a landmark development that acts as a high quality
gateway to Seven Sisters providing mix uses with improved facilities
and safer underground access. Replacement of the under cover
market and though outside the remit of the brief would be
welcomed.

Presentation by Andrew Berharell - Director of Pollard, Thomas
Edward Architects.

| have been working on the Grainger Wards Corner Proposal since
the beginning of 2004. | have met a number of you during that
time in various meetings when this application was originally first
submitted. | am going to say a little bit about sites and constraints
and particular features of the site. The application is very detailed
and there is a lot of information within it. The next slide shows a
map of various connected conservation areas which make up the
Tottenham High Road Conservation Corridor, Wards Corner in
yellow. It is an acknowledgement that we understand the
sensitivity of this site. We recognise the fact that there are a




Page 203

number of buildings on the site which are recognised as
conftributing to the Conservation Area and as you are all aware
none are actually listed buildings.

There are a number of technical and legal constraints on the site, |
am going fo say something about three of those because the
have a particularly strong influence on what can be delivered
here. 1) The underground tunnels - David said that the location of
the site right on top of Victoria Line at Seven Sisters underground is
one of its greatest assets, it is fantastically accessible, it is also one
of its greatest problems because there are four tunnels underlying
the site, three running tunnels and one access funnel and when
you take into account the structural no go zones around those
they cover more than half the site and that part of the site, it is
impossible to sink foundations in-between the walls as you would
normally do and therefore they are very strict and delicate
conftrols on how to build on the site and the heights to which you
can build and the loads on which you can put on the tunnels. So
the structural possibilities are one of the driving factors in the shape
of the development. 2) The site is in different ownerships interests,
at the beginning of the involvement with Grainger there were
around 50 different interests, fewer today because Grainger has
acquired and bought some of the properties. The affect of that it
takes a long time to piece together the very complicated site as
this one. It is also very very expensive. 3) Rights of light envelope,
the effects of which the rights of light enjoyed by properties
surrounding this site have on how high you can build on different
parts of the site. The Wards Corner island site in ifs totality is closely
overlooked by properties in Suffield Close and on all sides. That
again has an influence on where you can build and how high you
can build.

We have been working on this since 2004 and | have lost count of
the number of different design proposals which we have
sequentially put forward for this site. The slides show a small
selection of different designs we have come up with over a period
of 4 years up to the original planning application stage. The
orange models were made out of soap originally, that fime we
were exploring the possibilities of opening up the centre of the site
and bringing movement into the site by having a public open
space. | mentioned this because it is one of the things that the
Coalition would like to see. We analysed the feedback in detail.
We had a number of detailed feedbacks from various agencies,
including the Councils planners, GLA, Police and retail experts and
they were of the opinion that this kind of approach would not work
here and we shouldn’t try and hope that people would divert from
their normal desire line. There is a lot of movement on the High




Page 204

Road about 13million movements a year.

Major consultation exercise which took place in summer 2007.
Design evolution - | want to touch briefly on one aspect that is the
Wards Corner store itself. | know that a lot of you have affection
and you want to know what it is going to be used for and want to
see it retained as part of the development. The Councils planning
brief did not require that but did leave open that possibility and it
spoke in oblique terms about facade retention. We looked at a
large number of options for the Wards Corner location and that
included the retention of the building, retention of the facade of
the building, integration of the building into a new development,
ideas about taking the new proportions of the building an aspects
of it. New proposal even exactly replicating the facade of the new
building. One of the addendum reports which accompany this
application lays it out in detail. The conclusion of that very detail
study which looked not just at the technical and cost viability of
these options although is very important but also at the Urban
Design heritage implications. The very strong conclusion endorsed
by the GLA and by CABE and by the Councils own planning
department was to go for a complete break with the store and
make new contemporary modern building in that corner which
would reflect the future life of the Wards Corner site and not to try
to retain elements or to copy elements of the old building.

The application as it is before the Council at the moment in terms
of design is identical to the original application with one important
implication which is the Governments Environmental targets and
requirements have changed an increased in the intervening
period. Therefore the Environmental strategy and energy strategy
for the application has been developed further and details are
within the application documents. At the time of the original
application the scheme was based on achieving Code for
Sustainable Homes code level 3 and in the meantime the
aspirational vision by the GLA is to achieve Code for Sustainable
Homes Code Level 4.

There are three main elements of the proposed of the
redevelopment of Wards Corner which | have explained is
proposed as a comprehensive redevelopment of all of the
building on the site. First it is a fransformation of the pubic realm,
the second element is new shops, and the whole of the ground
floor of the proposal with exception to the Suffield Road frontage
will be given to new shops and a wide variety of those. Third
element is new homes, approximately 200 new homes located
above the shops and down to ground level on Suffield Road. |
draw your attention to the High Road Strategy, a new public place




Page 205

which is proposed linking into the existing tube entrances this is the
centre piece to the new proposal.

Shopping - The kind of range of retails Grainger is looking to attract
into the site and the kind of things we don’t want to attract here.
We are looking to provide a wide range of shopping to include
shops for small independent retailers particularly shops in West
Green Road, Seven Sisters Road but also to include larger shops
will also appeal to national providers and will provide a wider
range and quality to shopping offer. The third element is the
proposal to provide an indoor market and to give that a
prominent position actually enjoying an enfrance from the
redesign and redeveloped corner building itself. The proposed
new main entry to the residential apartments which is deliberately
placed in a prominent position with the shops giving on to the
public square, part of the reason for that is that it will have a 24
hour concierge will add active surveillance security not just for
residence but everyone using that space. The other element to
note is the idea of building new maisonettes on Suffield Road,
which will have front gardens directly onto the street. The final
point to make is the covered service yard which gives back to the
shops and is expected retailers today requires larger space for
servicing and the idea is that vehicles come directly in front Seven
Sisters Road and do not need to travel all the way through Suffield
Road in and out into the service yard and out again. Finally plans
showing access to cafe and bar by diagram on slide. Slides of
external treatment. Plans of landscaping. Layout plans for the
market.

David Walters: West Green Road Improvement Fund. | realised
that this has had some controversy recently which surprised us. We
have talked in great level of detail in the past about regeneration
and what that does and the improvements that it brings and at
Planning Committee a member of the public stood up in 2008 and
what he said was right -Regeneration and improvements in any
area comes from the transport interchange which is why you have
to start at Wards Corner and slowly and surely this has an impact
across that area. What we are trying to do here is that we have
lost a couple of years in terms of making those improvements into
this area and this improvement fund what we had intended it to
be is fast track the impact of this regeneration proposal by
providing those local businesses to improve their shop fronts. This is
to allow businesses in West Green Road to apply to the Council to
improve their shop fronts and improve the environment on West
Green Road to improve their businesses. This was an honest

offer to help local businesses and help this development improve
that environment. In terms of the development what will they do




Page 206

to conclude, it is about jobs created afterwards, jobs during
construction, there were 20 jobs for local people at the
construction of Hornsey Baths and permanently employed as a
result fo that. This development forms part of a district centre, the
proposed retail space we are talking about is 35% of that district
centre, and this is not taking out a complete district centre. This is
providing an offer within it. Shopping, yes it is providing shopping
that is different from today, but it is not eradicating what is there at
the moment. Investment - it is significant investment as we see
Tottenham Hale receives huge amount of money, hopefully Spurs
will come forward and do the same. This college is doing the
same a very good job, Bernie Grant centre. There is a lot of
investment going on and Wards Corner deserves to getin own
and this is how we think we can come in. It is about spending, and
making sure that spending is retained within Tottenham and
providing a safe community. One of feedback was that a lot of
people felt unsafe around Wards Corner at night and this
development will prove that security. It is about the economy and
safe guarding the future of Tottenham. | am very grateful of you
turning up and Grainger is absolutely committed to this and we
really do think there is support for these proposals, we are here to
talk to you, we have talked to you over the last 2 years and please
ask any questions this evening and we will do our best to answer
them.

Questions from the Floor:

Q1: Latin American Market Trader: | am not really convinced with
the new plans for the markete The market is not just a market, it is
a cultural centre, people go there not just to buy, but to socialise.
To meet people, practice the language. We have Caribbean
people, African, Indian many cultures. You guys are destroying
these cultures; you did not mention what is going to happen
during the period that you are building. What will happen to the
market? You say you have 20 jobs but 20 jobs are pathetic. You
are going to leave 500 people unemployed. My question is that
are you nutse Do you know what you are doing?

Ans: David Walters answered - Raoul thank you for your question.
Raoul you and | have met on numerous occasions about this
market and discussed it in great detail. We have met to talk about
and including the new market in the new scheme. What we did
was to work together to enable a new market to be incorporated
into this new development.

Statement from the floor: You mention 20 jobs; those 20 jobs you
talked about were 20 jobs during construction not within the
completed scheme.




Page 207

Ans: David Walters answered - Your question about the market -
can it be sustained and are we doing anything fo help? Raoul
following us achieving planning in 2008, we prepared a very long
and very detailed presentation to the London Development
Agency on your behalf to lobby for funds to help you from them to
assist the market. More public money - you are correct, we also
provided a pot of money for the traders to assist with that process,
we agreed to some very complex and detailed conditions which
we discussed with you within the s106 agreements.

Q2: | do not think we agreed to anything, | did not say you agreed
to anything Victoria said David. Victoria said | think it is only fair to
say that some of the traders here do not understand very well
what is going on so | think | will take 2/3 minutes to explain to them
what is happening in the meeting. Victoria explained to the Latin
American fraders in their mother tongue what is going on.

Ans: Paul Smith answered - It was agreed that the meeting will
allow Victoria time to translate as and when needed.

Q3: This is a comment: | came across these plans first in the
summer of 2003 because | attended the NDC employment theme
group. | remember what was said at the time was that what type
of shops were going to be in this development and we talked
about Starbucks, Woolworths, and all the big players and even at
that time | thought it was the wrong approach from Haringey and
at that time Grainger’s were not mentioned it was the people that
did the survey and research. We were also told about these grand
plans redeveloping Seven Sisters Station and told everybody that
who went to Seven Sisters Station that was being mugged, which
was totally untrue and this was taken by one particular officer was
giving out and it was that persons word. All the hype about
Tottenham being unsafe is not true as | have lived in Tottenham
over 20 years and found this is not the case. Yes | have lived round
here for 21 years and you have to stop saying things like that as it is
not frue and you Mr Smith who has been in the planning
department in Haringey for a very long time. | never understood
back in early 2003 or early part of 2004 why there is this kind of
denial about the type of place Tottenham is. It is a diverse
community and that diverse community is not going to go away.
People have lived here for many many years and their families
have settled here and they will live here long into the future. What
disturbs me is that we are being presented with is always this white
middle class approach.

Q4: Statement: Market - it needs to be made very clear that the
plans to include the market did not come from Grainger but from
the Mayor of London who put pressure on Grainger to make it a




Page 208

requirement. So there was no intention to provide a market. The
way in which the market could possibly be provided as described
involves so many strings that it was impossible to re - provide a
market that had any of the characteristics of the existing market it
requires 60% of the existing traders to return, markets are not like
that once you disrupt them it is unlikely that 60% will return. The
money that was talked about of being available is only £96,000
and it is a very small amount of money to reproduce a market. |
think the whole point about what this scheme is going to do for this
areq, is that there has been no recognition about what it going to
be lost. That is a lot of jobs, community activities; social and
economic activities and loosing heritage of buildings that people
do feel affection for and can see a different future for. | think it is
important to know what is behind what is being put forward here.
It is not all of Grainger’s idea, a lot of it has been imposed on
Grainger and the strings underpinning it would make it impossible
to for fill.

QS5: | am a trader from 1 West Green Road; West Green Road has
a better trade than surrounding market. Every time you talk about
the market and you are not saying anything about the business we
are doing in West Green Road. Why are you dividing the market
and Businesses in West Green Road?2 and why not submit them
together?

Ans: David Walters answered: | think Mr Patel the question from you
is why we have included accommodation for the market and why
we have not included accommodation for all the shops in West
Green Road/Seven Sisters Road?

What we have done is provide accommodation for the market
because we think the market can come back into this location
and there has been a will to do that. There is also will for many
other retailers to come back into this development and we have
had expressions of interest from those people. What it is not
possible to do is to replace every single one of those retailers in
that location. This development will take two years to complete, it
is a very upsetting period for any business to move once and for
any business to move twice, and within that period be in
temporary accommodation. We have considered that and on
balance we have discussed this with you, we found it very difficult
to come to agreeable terms.

What the brief asked us to do Mr Patel is to make a stepped
change to create a landmark development that delivers variety
retailers within Seven Sisters. What we can’t do is replace every
single retail unit and | acknowledge that and the difficulty that
creates. But that doesn’t mean we are not committed to the
retailers that are there and that doesn’t mean that you are any
less important than the market traders.




Page 209

Q6. Ladies and Gentleman | don’'t know where to start. What this is
about is vision. It's one vision that versus another one which is to
restore the area. This is a vision that a lot of us would like to put info
affect (The Coalition’s vision). That is the vision that will keep local
businesses, stop the area from being devastated; it is actually
going to ensure that we actually get regeneration. Today | heard
that if Spurs doesn’'t get the Stratford Stadium, they will move
anyway. These guys have devastated the top of the High Road,
they made glossy promises but the big money is behind them and
that big money is dictating that Tottenham is not the place to be.
So consequently they are going to move, they do not care about
Tottenham. The only people we can frust in Tottenham are the
people of Tottenham. We have a vision and we would like to put it
into affect unfortunately we have a Council that never allowed us
to put this vision into affect or even to discuss it with them. The
Council has come up with a preferred developer and they have
given this developer two million pounds of NDC Bridge money, this
developer has assets according to its welbsite today of 2.3 billion
pounds and it has been given 2million pounds of local residents
money from the NDC because they say this site is unviable. They
stand to make a huge amount of money and they are coming up
with this nonsense about unviable. These people are going to
come here and get their planning permission and | bet you once
they have their permission they are going to sit on the site and they
will allow the blight to continue until every last business is out of the
area. Then they will sell and move on, just like Spurs will abandon
us. They will abandon us because they don't have the finance to
do it. These are the guys up and fill a 2 weeks ago said on their
website that they had planning permission for Wards Corner. In
despite of a Court Appeal Judgement they haven't been
reported yet to the London Stock Exchange, but we will.

Ans: David Waters answered: | am very pleased that those
questions are being asked of us because | can answer them every
single one of them. | lived and breathed this for years. | do hope
you can hear me out, it is an important issue and Roy is absolutely
right to ask those questions. Granger abandoning the site - The
nature of the agreement between Haringey and Grainger doesn’'t
allow us to do that, secondly, | think we have demonstrated that
we do deliver, just down the road Hornsey Road Baths. You talked
about viability, | talked earlier about how we met on 12th
December 2007 and | did two things at this meeting, the first thing |
did was to offer you to use our professional team to do a viability
study of the scheme that you have just shown us or the scheme
known to us as the Coalition Scheme for Wards Corner. The
second thing | offered to you was a surveyor of your choice to
come and analyse the financial numbers and the viability of not




Page 210

only your scheme but ours too. That commitment was made but
not taken up at that point. In terms of the website, | am responsible
for updating the planning bit of the website and | am very sorry but
just didn't noftice it. Is it fair to say as soon as you pointed out, |
updated it?2 and the reply from the audience was yes. If the
London Stock Exchange really changed its view about Grainger
based upon its website and not about the endless documents that
gets submitted to it every year, then we have diligent vectors
looking at Grainger. | cannot emphasise enough how committed
we are to this, we cannot emphasise enough that we have looked
at the options; we looked at the options you presented. | am
completely willing to put on record to allow you to appoint a
surveyor the last person you appointed that never turned up to our
offices after me arranging two meetings with him was a chap
called Mark Bloomen. If you want to arrange a meeting then | am
more than happy to meet with Mr Bloomen.

Q7: Ben Voherty: If anyone wants to vote no to demoalition,
please show your hand and let’s see how many people we have.
Have you ever lost a child or a wife, mum or anyone in the family?
How did you feel?2 Well that is how | feel, upset, for you to come
and hold this meeting for telling us that Wards Corner people that
we are not to survive, that is what the market is for us, survival. You
can't help my mother. You have not brought change. You have
brought things that will define you. Please clarify who are you
trying to help, one family or all the families., the market, Latin
American people, African people who?

Ans: David Waters answered: Yes, | lost my grandfather recently
and my cousin in a cycling accident recently. | was very upset.
The reason why | and Grainger spent so much time looking at this
development in a way we have, is that everybody recognise that
change is required, even at the first meeting with the Coalition we
all agreed that change is required, it is a different kind of change.
Any regeneration scheme is contentious, not one single
regeneration scheme in the land is not contentious. It is
contagious because it is regeneration. After the last few years we
have demonstrated our commitment to helping those on the site,
to improve the areaq, providing a solution to what has become a
30 years problem.

Q8: Expressing my point of view: Living here for over 20 years |
have seen buildings going up one after another go down with
retail on the bottom and residential above. At least the flats are a
mixture of rental and social and private housing. Wards Corner,
Grainger says that they want this to be a town centre where
people can be proud of; | don't think local people can feel proud
if it is based on deliberate neglect followed by total demolition of




Page 211

everything that is there. We can feel proud of something
enthusiastic that is there, cherished of what is there, which
developed what is there, which nurtures it. We can feel proud of
something that is the same as everywhere else, there are already
too many places like that, we are not asking for another one. We
are asking for something that we feel at home with, somewhere
where we talk to our traders and we do somewhere where it has a
soul, warm and vibrant. Somewhere where people are not just
relying in their landlords. Somewhere where we can have a proper
life. We are not begging for a landlord to come along and
manage us, or threatened by demolition. We all want it to be
better but we just don’t want you to do it, because you are
basically doing it all for money. If it wasn’t for the money you will
not be doing it.

Q9?: I want to ask the Council a question. You Grainger were given
a brief and here is your proposal. | think the problem stems from
the Councils approach to the site, you could have engaged the
community before 2004 when this plan was submitted to them and
then there was this outcry. There was this cloud of demolition
hanging over this site since the 70‘s. Where is your commitment to
the local people?

| would like to follow on with that comment - we have lived here
for a very long fime and when we saw the consultation about the
development brief and the consultation was badly done. They did
apologise for some hitches with the way they got the leaflet out
and we were shocked at the poor quality of consultation. We
wanted to do a deputation to the Council and we organised a
deputation of residents and the manager of Seven Sisters Market
and a few residents were there and we raised our concerns and
we asked for the consultation to be done again. We highlighted
the qualities of some of the buildings. The manager of the market
had managed to borrow enough money to purchase and restore
the buildings and she had arranged a meeting with the
conservation officer then the Council cancelled the meeting. This
was in 2002, if that meeting had gone ahead then the building
would not had been left to dereliction for all these years and could
have built on the vibrant market which was already developing
and was improving the area enormously. The crime has been
reduced to the very nice people doing a lot of active things in the
corner of the market.

Ans: Paul Smith answered: | cannot answer on behalf of the
Council as | am chairing the meeting, however this meeting is for
you to ask questions of the applicant and gain information and
raise your concerns. It is not possible for me to answer questions
this evening- Paul Smith




Page 212

Ans: David Walters answered: There is a lot of talk about why there
isn't an alternative scheme that is being developed or submitted
for planning. There are two planning applications submitted, one
which is a refurbishment of the existing market and one which was
our application. There are other images that you have shown fairly
as an alternative view but that are not a planning application.

Q10: Clir Schmidt - Although | am a Councillor and | sit on Planning
Committee, | wish to make it clear that | will not be sitting on the
Planning Committee dealing with this application. Grainger will
not and won't be seen to get a fair hearing from me in this
particular matter because | have publicly made up my mind to
side with those who would preserve Wards Corner. | would also ask
for similar restraint is asked of two other Councillors who sit on the
Planning Committee. Clir Stanton and Clir Peacock have publicly
made known their belief that Wards Corner Stores is not worth
preserving. Clir Peacock said that people coming to Tottenham
wanted to see something new rather than the old tarted up and
ClIr Stanton has posted on flicker - just to point out that not every
local resident agrees with the Wards Corner Campaign as well as
being a Tottenham Councillor | have also been a resident over 26
years, we live 2 minutes from Bruce Grove part of the Council,
cares very much about Tottenham future and about the attractive
and often beautiful buildings along the High Road, Wards Corner is
simply not one of them. As he has made up his mind he should not
be sitting on the Committee, he is also very connected to
someone who use to work for the NDC. | am simply talking about
the situation being bias.

| recall from a similar presentation that is architecturally for not
preserving the wards Corner Stores. One could not build to the
height desired by this development without putting a pier to the
site of the store. Why not build lower so that a pier is not required?e
Your planning permission was thrown out by the court of appeal
because of the lack of an equality assessment. Cluttons who have
provided the equality assessment concludes that the proposed
development not unlawfully discriminate against any identified
equality group, but they have misconstrued the law, what is
required is that the impact on the various groups be examined not
that they be prejudiced by the decision they have made, whether
that is done or not is a matter for the Court not a matter for an
expert. (This is for the Officers). | also noticed that in this rather long
report no attempt has been made to assess the impact on the
Liberian and Latin American communities that actually use the
market. The provision which you are proposing to make for small
local traders and to restore the market. Can you please give me a




Page 213

little bit more detail fo as to the sort of commitment that you would
make that would be sufficiently definitely be part of an
enforceable part of as106 agreements that would ensure that
small local traders actually get the shop and as far as the market
goes, what commitment are you prepared to make to keep the
head lease rent down to a level that people who wants a stall in
the market have an affordable price.

Ans: David Walters answered: Not Preserving Wards Corner, there
is a report within our planning application, not sure if you have had
time to read that, that talks in great detail about the constraints
around saving the building as Andrew mentioned we looked at
the facade and retaining the building, integrating the building into
the development, you talked about the Court of Appeal ruling
and they that had been addressed by our application , you will no
doubt know that the Court of Appeal ruling required Haringey
Council to undertake an Equality Impact Assessment. Do you
agree¢ Yes was replied. Grainger's Equality Impact Assessment is
not the final as pointed out Haringey will have to do their own. In
terms of the s106 agreements, | talked a lot about this with a lot of
people and what our commitments are. Our commitments are
that we will not include betting shops, fast food outlets; it is not in
our best interest to do that. We talked about unit design for
independent traders on Seven Sisters Road and talked about the
retail mix of those retailers. In terms of what goes into the s106, we
have talked in great detail about what that does. What we have
done is provide a conditions list to allow the market traders to
come back in. If you look at it from our point of view what we
don't want is a development that sits empty because we are
waiting for the market fraders to decide whether to come back
into the scheme. So we included a clause that highlighted the
timing about those traders coming back in. Somebody mentioned
the 60% earlier on. When we first thought through this | never
thought that it was bad for you, | thought it was good for you. The
reason behind that is that you don’t want to just a Latin American
market, or a fish market or something else. The clause was to
ensure that it didn’t become something else. If you wish us to
remove that, then just tell us about it. We really saw that as a
benefit for you and not us. In terms of rent, if you rent a property of
poor quality or something middle of the range, you then move to
something a bit bigger, or better quality, then the rent changes.
That is the way things happen. What we are proposing is to bring
that Wards Corner facade into life through the Seven Sisters
market, making the Seven Sisters corner the entrance to the
market which we are really excited about and yes the rent will be
a Littfle more. We want a viable successful market and it has to be
an open market rent. We cannot guarantee you the same rent
you pay now within a market that is tucked behind a facade in




Page 214

some respects and doesn’t have the same amenities the new one
has and is managed by a national market operator who will
potentially be able to advertise and market this market much
wider than it is at the moment.

Q11: I have a barber shop inside the market; | am only 20 years
old and have been in London for 8years. | would like you to stop
talking about the pretty market of yours because the money that
was offered to us a long time ago was £93,000 to come back, if
you divide that £93,000 into 63 units, it would be 1,500 per trader.
Do you really think you are supporting our communitye Do you
really think £1,500 for two years - that is just your way of kicking us
out? Stop telling everyone that you are talking about us.

Ans: David Walters answered: Compensation payment
mentioned in the s106 agreements, the intention for that was to
hopefully work together with that pot of money and to ensure the
market is brought forward. Those of you operating in the market
operate under a licence, that licence gives you significant
flexibility to walk away within seven days it does not entitle you in
statue to any compensation. You do not have a lease you have a
licence. If you read the latest document the amount has gone up
to £104,000.

Q12: When you say very generous, we look at it from your point of
view. You think that my hard work all my life, | have raised my
children in the market. | brought my daughter when she was
Syears old, she is now 17years old and nothing has happened to
her. We did have a discussion about how much money we are
entitled to as you say we only have a licence. What that means is
we do not count. Thatis very unfair. | have knocked on so many
doors in the Council to ask what will happen to our future, and was
told don't worry you can relocate somewhere else, like we do not
exist, and we are only third world people so we don’'t count. That is
the way you are treating us. Tell me the number of jobs that is
going to be lost in the market.

Q11: 1 query the idea of regeneration strategy that is heavily being
based on the provision of retail space for national retailers; this to
me seems to ignore 3 factors. One is the existing retail space at
Tottenham Hale and Bruce Grove, secondly the retail space at
Tottenham Hale is much larger than would be provided at the
Wards Corner site, thirdly, it completely ignores the shopping
corridor at Wood Green High Road which is much larger and has a
much larger retail outlet and does a much larger volume of trade.
It is hugely unlikely that any national retailer would wish to take up
space at the new Wards Corner site. It needs to be recognised
that Tottenham is no longer a preferred destination for shoppers




Page 215

out of the area.

Ans: David Walters answered: we have a tube station on the
Victoria Line which is 12 minutes from Kings Cross, it has about
13million passengers going through it every year, we have had
discussions with some retailers and it answers the questions, they
are very interesting as a location, the difficulty they have had is
being able to find accommodation in Seven Sisters for them to
take up. They would like to be in a new/improved environment.

Q13: Aresident

| have heard about the volume of traffic passing through the
corridor, 3 million people, how wonderfully they have done in
Hornsey, Knightsbridge. There is a flaw in your premise that all
areas are the same but they are not the same. We live in Seven
Sisters and according to EU statistics; Wards Corner is the most
culturally diverse per square mile in Europe. What have you done
in your planning of this development to take into account the
culture diversity in this area? It is not the amount of tfraffic coming
in/out in this area. | live in Suffield Road and we have people living
there for three generations. | have lived there for two generations
and you have not taken info account the people who live here.
You need to do a proper study. This idea is not going to work. You
can have rent for some crappy apartments and it will be £3 in
Tottenham and £75 in Hompstead. The areas are not the same
and you cannot use Hornsey, Knightsbridge as an example and
think we have the same aspirations as you. What are you doing to
address the cultural diversity of this community?

Ans: David Walters answered: It is not the same. What we have
done is included a ground floor that has accommodation for 8
national retailers that also have accommodation for a market
which includes 50 businesses. We also have 9 nine units design for
independent retailers. If you look at it in business scale that is circa,
59 independent businesses and 8 national retailers before you get
on the statistics that this site is a mere 5% of the district centre. — It is
not a town centre and you are absolutely right. It is 5% of the
district centre in terms of floor space. In terms of getting national
retailers here we all know that we can find those 59 businesses,
locally and culturally diverse, you are all here.

Q14: | want to give an advice to Grainger — You are loosing a lot
of money in many years of discussion. Every four years they there
could be a new Mayor of London and every four years the Mayor
can make a vito. Two years ago during the elections for Mayor of
London, the candidates came to the Seven Sisters market to say
they will be against the demolition of Wards Corner. In one and
half years time there will be another election and again the
candidates will say they will be against demolition, why because




Page 216

Tottenham has a lot of votes and there are 250,000 Latin American
and foreign speakers on the electoral roll, they cannot win the
elections if they say they are going to demolish Wards Corner. You
need to talk to the Wards Corner people and us to keep the
building that is the only solution.

Q14: MrThompson — One of the added advantages of having
been a Mayor is that | learnt how to be fair and | haven't seen
anything so totally disgustingly unfair as the people of Tottenham
have been treated in the Wards Corner. What you are doing to
the people of Tottenham is adding salt to injury because not only
have you been told by the High Court that you are out of order,
you still trying to dress up and bring this back and it sfill isn’t going
to work. The people of Toftenham deserve better, never mind
what Tottenham Hotspurs are doing or whatever Grainger is doing.
You need to understand this, you don't live here we do and we
decide what we want.

Q15: Why do you want to go ahead with this development when
everybody is against ite If it's not just about money, then why go
ahead. You are going against our wishes.

Ans: David Walters answered: Does anyone support this
developmente No one responded from the audience. There were
two people in support of this development they stood up at
planning committee. People do not come out in support but only
when they object. Yes, we do want to do this development, we
are committed to it, we have worked long and hard to bring this
forward and it will have a positive impact on Tottenham it is
essential to safeguard wards Corner.

Q16: Do you not learn from historye Are you not afraid of another
riot?

Q17: 1 find it incredible to believe you call this meeting a
Development Management Forum and yet you do not have a
senior officer to be able to answer our questions this evening. As
someone said our beef is not with Grainger, they were given a
brief and they delivered it. We need answers from the Council
and there isn't anybody here to answer our questions?

Ans: Paul Smith answered: There are Council Representatives, the
Assistant Director, Planning & Regeneration, Myself Paul Smith.
However, we are not here to answer questions, as the meeting is
for you to ask your questions of the applicants. The constitution of
this meeting is an exchange of information where the applicants
explain their scheme to the residents and for residents to respond.
There are other avenues for you to pursue to get answers to your
questions.




Page 217

Marc Dorfman said: | have been for the last month has been
phoning and emailing the wards Corner Coalition to ask them if
they would like to come and meet me talk fo me about what their
concerns and issues are and to date | am still waiting for that
meeting to be set up. | would sfill like to have that meeting and
secondly, it is very important that we go through the usual process
of dealing with major applications. With Wards Corner there has
been a lot of concerns about the process of the application how
that has been handled and managed, not at least there has been
a judicial review. So we want to go through carefully that process
in the normal and usual way. If you want to make representations
to me or your local ward councillors and additional public
meetings, please do that and | will be happy to respond positively.

Q18: We are told the same application has been re-submitted,
you and your architect talked about new papers and information
on your website. There is nothing on Haringey's website so the
papers haven't been published. | fail to see how this can be a
new valid application. Lots of things have changed since they
submitted their information. Are you not going to do a new
financial statement?

Ans: David Walters answered: Paul rightly said it is the same
application we have re-submitted some documentation which |
understand is on the Councils website, certainly on our website.
Wards Corner regeneration.co.uk, you can go and pick it from
there. We talked about a new planning statement, new
conservation area statement, equality impact assessment there is
an energy statement as the code level is now 4 instead of 3. There
is a new document which is a new toolkit under GLA guidance
which is a financial assessment of the scheme. What happens with
this document is that an independent advisor of the GLA and
Haringey and that independent advisor then briefs the GLA and
Haringey whether it is correct and whether the scheme can
affordable housing and other s106 benefits. The toolkit as in every
regeneration scheme is used is schemes like this is a confidential
document which is why an independent assessment is carried out.
The GLA uses this day and day out.

Q19: In my book regeneration is about people as well as well as
place, | think the requirements by the Lord Justices for extra
information from you on indeed the equality and diversity impact
and implication of your proposal goes to the heart of the last hours
of this discussion. Listening to you | cannot imagine what possible
statement you put in to support that you have met those
requirements, you have no affordable housing. | think you are
offering the traders a sum of £1.500 for two years and you did not




Page 218

answer how you would ensure 50 or so culturally diverse fraders in
the market which was insisted upon by Sir Simon Milton would be
able to return. Does you website contain your response to the
High Courts requirements, if so can you elaborate on that please.
Ans: David Walters answered: | think this goes back to the Equality
Impact assessment which you rightly say is a requirement by the
Court of Appeal to be undertaken. The requirement by the Court
is not on Grainger but on Haringey in assessing this application.
Grainger has done its own Equality Impact Assessment which is
publicly available and mentioned today.

Q20: | question whether you understand the social importance of
this site.  You mention the London Plan, which you say London
wide criteria. | question whether you understand the London wide
importance of this site. It is the only focal point for the Latin
American social and frading point for the Greater London
community. What the architects and developers are doing to
maintain this very rich social and ethnic asset to London but not in
terms of plots and zoning because plats and zoning merits cannot
be quantified within those ways.

Ans: David Walters answered: Part of that answer is in relation to
our discussion with other organisations and helping local businesses
manage themselves through this process and we did engage
through the NDC and they were part of this process. We did
engage the North London Business, NDC. We did workshops with
KIS (Keep it Simple Training) and we have included the market. |
think we have demonstrated how Wards Corner is important. We
have made an offer for all local businesses to have an
independent property advisor, those in West Green Road and
Seven Sisters Road. Only one took it up. We take given great
considerable concessions to people who live and work on the site.
| think to date there are people still living in Suffield Road without
paying rent and we have made other offers on those lines and
people have accepted.

Ans: Andrew Beharell: This scheme is a long evolution years and
more has been design with great precision and care for its
particular setting and | accept that many people here don't like it.
A lot of time has gone into designing this scheme in its context.

Q21: Mital Patel statement: How do you get cultural bits into the
scheme, you actually invite people into the design process.

Q22: The toolkit, are we suppose to accept the Councils word that
we cannot have social housing on this site. They got it wrong the
first time and we took them to Court and we proved that did it
wrong and hence the assessment. Will that toolkit be made




Page 219

available to us or do we have to rely on the Council that we
cannot have social housing on the site. What are you doing about
the welfare of the businesses around the market, they might not be
accommodated but what are you doing now?

Last year you evicted one of your tenants? Why?

Ans: David Walters answered: He was evicted because he wasn't
paying his licence fee; he was blocking the road and causing a
nuisance.

Q23: | was told at the consultation meeting that this would be M &
S and that would be Boots. This was not what we were consulted
about. Will we ever have an accurate consultancy with the
Council?2 And will Grainger agree to that.

Ans: David Walters answered: The conclusion slide is wrong: You
are creating 20 jobs, The Cushman report say s you are creating
80, and so that is job losses. It is already a district centre. This is
becoming the Latin American Quarter in North London and you
will lose that as Elephant and Castle is going to take all the money
away. This is an opportunity, nowhere else offer you such choice.
Provide investment in Tottenham, well we would have that instantly
if you just walked away. Gated community2 You are inviting
trouble. You said you wanted a shot, have you heard of a parting
shot, just go.

Q24: John Oakes: Hornsey Baths was mentioned as being very
successful as a Grainger project. | pass that very regularly as | do
Wards Corner and one of the most successful elements is the
retention of all of the original building, including the neon diving
lady, then he went on to say we have learnt from Hornsey Baths
and put the same quality of that scheme into the Wards Corner
scheme. What qualities is he going to take into the Wards Corner
Scheme and why | haven't heard any good reason why the old
building needs to be demolished?

Ans: David Waters answered: Hornsey Baths is listed and had to be
retained. The chimneys are not listed and have no requirements to
retain that chimney but Grainger has decided to keep the
chimneys as this was appropriate for this site. We all want to
improve Wards Corner and we have to find a solufion to make it
work. We do not take the decision to demolish heritage buildings
lightly that is why we analyse the coadlition scheme that retains the
market, and the front building and | have presented all the
information this evening. This scheme requires 25million of public
money subsidy. My commitment and offer sfill stands for you to
come an inspect those numbers. We are readlly trying to find a way
to make this development brief come to fruition. It has been one
of the most difficult problems any developer can face, multiple
ownership, building over 4 underground tunnels.




Page 220

End of Meeting

Paul Smith reminded everyone to submit their comments to the
Planning Service if not already done so and further representations
can be made at Planning Committee. He thanked everyone for
attending and contributing to the meeting.




Page 221

APPENDIX 7
SUMMARY OF GLA REPORTS



Page 222

Summary of GLA comments

An updated Stage 1 report was issued 21 June 2011 following the re-determination of
the scheme. Stage | and Stage |l reports were previously issued during the initial
consideration of the scheme. Appropriate sections of these reports are also
summarised.

Stage 1 Report (updated) 21 June 2011

The proposal has not substantially changed since the previous Stage | and Stage Il
reports. As such this report only deals with new information and areas where the
London Plan or Government Policy has changed. The comments on design, child play
space, community facilities and transport set out in previous reports still stand.

Equalities

The methodology of the Council’s Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is considered
acceptable. The EqlA concludes that the development is unlikely to result in major
negative equality impacts provided that all measures set out in the section 106
agreement are implemented in a timely manner.

The market, local retails and principle of land use

The proposed offer is a combination of multiples, local retail and the Latin American
market. The proposals deliver a range of retailing options for all types of businesses.
Within this offer six units are specifically allocated for local retailing. As such, the
proposal would have a positive impact on the centre.

A social and economic impact assessment as set out in London Plan policy 3A.25 has
been produced together with a retail impact assessment and a market assessment. The
developer has replaced the market in the development and provided units specifically
designed for local retail and the Council is satisfied that their plans will be a positive
benefit to the area and the local community. The proposed scheme therefore complies
with London Plan policy 3D.3, 3A.25 and 3B.1(The Mayor will seek a range of
workspaces of different types, sizes and costs to meet the needs of the different sectors
of the economy and firms of different types and sizes). These policies are carried forward
into the draft replacement London Plan in policy 4.8 and a new policy 4.9 has been
introduced which specifically relates to the provision of units suitable for local retails. The
proposal also complies with the draft replacement London Plan in this regard.

The retention of the Latin American Market also complies with London Plan policy 4B.8:
Respecting local context and communities given that the market is replaced within the
development as well as draft replacement London Plan policy 3.17 protection and
enhancement of social infrastructure.

It is also considered that the provision of the market facilitator and associated package of
measures, the re-provision of the market and the provision of local retail in the scheme
discharges the obligations of the Council and the GLA under the Equalities Act 2010
provided that the application is conditioned such that the current market cannot be
closed until a temporary facility is secured.



Page 223

Affordable Housing

The loss of 10 affordable housing units on site is not in accordance with London Plan
policy but is considered acceptable in this instance given the wider regenerative
benefits of the scheme.

London Plan Policy 3A.10 requires borough councils to seek the maximum reasonable
amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and
mix-use schemes. Policy 3A.10 is supported by paragraph 3.52, which urges borough
councils to take account of economic viability when estimating the appropriate amount
of affordable provision. The ‘Three Dragons’ development control toolkit is
recommended for this purpose. The results of a toolkit appraisal might need to be
independently verified

Haringey’s UDP contains a policy regarding affordable housing which states that housing developments
capable of providing 10 or more units will be required to include a proportion of affordable housing to
meet an overall borough target of 50%. The proportion negotiated will depend on the location, scheme
details or site characteristics.

A toolkit has been submitted with this application which shows that it is not viable to
provide any affordable housing as part of the development. The toolkit has been
independently verified by the Valuation Office Agency and it has been confirmed that
the development cannot support affordable housing on viability grounds.

The applicant has robustly demonstrated that it is not viable to provide any affordable
housing in this development and whilst this is regrettable the position is accepted.

Heritage

The scheme involves the demolition of all buildings on site. Part of the site lies within a
conservation area. Three of the existing buildings are locally listed. The applicant has
looked at the retention of this building in the scheme but has concluded that this would
not be viable. This approach has been agreed with Haringey Council officers.
Conservation Area Consent for the demolition of all buildings on the site was granted
in November 2008 and this permission still stands. As such the principle of demolition
has been accepted

English Heritage has set out that whilst it accepts that it would not be viable for the
current scheme to reuse the existing buildings that public benefit could also be
delivered through a conservation based scheme. The applicant has considered the
viability of variations of the scheme which retain one or more of the existing locally
listed buildings and Haringey Council has confirmed that none of these options are
financially viable or deliverable.

Given the relatively low significance of the assets, their current condition, the public
benefits of the regeneration and replacement market provided by the scheme, the non-
viability of the variants of the scheme and the extant conservation area consent it is
considered that the loss of the assets is justifiable.

Overall, the proposed scheme makes a positive contribution to the conservation area and the wider
townscape and is acceptable.



Page 224

Climate Change Mitigation

The applicant is proposing the application of energy efficiency, CHP and renewable energy. As a result,
the development will emit 165 tonnes per annum in regulated carbon dioxide emissions. This represents
a saving of 100 tonnes of carbon dioxide per annum (38%) compared to a 2010 Building Regulations
compliant development. The energy strategy is supported and is in line with London Plan policy.

Transport

No new transport information has been submitted. The transport elements of the scheme were
considered to be, on balance acceptable, previously.

Conclusion

The regeneration of this site with a mixed use development is welcomed. The
replacement of the market and the provision of local retail space is welcomed and
addresses the concerns raised regarding previous iterations of the scheme and is, on
balance, acceptable in strategic planning terms. The significant improvements to the
public realm and the improved quality of retail provision is also welcomed. The applicant
has robustly demonstrated that no affordable housing can be provided on viability
grounds. The energy strategy is in line with London Plan policy.

Given the measures proposed in the section 106 agreement relating to the provision of a
market facilitator and the right to return for market traders the proposal is unlikely to give
rise to major negative equality impacts, provided that provision of a temporary market is
made before the existing market closes The negative impact of the non-provision of
affordable housing is justified by the fact that it would not be viable to provide affordable
housing and the planned provision for such elsewhere in the local area. The Council
should ensure that the measures suggested in the equalities impact assessment to
assist existing residents with relocation are secured.

Stage Il Report — 03 December 2008

Design

The previous stage | report concluded that the “the architectural approach is on the
whole welcomed, the particularly the High Road centrepiece, the Suffield Road blocks
and the brick treatment, however, the set back upper storeys and the corner treatment
appear awkward and should be reconsidered.”

The upper storeys are now glazed and further details submitted of the corner
treatment. The issues raised in Stage | have been resolved.

English Heritage support a conservation-led approach to regeneration.

CABE, overall, felt that the scheme had the potential to transform the area and
supported the scheme.



Page 225

The proposed scheme is considered to make a psotiive contribution to the
conservation area and wider townscape and would be in compliance with the London
Plan in design terms.

Transport

In view of the highly accessible nature of the site, it was recommended that the
scheme be made car-free. However parking is provided for the town houses on
Suffield Road. All other occupiers of the development will be prevented from obtaining
a permit by s106 agreement. Travel Plans for the commercial and residential elements
of the scheme will be secured by condition and this is welcomed in order to mitigate
travel demand.

Construction routing should minimise impact on the TLRN. A construction strategy
should be secured by condition to ensure that there will be no impact on the
Underground Station or tunnels during excavation and construction.

London Development Agency

The LDA supported the principle of the scheme at Stage | but raised a number of
issues relating to the existing market and wider regeneration potential of the scheme.
Following discussions with the applicant, the LDA welcomed that the section 106
agreement secures replacement of the market and associated measures to assist the
temporary relocation of the market traders. The LDA considers that there are no
strategic issues in relation to retail facilities.

The LDA also welcomed a requirement to submit a Training and Local Labour

Agreement as well as a requirement to procure goods and services from local
businesses and recruit local people.

Stage | Report — 04 July 2008

Housing

Although the proposed dwelling mix deviates from that contained in the Council’s
Housing SPG (now SPD), it is considered appropriate to the busy town centre location.

Children’s Playspace

The development provides approximately 1,538 sqm of amenity space within a central
courtyard which includes a dedicated playspace for children under 5. The site is also
within 400m of Brunswick Road Open Space. The provision is acceptable in strategic
planning policy terms.

Urban Design



Page 226

The proposed density and site layout are acceptable. The scale of the development is
considered acceptable having regard to the scale of Apex house and the Tesco
development. Towards the rear the development scales down to relate to the
neighbouring residential development. The development will transform the public
realm by creating anew public square.

The internal layout of the proposed flats is acceptable.

The architectural approach is on the whole welcomed, the particularly the High Road
centrepiece, the Suffield Road blocks and the brick treatment, however, the set back
upper storeys and the corner treatment appear awkward and should be reconsidered.

Community Facilities

At the time of the initial Stage | report, the proposal included a youth facility however it
was recommended that the space be given over to accommodate the market.

London Development Agency’s comments

The LDA support the principle of the development. The variety of retail spaces is
welcomed. Every effort must be made to find alternative accommodation for the
existing market traders whilst the development is constructed.

The developer should seek to ensure that local residents and businesses benefit from
the job opportunities created by this proposal. Initiatives to create training and
employment opportunities and to utilise the goods and services of SME’s and local
businesses should be formalised through a section 106 agreement.



Page 227

APPENDIX 8
GLA REPORTS



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 229

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

DeveloPment & Environment Directorate City

The (iueeh’s Walk
More London
1‘.‘ondon SET 2AA
‘::pwitchb(')érd: 020 7983 4000
Minicom: 020 7983 4458
Web: www.london.gov.uk
Our ref: PDU/1973/EWT6
Yopir tef: HEY/2008/0303
Daté: 21 June 2011

Marc Dorfman

Planning Policy arid De‘ve1opr'nér?t
Haringey Council '
639 High Road

London N17 8BD

Dear Marc Dorfman,

Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended); Greater London Authority
Act 1999; Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Oider 2000
Wards Corner, Seven Sisters HGY/2008/0303

| refer to your email of 24 January 2011, reconsulting the Mayor of Londoni on the above planning
application. The Mayor has delegated his planning function to his Deputy Mayor and Chief of Staff
and on 22 Jurie 2011 he considered a report on this proposal, reference PDU/1973/03. A copy of
the report is attached, in full.

Having considered the report, the Deputy Mayor has concluded that given the measured proposed
in the section 106 agreement relating to the provision of a market facilitator and the right to return
for market traders the proposal is unlikely to give rise to major negative equality impacts, provided
that provision of a temporary market is made before the existing market closes. The negative
impact of the non-provision of affordable housing is justified by the fact that it would not be viable
to provide affordable housing and the planned provision for such elsewhere in the local area. The
Council should ensure that the measures suggested in the equalities impact assessment to assist
existing residents with relocation are secured. :

If Haringey Council decides in due course that it is minded to approve the application, it should
allow the Mayor fourteen days to decide whether or not to direct the Council to refuse planning
permission (under article 4(1)(b)(i} of the Town & Countyy Planning (Mayor of London) Order
2000). You should therefore send me a copy of any officer’s report on this case to your planning

- committee (or its equivalent), together with a statement of the permission your authority proposes
to grant and of any conditions the authority proposes to impose, and a copy of any representations
made in respect of the application (article 4(1)(a) of the Order).

Yours sincerely,

C/f;ixéaf /,7,51) Z}ﬁ L

Giles Dolphin
Assistant Director — Planning

Direct telephone: 020 7983 6590  Fax: 020 7983 4706 Email: emma.williamson@london.gov.uk




Page 230




cC

Page 231

Joanne McCartney, London Assembly Constituency Member

Jenny Jones, Chair of London Assembly Planning and Housing Committee

John Pierce and lan McNally, DCLG

Colin Lovell, TfL

Javiera Maturana, LDA _

Chris Frost, Cluttons LLP, Portman House, 2 Portman Street, London, W1H 6DU




Page 232




Page 233
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY
planning report PDU/1973/03
22 June 2011
Wards Corner, Seven Sisters
in the London Boroligh of Haringey
planning application no. HGY/2008/0303

Strategic planning application stage 1 referral (old powers)

Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended); Greater London Authority Act 1998; Town &
Country Planning (Mayor of L.ondon) Order 2000

The proposal

Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of a mixed-use development comprising 197
residential units, new retail units, replacement market and restaurant together with basement car
parking and a new public square on Tottenham High Road incorporating public realm
improvements,

The applicant

The applicant is Grainger (5even Sisters) Ltd., and the architect is Pollard Thomas Edwards

Strategic issues

The regeneration of this site with a mixed use development is welcomed. The replacement of the
market and the provision of local retail space is welcomed and addresses the concerns raised
previously and is, on balance, acceptable in strategic planning terms. The significant improvements
to the public realm and the improved quality of retail provision is also welcomed. The applicant has
robustly demonstrated that no affordable housing can be provided on viability grourids. The energy
strategy is in line with London Plan policy.

Given the meastires proposed in the section 106 agreement relating to the provision of a market
facilitator and the right to return for market traders the proposal is unlikely to give rise to major
negative equahty impacts, provided that provision of a temporary market is made before the existin
market closes. The negative impact of the non-provision of affordable housing is justified by the fa
that it would not be viable to provide affordable housing and the planned provision el$ewhere in th
local area. The Council should ensure that the measures suggested in the equalities impact
assessment }o assist existing residents and businesses with relocation are secured.

Recommendation

That Haringey Council be advised that the regeneration of thrs site with a mixed use development
is generally con5|stent with London Plan policies. The level of reprovision of space for the market
and local retailers Is on balance acceptable. Given the measures proposed in the section 106
agreement relating to the provision of a market facilitator and the rf;ht to return for market
traders the proposal is unlikely to give rise to major negative, equahty |mpacts

page 1




Page 234

Context

1 On 12 February 2008 Haringey Council consuited the Mayor of London on a proposal to
develop the above site for the above uses. A Stage | report was issued on 4 July 2008 and a Stage
[l report was issued on 3 December 2008 following Haringey Council’s planning committee passing
a resolution to grant the application on 17 November 2008. This decision was quashed by judicial
review in June 2010 and as such the application is now due to be redetermined. Under the
provisions of the Town & Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000 the Mayor has the same
opportunity as other statutory consultees to comment on the proposal. This report sets out
information for the Mayor’s use in deciding what comments to make.

2 The application is referable under Category 1B of the Schedule to the Order 2000:
“Development (other than development which only comprises the provision of houses, flats, or
houses and flats) which comprises or includes the erection of a building or bujldings (c) outside
Central London and with a total floorspace of miore than 15,000 sq.m.” '

3 If Haringey Council subsequently decides that it is minded to grant planning permission, it
must first allow the Mayor an opportunity to declde whether to direct the Council to refuse
permission. '

4 The Mayor’s comnients on this case will be made available on the GLA website
www.london.gov.uk.

Site description

5 Wards Corner is a prominent site above Seven Sisters Victoria Line underground station on
the western side of Tottenham High Road. The site is also located near to Seven Sisters overground
station. The site is 0.65 hectares and comprises a group of 2 and 3-storey late Victorian
commercial buildings along the western side of Tottenham High Road wrapping rotind into West
Gréén Road ahd Seven Sisters Road together with a group of Victorlan terraced houses on Suffield
Road. It includes the Wards Corner department store buildirjg which gives the site its name. The
site Is In the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District Centre and the area is predominantly made up
of local indepenclent traders with a mix of Turkish, Cypriot, Colombian and Afro-Caribbean
influenices. The site also incorporates an indoor market comprising 36 separate shops/units of
which 64% of traders originate from Latin America and/or are Spanish speaking. The total retall
floorspace currently oh site is 3,182 sq.m. The existing residential accommodation on site
comprises 33 residential units along Suffield Road as well as first floor accommodation above the
fetail units on Tottenham High Road, Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. The site is in
multiple ownership with TfL and Haringey Couricll both having significant land holdings.

6 The site marks the overlapping section of two identified regeneration areas- the Tottenham
High Road regeneration atea and The Bridge New Deal for Communities Aréa. A planning brief has
also been prepared for the site. Part of the site is in the Seven Sisters Conservation Area,
essentially the Wards Corner building, the Tottenham High Road frontage and half of the West
Green Road frontage. None of the buildings are statutorily listed although three have been locally
listed: the Wards Corner building and 1a and b West Green Road. The site has a public transport
accessibility level of & (where 1 is low apd 6 is high).

Details of tﬁ'le proposal

page 2




Page 235

7 The proposed development comprises 197 residential units in a mix of studios, 1, 2 and 3-
bedroom units a;nd 3,792 sq.m. of retdil. The retail units will be located on the Tottepham High
Road, West Green Road and Seven Sisters frontages with the Tottepham High Road frontage
aimed primarily gt high street multiples and the other frontages aimed at local retailers. The West
Green Road frontage units are arrénged as kiosks to allow for the location of uses similar to that
provided in the existing market. The family residential units are located at ground floor on Suffield
Road and the smaller units afe located above the retail units accessed from a podium. 44 parking
spaces, including three disabled spaces, are included in the basement car park.

Case history

8 There are no previous strategic planning applications for this site. A development brief for
the site was adopte_cLin January 2004, The brief ackhowledges that the area around the station is
perceived as unsafe by the local communhity and suffers from a high degree of crime. The range of
shops angd facilities in the area Is considered to be poor. The brief sets out & number of strategic
objectives for the redevelopment and regeneration of the area. The followihg vision is set out: “to
create o /anp’mark development that acts gs a high quality gateway to Seven Sisters, providing
mixed uses with improved facillties and safer underground station access”. The brief states that the
redevelopmen{ of the site should take place comprehensively and should rake the best use of the
opportunities presented by the site including the provision of new housing and retail uses, The
replacement buildings should be of a distinctive atid imaginative modern design with active
frontages and visual variety and interest and should enhance the conservatjon atea. The btief alsg
sets qut that the developmept should include significant improvements to the public realm
incliding public art and street trees and improvements to the access to the underground and bus
waiting and interchdnge facllities.

9 An alternative development proposal was submitted by a coalitjon of the market traders
and community associations in January 2008. The description of the development was as follows:
“Erection of first flaor rear ektensions, alterations to rear elevation. Alteratlons to front elevation,
includind new bays at first floor level and dormer windows to front foofslope, installation of new
shopfront, alterations to 3 storey corner block, internal alterations to create new shops/
workshops/ ofﬁces/cafe (A3) use on ground / first floors and creation of 8 x one bed flats at-
second floor.” This scheme envisages the refurbishment of the existing buildings and the retention
and expansion of the existing market. This application was not referable to the Mayot. The
applicants appealed against non-cdetermination in May 2010. As the deadline to submit such an
appeal expired on 28 October 2008, and the Planning inspectorate considered there had not begn
sufficient evidehce of continuing activity on the application or dialogue betweep the parties to
suggest that the application was still alive and allow it to exercise the Secretary of State’s
discretion to exterid the appeal period, the Planning Inspectorate did not accept the appeal. As
such Haringey Council cannot subsequeritly determine the application itself and it has encpuraged
the gpplicant to resubmit the application, and has offered the applicants support to do so and has
agreed to walve the application fee. The Council has indicated that “in principle” the application
could comply with policy. To date the application has not been resubmitted.

The judicial review

10 The case bought by Janet Harris against London Borough of Haringey was successful at the
court of appeal and as such the planning permission has been quashed. :

11 The lawfulness of the decision was originally challenged on three grounds but only one
ground was pursued at the Court of Appeal: the Council, when granting permission, failed to
discharge its duties under section 71 of the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000. Section 71 provided, in 5o far as is material:

page 3




Page 236

“(1) Every body or other person specified in Schedule 1A or of a déscription falling within that
Schedule shall, in carrying out its function, have due regard to the need-

(a) to eliminate uniawful racial discrimination; and
(b) to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different
racial groups.”

12 The breach alleged was of section 71(1)(h). The judge set out that there was sufficient
potentlal impact on equality of opportunity between persons of different racial graups, and on
good rélations between such groups, to requite that the impact of the decision on those aspects of
social and economic life be considered. He concluded that the Council did not have due regard to
the need tg promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial
groups. The potential impact of the development in relation to the loss of ethnic minority
businesses, the Jack of affordable housing and the loss of housing currently accessible to éthnic
minorities was djscussed by the Court. '

13 The Judge set out that not dnly was there na reference to section 71 in the report to the
committeg, or in the deliberations of the committee, hut the required due regard for the need to
promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different récial groups was
not demonstrated in the decision making process. He went on to say that due regard need not
recuire the promotion of equality of opportunity bit on the material availabLZe to the council an
analysis of the materigl with the specific statutory considerations in mind shauld be made. The
weight to be givep to the consjdefations is for the decision maker to assess,

Strategic planiing issues and re{eﬁiant policies and guidance

14 The refevant issues and correspondipg policies are as fo['ows;

e Economic development London Plan! the Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy

e Mix of uses Londop Flan

» Regeneration London Flan; the Mayor’s Economic Development Strategy

e Retail London Plan; PP54; PPS13

e Employment London Plan; PPG4; drdft PRS4; {ndustrial Capacity SPG

o Equal opportunities London Plari; Planning for Equality and Diversily in Meeting the

spatial needs of London’s diverse communities SPG; Diversity
and Equality in Planning: A good practice guide (ODPM)
¢ Sustainable dlévelopment London Plan; PPST, PPST supplement; PPS3; PPG13; PPS22;
Draft PPS Planning for ¢ Low Carbon Future in a Changing
Climate; the Mayor’s Energy Strategy; Mayor’s draft Climate
Change Mitigation and Adaptation Strategies; Mayor’s draft
Water Strateqy; Sustainable Design and Construction SPG.
Historic Environment London Plan; PES5

15 For the purposes of Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the
development plan in force for the area is Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) and the
London Plan {Consolidated with Alterations since 2004).

16 The following are also relevant material considerations:
e The draft replacement Londaon Plan, which underwent Examination in Public in 2010 and

upon which the Panel has now reported is a relevant material consideration of significant
weight.

page 4




Page 237

¢ The Haripgey Core Strategy which is submission stage.
e The planning brief for the site.

Update

17 The proposal has not substantially changed since the previous Stage | and Stage Il report.
As such this report only deals with new information and areas where London Plah policy or
government policy has changed. The comments on design, child playspace, community facilities
and transport set out in the previous report still stand.

Equalities

18 From 5 April 2011 a new public sector equality duty, as set out in Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010 (the Act) came into force, This replaces duties under the Race Relations Act as
well as other domestic discrimination legislation. The Act includes a new single public sector
equality duty (the Duty) which brings together the previous race, disability and gendler duties and
extends coverage to include age, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity
and gender reassignment. These are the grounds upon which discrimination is unlawful and are
referred to as ‘protected characteristics.” The Duty requires listed public bodies to consider the
need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations in all
their functions.

19 As set out in the recently launched Queen Mary University London/ Latin American
Women's Rights Service/ Trust for London report: ‘No Longer Invisible; the Latin American
community in London’ (the report) 113,500 Latin Americans are resident in London. Latin
Americans in London experience higher levels of unemployment (85%) than other members of the
community and when employed around half of those employed are in low skifled and low paid jobs.
The report sets out the findings of the first large-scale quantitative survey of over 1000 Latin
Americans. 7% of respondents to the survey resided in Haringey.

20 Seven Slsters is a commercial hub for Spanish speaking Latin Americans. In termis of
population there is a concentration of Latin American residents in Séven Sisters. 85% of Latin
American communities use facilities stich as Seven Sisters market and such activity is identified as a
way of engaging with Latin American cllture on a daily basis. Opportunities to éngage with Latin
American culture are seen as impoJtant for second generatiop Latin Americans.

217 Haringey Council has commissionied an independent Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA).
This is based on a desktop assessment of the material submitted with the original application,
those submitted at the curréht time and consultation responses thus far. This methodalogy is
acceptable and it is reasonable to-assume that little has changed in terms of demographics since
the application was originally submitted. The EQIA concludes that overall the planning dpplication
is unfikely to give rise to major negative equality impacts provided that all the measures set out in
the section 106 agreement are implemented in a timely mahner. The assessment recognises
concerns expressed by objectors concerning potential impacts, particularly in relation to Latin
American, people and members of other black and mihority ethriic gfoups. The assessment has
identiﬁec‘ additional recommendatioris to strengthen previously identified mitigation measures angd
to address residual negative impacts. For éxample a baseline study of businesses and market stall
holders is sulggested with monitoring at set stages through the progress of the development, the
assessment suggests that the developers should discuss with the market stall holdefs mutually
acceptable measures to safeguard the option to return of existing market stall holders, support in
marketing, sighposting to suitable alternative employment for struggling businesses and that
future marketing of the completed development should capitalise on the Latin American identity.
These mattets are discussett in more detail in the following sections.

page 5




Page 238

22 The lack of affordable housing on-site is consldered to give rise to some negative equality
impact, including for black and ethnic minority residents of the area in housing need, however the
independent gssessment of the viability of the scheme which shows that provision of affordable
housing is not viable is considered to justify this negative impact. A numbef of measures are
Suggested to assist existing residents on site to access alternafive accommodation. The Council
should set out how these are being taken on board prior to the Stage |l referial to the Mayor and
they should be reflected in the final section 106 agreement. This issuie is discussed in more detail
below. :

23 The assessment also identifies that the application gives rise to positive equality impacts in
relation to safety and crime, accessible public realm and the provision of family housing.

The market, local retail and principle of land use

Land use principle

24 The concept of locating residential units above retail uses is well established and is
considered ta be particularly suitable for this location above an underground station. The
additional resicents in the area will increase the security of the area by introducing useérs to the
area particularly ih the evening. They will also increase the number of potential shoppers in the
area which will be positive for the existing shopping centre.

The market
25 The stage | decision letter stated the following regarding the market:

“Any scheme that fails to re-provide the market in its entirety within the devefopment,
together with temporary provision whilst the site is redeveloped, will not be acceptable and
will not comply with London Plan policy 3D.3 of the London Plan.”

26 Following extensive discussions regarding the scheme, prior to the original determination,
the market was replaced on the Seven Sisters Road frontage. The floorspace of the current market
is 9,700 sq.ft. and the replacement market will be 9,434 sq.ft. Whilst the replacement market is
slightly smaller it will 5till accommodate the same number of stalls as the existing market and has a
more efficient layout. The large entrance to the market will be from the prominent corner building
through the feature arch and the market units will also have a frontiage to Seven Sisters Road.

27 The apphcant has undertaken to provide a minimum ¢f 6 month’s notice to the traders for
vacaht possession and compensation will be paid to traders at a rate equwalent to that payable
under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 which amounts to £144,000. This is an increase on the.
sum of £96, 650 previously offered. The traders do not have any tenancy rights and therefore this
payment Is voluntary. |

28 Gralnger has employed Urban Space Management and Union Land to assess the
opportunities for temporary locations for the market as a whole or within an existiig market. Given
that the applicant has stated that it will take approximately two yeafs beiore the devélopment
starts on-site it is not practicable to identify an alternative location at this paint.

29 The applicant has put together a package to assist the market find a temporary location
and to continue functioning. This package will run for five yeats from the granting of consent. This
package includes a ‘market facilitator” to work with traders to identify a temporary location, to
work with the Spanlsh speaking traders to promote their interests in the te:mporary Iolcatlon and to
provide approprtate business support and advice to all traders to secure the maximum number of
éxpressions of 1rtterest to return to tha site as wel| funding towards relocation costs and a three

page 6




Page 239

month rent free period in the temporary location. The provision of this package will be secured in
the section 106 agreement. This pdckage will be funded by TfL from the lard receipt that it will
receive from the sale of part of the site to the applicant. Although this sale will not take place untfl
two years from planning consent the applicant will fund the first two years of the package and will
be refunded by TfL at a later date. This package is identified in the independent equalitles impact
assessment as being key to the acceptabliity of the proposal in equalities terms.

30 Four conditions are set out in the section 106 dgreement:
o The market must be run by an experienced indoor market operator

o This arrangement must be in place not less thap 12 months prior to the due practical
completion date of the proppsed development

e The market operator must offer a fitst right to occupy to all existing traders op ari exclusjve and
non-assignable licence of ap equivalent stall In the new market area.

o The rent will be open market for AT use class

31 In addition the application should be conditioned such that the market currently on-site
cannot be closed until a temporary location is found. There Is a potential concerjr that moving the
market for a temporary periad could result in its declfne or failure. However, the packagé of
measures set out ahdve should avold this. in additjon the fact that the existing majket survived a
move from Elephant Castle would suggest that a successful temporary move is not unachievable.

32 These conditions, together with the additional condition suggested, are considered to be
reasonable to énsure that the market is re-provided for the current traders and that it will be
successful in the long term and as such will not have a negative equalities impact.

Local retail

33 With the redevelopment of the slte there will inevitably be a loss of the retail units currently
on the site. It is understood that a hurnber of these retail units are Black and Minorjty Ethnic
owned shops and businesses and one sells Halal meat. As such, as identified in the EQIA, there will
be some negative equality impacts however it is considered that these are mitigated by the
measures proposed by the applicant: as set out below.

34 As set out in the EQIA it is considered that there is suitable alternative locations for the
Halal meat business to relocate to as well as suitable alternative retailers in this line of business.

35 The owners/occupants of the current units on-site will receive statutory compensation as
appropriate and to further mitigate negative equality impacts the business advice avajlable to the
market traders, funded through the section 106 agreement, should be extended to cover them.

36 The six units located on West Green Road have been spegcifically designed to accommodate
focal retdilers. The Section 106 agreement will include clauses to the effect that the applicant will
develop and promote a letting strategy in respect of these units which is consistent with the
promotion of West Green Road as a district centre focused around independent trading. In addition
the lettings will need to be approved by Haringey Council and prior approval will need to be given
for the amalgamation of any of the units to form larger units. The promotion of local independent
retail is welcomed and as such there not be a negative equalities impact.

37 The EQIA also identifies that the development will have a positive equality impact in terms
of increasing employment opportunities in the area.

page 7




Page 240

38 A town centre health check undertaken by Cushman and Wakefield in early 2008 concluded
that whilst the centre displays some positive qualities such as, good accessibility, @ notable
idependent trading sector, and the presence of a reasonable quality food store anchor, a range of
problems and challenges faces the centre. Most notable of these are the poor quality of the
physical environment, the lack of recognised national multiple traders, the problems associated
with heavy traffic, and retail competition from the Tottenham Hale retail park. Cushman and
Wakefield conclude that the development proposed would have a number of positive benefits for
the centre including: the potential to attract a quality anchor tenant to Seven Sisters; that the
developient would represent a more intensive use of this part of the centre; that the development
would not harm the positive characteristics of the centre, including its independent retail offer;
that the scheme would help maximise the benefit of its position adjacent to a very busy entrance
to an underground station with easy access to the central London; that the characteristics of the
development would represent an opportunity for the centre to try and safeguard its vitality and
viability in the face of competition; and the proposal would assist in addressihg the identified
shortcomings in the environniental quality of the centre and public realm. The ICM poll carried out
by the appllcaqt found that 63% of respondents favoured the option of providing retail units for
use by both high street shops and local traders, compared to 30% who wanted retaii focussed
around the existing market and local traders

Concluslon

39 The arrangements for the fit-out of the market and the local retail units are still under
discussion. The delivery of the market and these units are a requnement of the planning permission
and daviation from this approach wollld require the prior permission of Haririgey Council. On this
basis it is considered that the rents of the units and the market will be controlled by the nature of
the spaces and will therefore be comparable to other local rates.

40 The proposed offer js a combmation of multiples, local retail and the Latin American
market. '[he proposals deliver a rande of retclllmg options for al types of businesses. Within this
offer six units are specifically allocated for IOLa] retailing, As such, the proposa] would have a
positive impact on the centre. A social and ecorioniic impact assessment as set qut in London Plan
policy 3A.25 has been produced together with a retall impact assessment dnd a market assessment.
The developer has replaced the market in the development and provided units specifically designed
for local retail and the Council is satisfied that their plans will be a positive benéfit to the area and
the local community. The proposed scherne therefore complies with London Plan policy 3D.3,
3A.25 and 3B.1(The Mayor will seek a range of workspaces of different types, sizes and costs to
meet the needs of the different sectors of the economy and firms of different types and sizes).
These policies are carried forward into the draft replacement Londoh Plan In policy 4.8 and a new
policy 4.9 has been introduced which specifically relates to the provision of units suitable for local
retails. The proposal also coniplies with the draft replacement London Plan {n this regard.

47 The retention of the Latin American Market also complies with London Plan policy 4B.8:
Respecting focal context and communitles given that the market is replaced within the
development as well as draft replacement London Plan policy 3.17 protection and enhancement of
social infrastructure.

42 It is also considered that the provision of the market facilitator and associated package of
measures, the re-provision of the market and the provision of local retall in the scheme discharges
the obligations of the Council and the GLA under the Equalities Act 2010 provided that the
application is conditioned such that the current market canpot be closed until a temporary facility
is secured.

page 8




Page 241

Affordable hbusing

43 There are currently 31 existing homes on the site. Of these 10 units are affordable (3
council owned and 7 housing association). The loss of affordable housing is not in line with London
Plan Policy 3A.15 or draft replacement London Plan policy 3.15. In this instance this is acceptable
given the wider regenerative benefits of the scheme, the viability of the scheme as set cut below
and given that within South Tottenham (N15) area there 169 units for social rent and 31
intermediate units in the pipeline.

44 London Plan Policy 3A.10 requires borough councils to seek the maximurn reasonable
amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual private residential and mix-use
schemes. [n doing so, each council should have regard to its own overall target for the amount of
affordable housing provision. Policy 3A.9 states that such targets should be based on an
assessment of regional and local housing need and a realistic assessment of supply, and should
take account of the London Plan strategic target that 35% of housing should be socigl and 15%
intermediate provision, and of the promotion of mixed and balanced communities. In addition,
Policy 3A.10 encourages councils to have regard to the need to encourage rather than restrain
residential development, and to the individual circumstances of the site. Targets sholild be applied
flexibly, taking account of individual site costs, the availability of public sulisidy and other scheme
requirements.

45 Policy 3A.10 is supported by paragraph 3.52, which urges borough councils to take account
of economic viability when estimating the appropriate amount of affordable provision. The “Three
Dragons’ development control toolkit is recommended for this purpose. The results of a toolkit
appraisal might need to be independently verified.

46 Haringey’s UDP contains a policy regarding affordable housing which states that housing
developments capable of providing 10 or more units will be required to include a proportion of
affordable housing to meet an overalt borough target of 50%. The proportion negotiated will
depend on the locatian, scheme details or site characteristics.

47 Atoolkit has been submitted with this application which shows that it is hot viable to
provide any affordable housipg as part of the develapment. This is because of the exceptional
development costs of buildirlg over the shallow London Underground lines and the fact that the
size of the building is limited by the load that can be put on the areas of the site that are above
the undergroupd lines. The toolkit has been independently verified by the Valuation Office Agency
and it has been confirmed that the development cannot support affordable Housing on viability
grotinds.

48 At the time of the previous Stage | dnd Stage | reports Harihgey Council had given an
undertaking, in its development agreement with the applicant, that affordable housing equating to
50% of the habitable rooms on the Wards Comer site will be provided In a tedevelopmept of the
Apex Houise site and a development of the Westerfield Road car park site, together with 50%
affordabie housing of any market provision on these sites themselves. However, given the current
economic climate the Council is no lopger able to make this undertaking.

49 The applicant has robustly demionstrated that it is not viable to prdvide any affordable
housing in this development and whilst this is regrettable the position is accepted.

50 It should also be noted that a larde amount of affotdable housing is in the pipeline in the

vicinity of the site. Most notably at Hale Village where the consent has recently begn amended to
increase the proportion of affordable housing.

page 9




Page 242

51 The EQIA sets out that the loss of the existing housing on the site is a negative impact
particularly given that it is likely that the unlts are occupied by BAME residents. GLA officers are of
the view this impact is mitigated by the high provision of social housing units and conventional
housing units in the pipeline locally. However the current residents should be actively engaged
with in order to mitigate the impact. It is accepted that the local council and relevant housing
associations have a duty to rehouse secure tenants. Any shorthold tenants and owner occupiers
should be offered assistance to locate to alternative suitable properties. This assistance should be
tonditioned/ set out in the section 106 agreement. '

Design and her‘étage

52 London Plan policies on historic environment are set out in London Plan policy 48.11 and
4B.12 and in Draft Replacement London Plan policy 7.8. The Draft Replacement London Plan sets
out the following in the planning decisions section of Policy 7.8: ‘development shiould preserve,
refurbish and incorporate heritage assets, where appropriate. New development in the setting of
heritage assets, and conservation areas, should be sympathetic to their form, scale, materials and
architectural detail.” Draft Replacement London Plan policy 7.9 sets out the following in the
planning decisions section: ‘New development should repair, refurbish and re-use heritage assets
including buildings at risk. It should be demonstrated that the proposed development would give
adequate status to the heritage asset in the design of the ptoposal.”

53 Part of the site lies withif a conservation area. Three of the existing buildings are locally
listed. The most riotable building, the Wards Corner building, was considered for listing in late
2007 by English Heritage but it was not felt to be worthy of listing. The applicant has looked at the
retention of this building in the scheme but has concluded that this would not be viable. This
approach has been agreed with Haringey Council officers. Conservation Area Consent for the
demolition of all buildings on the site was granted in November 2008 and this permission still
stands. As such the principle of demolition has been accepted.

54 Notwithstanding the Conhservation Area Consent already granted, in considering this
application against the Draft Replacement London Plan it would still be acceptable as the difficulty
of retaining the huildings and making the scheme viable mean that in this instance the
incorporation of heritage assets would not be appropriate. Whilst heritage led regeneration should
generally be pursued in this instance significant viability issues preclude that approach.

55 The architecture of the scheme is conceived as a modern interpretation of London’s
street architecture. The apartment blocks and shop fronts are presented as a terrace of adjoinihg
buildings, separated by shadow gaps. The principal residentlal storeys are brick faced, with stone
copings and cills. A range of rectangular window openings reflect the different requirements of
living rooms and bedrooms. Projecting windows enliven facades whilst providing views along the
street and bringing sunlight into the rooms. The shop fronts are fully glazed and framed with
dark painted or coated steel sections and a spandref zone for controlled signage. The set back
upper storeys ari coated in zinc and glass panels.

56 The corner to Seven Sisters Road and the High Road, where the Waids Corner building is
currehtly located, has been given special elevational treatment in order to create & landmark.
The corner block conforms to the general parapet height but is rounded on plan and framed in
stone. The stone frame is to carry a frieze of cast or sculpted relief images recalling the history
of the site, for which an artist will be selected by competition. Withip the stohe franie a
compasition of vertical coloured glass fins spans between the storeys, providlng visual interest
and scréening the rooms behind.

page 10




Page 243

57 The High Road centrepiece containing the shaps, residential foyer and first floor
restaurant comprises a frameless glass curved facade over two lofty storeys,

58 Suffield Road has a completely different scale and character to the other frontages. The
proposed frontage contains a row of family duplexes with private front doors at street level and
two floors of flats aBoye and these relate wel| to néighbouring I'esiofential buildings.

59 The a!architecturai approach is welcomed, particularly the high road centrepiete, the
Suffield Road blocks and the brick treatment and is considered to be sympathetic to the form,
scale, materials and architectural detail of the corjsepvation area and remaining heri{age assets.

60 Notwithstanding the extant cpnservation area consent the applicant has assessed the
impact the development would have on identified heritage assets, in accordance with PPS5. The
application would involve the loss of four heritage assets with low significance aer three heritage
assets with low to moderate significance. PPS 5 sets out that there s 4 presumptjon in favour of
the conservation of designated assets (in this instance the conservation area). It also sets out the
where the application Wil lead to the loss of such assets local planning authorities should refuse
consent unless it can be demonstrated that the substantfal harm to or loss of significant is
necessary to deliver substantial puhlic benefits that ottweigh harm or loss; the nature of the
herltage asset prevents all feasonable uses of the site and no viable use of the heiitage asset can
be found in the medium term that will enable its conservation; conservation through grant funding
is not possible and the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefits of bringing the site back into
use. PPS5 also requires focal planning authorities to take into accoiunt the value and significance
of all (other) heritage assets (in this instance the locally Jisted buildings).

61 Tfl. are cutrently committed to a major programme of works on the adjacent gyratory and,
whilst those works are not directly dependant on this scheme, the cumulative impact of this
development and the gyratory works should have a significant benefit for the setting of the
conservation area and the wider townscape. :

62 English Heritage has set out that whilst it accepts that it would not be viable for the current
scheme to reuse the existing buildings that public benefit could alsa be delivered thouigh a
conservatlon based scheme. The applicant has considered the viability of variations of the schere
which retain one or more of the existing locally listed buildings and Haringey Council has confirmed
that none of these options are financially viable or deliverable.

63 Given the relatively low significance of the assets, their current condition, the public
benefits of the regeneration and replacement market provided by the scheme, the non-viability of
the variants of the scheme and the extant conservation area consent it is considered that the loss
of the assets is justifiable.

64 Overall, the proposed scheme makes a positive contribution to the conservation area and
the wider towriscape and is acceptable.

Residential design quality

65 Policy 3.5 of the draft replacement plan introduces a new policy on the quality and design
of housing developments. Part A of the draft policy states that housing developments should be of
the highest quality internally, externally and in relation to the wider environment. Part C of the
draft policy states that new dwellings should meet the dwelling space standards set out in Table
3.3, have adequately sized rooms and convenient and efficient room layouts. Part E of the draft
policy states that the Mayor will provide guidance on implernentation of this policy incJuding on
housing design for all tenures. The reasoned justification provides further quidance and

page 11




Page 244

explanation. In particular paragraph 3.31 states that other aspects of housing design are also
important to improving the attractiveness of new homes as well as being central to the Mayor’s
wider objectives to improve the quality of life of Londoner’s environment,

66 To addréss these the Mayor has produced a new draft HousIng SPG on the |mplenientation
of Policy 3.5 for all housing tenures, drawing on his Housing Design Guide for affordable hous|ng.
Paragraph 3.33 hightights what the proposed SPG wauld cover, in terms of requirements for
individual dwellings. This draft has been produced for the London Plan examinatior in public.

67 Al the family homes and most other flats have private terraces or balconies. Most of the
homes are dual aspect and none of them has a single aspect north-facing otitlook. The number
of units per core has been minjmised.

68 The majority of the units meet the space standards, and many are larger than the
standards, and the overalt quality of the housing offer Is high, and this is acceptable.

Inclusive design

69  The applicant has set olit that 20 of the duplexes and four flats do nat meet lifetime
homes standards although they would be adaptable in the fufure by the creation of a small
living room at entry level and a ground floor WC and shower. Given the constraints of the site
this is acceptable in this instance, 10% of uhits are wheelchair accessible,

Climate charige mitigation

70 The London Plan climate charige policies as set out In chapter 4A collectively require
developments {o make the fullest contribution to the mitigation of ahd adaptation to climate
change and to minimise carbon dioxide emissions (Policy 4A). Chapter 5 of tHe 'fraft
replacement London Plad also requires deve|dpments to make the fullest contribution to
minimising carbon dioxidé emissions, '

71 London Plan policles 4A,4-11 focus on mitigatjcm of climgte change and require a
reduction in a cdevelopment’s carbon dioxide Errlis's,ions' through the use of passive desidn,
energy efficiency and renewable energy measures, The London Plan requires developments to
make the fullest contribution to tackling climate change by minimising carbon dioxide emissions,
adopting sustainable design and construction measures and prioritising decentralised energy,
including renewables.

72 Following discussions with the applicant the energy strategy has been revised to reflect
changes in policy and technology since the previous Stage | and Stage Il reports weriz issued.

Energy efficiency

73 The applicant has investigated additional energy efficiehcy measures that do not require
fundamental chahges to the architecture of the building. As part of this, a sample of dwellings
were modelled with improved insulation levels and mechanical ventilation with heat recovery.
The modelling confirms that, considering the dwellings together, they will exceed 2010 Building
Regulations compliapce through energy efficiency alone (and the overall development will
achieve a 25% reduction over 2006 building regulations through energy efficiency alone). This
is welcomed and is in line with Londoh Plan policy.

District Heating

page 12




Page 245

74 The applicant has investigated whether there are any existing or planned heat networks
within the vicinity of the development. Although no heat networks are currently available, the
applicant has committed to designing the sitewide heat network to allow future connection to
an external district heating network should the opportunity arise. The applicant has ptovided a
drawing identifying the location of the energy centre (towards the centre of the site) and its
physical size. This is welcomed and is in line with London Plan policy.

Combined heat and power plant (CHP)

75 The applicant has provided information indicating that the sizing and operation of the
CHP will be optimised to supply part of the space heating as well as the hot water demands.
This has been supported with monthly heat consumption data. This is welcomed and is in line
with London Plan policy.

Cooling
76 High performance glazing and shading will be used to minimise the need for active

cooling. While active cooling will not be required in the residential elements, it is likely to be
required in the retail units where electrically driven cocling will be employed. This approach is
acceptable.

Renewalile energy

77 The applicant has abandoned the proposed use of biofuel boilers due to air quality-and
other concerns. insteagl the inclusion of photovoltaic panels (PV) has been investigated and
proposed. Allowing for shading and other uses of roof space, 220 sg.m. of PV can be
accomodated. This would produce a carbon dioxide saving of 11 tonnes per annum. This change
in strategy is supported.

Summary

78 After the application of energy efficiency, CHP and renewable energy, the devélopment will
emit 165 tonnes per annum in reqgulated carbon dioxide emissions. This represents a saving of
100 tonnes of carbon dioxide per annum (38%) compared to a 2010 Building Regulations
compliant development. The energy strategy is supported and is in line with London Plan pelicy.

Transport

79 No new transport information has been submitted. The transport elements of the scheme
were considered to be, on balance, acceptable previously. In line wulth draft replacement London
Plan policy 20% of t‘we parking spaces prOV|ded on-site should have electric charqmg points and

a further 20% should have passive provision. The applicant has agreed to this provision.

80 TfL is currently committed to a major programme of works (£15 million) on the nearby
Tottenham Gyratory.

Local plannmg authority’s position
81 The development is gerierally supported at officer |evel by both the regeneration tear
and the planining officers.

Legal copsiderations

82 Under the arrangements set out in article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of
London) Order 2000 the Mayor has an opportunity to make representations to Haringey Council

page 13




Page 246

at this stage. If the Council subsequently resalves to grant planhing permission, it must allow
the Mayor an opportunity to declde whether to direct it to refuse planning permission. There is
no obligation at this present stage for the Mayor to Indicate his intentions regarding a possible
direction, and no such decision should be inferred from the Mayor's commients unless
specifically stated. :

Financial considerations

83 There are no financial considerations at this stage.

Conclusion

84  The regeneration of this site with & mixed use development is welcomed. The
replacement of the market and the provision of local retail space is welcomed and addresses the
concerns raised regarding previous iterations of the scheme and is, on balance, acceptable in
strategic planning terms. The significant improvements to the public realin and the improved
quality of retail provision is also welcomed. The applicant has robustly demonstrated that no
affordable housing can be provided on viability grounds. Given the relatively low significance of
the heritage assets, their current condition, the public benefits of the regéneration and
replicement market provided by the scheme, the non-viabllity of the variants of the scheme and
the eéxtant conservation area consent it is considered that the loss of the assets is justifiable.
Overall, the proposed scheme makes a positive contributior to the conservation area and the
wider townscape and is acceptable. The energy strategy is in line with London Plari policy.

85 Given the measured proposed in the section 106 agreement relating to the provision of a
market facilitator and the right to return for market traders the proposal is unlikely to give rise -
to major negative equality impacts, provided that provision of a temporary market is made
before the existing market closes, The negative impact of the non-provision of affordable
housing is justified by the fact that it would not be viable to provide affordable housirg and the
planned provision for such elsewhere in the local area. The Council should ensure that the
measures suggested in the equalities impact assessment to assist existing residents with
relocation are secured.

forfurther lnforrnatlon contact Planning Decisions Unit:

Giles Dolphln, Head of Planning Decisions

020 7983 4271  email giles.dolphin@london.gov.uk

Justin Carr, Strategic Planning Manager (Development Decisions)
0207983 4895  email justin.carr@london.gov.uk

Emma Williamson, Principal Strategic Planner (Case Officet)
0207583 6590 email emma.williamson@london.gov.uk

page 14




Page 247

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY

Mayor’s Office City Hall
The Queen’s Walk
Mare London
London SE1 2AA
Switchboard: 020 7983 4000
Minicom: 020 7983 4458
Web: www.london.gov.uk

IE[aul fsmlthr  Devel Our ref: PDU/1973/EW12
anning Policy and Development Your ref: HGY/2008/0303
Haringey Counci Date: 3 December 2008

639 High Road
London N17 8BD

Dear Mr Smith

Town & tountry Pllaérming Act 1990 (as amended); Greater London Authdrity Act 1999;
Town & Country Planning (Maybr of London} Order 2000
Wards Corner, Seven Sisters HGY/2008/0303

| refer to your letter of 21 November 2008 informing the Mayor that Haringey Council is minded to
grant planning permission for the above planning application. In this case the Mayor has delegated
his planning function to me, in my capacity as Deputy Mayor, Government Relations. [ refer you
also to the notice that was issued on 24 November 2008 under the provisions of article 4(1)(b)(i)
of the above Order. :

Having now considered a report oh this case (reference PDU/1973/02, copy enclosed) together
with the representatiohs received and the matters ralsed at meetings with Sir Simon Milton and the
Mayor, 1 have concluded that the regeneration of this partially derelict site with a mixed use
development is welcomed. The provision of a range of local q'nd multiple shop units and
replacemént market units, new homes, focal artwork, new civic space and improved entrances to
the Undef'ground wi[l significantly enhance the attractiveness of this site. The retail jmpact
assessment and saclo-économic impact assessment that have been submitted with the application
demonstrate that the application will haye a positivé impact on the area. The proposed replacement
market is considered to be adequate for the traders particularly given the street frantage arid
improved accommodation that will be provided. There will a_iso be opportunities fo} local retailers to
return to the development. The replacement of the market is considered to fulfil a commurjity
developmerit role within the area and will contribute to cultural activities in the area. The fact that
the site may fall into further disrepair prior to the planned start date is not a planning |
consicleration. The benefits of the schiame olitweigh any harin caused by the loss of the V\Ilards
Cornet building. The package of measures put in place to compensate market traders while the
development is taking place, to secure an alternative location during construction and facllitate the
re-provision of the market and some local retail space within the new development is welcomed
and addresses the concerns | raised previously.

The concerns raised abolit consultation on the application are noted, as is the cammunity’s desire

for a collaborative approach. Whilst the application is not strictly in accordance with the
development birief, in that the Wards Corner site has come forward ahead of the Apex House and

Direct telephone: 0207983 4100 Fax: 020 7983 4057  Email: mayor@london.gov.uk




Page 248




Page 249

Westerfield Road sites and there is no affordable housing proposed, the applicant has robustly
demonstrated that no affordable housing can be provided on viability grounds. This assertion has
been independently vérified and as such the application complies with London Plan policy. The
energy strateqy is acceptable in strategic policy terms. :

Notwithstanding the fact that the application is only for one site In the development brief area,
that there may be alternative plans for the site that involve the retention of the building, that these
alternative plans may mean that the development would be finished in time for the Olympics and
the recognised community aspiration for a collaborative approach, I have to consider this
application on its merits and | have concluded, for the reasons set out above, that the scheme is, on
halance, acceptable in strategic planning terms. [ am therefore content to allow Haringey Council to
determine the case itself, subject to any action that the Secretary of State may take, and do not
therefore wish to direct refusal.

Yours sincerely

fan Clement
Deputy Mayor, Government Relations

cc Joanne McCartney, London Assembly Constituency Member
Nicky Gavron, Chair of London Assembly Planning & Housing Committee
lan McNally & John Pierce, Gol.
Colin Lovell, TfL
Dean Williams & Helen Wood, LDA




Page 250




Page 251
GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY
planning feport PDU/1 973/02
3 December 2008
Wards Corner, Seven Sisters
in the London Borough of Haringey

planning application no. HGY/2008/0303

Strategic planining application stage Il referral
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended); Greater London Authority Act 1999; Town &

Country Planiijng (Mayor of London) Order 2000

The proposal

Demolition of existing buildings and the erection of a mixed-use development compfising 197
residentia| units, replacement market, new retail units and restaurant together with basement car
parking and a new public squgre on Tottenham High Road incorporating public realm
improvements.

The applicant
The applicant is Grainger (Seven Sisters) Ltd., and the architect is Pollard Thomas Edwards.

Strategic issues

Design, re-provision of the existing market, affordable housing, energy, children’s
playspace and transport. :

Recommengdation

That Haririgey Council be advised that the Mayor is content for it to determine the case jtself,
subject to any action that the Secretary of State may take, and does not therefore wish to direct
refusal.

Context

1 On 12 February 2008 Haringey Council consulted the Mayor of London on an application
for planning permission for the above development at the above site. This was referred to the
Mayor under Category 1B of the Schedule of the Order 2000. On 16 July 2008 the Deputy Mayor
considered planning report PDU 1973/01, and subsequently advised Haringey Council that “the
principle of the re-development of the site is supported in strategic policy terms. Any scheme that
fails to re-provide the market in its entirety within the developnient, together with temporary
provision whilst the site is redeveloped, will not be acceptable and will not comply with policy 3D.3
of the London Plan. In addition further work is needed on design and energy before this
application comes back to the Mayor.”

2 A copy of the above-mentioned report is attached. The essentials of the case with regard
to the proposal, the site, case history, strategic planning issues and relevant policies and guidarce

page 1




Page 252

are as set out therein, unless otherwise stated in this report. Since then, the scheme has been
amended ih respanse to the Mayor’s concerns (see below). On 17 November 2008 Haringey
Council decided that it was minded to grant planning permission for the application, and on 24
November 2008 it advised the Mayor of this decision. Under the provisions of the Town &
Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order 2000 the Mayor may direct the Council to refuse
planning permission, and has until 5 December 2008 to notify the Council of such a direction, This
report sets out the information needed by the Mayor in deciding whether to direct refusal.

3 ~ The decision on this case, and the reasons will be made available on the GLA’s website
www.london.gov.uk.

Update

4 Following the issuing of the Stage | decision a meeting was held between the applicant,
Haringey Council, the Mayor and Sir Simon Milton (Deputy Mayor for Planning and Pol‘cy) on 25
July 2008, At this meeting the Mayor expressed a view that the market should be répldeed in its
entifety within the development, a temporary location during redevelopment investigated ahd
chariges to the design of the roof were suggested, The follawing press release was issued following
the rneeting:

"The Mayor had a good meeting today with Haringey Council and the developer
Gralhger at which the Mayor reiterated his support for regeneration of the Wards Corner
site and his desire to see a future for the Latin American market that has been operating
there. The developers agreed to consider further options for the market's fisture in
partnership with the GLA, Haringey Councif and the traders and a follow up meéting will
be held in early September.”

5 A follow-up meeting was held between the applicant, Haringey Council apd Sir Simon
Milton on 3 Octaber 2008, Following this meeting a letter was sent to Haririgey Council as follows:

“The changes to the scheme, since the Stage I report was issued in July 2008 can be
summarised as follows:

¢ The market is now replaced, almost like for like in space terms, on the Seven
Sisters Road froptuge.

s  Grainger undertake to provide a minimum 6 months notice perlod to traders for
vacant possession.

« Compensction wil| be paid to traders at a rate equivalent to that payable under
the Lapdlord and Tepant Act 1954 and which amounts to £96,650.

o Grainger has employed Urban Space Management and Unioh Land to assess the
opportunities for temporary locations for the mdrket as a whole or within an
existing market.

e Four conditions are proposed to be contained within the S. 106 agreement.
These are as follows:

-the market must be run by an experienced indoor market operator

-this arrangement must be in place not less than 12 months prior to the
due practical completion date of the proposed development

page 2




6

Page 253

- The market must be occupied by not less than 60% of alf market traders
that previously occupied the Seven Sistes Market
- The rent will be open market for AT use class.

o The set back storey to Seven Sisters Road is now glazed.

It is considered by officers that these changes address the concerns set out in the Stage |
repott and decision letter, but these comments cannot fetter the Mayor’s decision when the
applicdtion is reported to him at Stage 11”.

A meeting was held between members of the Wards Corner Coalition and Sjr Simon Milton

on 26 November 2008, At this meeting the coalition expressed their view that the changes to the
proposal did not address the issues set out in the Stage | report and they outlined their alternative
vision for the site. Whilst a planning application, which is not referable, has been submitted for the
site by the coalition the scheme does not currently have funding.

7

The following issues were raised at the meeting:

e - The proposed replacement market will not be adequate for the traders.

¢ The needs of the local businesses have not been taken into consideration.

° Concern that the site will fall into further disrepair prior to the planned start date.
¢ The introduction of housing to the town centre will have a detrimentaf impact.

o Consultation has riot been adequate.

o The proposal is contrary to London Plan policy 3A.25 (now policy 3A.28 in the
London Plan (consolidated with alterations since 2004) ds there has been no social and
economic impact assessment of the proposal.

° There has been no adequate retail impact assessment.

o There is no community development aspect to the proposal and therefore the
proposal is contrary to London Plan policy 3D.1

° The proposal is contrary to London Plan policy 4B.7 (now 4B.8) as it fails to
recognise and manage local chdracteristics.

° The new development will struggle to compete with Tottenham Hale.

° Haringey have made this area a cultural quarter and this should be enhanced with a
development at Seven Sisters.

° Tﬁe area will be derelict in 2012 for the Olympics and yet it could be a Latin Quarter
for Spanish speaking visitors.

¢ If the buildings were to be restored then the development would be open in 2012.

s The current leaseholder of the market receives an average of two enquiries per

month from people interested in reusing the Wards Corner building.

page 3




Page 254

¢ The Prince‘s Regeneration Trust has expressed an interest in being involved in a
col|aborative project with the Council and the community.

° Parity Projects, an environmenta[ renovatioh specialist, is prepared to work with the
community but they need access to tha Wards Corner building and the construction
drawings.

° The energy strategy is not sutainable- the usé of biofuels Is Hackward {ooking.

° The consultation process has been flawed.

o The runnirg of the council meeting where the planning decision was taken was

bigsed and flawed.

° The assurances made to the fraders are not adequate- the market rents will not be
affordable, they can be priced out. There is also a fear that some traders will take the
compensation and will not return and thus the market will be broken up.

o No affordable housing is proposed and there i$ no guarantee that the Apex House
and Westerfield Road developments (which would provide a‘[lfordabi'e housing) will go
ahead, The development brief included all three sites dhd a holistic vision for all three sites
should be presented. The community have been looking at a plan for the whole area with
East Architects and GlassHouse, The community feel a more collaborative approach is
needed.

° TfL. as landowner of part of the site should accept a reduced value to their land to
enable the alternative proposal to go ahead.

8 The proposed section 106 agreement includes an education contribution of £200,000, a
contribution of £100,000 for a public art competition for artwork at the front of the site on the
High Street and the design of the frieze on the comer building, as well as the reprovisiop of the
matket,

The market, local retail and principle of land use
9 The stage | decision letter stated the following regarding the market:

“Any scheme that fails to re-provide the market in its entirety within the development,
together with temporary provision whilst the site is redeveloped, will not be acceptable and
will not comply with London Plan policy 3D.3 of the London Plan.”

10 The plans have substantially changed since the Stage | decision and the market is now
replaced on the Seven Sisters Road frontage. The floorspace of the current market is 9,700 sq.ft.
and the replacement market will be 9,434 sq.ft. Whilst the replacement market is slightly smaller it
will still accomiodate the same number of stalls as the existing market and has a more efficient
layout. The large entrance to the market will be from the prominent corner building through the
feature arch and the market units will also have a frontage to Seven Sisters Road.

11 The applicant has undertaken to provide a minimum of 6 month’s notice to the traders for
- vacant possession and compensation will be paid to traders at a rate equivalent to that payable
under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 and which amounts to £96,650. The tfaders do not have
any tenancy rights and therefore this payment is voluntary.

page 4




Page 255

12 Grainger has employed Urban Space Mandgement dnd Union Land to assess the
opportunities for temporary locations for the market as a whole or within an existing rﬁark’gt._ Given
that the applicarit has stated that It will take approximately two years before the divelopment
starts on-site it is not practicable to identify an alternative location at this point.

13 The applicant is putting together plans for a ‘market facilitator” to work with traders in the
long term to identify an alternatjve location. To this end they are in discussions with North London
Business, Hdringey Council and the Bridge New Deal for Communities (NDC). A funding bid will be
presented to the London Developmeht Agency in the new year for this role. The applicant is also
discussing setting up a fnarket steering committee to conslst of themselves, Haringey Council, the
NDC, North Londori Business and the market traders.

14 Four conditions are set out in the Section 106 agreement:
e The market must be run by an experienced indoor market operator

o This arrangement must be in place not less than 12 months prior to the due
practical completion date of the proposed development

¢« The market must be occupied by not less than 60% of all market traders that
previously occupied the Seven Sisters Market

o The rent will be open market for AT use class

15 These conditions are considered to be reasonable to ensure that the market is provided for
the current traders and that it will be successful in the long term.

16 The six units located on West Green Road have been specifically designed to accommodate
local retailers. The Section 106 agreement will include clauses to the effect that the applicant will
develop and promote a letting strategy in respect of these units which is consistent with the
proimiotion of West Green Road as a district centre focused around independent trading. In addition
the lettings will need to be approved by Haringey Council and prior approval will need ta be given
for the amalgamation of any of the units to form farger units. The promotion of local independent
retail is welcomed.

17 The concept of locating residential units above retail uses is well established and is
considered to be particularly suitable for this location above an underground station. The
additional resldents in the area will increase the security of the area by introducing users to the
area particularly in the evening. They will also increase the number of potential shoppers in the
area which will be positive for the existing shopping centre.

18 As identified in the Stage | report a town centre health check undertaken by Cushman and
Wakefield in early 2008 concluded that whilst the centre displays some positive qualities such as,
good accessibility, a notable independent trading sector, and the presence of a reasonable quality
food store anchor, a range of problems and challenges faces the centre. Most notable of these are
the poor quality of the physical environment, the lack of recognised national multiple traders, the
problems associated with heavy traffic, and retail competition from the Tottenham Hale retail park.
Cushman and Wakefield conclude that the development proposed would have a number of positive
benefits for the centre including: the potential to attract a quality anchor tenant to Seven Sistefs;
that the development would represent a more intensive use of this part of the centre; that the
development would not harm the positive characteristics of the centre, including its independent
retail offer; that the scheme Would help maximise the benefit of its position adjacent to a very busy
entrance to an underground station with easy access to the central London; that the

page 5




Page 256

characteristics of the developnient would represent an opportunity for the centre to try and
safeguard its vitality and viability in the face of competition; and the proposal would assist in
addressing the identified shortcamings in the environmental quality of the centre and public reatm.
The ICM poll carried out by the applicant found that 63% of respondents favoured the option of
providing retail units for use by both high street shops and local traders, compared to 30% who
wanted retail focussed around the existing market and local traders.

19 The arrangements for the fit-out of the market and the local retajl units are still under
discussion. The delivery of the market and these units are a requirement of the planning permission
and deviation from this approach would require the prior permission of Haringey Council. On this
basis it is considered that the rents of the units and the market will be controlled by the nature of
the spaces and will therefore be comparable to other local rates.

20 The proposed offer is a combination of multiples, local retail and the Latin American
market. The proposals deliver a range of retailing options for all types of businesses. Within this
offer six units are specifically allocated for local retailing. As such, the proposal would have a
positive impact on the centre. A social and economic impact assessment as set out in London Plan
policy 3A.25 has been produced together with a retall impact assessment and a market assessment.
The developer has replaced the market in the development and provided units specifically designed
for local retail and the Council is satisfied that their plans will be a positive benefit to the area and
the local community. The proposed scheme therefore complies with London Plan pelicy 3D.3,
3A.25 and 3B.1(The Mayor will seek a range of workspaces of different types, sizes and costs to
meet the needs of the different sectors of the economy and firms of different types and sizes).

21 The retention of the Latin American Market also complies with London Plan policy 4B.8:
Respect|ng local context and communities given that the market is replaced within the
development. The heritage aspects of the issue of local context are discussed in the design section
below.

Design
22 The Stage | report concluded the following on design:

“The architectdral approach is on the whole welcomed, particularly the high road centfepiece, the
Suffield Road blocks and the brick treatment, however, the set back upper storeys and the corner
treatment appear awkward and should be reconsidered.”

23 The sét back upper storeys are now glazed and further details have been submitted of the
corner treétmert. A frieze will be jncluded around the corner arch and this will Be the subject of a
competition. As such the issues raised at Stage I, and subseguently by the Mayor, have been
resolved. |

24 Anumber of objections have been received which st out requests ta preserve the existing
buildings on the site and the Wards Comer building specifically. The Stage 1 l‘epo’rt set but the
following on heritage issues:

“Part of the site lies within a conservgtion area. Three of the existing buildings dre facally
listed. The most notable building, the Wards Cormner building, was considered for fisting in
late 2007 by English Heritage but it was not felt to be worthy of listing. The applicant
has looked at the retentiof of this }Juﬂdfng in the scheme but has concluded that this
would not be viable. This approach has been agréed with Haringey Council officers. It is
considered that the loss of the buililing would be justifiable provided the quality of the
replacement scheme is high.

page 6




Page 257

Overall, the proposed scheme, with the changes set out above, would make a positive
contribution to the conservation area and the wider townscape.”

25 English Heritage state that the applicant has demonstrated that the retention of the
buildings on-site would render the current proposal unviable however, it also states that the
supporting information does not confirm that repair and refurbishment is unviable. English
Heritage support a coriservation led approach to regeneration.

26 CABE suggested that the massing at roof level on West Green Road should be reconsidered
and it raised concerns around the maintenance of the public space however, overall it felt that the
scheme has the potential to transform the area and the scheme is supported.

27 Given that the buildings were not felt worthy of listing, that there is no currently viable
refurbishment led stheme under consideration and most importantly that the pfoposed scheme
makes a positive contribution to the conservation area and the wider townscape it is considered
that the pr‘oPosal complies with the London Plan in design terms.

Climate cﬂ1ange mitigation

28 The applicant has clarifed building regulatior calculations for the dwellings, providing
additional information in relation to passive energy features adppted. The provision of additional
modelling work for the non- re5|dent|al element of the development has been secured by condition.
The rniplementat:on of energy efﬁuency measures for the resrdentlal upits to reduce carbon
dioxide EPISS]OHS by at least 8% beyond the tardet efissions rate 19 secured by condition.

29 The provision of a single energy centre and heat network is conditioned together with the
combiner] heat and power plant (CHP). The applicants states that the gas CHP unit s to be the
lead bmllar with the bio-fuel boller as a top- up boiler, and the applicant has indicated that the
electricity genérated will be Used within the development.

30 The Stage | report set out that the dual fuel boiler (natural gas and rapeseeds oil) was not
acceptable as the only renewalyle solutlon for the development, and that this option required
significant further information before it could be consideted acceptable. The apphcant has
subrhitted further information that demonstrates that due to the constraints of the site, and on
cost grounds, there is |imited viability for other renewable solutions to be provided. Further
information in relation to the availability and type of biofuel, fuel suppliers, delivery of biofuel to
site, and storage of biofuel have heen provided, Reference has also been made Lo the carbon
intensity factors and guidelines on this Issue given under the Government’s Rehewdble Trasnport
Fuel Obligation (RTFO).

31 The submission of further details of the biofuel hoiler type, air quality impact, fuel supply
and carbon intensity are secured by condition. A requirement that, 15 months from the practical
completion of the development, the applicant shall submit to the Local Planning Authority a
statement confirming the amount of biofuel used by the development in the preceding yeat is also
conditioned. Such a statement then needs to be submitted annually for five years, The provision of
10.5% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions from renewable energy technologies is conditioned.
Although the use of dual fuel boilers is not an ideal solution it is acceptable in this case, given the
conditions that have been-included and due to the constraints of the site and the atceptabillty of
the solution to Halingey Council.

32 Further information on the cooling strategy has been submitted and is satisfactory.

page 7




Page 258

33 The epérgy strategy is broadly in line with London Plan policy and is now acceptable.
Climate change adaptation

34 The Stage | report set out that further information needed to be provided of any measures
desjgned to prevent overheating, minimise solar gain, minimise water use and contribute to flood
risk reductions. The applicant has stated that the following measures have been inchrporgted to
reduce peak sdlar gain in summer anc{ allow passive heating in wintér: deep reveals in the brick
facade, relatively low ratios of glazed and opadue areas and the projection of the facades to the
west on Suffield Road an|d the south elevatiort on West Greéen Road. The applicant has committed
to the water {drget set out in the London Plan of 105 litres of water per person per day. This
should be secured in the secticn 106 agreement.

Traris?ort

35 In view of the highly accessible nature of the site it was recommended that the scheme
be made car free. The development provides 39 car parking spaces and 12 on street permits for
the town houses. All other occupiers of the development wil] be prevented from obtaining a
permit by section 106 agreement, which is welcomed in order to encourage sustainable travel. A
survey of bus stops together with suggested mitigation was requested at the consultation stage
and it is disappointing to note that this has not yet been undettaken. It is therefore unclear on
what basis the borough reached their conciusior that the impact on the public transport
network is acceptable. Travel plans for the commercial and residential elements of the scheme
will be secured by condition and this is welcomed in order to mitigate travet demand, and should
Include clear targets and a robust monitoring mechanism. The approval of any construction
routing should minimise the impact on the TLRN and the developer should be reminded that TfL
can licepse temporary use of the public highway in certain circumstances.

36 The proposed development will be in close proximity to TfL owned property,
including the underground station, tunnels and infrastructure. Accordingly the impacts of

construction and excavation, including impacts on the integrity of the all the station assets,
need to be robustly managed. A construction strategy should be secured by condition and
determined in consultatioh with London Underground, however to date no such conditions or
informatives has been proposed. The detailed design and programme of works to provide
canopies over the station entrances and kiosks within their Vicinity should be secured by a
condition to ensure that there is an acceptable impact on Seven Sisters Station.

London Development Agency’s comments

37 At Stage 1, the London Development Agency (LDA) supported the principle of
development, however, the Agency raised a number of issues relating to existing market and
the wider regeneration potential of the scheme.

38  Asthe original scheme did not include the like for like reprovision of the existing market,
the LDA requested that in accordance with London Plan Policy 3D.3 '"Maintaining and improving
retail facilities', every effort must be made to find alternative accommodation for the

existing market traders. [n addition, given the significant construction period for the proposed
developmient, sufficient notice and support should be given to tenants to allow them explore the
options for re-location on or off site available to them, The LDA therefore welcomes that

the Section 106 agreement secures the replacement of market, almost like for like in space
terms along the Seven Sisters Road frontage. In addition, the LDA welcomes that a minimum six
month notice will be given to traders for vacant possession and that the applicant will employ

page 8




Page 259

Urban Space Management and Uriion Land to assess the opportunities for temporary locations
for tHe market as a whole or within an existing market. The LDA therefore conslders that there
are no strategic issues in relation to London Plan Policy 3D.3.

39 At Stage 1 the LDA Highlighted that in accordance with London Plgn Policies 3B.1
‘Developing London’s eéconomy’ and 3B.11 'Improving employment opportunities for Londoners’
and the adoptéed Wards Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief, the developer
should seek to ensure that local residents and businesses benefit from the job opportunities
created by this proposal, in both the consttuction and operational phases of the development.
The LDA therefore welcomes that the section 106 agreement Heads of Terms includes the
requirement for the applicant to submit a construction Training and Local Labour Agrepment. In
addition, the LDA welcomes the requirement to procure goods and services from local
businesses and to recruit local people. The LDA therefore considers that there are no strategic
issues in relation to London Plan Pollcies 3B.1 and 3B.17 and that the Economic Development
Objective to 'Tackle Barriers to Employment" is met.

Other comments

40 English Heritage state that the applicant has demonstrated that the retention of the
buildings on-site would render the current proposal unviable however, it also states that the
supporting information does not confirm that repair and refurbishment is unviable. English
Heritage does not consider that the replacement buildings offer sufficient merit to justify
demolition and it considers that a scheme that takes a conservation led approach to regeneration
should be pursued.

41 CABE has made some comments regarding the massing at roof level on West Green Road
(which has been resolved with the glazed set back storeys) and around the maintenance of the
public space however, overall it feels that the scheme has the potential to transform the area and
they support it.

42 Tottenham Civic Society has stated that the proposal is an over-development of the site
and would result |n serious compromise to the quality of life of new and existing residents.

43 Tottenham Conservation Area Advisory Committee object to the application on the grounds
that there are no adequate grounds to demolish historic and characterful buildings in a
conservation area; the loss of locally listed buildings; the proposal is not in keeping with the
planning brief for the site or for policies for creating new town centres; the proposed design is not
appropriate in the conservation area on the grounds of bulk, mass and height; the proposal
represents overdevelopment; there is no social housing and therefore a socially divisive gated
community is created; there is a lack of amenity space for future residents; family businesses and
the market will be destroyed; small business units suitable for start-ups will be lost; there has heen
a lack of consultation with the local community; a bland environment with no sense of place will be
created which will be unaffordable to local resldents and local shopkeepers.

44 The Environment Agency stated that it had no objection to the application provided that its
suggested conditiops 'reiating to d{ainage, decontamination, storage of oils, fuels and chemicals
and water efficiency are imposed. These conditions have not been included on the draft decision
notice. Haringey Council sholld ehsure that these conditions are included in either the decislon
notice orin the Section 106 agreement.

45 Transport for London (property division) has written in support of the application stating
that they welcome the anticipated improvements to the local environment.

page 9




Page 260

Response to consultation

46 Haringey Council’s committee report sets out that 242 letters were received by Haringey
Council regarding-the application ; 23 of these letters are in support and 23 letters are duplicates.
The report also sets out that 123 email objections were received by Haringey thiough their “Public
Access” system. Two petitions were also recelved by Haringey Council. One had 81 signatures and
was in support of the application (although some of the signatures were subsequently withdrawn)
and one had 126 signatures and objected to the development, The GLA hds also received 15
objections directly (as of Friday 28 November).

47 The following issues have been raised by the letters, emails and petitions iri objection to the
proposal: the impact on local businesses; the loss of traders homes; blight due to the length of
construction; loss of the market; loss of the Wards Corner building and Edwardian terrace;
insufficient consultation; the development is not in accordance with the planning brief; the design
is not an imaginative gateway to the area; the development is not at a human scale; the
development creates a gated community; the development is not appropriate in a conservation
area; the development will replace local businesses with chain stores; there Is no open space in the
development; there has been no involvement of the local community in the drawing up of the
plans; there is no social housing provided and no apparent planning gain; the proposals are based
on the erroneous notion of risk of crime in the area but will in fact make the area more dangerous.

48  The Wards Corner Community Coalition have held public meetings and have submitted
objectlons to the planning application as well as ah alternatlve vision for the site, Their objections
are set out in paragraph 7 above.

49 Tottenham Conservatives have stated that the Wards Cormer building shotild be preserved
and that it is their opinion that the current plans are unimaginative and ugly. They state that
restaration would be possible and that the current plans would destroy the local businesses on the
site ahd make a number of the traders homeless as they also live on-site as well as cause disruption
to local transport services and put a strain on local infrastructure.

50 David Lammy MP for Tottenham has stated that the plans for the redevelopment of the
site Have improved following hls discussionis with the developers however, he points out the
historic value of the Wards Corner building and the continued concefns that the traders and local
businesses have over thelr futures.

51 [ceni prajects have written a letter on behalf of the community coalition specifically
addressing thﬁ revised scheme. They have stated that the increased rent levels in the market will
make it uniiable, that there are no firm commitments to provide a témporary location, the
requirement that 60% of the traders return will be unviable as there is no firm temporary relocation
optlon, the disfinctiveness of the market will he lst as part of this redevelopment and this will
have &n impact on its community value, London Plan policy 3A.25 Has not been complied with and
no social and econemic impact assesstent has been carried out, policy 3D.3 has pot been
complied with in that retail facilities that provide essential convenience arld speécialist shopping will
he lost; London Plan policy 3B.1 has not beén compliéd with in that a range of premises of
différent types, sizes and costs to meet the rieeds of different sectors of the economy d d firms of
different types and sizes have ndt been provided; the policy also calls for meeting the heeds of
small and medium enterprises and black and minority ethnic budinesses; the development does not
accord with London Plan bolicy 4B.7 in that the Mayor will work w_%th local communities to
recognise and manage local distinctiveness.

page 10




Page 261

52 Aletter from lceni covering the same points listed ahove was also received directly by [an
Clement, the Deputy Mayor. These points are dealt with in the section on the market above.

53 The heritage, design and market issues are dealt with in the body of the report above.

54 The following issues have been raised in support of the scheme: the area needs to be
developed to make the area a safe place to live and work in; the proposal will introduce viable
retail competition to Tesco; the plans will give Seven Sisters a boost; the proposals will give a more
favourable impression of the area; the proposals will increase the range of goods available to
customers; the existing buildings are shabby and mostly unused and provide no facilities for
residents in the ares; the area is currently threatening and depressing, the new plans will
regenerate local businesses and the community as a whole.

55 A letter of support was received from the Bridge New Deal for Communities.

56 The Prince’s Regeneration Trust wrote to the Mayor setting out that it had been
approached by the Community Coalition and were in discussions with them about delivering a way
forward. GLA officers subsequently contacted the Trust and it has now stated that it has no curreft
plans to be involved and that in order to be involved there would need to be collaboratiori between
Haringey Council, the developers and the local commuhity.

Legal considerations

57 Urider the arrangements set out {n article 5 of the Town and Countty Planning (Mayor of
London) Ordet 2000 the Mayor has the power to direct the local planining authority to refuse
permission for a piann'ng application referred to him under article 3 of fche Order. Il doing so the
Mayor must have regard to the matters set out i article 5(2) of the Order, including the pririciple
purposes of the Greater London Authority, the effect on health and sustainable development,
national policies and in‘ternatiopal obligations, redional plahning guidance, and the use of the River
Thames. The Mayor may direct refusal if he conslders that to grant permission would be contrary
to good strategic plarining in Greater London. [f he decides to direct refusal, the Mayor must set
out his reasons, and the local planning authority must issue these with the refusal riotice.

Finaricial considerations

58 Shoulld the Mayor direct refusal, he would be the principal party at any subsequent appeal
hearing or pubilic inguiry. Government guidance in Circular 8/93 ("“Award of Costs in Planning and
Other (including Compulsory Purchase Order) Proceedings’) emphasises that parties usually pay
their owh expénses arising from ah appeal.

59 Following ani inquiry caused by a direction to refuse, costs may be awarded against the
Mayor if he has either directed refusal unreasonably; handled a referral from & planning authority
unreasonably; or hehaved unreasonably during the appeal. A major factor In declding whether the
Mayor has acte unreasonabily will be the extent to which he has taken account of established

planhing pol]cy,

page 11




Page 262

Conclusion

60  The regeneration of this site with a mixed use development is welcomed. The replacement
of the market and the provision of local retail space is welcomed and addresses the concelrjs raised
at Stage | and is, on balance, acceptable in strategic plannihg terms. The significant improvements
to the public yealm and the improved quality of retail provision is dlso welcomed. The outstanding
design and eJergy issues have been tesolved.

for further informaticn, contact Planning Decisions Unit:

Giles Dolphin, Head of Planning Decisions

0207983 4271  email giles.dolphin@london.gov.uk

Justin Carr, Strategic Planning Manager (Development Decisions)
0207983 4895  email justin.carr@london.gov.uk

Colin Wilson, Strategic Planning Manager (Planning Frameworks)
0207983 4783  emall colin.wilson@london.gov.uk

Emma Williamson, Case Officer

020 7983 4310 emall emma.willizmson@london.gov.uk

page 12




Page 263

GREATERLONDONAUTHORITY BT .
Policy & Partnerships Directorate O Citypall
T o o Lo e 'TheQueensWa[k
" Mare London -
" Loridor SET 2PA
o _Sw:tchhoard 020 7983 4000
LU Minicom: 020 7983 4458 -
. _.Web VY. londongovuk .
“Oprraf: PDU/1973/EW04
" Your refy HGY/2008/0303 -
Date: 16 July 2008

- ._Pau[ Smlth
= P]anning Pollcy and Development
- Haringgy Council
- 639 High Road
- London N17 88D .

P :DearPaulSmIth

R Mayor

L Townr & Couhtry Plannmg Al:t 1990 (as 1mended), Greater Londor\ Au_thorrty

nrd Corner Seven S rs HGY/2008/0303

cd refer to’ your letter of 12 Februaly 2008, consultmg the Mayor of i_ondon onthe above plannlng
-application. The Mayor. has delegated his planning _funr_:t;on to-his Deputy Mayor, Goverriment -

“Relations, and-on’ 16 July 2008 the latter considered'a report on this proposal reference S -

S PDU/1973/OT A c py of the report is attached In full S

Havmg consrdered the i’epO[’t the. Deputy Mayor has concluded that the pnnclple of the re- .
L development of the site Is sipported. in strategic palicy . terms. However, the Deputy Mayor has come
“toan alternatlve conclusion te that set out.In the report with regard to the market. Any scheme that
~ -falls to re-provide the market in its entirety within the development, together with temporary
o provls;on whilst the siteis redeveloped wrll not be acceptable and w1l| not comply wrth London Plan
o pollcy ED 3 of the i_ondon Plan, R . i L

in addrtian further work is needed on de5|gn and energy before th:s app!rcatlon comes back to the o -

COIR Harlnqey Councrl deades in due course that ;t is mlnde(i to approve the appllcatlon, lt should
o allow the Mayor fourteen’ days to decide whether or not to direct the Colingil to refuse planmng
‘permission {under article A(1)(b)(1) of the Town & Country Plannirig (Mayor of London) Order-
~2000).- You shiould therefore send.me 4 copy-of any-officer’s report on this case to your plannlng L
 committee:(or lts’ equlvalent}, together with a statement of the permlssron your authorlly proposes
" “to grant and of.any conditions the authority proposes to Impofe, and a copy of any representatrons
L made In respect of the appllcatlon (artlcle 4(1){a) of the Orcler)

: Yours smcerely,

Glles Dolphin .
Head of Plannmg DECISIonS

Dl_r‘e_cttole'plr'on:e: 0;0?98% fl?_-lO_ ) :Fil)ﬂ 020_?9é3 4706 :-'Er_n._ai_lz egnma;wllliamso.n@lon_don..éov.uk_'"' '




Page 264

: Joanne McCartney, London Assembly Constituency Member

* Tony Arbour; Chair of London Assembly Planning and Spatlal 'Development Commlitee
John Pierce and lan McNally, GOL.

- Colin Lovell, TfL

B He[en Woad and Dean Williams, LDA




Page 265

.GREATERLO_N_DQNAUT_HQRETY
:____..: o plannlng report PDU/‘I 973/01
Vo 4Ju|y2008

Wards Corner, Seven Slsters] |

in the London Borough of Haringey -
it o -,.{;:;pl_;a.l:n_ning,:app_li.cat.iqn,no_«;’HQY'/?‘QQ&/O?'Q?'.'

Demolitidn of ex1sting buildlngs and the erectlon t)f 4 lePd «tise development Comprl'slnq 197
residential-units, new. ‘retail:units and restaurant together.with basement car. parkmg and @ new

publ;c square on; Tottenham ngh Road Incorporating pubhc reaim 1mprovements

Strategic ISSUes N e e ‘
Destgn,'re prdvlslron fthe e)ﬂst g‘_n’tarket affnrdab!e huumng, energy hlldren'+

| pla}ysp__ n_d(tran ‘pdlz_'.

s | ST
R(‘st.oménendatlon o
That Harjngey ('ouncli beé advised that the regeneration of this site with.a:mixed use development
is generally cofsistent with London Plan policies. The level of reprovision of spdce for the market
| @ndfocal retailers.s on ba{ance acceptable, Further. work is needed on, de 51gn and energy before
| this’ applicat;on cornes back to the Mayor at Stage IL e

i On 12 Fehruary 2008 Harrngey COUHC!I consulted the Mayor 0 l_ondon on a pmposal to

' develop the above site. for the aboye uses. Under the provisions of: ghe Town &. Country Plannang
{Mayor of London) Order 2000 the Mayor has the same apportunity as other statutory consultees

*to comment on the. proposal 'lhis report sets out information for the Mayof's use ln decldlng what
comments to rnake

The apphcat[on is feferable under Category 1B of the Schedu[e to the Order ?ODG
”Development (other. than development which-only Lomprlses the prowsfon of houfes ﬂats or
_houses and ﬂats) WhiCh comprises or: mcludes the erection of @ buﬂdmg or buﬂd: gs (c):utside -
Central 1. ce of ., more than 7 OOO sq m." BN

July 2008 page t




Page 266

3% H‘a'ridée“y Co'uri'ch sUbeequ'ehtly decides that it is minded to grant planning permission, it
must first allow the Mayor an opportunity to decide whether to dlrect the Counrll torefuse
-~ perfission; . . : :

“The. Mayor’s cqmments on thiS case vill be made available on the GLA website
'www tondon gov.uk. T

spr-e"ues‘mptien s e

5+ Wards Corner fs'a promrpent slté above Seven Sisters Victoria Line underground station on
_ the western side of Tottenham High Road, The site is also located near to Seven Sisters overground -
station. The site is 0.65 hectares'and comprises a group of 2 and 3-storey late Victorian A
 commerclal buildings along the western side ‘of Tottenham High Road wrapping roumd.into West ©
Green Road and Seven Sisters Road together with a group of Victorian terraced.houses on SuffJeld _
* Road, tt inclucles the Wards Cornér department store bullding which ¢ gwes the site. Its name. The. .
:slte Is in the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District Centre and the area s predommantly made up, :
~of local independent traders with a mix of Turkish, Cypriot, Colombian and Afro-Caribbean ..
“influgnces. The site also incorporates an indoor market comprising 36 separate shbps/urﬁts of
which 64% of traders originate from.Latln America and /or are:Spanish speaking. ( he total retall
- Hloorspace climently on.site is 3,182 sq.m. The existing residential accommedation on site
comprises 33 residential units along Suffield Road as well as first Hloor accommodation above th_e -

~_ retail units on Tottenham High Road, Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. The sité is in

: multlpie owoershlp with Tﬂ_ and Haringey Counc;i both havmg mgmfrcant }and hold}hgs

61 The site’ marks the overlapprng sect|on of two identified regeneratfon areas- the Tottenham.
""Hrgh Roacf regeneration area and The Bridge New Deal for Communities Area. A planning brlef has :
. also béen prepared for the site. Part of the site is in the Seven Sisters Conservation'Area, ¢ ;
- essentially the Wards Corner building, the Tottenham. High Road fronfage.and. half of the =
Green Road frontage None of the buildings are statutorr[y listed although_three have been ocally
listed: the Wards Corner building and 1a and b West Green Road. The slte has ] publlc transport
accessibility level of 6 (where 1 is low and 6 is htgh] : S

,7“

Detarls oi the proposal e T

7. The proposed deveiopment compnses 197 resrdential untts ln i mlx of studros 1 2 and 3— P
_’bedroom units and 3,792 se.m. of retall. The retal Units will be located on the TottenHam Hlgh = -
Road, West Green'Road and Seven Sisters frontages with the Tottenham High Road frontage
aimed primarily at high street multiples and the other frontages afmed at local retallers, The West
Green Road frontage units are drranged as kiosks to allow for the Jocation of uses similar-to that -
provided in the exlstlng market. The family residentlal units are located 4t ground floor on Suffield
*Road and the smaller unlts are Iocated above the retai] units accessed fromea: podium 44 parkrng
spaces mcluclmg three d|sabled spaces, are mcluded in the basement car park :

B Case hlstory

8 - There are no previous strategic planning applications for this site. A development brfef for
the slte was adopted in January 2004. The hrief acknowledges that the area around the station is
percelved as unsafe by the local community and suffers fram 4 high degree of ciime. The range ‘of..
shops and facilities in the area is consrdered to be poor. The bnef sets but a, number of strategrc :
objectives for the redevelopment and regeneration of the area, The following vision is set out:
‘create a landmark development that acts as @ high quality gateway to Seven Sisters, prowdmg
mixed uses with improved facilities and safer underground station access”, The brief states that the
redevelopnient of the site should take piace compreliensively and should make the best use of the

July 20d8 ' . page 2




- traders and: communlty asscciattons'

Page 267

opportumtles presented by the site including the provision of new housing and retall ses, The
~replacement buildings should be of a distinctive and Imaginative modern design with active
frontages and visual variety and interest and should enhiance the conservation area. The bnef also
- sets out tHat the development should Include significant improvements to the public realm*

_ imludlng public art and street treec; and |mprovements to the acce 2] to the underground and bus
waiting angd lnterchange facrllt!es ERIR R :

‘9. An a!ternatwe development proposal has been subm|tted by a coahtron oF thL marke'
“The description’ of-the development is as’ Follows; “E e{dlon of
first flom rear extenslons,” ] ‘to rear’ e]evation Alterations to. frdnt elevatlon, mciudmg new
“bays at-first floor levél and dormer windows to front roofslope lnstaHati' ) opfroi
- [tefatlons t 3-’sloréy’c ner block; internd Tiew. "
' (s /cafe (A3)Uise o round. 7 f:rst ﬁoors and creatlon of 8x ong bed flats
d floor.” hlS scheme envisages the refurblshment of the' exnstmg billdings aid the "
_retentlo an expans;o of the- exustfng market This applica

o 8 e 8 & B 6 o_,o e e

) ._,_London P!an PP53 Housmg SFG
; ’ '_ﬁLondon Plan; PPS3; Housing SPG
{U{ban deslgn " London Plan;
‘Mix of uses.,. - o London Plun o Lo : e
a.-;.Regeneratlbn SRR E London Pfan the Mayors Economrc Deve!opment&irategy
ETransport 00U London Plan; the Mayor's Transport Strategy; PPG13;
e e - London Plgn; the Mayor's Transport Strategy, PPG 13::
3l AN “London Plan; PPS6; PPG13°.
E:mployment _"'L"oh.c'fohijPia ’PP64; draft PP5.4, indstrial Capacity '§
.Access BRI *: London Plan; PPS? ‘Accessible. London; ] feving an mrfusrve
' - “environment SPG; Wheelcha;rAccess;b!e Housing BPG; Plgnning
R : .and Access for Disabled People:q good proctice guide (ODPM)
. EqUa!_.qpportuniti_es o - London Plan; Planning Tor.Equality and Diversity in Meeting'the . -
T spatmi needs of London’s diverse communities SPG; vaersrty
L T Tand Eg ,htyrn Planning; A gaod practice gufde_.(ODPM),, e
. '.Cultdre " London Plan; the Mayor’s. Culture Stratedy. L

) Sustamab]e deveiopment '; ‘London Plan; PPS, PPS P!anmng and Climate Change .
= §upp!ement to PPS1; PPS3; PPG13; PPS22; the Mayor's En?rgy
i - . Strategy; Sustginable Design’ and Construct:on SPG '
. Hlstoric Enwronment e London Pian PPGTS R :
11 For the purposes of Sectlon 38(6) of the Plannlng and Compulsqry Purchase Act 2004 the
deve!opment plan In force for the area Is Harlngey Unitary Deve]opment Plan (2006) artd the - -
London Pfan. (Consolidated with A[teratlons since 2004).. L .,

12 The followlng are a]so relpvant materlai consnderatlons

. The Halmgey Core Strategy whlch ns at [SSUES and opt;ons stage

July 2008 : : _ : page 3.




Page 268

.‘ Theplannlng b“effﬂrth"'sne e ah

M!X of uses '

13 ( The concept of the redevelopment wrth res ,ldentlal Eocated above retar] at a publlc transport
;nterchange is supported in strategrc pollcy terms :

ln 2003 Chesterton carned out a health check or' the Seven Srsters shopplng area and thls
conc]uc[ed that although the. centre had.good convenlence _(food} retall provlsron, including a -

.. strong. lndependent centre,-and was busy,,there were some -slgnlﬂcant prob ems; These ncluded

" poor compartson (non-food).offer,: lnadequate-ret ) ative to’ operator requi,rements po r
environmental quality, and a particular. problem. wlth street crime. A further health:check was ... -
undertaken by Cushman and Wakefield in early. 2008 and-this concluded that whilst the centre
drsplays some positive qualrtres such.as, good accessibrllty, a notable rndependent trading sector, .
and the presence of areasonable qualrty food stare anchor, a range of problems and challenges -
faces the centre. Most notable of these.are the poor quality of the. physlcal environment, the. lack
of recognised national multiple traders, the problems assoclated wrth heevy trafflc and retarl ;
competr’tlon from the Tottenham Hale retarl park : . L e

15 Cushmen and. Wakefield conclude that the rlevelopment pro;aosed would have a number of
pos:twe lJeneflts forthe centre 1ncludrng ‘the. potentral to.attract a quality anchor tepant 1o Seven
Sisters; that the development would represent,e more lntenswe use of this part of the centre that -
- the deyelopment wouild not harm. the positive charactenstrcs of the ceritre, including Its .
independent retail offer; that the scheme wauld help maxrmise the benefit of its positiof 'a:ijacent '
a vary busy entrance to an underground steti , wrth easy access to the central London; that
Ihe churacteristics of the development would represent ah ‘opportunity for the céntre to try’ “and
safequard its vitality and viability in the face of competition; and the proposal would assist'in:
addressrng the ldentlﬂed shortcomrngs in. the enwronmental qua]rty of the centre and: puhllc realm. .

16 The c]uantum of relaJl wrthln thL scherﬂe will: rncrease by 610 sg.m. and this Is consrdered
appropriate. The proposed offer is a comblnat:on of. multiples local retail and market kiosks: The,
proposals deliver 4 rangeol retalimg optrohs for all types of businesses. Within this offer six. unris
) d for local retailing. As such the

Th existing resldential unlts on the srte compr!se 16 xl -hed units, 15 x 2- bed units and 2
X 3- bed unlts, tatalling 85. habitabl‘e_rooms Ihe 197 1iits (570 habitable rooms) proposed equates
toa net lncrease of 164 dwe!llng (485 habrtable'roo s) The proposed umts have the fo]lowrng

_—.‘.w;_

T Studic” T t-f'f:'--‘ri'hd:t .

2bed ' :_' 3b9d

Proposed | A% | 48(8%) 107(*56%) T 37(.26%) |

Exrstmg

18 Although Haringey’s Houslng.SPG‘eets; olit that 2?% of d.evelo;)nlents;l.snotrld be 3. bed
units and 11% 4- bed plus and the London Plan housing SPGsets @ target-for-30% of units in:
developments to be family sized, given the ¢jrcumstapces of the site and its busy town centre _

Jul;'} 2608 _ ' page 4




| -assessig

s residential development 1nd to'the mdsvxduat cncumstances of the site.” Targets should be applied

' -de\relopments capable of protl

Page 269

g location, the proposed tnix is approprlate The family units are Jocated aiong Sufﬂeld Road to the
- rear of the slte . SR R

19 “ Al of the unlts are bullt to lifetime homes standards: and 0% Witl he deslgned to be
‘wheelchair accessrble of easlly adaptable for resrdents who are wheelchair users, tn Ilné wrth '
: London Plan policy. : : i : S

-20 London Plan Pohcy 3A 10 requrres borough cauncils to seek the maximum reasonable
amopnt of affordable houslng when negotiating on Inds\udua] private. reS|dent|aI and ‘mix-use

~schemes.”.In.dolng so, each council should have Tegard to its own overall’ target for the amount of
-affordabie housrng provision. ‘Policy 3A19states that such targets’ should be based onhan®

: of regional and local housing ‘heed and a-fealistic assessment of supp!y, ahd should

" take atcount of the London Plan strategic - target that 35% of: housing sholild bé soclal ahd 15% i
;'mtermecfiate proVrsron “and of the, promotion of m]xed and balahted communities.” I addlt;on, B

* Policy3A.10°encourages: “codnells to have regard to the nieed to encourage rather than'restrain °

' .ﬂexlbiy, takmg account of mdlvrdual s:te costs the ava]lablhty of pubhc subsldy and other scheme S

21 Pollcy 3A 10 is supported by paragraph 3. 52 Whlch urges borough councns to teke account
of economic vrab||tty when estimating the appropriate dmaunt of hffordable provision: “The Three
‘Dragons’ 'del,relopment tontrol toolkitis recommendedjor thrs put pose The results of a tooiklt
appga: I ht eed to be md endently venflecl . ol

220 Harln ey’s UDP corstaars A pohey regardrng affordable hbu an wh;ch states that housrr
ding 10 er-more units will be rethrcd todncliide a proportion of
- -affordtb[e hotising to meet ‘an overall boratigh target of 50%. The proportion negotrated w:ll
' depend on the location, scheme detatls or site characteristics, 2t

237 - A too[k|t has. bee s bm[tted wlth this appFiLation WhiCh shows tHat it is pot vrable to
providé : ny affordabie housmg as part, of the development, This 5 because of the exceptlbnaf
. development tosts of building over the shallow Loridon Underground Tines and thé fact that the -
" size of the burdmg is limited by the load that can Be put on the areas of the site that ate above *
the undlerground lines. The toolkit has been, Independently verified by the Valuation Office Agency
- andjt has been copﬂrmed that the deVeIopment cannot support affordable hou‘ung on vtabrhty
grounds . S A S A . o _ N

24 i Hanngey Cobincil has given‘an’ undertaklng, inits development agreement wrth the
applicant, that affordable housing-equating to 50% of the habitable rooms on the Waids Corner
site will be provided in a redevelopment of the Apex Housé site and a developrhent of the
: Westerﬁeid Roaq car park site, together with 50% affordable housing of any market provision on
these sites themselves: The Apex Housé Is opposrte the Wards Corner site and is curr ntly occupled
as colinel officss. The Westerfigld Road site is nearby. Agreement has been given by Haringey
- Council’s executive ommittee to the disposal of both these sites far ths purpose. It is understood
“that an olitliné planhing application for these sites will be brought forward shortly together with 4
competltion to select a registered social’ landlord and development partner. However, there js no
way of lggally tying this provision to the current plannmg applrcat;on and therefore no. certamty
-~ that this provision wrll be deiuvered SR RN

July 2(}{)8 ) ) . ' page §




Page 270

| Themarlget B

25 .The first fteraticn of this proposal difl not include: any. proyision.for the market. The second
iteration of the proposal Included six klosk units.: However, following pegotiatjons with GLA -
officers, the latest plans propose the provision of 12 krosk hnrts along the Seven, Srsters Road
frontage

26 Urban Spd( e Management was commlssloned by The Brldge New Deal for Lommunltles to
25588, the existing Seven Sisters Market and to conslder If the-market couid he ncorporated into ..
the Warlls, .Corner. scheme ar. relocated elsewhgre, e report f ound. that the site cuhent!y conta ns
34 traders in. kiosk/shop type units in.ap- rndhor hall 64% .of the: traders ongmate from Latin ... ..
: .Amenra and/or are:Spanish speaking. The rmarket s operated by a. hEad leaseholder who hasa -
lease with London, Undergrounrl erlted thnl ends.In September 2011, I‘he rents within | Lhe market
" are considerably- lower than these in nearby markets, This Is a reﬂectlon of the, low ¢ost of.the head
‘lease-given that the building is poorly maintatied.and hqs been earmarked for development, Fach
tehant has 3 licence.with a 4-week break. clause on either.side. The head leaseholder has.a iease ;
which entitles London Underground Limited to give three months notice to end the Iease once ;

: plannfng permlss[on is recerved for the redevelopment

- 27 Urban Space Management conclude that it |s mappropnate for the market to be e s
' mcorporated into.the proposal fer.a number of. reasons. Prmclpallj, it expfesses.an.opinion fhat the _
" current traders will not be able to afford the Inevitably:higher renits that will be charged for the
proposec] spaces and that an indoor hall arrangement would not attract a high enbigh footfall to
- make the businesses vizble. The issue of where the market s. Iocaéled whilst the srte is tedem,loped '
is also ra|sec] Work has bequri with the traders 1o look at relocation én=masse,: or individually,. : -
‘although understandably. there | js.d retrcence 'scuss thls lssue at thls stage_ 1 _h_out the certalnty

_of p!annlng permission.

A pofE was conducted by [CM.in. May 2008 that conducted telephone interviews. with 500
g resrdents in the. naghbourmg post cade areas of. N15 4,N 155 and N15 6, Approxmrately the. -
same number of peop]e were poiled Jneach age range and area, he key flndlnrjs fron] the-poll

' '. - :57% of respondents had ne\rer VJSJted Seven Slsters market and 19% of respondents -
e shopped at the market once a month of more often. :

LI 3% of respondents favoured the option of providing retafl. unlts for use by. both h[gh
.+ street shops and jocal braders,: cornpared to 30% who Wanted retail focussed around the ‘
exrstlng market and Iocal trcsders S , T '

o - % of respondents (1 7 people out of 500) specrﬂed th -t keeping the market Was

: 6 ,':,81 % of respondents thought that substantlal :nvestment in the Wards Co(“ner area 1s & good
o ;.ldea and oniy 4% fe[t that. retarmng perlod bulldmgs was a. prlo 'ty, LT g

. '55% of respondents said that thr=y felt un=afe vlslting the area at mght and tackl:ng crlme
was the main prlonty for respondents with 43% specrfying this option

29 - The poll shows that the provision of a combination of Jocal and high street retailing is

- favoured by the majority of respondents. Although the number of respondents who use the market
15 relatlvely low it should be noted that the market has a wider catchment area, belng specialist

July 2008 : page 6




Page 271

retail provision, than the jmmediate area. The poll does, however, show that the miarket has a rofe
within the {oc_a’ community as well as a wider role. - R :

30 “Policy 3D.3 of the London Plan, waintaining and irproving fetall faclties, sets out that -
‘boraliglis should work with fetailers and Gthers to prevent the loss of retail facilities, including -
~ street and farmers” markets, that provide essential convenience and specialist shopping and to

- encourage mixed use development, This policy is also applicable to planning applications arid a5 .

such the ogs ofthe markst should he resisted.

e

31 7 i ié'fm'pbr'tént-tOISebar_a_té out the issues of the,c:cané(z:pt of a market on this Sjté"and the -

. viability and continuation of the current inarket. Both of these Issués are of importance and need

to be dealt with in this proposal, -

32 CThe provlsio,_h of ap Increased number of kiosk units, together with the saFeguérding of the -

unlts grj West Green Road and Seven Sisters Road for local:independent retail use; will seive to” *
maintain a-market and local independent retall on this'site: Further work should be iindértaken to
find an alterative temporary location for the current market so that stallholders could relocate ™ -
back on the site, at least in part: Work should also continue with the current traders to fiid them
alternative permanent lacations, en-masse or individually, should they wish to do s0.-A'permanent

relacation option in the locality would mean that continuity would be achieved. Clarification as to
the current funding package for assistance with relocation should be provided. Notwithstanding . =

the comments of Urban Space Management regarding increased rents in the new development,
measures to increase the afferdability of the West Green Roatl and Seveh Sisters Road units and
kiosks to local retailers, such as subsidised rents, fit-outs and capped rent periods shotldbe .~

considered. The use of these units and kiosks forfocal retailers should be conditioned, If «i+ - - =
. undertakings are.made-that such measures can be Impleménted and an alternative temporary * “

location for those stallholders wishing to retuin to the development is found, on balance, the~~
-application will be In accordance with strategic planning policy. -~~~ =~~~ o

Children's playspace =+

33 " "Policy 3D 113 of the London Plén se:ts_._.‘out;that"’the Mayor will and the boroughs should -
ensure developments that include housing make provision for pla y and informal recreation, based.

" on the expected child population generated by the scheme and an assessment of futurz needs.” -

Using the methodology within the Mayor's supplementary planning guldance ‘Providing for ~
. Childrer.and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation’ it Is anticipated that there wiltbe -

. approximately 36 children within thi development.” The giiidance ‘sets a benchimark of 10 sq.m. of

useable chitd playspace to be provided per child, with under-5 child playspace provided on-site, As
such the development s_hquld make provision for 360 sq.m. of playspace.. o -

34 . This development provided approximately 1,538 sq.m. of amenity space within a ceptral -

- courtyard which includes a dedicated playspace for under 5's, The site is also within 400m of the
Brunswick Road Open Space which includes recently.upgraded-play-facilities for-children aged 0~
16. This provision-Is acceptable in strategic planning pelicy terms. - -+ “trs oo et

_ _Urhan'd.gs-fgﬁ}‘

35 Good deslqn Is central to all objectives of the l.ondon Plan and s speclfically promoted
by-the policies contained within Chapter 4B which gddress both generaf design principles and - -
specific design ssues.~London Plan Policy 4B.1 setsout a series of overarching desigh principles.
“for developrnent in London;:. Other:design polices in this chaptér.and elsewhere in the London ™

Plan include specific desigh requirements relating to maximising the potential of sites, the 7+« |

quality.of hew hg_L;'sing-lpr:c"\gi_rgiog,itgli 'an_c_i_la_rge?—s_tale-byi_ldj_ngsjbuiit heritage and views, "~

July 2008 S ' page 7




Page 272

g

36 . The existing residential density of the site is 119 habitable rooms per hectare, of 46
- dwelling per hectare, The application proposes a density of 795 habitable roams per hectare, or -
275 dwelllrigs per: hectare This Is within the range of denslty set; ou n,_table 48,1 of theJ_ondon:;
plan and Is acceptable n strategrc policy t terms :1. B T A T =

37 Many of the e><|stlng burldlngs on the site are poor qualrty and contribute I:ttle to the LT
- area, which has a generally run down quality and is dominated by traffic from the Tottenham
Gyratory. TfL, and the GLA are committed to making significant chaniges to the gyratory and thls :
‘scheme could contrrbute to. the OVeralE regeneratron of this. part. of Harlngey‘ IRt '

38 - L Anew publlc square: Is formed to the Tottenham ngh Road frontage new. shops and -
- krosk unlts create a continuous street Jevel frontage to the High Road;-Seven Sisters Road and -
- West Green-Road; a.cafe-bar/restaurant is located at first floor overjooking the public square . -
‘and High Road; flats and family. duplexes are located at first floor-and-ahove a new-garden . .

square above the shops.and accessed from-a main foyer opening off:the public square; and- .
“family dupiexes are !ocated on Suffre]d Road w[th front gardens and fronr; doors openrng off the .
street. - T R Bt AP I T LN L :

39 The horrief; are arrranged in: ten'b'ioekermth senarate entranoes stalrsand -E-i-fts -formrng a -

; comp!ete enclosure to the shared central garden, The enclosure is completed by.a row of hotisés.

with direct front doors to the garden. The homes are accessed.via.the garden which Is in turn
.reachar via a glass pawllon contalnlng alift: and grang. stafr from the fayer. The street level: foyer-- :

road is covered over and thrs IS welcomed The srte !ayout fs an appropriate response to the sfte

Scale and massing ' '
-4Q The shops provide a continuous g!azed frontage around three srdes of: the site; Above
_ them the teh apartment blocks range in height from three fo seven storeys above the retail
units, including set backs. The main parapet height to Seven Sisters Road and the High Rpad is
four storeys ahove ground floor retall space and to West Green Road it is three storeys above .-
grouhd-ftoor retail space. Suffield Road Is three storeys from street level plus-a set-hack. upper—
storay, ' wlth a further Ievei concealed: in the roof. space and over[ookrng the central garden

41 The frontqge onto the ngh Road dips rn the mlddie due to the hefght restlaints ihwposed_ -
by building over the undergrodnd Irnes L e R S

_ 42 The massing strategy is to break down the development Into a serjes of dlstrnctr\re

* bulldings of different height-and detall corraspondirig'to the various street contexts. The ;
approach ofa development of this scale [s-appropriate for this site glven itslotation at'a wrde
road junction togetherwith the scale of Apex House and the-Tesco's development on sites -
opposite the development. The scale of the davelopment reduces to the rear:arid relates -- f B
appropristely to the existing residential propertids. The dengity of the development is in line
with the London Plan density matrix and this In Itself is an indicatlan that the stafe of the
deve[opm;ent is approprfate to the srte _ _

Pubflc rea}m " S
43 The. publlr reafm re transformed by the proposai princ]paiiy, the ngh Rbad frontage s
expanded and. conrprehensively redesignet to create.a new public.square. All exlstrng stre?et C
clutter Is removed..Thé main retained elenrerits are the mature.London Plane trée and the. two: -
entrance stairs to.the underground statforj, -which wif| be réciad and tovered by:gliss canoples.:
Although ¢hanges to the undergrodnd station are not w)thin the remit of the application the

July 2008 ' paged




Page 273

de5|gn alfows for the future mstallatron of lrft access to the tlcket hall TWO new. retari klosks are.

- located next o the: starrs

' 44 The existing building line to the High Road is carved out to give more space ta the public - -

- realin and rreate a curved public'place at the centre of the site. The shops and the restatrant -
above have a curved frontage embiracjng this space. A Jarge paved circle is centred on the

- .underground stairs and is shielded from the High Road by an arc of seven new trees, At the

- centre is 3 plece of publrc art which wrll be the subject of ¥ separate des;gn competltihn

1o

45 © Altthe famrly homes and tnost other flats have prwate terraces or balconles Most of the .

homes are dual‘aspect and noné of them hasa srngle aspect north facing outlook ’Ihe unlts are.
of a reasonable size. ' S :

' Extemmeeacance

. 46. " The architecture of the scheme ls concelved as i lnodem interpretation of London’s -

© street architecture, The apartment blocks and shop fronts are presented as a terrace of adjommg
-bullcllngs separated by shadow gaps. The principal residential ‘storeys are brick faced, with stone’
‘copings and ¢llls. A range oF tectanguldr wihdow openings teflect the different reqmrements of -

living rooms and bedrooms. Projecting wrndOWS enlfven facades wlulst providing viéws along the
.str at and bringing sunlight fnto the rooms The shop fronts are fully glazed and framed with -
datk painted or coated steel sectiops and'a spandrel zone for controlled srgnage The set back

. upper stdreys are coated in zinc: and glass panels .

47 The corner to Sevep Slsters Road and the ngh Road where the Wards Corner burldlng is
- currently located, has been given spetlal elevatlonal trestment in order to create a landmark.’
The corner block conforms to the general parapet l;lerght but is rounded on plan.and framed in
~stone, The stone frame Is to carry a frieze of cast o sculpted relief images recallrng the h[story’
“of the site, lor which an artlst will be, seleded hy competition. Within the: stone frame a.;,,
- composrtloh of vertical coloured glass ﬂns spans between the storeys, prowdrng vlsual lnterest
“and streening  the | rooms behind. This does not work particulatly well and appears as somethlng

L stuck on fo the main body of the building. A better use of money would be to have. the Highest

' possrple standards of materials design and deta|lmg rather thah adding a piece of publjc art.

'48 The High Road centreplece containing the shops, residential foyer and _ﬂrst ﬂoo: R

restaurant cornprises a frame]ess glass curved. facade over, two lofty storeys

a9 Sufﬁeld Road has a completely dlfferent scale and charactea to the other frontages The..
proposed frontage contains a row of family duplexes with private front doors-at street level and.-

- two floofs of flats above and these relate well to ne|ghb0u1mg resrdentral burldrnqs

50 - The archrtectural approach is on the whole welcomed particularly the hlgh ro-rd
“centrepiece, the Suffield Road blacks and-the brick treatment; however, the set back upper
. storeys. and the comer: treatment appear awkward and should be rcconsldered :

| l:LﬁtegeLs_u_

©.51 Part of tl~’e site lies wlthm a. conservatron area, Tlrree of the exrstrng burldlngs are locally -

 listed. The most [otable building, the Watds Corner building, was considered for listing in late
12007 by English Heritage but It was not felt to be worthy of listing. The applicant-has looked at
the retention of this building In the scheme but has concluded that this would not be viabla.
This approach has been agread with Maringey Council -officers. It is considered that'the ioss of
the burldlng would bejustiﬂable provrded the qualrty of the replacement scheme is hrgh

July 2008 page 9




: Energy

Page 274

52 Qverall, the proposed scheme, with the changes set out above, would make a posrtwe -
contribution to the corservation area and the wider townscaph

o

lpmmunity facmuec N 0 I e F R

53 Polrcy 3A 18 of the London Plan sets out tha{, the net Eoss of sodal infrastructure and -
com[nunlty facilitles should be resisted and that adequate provision of such facllitiés is =
particularly important in major areas of new development and egeneation. Policy 3A.17 of the
London Plan sets out that the spatia' needs of djvarse graups in an area should be met. The +
current proposal includes.a commuriity facility of 158 sq.m., the use.of which is curréntly
suggesteéd for a youth centre, It should be roted that the market also serves as a. meetrrtd place ..

- for the Latin Américan community and cohsrr.ieratton shoutd be grven to the co:pmunrty facr[rty
being glven aver for such a use. o

_Clrmate change mitlgatlon

- 54 The London Plan r('qulres developmeqts to t‘nake the fu[iest contrrbutmn to the m1ttgat|on

of, and adaptatron to climate change and ta mipimise carbon droxrde emissions. (Polrgy AA1).

- k5 Polrcres 4A 2 to AA 8 ofthe I ondoh Plen foCUS an how t6 mrtlgate clrmate change and the

carbon dioxide reduction targets.that are necessary: across London to achieve this. Developments:

.. are required to be adaptable to the climate they will face over therr I;fetrme and address the flve :
: prrnuples set out |n pohcy 4A, 9 of the London Plan -

L. trog EE T e L T A A R

g

56 London Plan pollcres 4A 4 and 4A ? requlre the submrssron of a energy demand

assessment qlong with the adoptron of sustainable design. and. constructlon, demonstretron ot'how
heating ano coolmg systems have been selected in accordance wrth the Mayor’s hierarchy and how
the clevelop ent will minimise carbon dioxide emissions, maximise energy efficl neles, pr[ontrse

*“decentralised energy supp!y, and incorporate renewable energy technolog;es w h a tasget of 20%
carbon redurttons from on- ~slte renewable energy '

o

o Energy demand assessn{ent ..

* An energy demand assessmerit has been submrtted but it is. unciear how the bese[me :

: emlssrons relate to 2006 building regulations requirements. Energy efficiency measures and related

carbori dioxide reductlons should be eva[uated with sultable modelllng for both domestic and non-
domestlc elements ' ; . -

- Sustamable desrgn and constructron

38 The extent of the demand reduction fmeasures proposed appears to be llmited to thermal '
fabric performance improvements over building regulation requirements and energy-efficient™ -

- lighting. Whilst these measures are welcomed confirmation is requested as to whether any other..

measures are-being-employed. Further information alse needs to be provided of the desrgn

' measures that are: bemg adopted to minimlse overheatrn 9, R
' Power heatmg end coolmg infrastructure and CHP/CCHP [Po]icies 4A 5 and A4, 6)

59 In line wlth the l. ondon Plan ) comblned heat end power (CHP) system needs to be

considered before the provision of renewables. The suitability of CHP.for this site has been-
examined dnd a site-wide heat network supplied by a 70 kWe gas fired engine CHP is proposed.

July 2008 page 10




Page 275

'Futth}er_cqnslcie{qti,én as to how the. electricity, generated Is to be used needs to be included in the

~“application, The cooling strategy for all clemenits of the development needs to pe st outina™

revised enerdy strategy.

Renewable enargy (Policy 4A7) "1 SRR

60  The use of a dual fuel bio-fuel {rapeseed) boller |s proprjs';e.d_._. The usg-of -‘th_is{_fybe of boiler
* Tails to ensure that renewable energy will be used on site and, unless a legal clause Is in place, the .

- applicant will be free to switch away from renewable_s.‘This is pot acceptable as the primgry source
- of rendwables given the difficulty in enforcing the use of bio-fuel. A'more rigorois option appraisal

- of alternative renewable technologles needs to be submitted and their integration in the site-wide -

district heating network considered. -

- 61 .-Q‘Th:égfol.fo‘.ﬂ.;lﬁg tfurther-'lnft;rmat‘io‘hgbh Vthe_ biﬁ-ﬂlé] boiler ﬁeéds to be submitted: details of -

-any additional abatement technology plarned to reduce air pollution emissions: a breakdown'of "~

emissions factors for NOX and particulates from the proposed boiler, specifically dispersion
modelling on'a map showing the levels'of both pollutants atground level; the type, height and

location of the chimney; and details of the fuel, the fuel supply chain and the arrangements that

have been fnvestigated to secure the fuel supply, .

Climate change adaptation
62 The London.Plan piromo_.tes.z. five principles_‘in;poiicy 4A.9 to promote and support the most

- effective adaptation to climate change. These are to minimise overheating and contribution to
heat island effects, minimise solar gain in summer, contributing to flood Tisk reductions, including -

applying sustaihable drainage principles, minimising water use and protecting and enhancing green o _

Infrastrycture. Specific policies cover overheating, living roofs and walls and water.

63 - The prppmai_jncerpdra:tes'a_n: extensive green amenlty space at roof level which, to some

- extent, will contribute to minimising averheating and surface turi-off. Further information needs to -

be provided of any measures designed to prevent overheating, minimise solar galn, minimise water
- .usg and contribute to flood risk reductions, o A :

Transport

64 The propased development is &1 arid within multiple ownerships, Ificliding fand owned .
by Transport for London. As.a result these transport comments have been prepared by the GLA,

and dre based on Information-provided by the applicant withip the transport assessment, .~ -

65 Glven the tigh public transport accessibility level of 6 it is recommended. that this
-development Is made car free In accordance with policy 3C.23 of the London.Plan and the

advice in paragraphs 7.14 to 7.16 of TfL's Transport Assessment Best Practice Guidance.

' R'esi.idents sr,ou]'d_als_o_be_ineligible foton stree_.t\Pﬁfkillg.:pgrmitg_.__,‘_ e e

66 . Below street level, in addltion to the underaround tunnels serving the. Victoria fine, there
are running unnei__é_-fqrtri;rg}ru_sf_a‘ccess_;jng:th ' he development should take into account

67 . The improveinent of access to the London Uriderground and Network Rallstations and.
the interchange bet ' tem Rovte Corridor Planand the . -
both identified Seven Sisters - |

NetworK Rail Gr 1tjtig
: hange between railand "

July 2008 . page 11

ot e




Page 276

underground in order to W|den corrrdors/walkways to the London Underground statron may be

U required.

68 - Inorder to mitigate the expected increase in bus patronage and to. rmprove pccess to o
bus setvices, the four nearby bus stops on Tottenham High Road, Seven Sisters Road and West
Green Road should be upgraded to TfL. accessibility standards The GLA transport team -
_we[comes further drscussron on. these matters : T

69 A ,ur\rey of the emstmg car park should be carrred out is quantafy current trafﬂc N _ )
movements B R R R e

70 " Details with regard to swept paths and accident analysrs may aFfect the scope of works
on.the. hrghway and. may requrre adjustments to- the Suff;etd Road Junctron wath Se\ren Srsters
Road Co ot HE USRI I U e o

71 Ser\rlcmg issues should be addressed for any Iarge Vehrcle to access the top servrce bay _
the vehrc]e needs to be.able to.turn around wrthin the yard L .

72 . The offer to improve the public realm adjacent to thrs srte mcludlng the Transport for
L.ondon Road Network (TLRN) public highway, is welcome, However, works on the TLRN would -
: be subject to agreement and the proposed krosks may requlre Ilcenses from TfL B

73 Therefore, lt is requesled that. the proposed footway de5|gn rs treated by the Ioca1
~:planning authority as Indicative, SUbJECt to detaiied consideratron and aqreement by Tﬂ. as.
o should the proposed krosks : . iy AR

74 Further detarfs of proposed pedestrran faulltres shouid be provlded

75, . Cycie parkrng shou]d be. provlded for the 1e|sure and retarl étements of the deyelopment ,;': :
in addition to the resicleritial provrsron Lo B i
76 . The GLA will be primarily guided by TfL's Streetscape Gurdance on any changes to the B . o
TLRN and will also seek advice From Desrqn for London. PRI

77 .. Wherever posslb!e any construction works should avord encroachment on the TERN .
'publlc highway, Including the public. footway TfL can license’ ‘temporary use of the pubtlc
highway in certmn circumstances rf thrs does not 1mpede pedestrran and other movernent on.
the network.

78 Constructlon vehidr.s servrcrng the site should not stop an the TL. RN_ except in
authorrsed b‘rys and Iocatlons and access Should be from Sufﬂeld Road

London Developinent Agenty colnments T

79 The London Deve]opment Agency (LDA) support the prmcrple of devefopment As this | is
recoganed 85 a gateway location Ifito the Boroligh, the LDA welcomes the 1ncorporatron of "
retail frontages onto Tottenham High Road, Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. in
addition; the provision of a ringe of retal| accommodatjon stze suitable fot large national I‘Tgh
street rete}tiers 5 iIe_r_‘Iocat rndepenclent shops as WeIE are as range of compieméntary acllities
is welcomisl as.1t will help to ensure bn approprrate balance and. mix, of retgllers Is achreved The,_
LDA weleomes the provision of smal retail space stiitable for statt up businesses in grder .~ 7
to support and promote a diverse fetall offer gn Tottenhpm High Road. This will support the
Economic Development Strategy (EDS) objective to “address barrlers to enterprise start-up,

July 2008 - p'a’g_e 1%




Page 277

growth anil competitiveness”. The promotion of small retailers can also assist the needs of local
- business, small arid medium sized enterprises (SME’s) and black and minority ethnic businésses” -~
which I tum tan su -

80" " Eveiy effort must be made to find alternative accommiodation for the existing market
- traders whist the development s constructed. The LDA welcames the provision of wiits -

'Suit'a.bfée:fnrr.foic'al_,tfade'r$ within the replacement scheme; howiever; given the signlficant = “
c;ihétryétioh_}'ié_ridd for the proposed development, sufficient notice and ‘support shodld be™
given fo tenants to allow them to explore the options for re-location on'or offisite that are’”
avatlable to them. ; T : o

81 Glven the scale of the redeVelopment, the provision of employment generating uses and
in accordance with London Plan policies 3B.1 'Develéping London's economy’ and 38,11
'linptoving employment opportunities for Londoners', the developer shbuld seek to ensure that
lacat residents and businesses benefit from the job opportunities created by this proposal, in

- both the constrdction and operatlonal phases of the development. The adopted Wards .

“Corner/Seven Sisters Underground Development Brief which promotes comprehensive

_ development of the site states, that the prloritles for lanning obligation contributions include

securing Jocal employment benefits through training and local labour schemes.

82 Therefore, initiatives to create training and employment opportupilties anhd to utilis}e the
goods and services of SME's and local businesses shauld be formalised through a section 106

- agreement befween the applicant and Haringey Coupcil. The LDA would welcome the

- opportumity to discuss with Haringey Cotncil the scope for incluston of such nitiatives vithin -
the 5106 agreement. The delivery of such initiatives will help to ensure the regeneration henefits
of the proposed qavelopment ar¢ maximised for residents of the local community and

- that the Economic Development Strategy abjective fo "Tackle Barriers to Employment' is

. supported, .~ . - - : e

Local planning authority’s position
83 The development is generally supported at officer level by both the regeneratior] team and
the planning officers. R . _ R

. Legal considerations

84  Under the arrangements set out in article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of
- London) Order 2000 the Mayor has an opportunity to make representations to Haringey Council at
this stage. If the Council subsequently resolves to grant planning permission, it must allow the
 Mayor an opportunity to decide whether to direct it to refuse planning permission.” There is no-
obligation at this present stage for the Mayor to Indicate his intentlons regarding a possible
- direction, and no such decision should be inferred from the Mayor’s co_mments'unless_speciﬁcally
- stated., ' ' oo .

s F_irianc.i'al considerations

85 - There are no financlal consideratlons at this stage. -

July 2008 page 13




Page 278

Conclusion - . e
86  The regeneration of this site W|th a mrxed use’ deve]opment s welcomed The Ievel of
reprovision. of space for the market and local rétallers Js on balance considered acceptable, given ..
the stqnlfrrant Improvernents to the public realm 4nd, the 1mprovéd quallty of ,re_tarl provision.. . -
Further work Is needed on deergn enerqy, tempaorary focatian for-the market, measufes to enstire.
the viability of the market kmsks and. Iocdl tetall umts and transport before this appllcatlon comes

back to the, Mayor at Stage I, .

for further infarmation, contact Planning Decisions Unit:
. Giles Dolphin, Head of Planning Decisions
- 0207983 4271 email giles.dolphin@london.gov,uk - ..
Justii Carr, Strategic Planning Manager (Development Declslons)
020 7983 4895 EI‘IlaleUStln carr@london.gov.uk
" Colln Wilson, Strategic Planning Manager (Planning Frameworks)
020 7983 4783 emall colin.wilson@london.gov. uk
Ertma Williama son, Case Officer
0207983 4310 emafl  emma. WIIIiamsun@london gov uk

July 2008 page 14




Page 279

APPENDIX 9
COURT OF APPEAL JUDGEMENT



Page 280

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 281
Neutral Citation Number: [2010] EWCA Civ 703

Case Nos: C1/2009/2198B &
C1/2009/2198

COURT OF APPEAL (CIVIL DIVISION)

ON APPEAL FROM OBD, ADMINISTRATIVE COURT
KEITH LINDBLOM QC (sitting as a deputy High Court judge)
[2009] EWHC 2329 (Admin)

Roval Courts of Justice
Strand, London, WC2A 2LL

Date: 22/06/2010

Before :

LORD JUSTICE PILL
LADY JUSTICE ARDEN
and
LORD JUSTICE SULLIVAN

Between :

The Queen on the Application of Janet Harris Appellant
The London I;Oi'l(ll(llléh of Haringey Respondent
) Graingelj gzge;l Sisters Ltd Interested Parties
(2) Northumberland And Durham Property Trust Ltd
The Equality and H-u?:ll:n-Rights Commission Intervener

Mr David Wolfe (instructed by Bindmans Solicitors LLP) for the Appellant
Mr Peter Harrison QC (instructed by The London Borough of Haringey) for the
Respondent
Ms Helen Mountfield QC (instructed by The Equality and Human Rights Commission) for
the Intervener

Hearing date : 5 May 2010

Judgment



Page 282

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors
Lord Justice Pill :
1. This is an appeal from a decision of Mr Keith Lindblom QC, sitting as a Deputy High

Court Judge on 14 July 2009. The judge refused an application for judicial review of
a decision of London Borough of Haringey (“the council”), as local planning
authority, granting a planning permission on 24 December 2008. The application for
planning permission had been made by the first interested party, Grainger (Seven
Sisters) Ltd (“Grainger”).

Permission was granted for the development of a site known as Wards Corner on
High Road, Tottenham. The grant permitted:

“Demolition of existing buildings and erection of mixed use
developments comprising Class C3 residential and Class
A1/A2/A3/A4 with access, parking and associated landscape
and public realm improvements.”

Ms Janet Harris (“the appellant”) has lived in Tottenham for many years and has been
active in community life. In 2006 she helped to set up the Tottenham Civic Society.
Her standing to make the application for judicial review is not now challenged. The
lawfulness of the decision was originally challenged on three grounds. Only one
ground is now pursued and it is that the council, when granting permission, failed to
discharge its duties under section 71 of the Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by
the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000. Section 71 provides, in so far as is
material:

“1) Every body or other person specified in Schedule 1A
or of a description falling within that Schedule shall, in
carrying out its functions, have due regard to the
need—

(a) to eliminate unlawful racial discrimination; and

(b) to promote equality of opportunity and good
relations between persons of different racial
groups.”

The council accept that it was required to discharge the section 71 duty when making
the decision challenged. The breach alleged is of section 71(1)(b).

In his judgment, the judge adopted the summary of facts in the written submissions of
Mr Wolfe, who appears for the appellant:

“[The site] is in the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District
Centre. The area is predominantly made up of local
independent traders with a mix of Turkish, Cypriot, Colombian
and Afro Caribbean influences. The site incorporates an indoor
market comprising 36 units of which 64 per cent of traders are
from Latin America or are Spanish speaking. The total retail
floor space on the site is 3,182 square metres and the site
includes 33 residential units along Suffield Road as well as first



Page 283

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

floor accommodation above the retail units on Tottenham High
Road, Seven Sisters Road and West Green Road. At present,
those business units and homes are predominantly occupied by
members of BME [black and minority ethnic] communities . . .
During the consultation process and subsequently, a great many
people have expressed their concern that the level of business
rents that would be charged in a redeveloped site (the Council
itself anticipates these increasing threefold . . .) and the fact that
the Grainger scheme makes no provision at all for affordable
housing, will bring about a significant shift in the commercial
and residential make up of the area . . .”

The resolution to grant planning permission was passed by 5 votes to 4.

5. Mr Wolfe submitted that section 71 was engaged because of the mixed racial
influences, the large percentage of Latin American traders in the existing indoor
market and the predominant occupation of homes and business units by members of
the BME communities. The council was under a duty before granting permission to
have due regard to the needs specified in the section, it was submitted.

6. The development is substantial and an important part of the regeneration of the
Borough of Haringey. A considerable number of people, of different racial groups,
are involved. The appeal turns on whether the council, in granting permission, has
discharged its duty under section 71. The council claims to have done so; it has not
been submitted that the circumstances are such that the grant may stand even if the
statutory duty had not been performed.

7. Section 71 has been in force since 2 April 2001. It replaced a section which put the
duty in less specific and focused terms. It was a duty “to make appropriate
arrangements”. There is substantial agreement between the parties as to how the case
should be approached: has the council in substance had due regard to the requirements
of section 71(1) when granting permission for this particular development?

8. I state the obvious in saying that the statute must be construed as a statute. This is not
one of those many cases in planning law where emphasis is placed by the courts on
documents not being required to be construed like a statute. Mr Wolfe emphasised
the need for the council to focus on the requirements of the section and not merely to
deal in generalities. On the other hand, such focus requires attention to the language
of the section to determine the content of the duty. In this litigation, section 71(1) has
at times been treated as if it is a general duty when taking decisions to improve the lot
of ethnic minority communities. It is a duty, when taking decisions, to have due
regard to three specific needs:

(a) The need to eliminate unlawful racial discrimination,

(b) The need to promote equality of opportunity between
persons of different racial groups,

(c) The need to promote good relations between persons of
different racial groups.



Page 284

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

10.

11.

The appellant relies on the second and third of those duties.

It is well established that the duty to have “due regard” involves a “conscious
approach and state of mind” (Scott Baker LJ in Brown v Secretary of State for Work
& Pensions [2008] EWHC 3158 (Admin), in the context of disability). (See also
Davis J in Meany v Harlow District Council [2009] EWHC 559 (Admin) “conscious
directing of the mind to the obligations”, and Munby J in R (E) v Governing Body of
JFS [2008] EWHC 1535/1536 (Admin), at paragraph 213, “direct its mind”.)

In Secretary of State for Defence v Elias [2006] EWCA Civ 1293, Arden LJ, at
paragraph 274, described the purpose of section 71, in that case the provision at issue
being section 71(1)(a):

“It is the clear purpose of s.71 to require public bodies to whom
that provision applies to give advance consideration to issues of
race discrimination before making any policy decision that may
be affected by them. This is a salutary requirement, and this
provision must be seen as an integral and important part of the
mechanisms for ensuring the fulfilment of the aims of anti-
discrimination legislation. It is not possible to take the view
that the Secretary of State's non-compliance with that provision
was not a very important matter. In the context of the wider
objectives of anti-discrimination legislation, s.71 has a
significant role to play. I express the hope that those in
government will note this point for the future.”

For the council, Mr Harrison QC accepted that, on the material before the council, the
threshold giving rise to the need to apply section 71(1) in the decision making process
had been crossed. However, it is necessary to consider, in summary at any rate, the
evidence capable of giving rise to the section 71(1) duty in this case. Before taking its
decision, the council conducted an appropriate consultation exercise. The officers’
report (“the report™) to the appropriate committee of the council was very full and
referred to representations made. The meeting at which the decision to grant planning
permission was taken lasted 3 hours and a very full record of proceedings was kept.

Evidence before the council

12.

Before the council was a letter of objection from a local resident, Mr Lagu
Sukumaran:

“May I kindly request you and all decision makers to carefully
consider the Human suffering the loss of achievement, of the
Ethnic Minority Businesses in West Green Road, Seven Sisters
Road and the High Road, known as the Wards Corner.

I live above my Business with by family, and it is a live and
work business concept ... I am part of this Diverse local Ethnic
minority Community who I serve and depend on my Shop for
their unique and specialist Food products that is non available
in National Supermarkets.



Page 285

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

Demolition will destroy the existing Ethnic Minority Business,
the Owners, their families, employees and their suppliers. The
owners and their families have built up their existing businesses
with many years of hard work and determination, in some cases
hard work of three generations of the family. There are a
number of traders who live above their businesses and in this
case they will be forced out of their homes. The traders will not
be able to relocate their business to a new location and be
successful due to the poor state of the world economy ... The
customers and residents will lose their choice of shopping and
the specialist shops.”

13. Identified as response 54, the WCCC (Wards Corner Community Coalition)
submitted as a part of its representation:

“Local planning processes are required to demonstrate that
meaningful community engagement and equalities issues have
been accounted for and that diverse groups are not
systematically disadvantaged by public authority processes.
There is no reference in this planning application to the impact
on diverse communities and the needs of diverse local
communities, including ethnic minority communities. Members
of particular minority ethnic communities are being
disproportionately disadvantaged by these proposals. Virtually
all the businesses that will be ended by the proposals are from
ethnic minority communities that provide some ethnically
distinct and important services and goods. The Coalition
contends that the needs of the growing Latin American
community are being explicitly negated in these proposals.”

They added:

“Public authorities should support the social and business
networks in an area. These plans from Grainger represent the
destruction of existing community and replacement by an
alternative, selected community. This is Council-backed,
unethical social engineering which WCC rejects.”

14. Response No. 181 included comment from Ms Siobhan Crozier:

“This is of great importance for Seven Sisters as it contains,
within the proposed development, businesses that provide
“essential convenience and specialist” shops which provide for,
and add to, the cultural diversity of Tottenham. These shops
would be lost forever if the demolition goes ahead and the local
community would be bereft. Several long-established
businesses will lose their livelihood and in some cases, their
homes. Local authorities are supposed to support SMEs [small
and medium enterprises], not eradicate them in favour of units
designed to appeal to high street multiples.”



Page 286

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors
15.  Analysis of the material submitted need not for present purposes be comprehensive.

16.

Much of it, as Mr Wolfe to a degree accepted, cannot be related to section 71(1),
given its wording. Responses refer to the need, regardless of ethnic considerations, to
upgrade the area and to do so in an architecturally and socially acceptable way. The
report also referred to objections including an objection that “the Market which has
been created, and which has added vibrancy, richness and diversity to the area, would
be lost”.

A further letter from WCCC (8 July 2008) is reproduced in the report:

“The Wards Corner Community Coalition takes the view that
the Grainger scheme for the site will not deliver regeneration
for the people of Tottenham and will damage the material,
social and economic fabric of this diverse community. Further,
the Wards Corner Community Coalition believes the Grainger
proposals to be based upon questionable premises and have put
forward an alternative vision for the site.”

The council’s decision

17.

18.

19.

20.

The report did of course refer to the positive aspects of the proposed development and
to policies in the Unitary Development Plan (“UDP”). There is general acceptance of
the need for environmental improvement in the area. Policy AC3 “seeks to promote
regeneration through development along the Tottenham High Road corridor” and
policy AC4 states that “the Bridge New Deal for Communities aims to improve the
quality of life for residents by seeking to change the area so that it becomes a better
place to live.” Reference is made to a Development Brief for Wards Corner in which
it is acknowledged that the Borough of Haringey is a deprived area. The Brief
provided a number of development principles for any proposed development or
regeneration.

At page 30 of the report, it is stated:

“. .. the proportion of small retailers can also assist the needs of
local business, small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and
black and minority ethnic businesses which in turn can support
the needs of the local community.”

By reference to an Urban Space Management Report, the report provides:

“The Report concludes that it would not be sensible or
economically viable to relocate the market in the proposed
development. However the report also states that, most if not all
of the traders could be of interest to other market operators as
potential tenants and that there is an option of integrating the
non Spanish speaking traders into alternative locations
independently while trying to keep the Latin American traders
together to move as a group at the right time.”

In the minutes, it is recorded:



Page 287

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

“The Committee was informed that the proposed development
was unpopular and would not be considered a landmark
development. It would have extremely negative impacts on
existing local businesses, homes, social amenity and
community cohesion. Objections related specifically to loss of
longstanding, diverse and viable businesses and jobs, detriment
to community cohesion in Tottenham through targeted harm to
ethnic minority communities. . .”

21.  The objection of Councillor Diakides was recorded. It included the representation:
“. .. the local traders reflected the rich cosmopolitan mixture of
the local community and their businesses responded to the
special needs of those communities...these would not be
accommodated within the proposed development.”
22. In neither of these lengthy documents, the report and the minutes, is there specific
reference to section 71(1) or the duties it imposes. Nor is there specific reference to
the substance of the duties, even without a reference to their source.
Submissions
23. However, Mr Wolfe accepted that if the decision maker applies some other policy,
including a planning policy, the application of which in effect means that the
requirements of section 71 are met, the section 71 duties can in substance be
discharged by that indirect route. What is required, he submitted, is a performance of
the duty in substance and in relation to the particular decision to be taken.
24.  In her submissions for The Equality and Human Rights Commission, Ms Mountfield
QC supported Mr Wolfe’s approach. She submitted that the presence before the
decision maker of documents making reference to equality issues was not a sufficient
compliance with the section 71 duty. There must be a demonstrable application of the
statutory duty to the particular facts. Focus on the needs of minority groups was
required. Ms Mountfield referred to the Code of Practice on the Duty to Promote Racial
Equality issued by the Commission. At 3.16, a series of questions is posed as a means of
assessing the effects of a decision. The first of them is:
“Could the policy or the way the function is carried out have an
adverse impact on an equality of opportunity for some racial
groups? In other words, does it put some racial groups at a
disadvantage?”

The fourth question is:
“Could the adverse impact be reduced by taking particular
measures?”

25. Mr Harrison accepted that the decision maker must be conscious of its duties but may

be conscious even if their source is not known. A long list of policies relevant to the
proposed development was specified in the report and councillors would have been
aware of their contents. Mr Harrison referred to policies 1.1 and 1.2 of the UDP.



Page 288

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Councillors knew that they were dealing with a deprived area. To grant the
permission, he submitted, was an attempt to regenerate the area and was of overall
benefit to the community, including ethnic minorities. The overall effect of the
decision should be considered.

Policy AC4(e) provided that proposals for development should promote an
entitlement and conditions where opportunities for enterprise are open to all.
Reference was made in the report to a poll conducted by consultants on behalf of
Grainger and to the proposed development resulting in “the physical regeneration of
the site through comprehensive redevelopment”. Reference was made to the option of
“integrating the non-Spanish speaking traders into alternative locations independently
while trying to keep the Latin American traders together to move as a group at the
right time”, an approach not in the event adopted. Concern was expressed about the
position of existing traders in the market to be demolished. It was suggested that the
traders could move to alternative locations which would be suitable. The Greater
London Authority stated that “the regeneration of this site with a mixed use
development is generally consistent with London planning policies”. The “mixed use
development” is welcomed but section 71 is not mentioned.

I say at this stage that I can only commend the thoroughness of the report, its focus on
regeneration and its expression of concern for the future of displaced market traders.
I find it impossible, however, to find any focus on the substance of the section 71 duty
when the complex issues to be decided by the council’s committee are set out and
debated.

Mr Harrison submitted that policies AC3 and AC4 embodied the purpose of paragraphs
1.1 to 1.5 of the UDP which provided:

13

. a large proportion of minority ethnic communities are
concentrated in those parts of the borough where the greatest
concentrations of disadvantage are found. Therefore the
regeneration initiatives will be targeted at the centre and the
east to narrow the gap between the east and west of the
borough.”

Wards Corner is in about the centre of the Borough. On the basis of that reference,
Mr Harrison submitted that the purpose of policies AC3 and AC4 is to promote
acceptable regeneration with the express objective of narrowing the gap between the
east and west of the Borough and as a consequence to reduce inequalities experienced
by ethnic minority communities. Section 71 considerations effectively merged with
the planning considerations, it was submitted.

In deciding whether the section 71(1) duty had been discharged, the court is entitled
to take a general view of the impact of a generally beneficial policy and the overall
policy context, Mr Harrison submitted. It was not necessary to consider each
component of the duty on a local planning authority item by item. Mr Harrison relied
on the decision of this court in Baker v Secretary of State for Communities & Local
Government [2008] EWCA Civ 141 and of Elias J in R (On the Application of Isaacs)
v Secretary of State [2009] EWHC 557 (Admin).

In Baker, Dyson LJ, at paragraph 31, defined the section 71(1) duty. He stated:



Page 289

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

32.

33.

“In my judgment, it is important to emphasise that the section
71(1) duty is not a duty to achieve a result, namely to eliminate
unlawful racial discrimination or to promote equality of
opportunity and good relations between persons of different
racial groups. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to
achieve these goals. The distinction is vital. Thus the Inspector
did not have a duty to promote equality of opportunity between
the appellants and persons who were members of different
racial groups; her duty was to have due regard to the need to
promote such equality of opportunity.”

At paragraph 36, Dyson LJ stated:

“I do not accept that the failure of an inspector to make explicit
reference to section 71(1) is determinative of the question
whether he has performed his duty under the statute. So to hold
would be to sacrifice substance to form.”

That is not disputed. Dyson LJ added, at paragraph 37:

“The question in every case is whether the decision-maker has
in substance had due regard to the relevant statutory need. . .
To see whether the duty has been performed, it is necessary to
turn to the substance of the decision and its reasoning.”

Both Baker and Isaacs involved the application of a specific government planning
policy on gypsies. The policy was set out in Circular 01/2006. In both cases the
relevant paragraphs of the Circular were analysed by the court with a view to
considering whether complying with them in substance discharged the duties in
section 71(1). It was held in each case that the duty had been discharged. Elias J
stated, at paragraph 53 in Isaacs:

“But where a policy has been adopted whose very purpose is
designed to address these problems, compliance with section 71
is, in my judgment, in general automatically achieved by the
application or implementation of the very policies which are
adopted to achieve that purpose.”

Mr Harrison submitted that, on a parity of reasoning, consideration of planning
polices in the UDP was equivalent to a specific consideration of section 71(1).

Judgment of Mr Lindblom QC

34.

The judge, in a conspicuously careful and thorough judgment, applied the approach
adopted in Baker and Isaacs to the present facts. He stated:

“In the present case the statutory needs were in the very focus
of the Council's own policies dedicated to the regeneration of
Wards Corner. In the UDP there is both a general impetus for
regeneration and the specific aim of promoting the welfare of
the communities, including the racial minority communities,



Page 290

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

35.

36.

which are principally concentrated in the most deprived parts of
the borough. This is the background to policies AC3 and AC4.
The Bridge NDC initiative also sprang from a recognition of
the problems afflicting the ethnic minority communities in
these areas. The development brief for Wards Corner had its
genesis in those issues too. I am satisfied that the authors of the
UDP believed they must reflect in its provisions for the Wards
Corner area the imperatives of advancing the interests of
diversity and racial equality, and recognized that securing
social, economic and physical regeneration in this area would
advance those interests.”

At paragraph 130, the judge stated:

“This, in my view, is a case in which the achievement of such
benefits was in compliance with the statutory goals in section
71. And I believe it is right to discern a parallel in the present
case with the circumstances in Isaacs. This too is a case in
which the considerations arising under section 71 effectively
merge with the matters to which the Council had to have regard
by virtue of its fundamental duties under the planning
legislation to make decisions on applications for planning
permission having regard to all material considerations,
including the development plan, and in accordance with the
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. It is to
be noted that no failure to go through that statutory exercise in
a legally satisfactory way has been alleged by the Claimant. To
my mind, this is significant in itself.”

The judge’s conclusion is at his paragraph 133:

“In my judgment, therefore, the Council did at least as much as
it had in substance to do to comply with its duties under section
71. It did so in the pragmatic fashion endorsed by the Court of
Appeal in Baker . . . Viewing the whole of the Council's
conduct in this case, I am satisfied that it met the substance of
the statutory requirements, and thus had regard to the section
71 needs in a way that was appropriate in all the circumstances.
I conclude that although the Council did not at any stage
articulate the fact that it was going about the discharge of its
section 71 duties as they bore on the traders in the Latin
American market and on the BME communities, it achieved
this end and it did so fully.”

Conclusions

37.

I am satisfied that, on the material before the council, there was sufficient potential
impact on equality of opportunity between persons of different racial groups, and on
good relations between such groups, to require that the impact of the decision on
those aspects of social and economic life be considered. This was not a planning
application, as Mr Harrison accepted, in which the impact of the decision on section



Page 291

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

71 considerations was so remote or peripheral that the substance of the duty could be
ignored. I have referred to the representations made to the council during the decision
making process. They do raise issues to which the section is capable of applying.
Concerns about Latin American traders or loss of housing by ethnic minorities, for
example, were expressed though the representations were not put in the context of the
specific statutory criteria.

The lack of focus in this case has to some extent affected all parties. Neither the
objectors nor the council focused on the specific statutory considerations. The
council argued that because the development would, as required by UDP policies,
assist that part of the Borough where a large proportion of minority ethnic
communities are concentrated, the duty is discharged. Some of the contrary
submissions appear to me to be based on the premise that the section requires
promotion of the interests of a racial minority or racial minorities. It does not; the
requirements are of a specific nature; due regard to the need to promote equality of
opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups. Neither
aim is necessarily achieved by a proposal which may promote the economic interests
of a particular racial group, even a deprived group. The subsection operates in a more
nuanced way than has at times been advocated. The promotion of equality of
opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups [my
emphasis] is not the same as the promotion of the interests of a particular racial group
or particular racial groups, though the two will usually be interrelated.

I have come to the conclusion that the section 71(1) duty was not discharged by the
council when granting this planning permission. The case is distinguishable from
Baker and Isaacs where policies had been adopted in a Circular whose very purpose
was to address the issues addressed in section 71(1). It cannot be said that the policies
cited in this case were focused on specific considerations raised by section 71. The
council policies to which reference has been made may be admirable in terms of
proposing assistance for ethnic minority communities, and it can be assumed that they
are, but they do not address specifically the requirements imposed upon the council by
section 71(1).

Not only is there no reference to section 71 in the report to committee, or in the
deliberations of the committee, but the required ‘due regard’ for the need to “promote
equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups”
is not demonstrated in the decision making process. “Due regard” need not require
the promotion of equality of opportunity but, on the material available to the council
in this case, it did require an analysis of that material with the specific statutory
considerations in mind. It does not, of course, follow that considerations raised by
section 71(1) will be decisive in a particular case. The weight to be given to the
requirements of the section is for the decision maker but it is necessary to have due
regard to the needs specified in section 71(1). There was no analysis of the material
before the council in the context of the duty.

I would allow the appeal and quash the permission.

I reach that conclusion with some regret because of the general desire in the Borough
for regeneration of this area, because of the amount of public and private resources
expended on this proposal and, because the council, subject to section 71
considerations, followed a thorough and fair procedure which led, albeit by a bare



Page 292

Judgment Approved by the court for handing down. Harris —and — LB of Haringey — and - Ors

majority, to a democratic decision. Though I hope it does not, the quashing of the
permission may lead to a long delay in the regenerative process in the Borough. The
issues which arose on this planning application were, however, such that it was
necessary for the requirements of section 71 to form in substance an integral part of
the decision making process and I am unable to hold that they did.

Lady Justice Arden :

43.

I agree.

Lord Justice Sullivan :

44,

I also agree



Page 293

APPENDIX 10

WARDS CORNER/SEVEN SISTERS
UNDERGROUND DEVELOPMENT BRIEF



Page 294

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 295

& HARINGEY COUNCIL &

Wards Corner/Seven
Sisters Underground
Development Brief.

January 2004



Page 296

1.Background

Site Context

Disttic Cenire

West Green Road . .

Wiards C

o
9
a4
o
U
it
14
i
i

éilg;"""flllllIIllllIIIIIIlllllIIIlllllIIIIllillllislllllllllllllli""

[ ]
g
©
I
o
c
8

Page Green Terrace

LT
L TTT
LTI
LT

This site comprises Seven Sisters Underground Station and its entrances and
frontage buildings on Seven Sisters Road, West Green Road and Tottenham High
Road, as well as the ‘Apex ’building to the immediate South. The area is generally
referred to as ‘Wards Corner ’ after the former Wards Department store which

traded from this site. This brief focuses on the Wards Corner site, which is the one
most likely to come forward in the short term. The two related sites are included for
completeness in the event that they come forward at a later stage, but consideration
should be given to linking the Wards Corner and Seven Sisters sites together, if at all

possible.

This is widely recognised as a ‘gateway’ location into the borough at a very
prominent location. At the current time the area is dominated by a number of vacant
and derelict buildings which present a real development opportunity to upgrade the
environment of the area.

The Seven Sisters/Bridge New Deal for Communities (NDC) and Haringey Council
wish to facilitate a high quality redevelopment and the regeneration of this key site.




Page 297

2.Regeneration Context

The area around the station is perceived as unsafe by the local community and
suffers from a high degree of crime. The range of shops and facilities in the area is
considered poor and regeneration of West Green is one of the objectives of the
adopted UDP.

The east of Haringey is recognised as one of the most deprived areas in London in
the draft London Plan and is targeted for regeneration. This is being linked to
improved transport links, training programmes and capacity building initiatives.

Haringey is taking a co-ordinated approach towards development along Tottenham
High Road. This is an historic corridor which runs on the alignment of the Roman
Ermin Street from the southern to the northern borders of the borough. It is split into
six conservation areas which run its full length, however there has been an overall
lack of investment in the building stock and the whole area suffers from high levels of
deprivation. A Heritage Economic Regeneration Scheme (Hers) operates along the
High Road.

Haringey has agreed a strategy for Tottenham High Road and in support of this is
preparing briefs which are supplementary to the borough’s draft replacement Unitary
Development Plan. This will provide the context for regeneration of Tottenham High
Road. The sites are also very close to the Tottenham International Area which is
subject to major regeneration initiatives, in partnership with the London Development
Agency.

The Seven Sisters/Bridge NDC is responsible for regeneration of the area from
Seven Sisters Underground south-westwards towards the borough boundary. The
area suffers from high levels of deprivation and in particular from high levels of crime.
Their previous public consultation exercises have highlighted the problems
surrounding this site and their determination to improve matters. The borough’s
Haringey Retail Capacity Assessment (September 2003) also identifies that the
Wards Corner site should be the focus for redevelopment, acknowledging the need
to improve West Green’s shopping environment and consolidate the amount and
quality of facilities.

3.Site Description and Context

The brief area includes three separate, but geographically closely related parcels of
land. The first is ‘Wards Corner’, bounded by the High Road, Seven Sisters Road,
Suffield Road and West Green Road. The second is the Seven Sisters underground
building on Seven Sisters Road, and an adjoining parade of shops. The final parcel is
a Council office building on the High Road, called Apex House. In the short term, only
the Wards Corner site is likely to come forward for development and so the brief
focuses on this site, but opportunities to link it to the other two sites should be
explored.

The sites are located within the West Green Road/Seven Sisters District Centre. The
buildings on West Green Road and High Street are within its secondary frontage in
the adopted Unitary Development Plan, which is proposed to be redesignated
primary frontage in its Replacement.

The Wards Corner site is predominately two-three storey late Victorian commercial
buildings, some of which are derelict, as well as Seven Sisters Market. The




Page 298

commercial buildings on the High Road frontage are all located within the Page
Green conservation area, although they are considered to make a neutral
contribution to its character and appearance. At the rear there is a car park and a

residential terrace on Suffield Road.

Apex House is a four/five storey Council office building developed in the 1970s as
part of a mixed use development. It includes a clock tower, as well as public toilets,

on the Page Green frontage.

vationArea

Green Conser

-‘.

i

—i— Pages

.
PAGE GiERN TEsAE

4 .\Vision
The vision for this area is to:-

Create a landmark development that acts as a high

quality gateway to Seven Sisters, providing mixed

uses with improved facilities and safer underground
station access.




Page 299

The remainder of this brief is set out in the form of development principles, which are
design and planning objectives in order to bring about this vision. A planning
obligation will be used, where appropriate, to help to secure these objectives.

5.Development Principles

en Terrace \

Page Cre

[ | :I
| |I

/ treet |
l [

A) Urban Design

* Development must provide an attractive and high quality landmark
and gateway to the Seven Sisters/Tottenham High Road area.

The sites visual prominence provides a great opportunity for an imaginative
development.

On Wards Corner a development of 5-6 storeys in height may be appropriate,
stepping down to three storeys on Suffield Road. On Apex Corner there is scope for
a higher, landmark development, taking the opportunity presented by a corner site.
The treatment of the roofline will be particularly important. There should, however, be
a symmetry and consistency of architectural treatment across Seven Sisters Road,
which together should act as a gateway into the Bridge community area. A public




Page 300

feature of equal, or preferably greater, landmark merit as the clocktower should be
included and the public lavatories should be replaced.

At the Seven Sisters Underground there is potential for an ‘airights * development
(that is over the station) which also brings the station entrance further forward
towards the street. Development here could be around 4 storeys in height.

e New development should regenerate and improve the living and
working environment and make best use of the opportunities
presented by the site.

The area is run-down and the buildings on the Wards Corner site in particular, are in
need of physical renewal. However, the former Wards department store building itself
is considered to have some architectural merit and any development scheme should
reflect, and retain, the architectural features of the store, if at all possible. Any new
development on the site should take the opportunity to reduce the opportunities for
crime, by embracing the concepts set out in the Police’s “Secured By Design”.

e Development must enhance the Page Green Conservation Area.

The buildings at Wards Corner make only a neutral contribution to the character and
appearance of the conservation area, (although the Wards store itself has some
merit). In these circumstances, national policy PPG15 (“Planning & the Historic
Environment”) sees such sites as a spur to high quality, imaginative development.
Pages Green itself has the potential to be an attractive open space which has the
opportunity for environmental enhancement and much improved links to the Wards
Corner area.




Page 3041

e Buildings should be of a distinctive and imaginative modern design
with simple and robust detailing to provide a low maintenance and
sustainable solution.

On this side of the High Road there is a lack of strong context at this point. This
provides the opportunity for bold and creative design.

e Development should include active frontages, and visual variety and
interest, onto the West Green Road, High Road and Seven Sisters
Road frontages.

Maintaining activity of the street will be particularly important, in particular more uses
that are open in the evening looking out onto the street.

e Development should take its cue from the richness and diversity of
the communities and small shops in the West Green Road area.

This diversity is one of the great strengths of the area. The development should add
to rather than detract from this richness.

e Development should include significant and co-ordinated
improvement to the public realm, including public art and street trees.
A wide pavement and clear building line along the High Road should
be maintained.

The current wide pavement and street tree cover, with opportunities for forecourt
seating, is a strong positive feature of the area. The existing Wards Corner building
line should be retained, so far as is possible, in order to maintain this sense of space.
Mature trees should be protected where possible, and additional hard and soft
landscaping introduced. The air duct for the underground is subject to graffiti and
should be replaced or improved, if possible.

e Development should incorporate the principles of sustainable design
including use of waste and recycling.

B) Transport and Access

e Development must be designed, in conjunction with the Police and
the British Transport Police, to reduce opportunities for crime,
especially around the Station entrances.

The need to improve the negative perception of public safety, and reduce the
opportunities for crime, both in and around buildings, and improve access and
security around the underground entrances, are key considerations in the proposed
regeneration of the site. Although there would be the need to secure agreement with
London Underground, it is considered that the potential to develop a single, and safe,
at grade pedestrian entrance and concourse, to replace the existing arrangements,
should be investigated.




Page 302

* It should improve access to the Seven Sisters Underground and
Overground Stations, and achieve improved interchange between
them. To achieve this, comprehensive development is promoted.

Seven Sisters underground station is programmed to be refurbished, under the public
private partnership, in due course, with works likely to include CCTV, help points,
escalator modernisation, access improvements, etc. The timetable is not known at

this stage. The Brief must be seen in the context of the plans of London Underground
and the franchisees (Metronet’s). However, development of the site should be seen
as enabling development, with a view to improving underground access at ground
level. Financial contributions to go towards these improvements will be secured by a
planning obligation. Piecemeal development will be resisted. Although it would be a
matter for London Underground, improvements could involve excavating a new
concourse, with an entrance onto the street frontage, or alternatively a lightweight
street level structure on top of the existing concourse and station entrances.

e The development should consider improvements to pedestrian
access and safety in the area. Returning the gyratory to a two-way
flow may facilitate this.

Transport for London (TfL) are responsible for both Tottenham High Road and Seven
Sisters Road. It is their policy to phase out gyratory systems, as these have higher
speeds and more accidents, as well as creating an unfriendly pedestrian
environment. Although outside the remit of the Brief, studies are been undertaken by
TfL, in order to identify potential modifications to the gyratory system, as part of the
Tottenham International Development Framework. The study will determine the
feasibility of this proposal.




Page 303

e Development should include improved bus waiting and interchange
facilities

This is an important interchange between tube and bus, and opportunities should be
investigated as to how this interchange could be improved, for the benefit of all
passengers.

e some public car parking for the shopping centre should be retained.
Private car parking should be minimised.

At Westerfield Road the car park is already being reduced in size, by about half, due
to London Underground development. As West Green needs to retain sufficient
shoppers car parking, it is not envisaged that it will come forward for development in
the short term. Any retail car parking should be shared parking for the centre as a
whole.

The Councils’ maximum parking standards in the replacement Unitary Development
Plan apply and car parking should be kept to a minimum given the site 's excellent
public transport accessibility. The Council would consider “car-free” housing,
controlled by legal agreement, in this location. Parking for the residential units behind
Apex House will not be affected. Minimum disabled persons and cycle parking
standards should be met.

All servicing for the Wards Corner site should be from Suffield Road and not the High
Road.

e Development should give priority to pedestrians and cyclists.

The proposals must emphasise sustainable modes of transport, including facilities for
cyclists and retaining existing streets as through routes.

e Development should be accessible to all

The development should be accessible to the whole community irrespective of age or
disability. (see Haringey Council’'s SPG4 “Access for All — Mobility Standards”.)

C) Land Uses and Development

e The development is suitable for a range of land uses, including retail
uses to promote the vitality and viability of the West Green
Road/Seven Sisters District Centre.

Development should be for a vital mix of land uses. As a District Centre,
development suitable to its scale and function would be welcomed, providing it fulfils
a qualitative need. Replacement of the covered market, although outside the remit of
the Brief, would be welcomed.

Housing is suitable as part of the range of uses, especially at above ground floor
level. Any housing lost on Suffield Road should be replaced as part of the overall
scheme. Affordable housing, meeting the needs of the borough will be secured,
although it is unlikely that pure social housing would be sought. Key worker or shared




Page 304

ownership would be encouraged, which is supported by the Tottenham High Road
Strategy. The amount of affordable housing should be in accordance with the policies
of the Council, but will take account of the other planning benefits being enabled by
the development and of commercial viability.

The One-Stop-Shop at Apex house should be retained or replaced as part of the
development, as this provides a vital service to the South Tottenham area.

* Development of the Wards Corner Site should take place
comprehensively secured by compulsory purchase if necessary

The objectives of the brief, in particular improvement of the underground and
providing new retail facilities, are highly unlikely to be achieved by piecemeal
development of the Wards Corner site. Although it is likely that the landowners will
co-operate to secure this, compulsory purchase cannot be ruled out at this stage.

The entire Bridge NDC area was declared a Housing Renewal Area in 2003. Housing
Renewal status provides the Council with additional powers for land clearance and
forms part of the renewal strategy to regenerate a particular rundown area.

6.Delivery

The London Borough of Haringey, through its ownership of the Council offices and
713 Seven Sisters Road, is in a key position to secure a comprehensive and
successful development.

Consultants have carried out discussions with all of the principal landowners and the
majority are enthusiastic about bringing forward development. However, the
possibility of using proactive planning powers to secure the whole site cannot be
ruled out at this stage.

The Council are aware that the London Transport Board has secured easements, or
rights of passage, over/under a number of properties, for the purpose of “using the
subsoil or maintaining in or through such subsoil or under surface tunnels or works
authorised by the 1955 British Transport Commission Act together with the space
occupied by such tunnels and works etc..”. These rights have been secured over the
properties at:

711,713,715,717,719,721,723,727/249,247,251/259 Seven Sisters Road

7.Planning Obligation

The vision of the project will be secured, in part, by a planning obligation, negotiated
through the planning process.

The priorities include improving underground station access, reducing opportunities
for crime, securing safer pedestrian crossing of principal roads, ensuring adequate
affordable housing to meet the Borough'’s needs, improving the environmental quality
of the area, provision of public art and securing local employment benefits, through
training and local labour schemes.




Page 305

8.Content of a Planning Application

Any planning application should be accompanied by sufficient information to enable
the application to be determined. On major cases, Haringey strongly encourages
applicants to undertake their own consultation and to include a statement of the
outcome of this in their application.

The scheme should include:-

-Urban Design Statement

-Full drawings including perspective and illustrative drawings

-Policy statement, including retail policy

-Statement as to how the affordable housing will be delivered

-Transport Assessment.

-Conservation assessment of any buildings in the conservation area proposed to be
demolished.

9. Further Information

This Development Brief gives guidelines on how the site could be satisfactorily
redeveloped. Haringey Council’s Planning Applications Sub-Committee (PASC) in
December 2003 considered the results of the public consultation that took place on
the Brief and it was agreed by the Executive of the Council in January 2004 for
adoption as the approved Brief for the site. Once adopted, the Brief becomes a
material consideration in determining any future planning application on the site and
Supplementary Planning Guidance, as part of the review of the Haringey Unitary
Development Plan.

The UDP is undergoing a review and the guidelines set out in this Development Brief
will be adopted by the emerging plan and become policy for the site.

The Council considers that the development scheme for the site should be the
subject of a design competition, in order to secure high quality redevelopment, that
would lead to the overall enhancement, and regeneration, of the area.




Page 306

London Borough of Haringey Planning Department.
Policy and Projects Group

639 High Road,

Tottenham,

London N17 8BD

UDP@haringey.gov.uk

www.haringey.gov.uk




	Agenda
	5 Wards Corner Site, High Road, N15
	Wards Corner report and appendices 1-3
	2011-06-03 Wards Corner EQIA Final (2)
	APPENDIX 5 COVER SHEET
	DVS Viability Assessment Exec Summary
	APPENDICES 6 & 7
	APPENDIX 8 COVER SHEET
	GLA Stage 1 Report Final
	APPENDIX 9 COVER SHEET
	JR Decision
	APPENDIX 10 COVER SHEET
	wards_corner_seven_sister_underground_development_brief1 (2)


